651 Commerce Drive
Rosevilie, CA 95678

phone  (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Minutes DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting / Teleconference — March 22, 2018

1 - Call Meeting to Order and Introductions
Chair Bob Lingl called the meeting to order at 9:32 am at NCPA’s Roseville Office, 651
Commerce Drive, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in

attendance are shown on the attached attendance list. Mark Chandler (Lodi) arrived at 9:45
am.

2 - Approve Minutes of the February 22, 2018 Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Liz Kirkley and seconded by Roger Frith to approve the
Minutes of the February 22, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried
unanimously on a roll call vote of those members present. Plumas-Sierra and San Francisco
BART were absent.

PUBLIC FORUM

No comments from the pubilic.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3 - General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

— Mentioned that a luncheon was held for NCPA’s Headquarter staff celebrating NCPA'’s 50t
Anniversary. Retired NCPA staff were invited to speak and share their stories of their time
at NCPA.

— Gave a brief overview of the upcoming training sessions being held at NCPA.

— Gave an overview of the Utility Directors’ Retreat agenda and outcomes. The Utility
Director’s Retreat as held in Healdsburg earlier this month.

— Attended a Renewable Energy Forum in Phoenix and hear from utility industry leaders on
their concerns and issues with the new tax bill regarding renewable and tax credits. In
addition, discussed the challenges others are facing regarding the new energy markets.



— Policy and IOU leaders held a meeting to discuss wildfire legislation and how to work
together on the liability issue. NCPA, SCPPA and CMUA plan to hold meeting to discuss
as well.

— Gave an update on NCPA's Support and Shared Services Agreement and provided a copy
of the monthly status report.

— Utility Director Liz Kirkley (Lodi) shared an overview of NCPA’s history in honoring the
ongoing celebration of NCPA’s 50 Anniversary. Every month the Commission will be
presented with a commemorative pin that represents a piece of NCPA'’s history.

— Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks gave a presentation outlining the budget
process and timeline, what the proposed budget includes, major drivers of budget
changes, baseline budget analysis, A&G cost comparison, salaries and benefits, with
discussion on CalPERS unfunded liability impact, proposed staffing changes, and
what's not included or will change before the April discussion. Estimated rollout of
budget is the beginning of April.

4 — Executive Committee

Committee Chair Bob Lingl reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting.

5 — Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met three times since the
last Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 12-22 on today’s Agenda.
A quorum of the Committee was established and supported staff's recommendation. The
Committee also met and discussed the proposed FY 2018-19 Power Management, Generation
Services and Administrative Services budgets.

6 — Finance Commiittee

Committee Chair David Hagele report that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission
meeting, however staff wanted to update the Commission on the results of the Hydro refunding.
On March 13", NCPA staff finalized the refunding of the 2008 Hydro Series C bonds. The transaction
attracted a diverse group of institutional accounts wanting to own these bonds with several maturities
being oversubscribed. This allowed us to reduce the yields generating additional savings to the
participants. Final numbers for the project participants include the following:

e NPV Savings: $7.6 million through final maturity of 2024

» Percentage savings of refunded bonds: 10%

* Average annual savings: approx. $1.37 million per year

The next Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for May 8". Chair Hagele also thanked the
Utility Directors and NCPA Staff for coming to Healdsburg for their Utility Director’s Retreat.

7 — Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee met twice since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee discussed matters related to Hometown Connections,
Inc., potential transactions involving NCPA and other joint action entities. The Committee also
met and discussed the consideration of creating an Ad Hoc Committee to address inverse
condemnation risk associated with wild fires caused by electric transmission or distribution
lines.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
March 22, 2018



8 - Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Teresa O’Neill reported that the Committee did not meet since the last
Commission meeting, however staff wanted to update the Commission on Legislative and
Regulatory events. The NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference in Washington, D.C., will be
held April 15-18 — online registration is now open. A federal legislative briefing will be
scheduled in early April for those members attending the conference. The next Committee
meeting is scheduled on May 23 at NCPA’s Roseville office.

9 — Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

Dan Beans (Redding) announced Mayor Kristen Schreder as the newly appointed NCPA
Commissioner.

Bob Lingl (Lompoc) announced that Utility Director Larry Bean announced his retirement and will
retire on May 1. Ron Stassi will serve as interim Utility Director until the position is filled.
Recruitment for the City Manager position has been posted. The Mission to Mars launch is
scheduled on Saturday, May 5 at 4 am for those that may be interested in attending.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to
determine if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent
Calendar. No items were pulled for discussion.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Teresa O'Neill to approve the

Consent Calendar consisting of items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 18, 19, and 20. The motion
carried by a majority of those members present on a roll call vote. Abstentions are noted below.
San Francisco BART and Plumas Sierra were absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Month Ended {Date} — approval by all members.
11. Treasurer’s Report for the Month Ended {Date} — accept by all members.

12. Resolution 18-13, Andritz Hydro — Five Year Field Services Agreement for
engineering and field services associated with Collierville Hydroelectric Powerhouse;
Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Hydroelectric Facilities — adopt resolution
by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a multiple
year Amended Terms and Conditions Agreement with Andritz Hydro for engineering and
field services as needed at the NCPA Hydroelectric Facility, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $10,000,000 over five years for use at the hydroelectric facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA.
Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1 0,000,000
over five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase
orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.
Port of Oakland, Redding and Truckee Donner abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
March 22, 2018



13. Resolution 18-14, Bay Cities Fire Protection, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for maintenance, inspection, testing and other necessary services
of fire sprinkler systems; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility
Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Bay Cities Fire Protection, Inc., for maintenance, inspection, testing and
other necessary services on fire sprinkler systems, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds.
At the time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with
NCPA procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other agreements
with similar service providers including Northern Industrial Construction, and Fire Safety
Supply Company. NCPA seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever services are
needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders
based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

Port of Oakland abstained.

14. Resolution 18-15, Delegate to the General Manager authority to enter into one or more
agreements and to issue purchase orders, with a total not-to-exceed amount of
$550,000 for maintaining and upgrading crane equipment prior to the generator rewind
at Collierville Powerhouse on the NCPA Hydroelectric Project — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing Authorize the General Manager to enter into one or more agreements
and to issue purchase orders, with a total not-to-exceed amount of $550,000, for maintaining
and upgrading the gantry crane at Collierville powerhouse in advance of the stator winding
replacement
Fiscal Impact: Based on preliminary budget quotes, the total cost of needed maintenance
and upgrades is anticipated to be approximately $500,000. A contingency of 10% is
recommended, resulting in a total project authorization of up to $550,000.

Port of Oakland and Truckee Donner abstained.

15. Resolution 18-16 Dow Chemical Company — Five Year Sales Contract for Iron Chelate;
Applicable to the following projects: Geysers Geothermal Facility — adopt resolution by
all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Sales Contract
with Dow Chemical Company for Iron Chelate, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,500,000 over five years for use at the Geysers Geothermal Facility — adopt resolution by
all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Sales Contract
with Dow Chemical Company for Iron Chelate, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,500,000 over five years for use at the Geysers Geothermal Facility.

Fiscal Impact: Staff has contacted a number of different chemical suppliers, Calpine
Geysers, and refineries that use the Stretford process for H2S abatement, to find other
chemical providers to supply the needed Iron Chelate for the Stretford process. Dow
Chemical is the only company providing this chemical on the west coast. As a result, staff
recommends approval of a sole source purchase agreement with Dow Chemical Company
for Iron Chelate, which is required for use at Plants 1 and 2 of the Geysers Geothermal
Facility. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the product
needed at the time the product is required.

Port of Oakland, Palo Alto and Truckee Donner abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
March 22, 2018



16. Resolution 18-17, HRST, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for
inspection services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations,
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
HRST, Inc. for inspection services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1 ,000,000
over five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued
following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

17. Resolution 18-19, Industrial Air Flow Dynamics, Inc. - First Amendment to General
Services Agreement for roof seal replacement services; Applicable to the following
projects: Lodi Energy Center — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to General Services Agreement with
Industrial Air Flow Dynamics, Inc. for roof seal replacement services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$300,000 for use at the Lodi Energy Center facility.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $300,000 to be
used out of the NCPA Lodi Energy Center approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the
terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

Alameda, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, and Truckee Donner abstained.

18. Resolution 18-20, Nor-Cal Battery Company - Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for battery maintenance services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Nor-Cal Battery Company for battery maintenance services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $250,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (*“SCPPA”), or by
SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $250,000 over
five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase
orders referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

19. Resolution 18-21, Public Works Agreement for the Geothermal Plant 2 Sulfur Platform
Project; Applicable to the following project: Geothermal Plant 2 — adopt resolution by all
members increasing the not to exceed amount for the Sulfur Platform Public Works Project at
NCPA Geothermal Plant #2 from $731,944 to $803,910, to cover the increase in material and
labor costs, and delegating authority to the General Manager to issue purchase orders and
change orders for the updated not to exceed amount.

Fiscal Impact. Total cost of the project is $730,910.18, as specified in the contractor’s revised
pricing. Contingency funds of $72,999.82 (approximately 10%) are further requested to cover
possible change orders, for a revised total project cost not to exceed $803,910. Purchase
orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued consistent with
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding, and Truckee Donner abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
March 22, 2018



20. Resolution 18-22, T.A. Krause, Inc. dba T.A. Krause Construction and Custom Painting -
Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for preventive roofing and siding
maintenance; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations,
Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
T.A. Krause, Inc. dba T.A. Krause Construction and Custom Painting for preventive roofing and
siding maintenance, including application of sealant, primer, and coating, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds.
NCPA currently has in place other agreements with similar service providers, including Hug'’s
Painting, Inc. At the time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work
consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from multiple
qualified providers whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider.
NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the
time the service is required.

Port of Oakland abstained.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

21. Resolution 18-18, Insurance Reimbursements for Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repair and Beaver
Creek Cleanout Projects — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager
to execute Proof of Loss forms for $1,770,036 (gross) for the Beaver Creek Reservoir Storm
Damage Claim and $2,600,000 (gross) for the Adit 4 Landslide Claim to settle and close both
claims at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project.

Fiscal Impact:

Adit 4:

In 2016, the Insurer originally determined that the Adit 4 Spoils Facility was not a named facility
under the insurance policy. However, after staff met with the underwriters and presented a case
for coverage, the underwriters reversed their position and determined that the Adit 4 Spoils
Facility was a covered asset within the Collierville Power Tunnel Complex. Initial proposed
reimbursement values were significantly less than those eventually reached and presented
herein. Staff subsequently submitted a targeted supplemental engineering analysis, which
supported the case for greater reimbursement, resulting in a final uplift in the reimbursement.

On February 28, 2018, NCPA staff and the Hydroelectric Project Insurance Underwriters
(Insurer) reached a negotiated tentative reimbursement settlement of $2.6M of the total
Commission authorized cost of $3.25M. The total net reimbursement, minus the $500,000
deductible, is $2.1M. The policy exclusions applied were:

= Maintenance and betterment related work

* Salaried NCPA staff time

Staff believes that the proposed reimbursement is reasonable based upon
maintenance/betterment policy exclusions in conjunction both with extensive interaction with
Insurer, since early 2016, and their multiple/extensive increases in proposed reimbursements

Staff recommends the settlement for the following reasons:
e The amount is reasonable based upon already anticipated maintenance and betterment
exclusions

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
March 22, 2018



* This is the most that could reasonably be expected based upon the extensive increases
in proposed reimbursement by the Insurer
Further negotiations could potentially have negative impacts
Further negotiations will extend the reimbursement timelines

Beaver Creek:

From January 2017-February 2017, flooding filled Beaver Creek Reservoir with over 11,000
cubic yards of sediment and debris that forced the Beaver Creek Diversion off-line until removal
could be accomplished. NCPA was able to piggyback the baseline emergency project and
remove an additional 5,000 cubic yards of pre-2017 storm deposits. Adding this work to the
Project minimized the extraction cost by amending the emergency dredging permits and
leveraging the already mobilized contractor. The total Project costs came in at $2,200,641. On
February 28, 2018, NCPA staff and the Insurers reached a negotiated tentative reimbursement
settlement amount of $1,770,036. The total net reimbursement, minus the $500,000 deductible,
is $1,270,036. The policy exclusions applied were:

* Debris removal for debris deposited prior to the 2017 storm

= Salaried NCPA staff time

Staff believes that the proposed reimbursement is straightforward and reasonabie.

Staff anticipates that a significant portion of the $500,000 deductible will be reimbursed by
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and California Office of Emergency.

Jake Eymann, NCPA Staff, gave a presentation on the Insurance Reimbursements for Adit 4
Spoils Facility Repair and Beaver Creek Cleanout Projects.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Roger Frith authorizing the
General Manager to execute Proof of Loss forms for $1,770,036 (gross) for the Beaver Creek
Reservoir Storm Damage Claim and $2,600,000 (gross) for the Adit 4 Landslide Claim to settle
and close both claims at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project. Motion carried by majority on a roll
call vote of those members present.

Port of Oakland, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner abstained. San Francisco BART
and Plumas-Sierra were absent.

22. Resolution 18-23, Approve Provision of Services to San Jose Clean Energy — adopt
resolution by all members approving approve the Services Agreement with San Jose Clean
Energy, under which NCPA will supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services
to San Jose Clean Energy, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services
Agreement approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. NCPA staff also recommends that the
Commission authorize NCPA's General Manager, or the General Manager’s designee, to
execute the Services Agreement on behalf of NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: In consideration for NCPA's provision of services, for the first one (1) year
period in which NCPA is supplying services to SICE, SJCE shall pay NCPA an amount equal
to Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) per month during the period of September 1,
2018 through the date on which SJICE implements Phase 2 of its program, and Fifty Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($52,500) per month for the period beginning on the date
SJCE implements Phase 2 of its program through August 31, 2019. For each subsequent
one (1) year period of the term of this Agreement, SJCE shall pay NCPA an amount equal to
the sum of the annual amount charged to SJCE during the prior year escalated at a rate of
two percent (2%) per year, provided, however, for the one (1) year period immediately
following the first one (1) year period, the amount of compensation used to perform the
calculation described herein shall be $630,000.00. Such annual amounts shall be billed to
SJCE in twelve (12) equal monthly installments.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 7
March 22, 2018



In addition to the primary scope of services NCPA shall supply to SICE, NCPA may also
provide certain Supplemental Services to SJCE, as described in the Services Agreement. In
consideration for all Supplemental Services, SICE shall compensate NCPA on a time and
materials basis, in accordance with the applicable supplemental services wage schedule
contained in the Services Agreement.

NCPA'’s administrative costs for development of the Services Agreement with SJCE will be
allocated to members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as
described in the NCPA annual budget.

NCPA staff Tony Zimmer gave a detailed presentation on the Services Agreement with San
Jose Clean Energy. The Commission discussed and asked for clarification on the escalation
of cost, as well as the revenue reduction and cost reductions.

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Madeline Deaton approving the
Services Agreement with San Jose Clean Energy, under which NCPA will supply certain
scheduling and portfolio management services to San Jose Clean Energy, including any non-
substantive modifications to the Services Agreement approved by NCPA's General Counsel.
NCPA staff also recommends that the Commission authorize NCPA’s General Manager, or the
General Manager’s designee, to execute the Services Agreement on behalf of NCPA. Motion
carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART and Plumas-Sierra were absent.

23. New Hometown Connections, Inc., — Northern California Power Agency membership in a new
nonprofit corporation, new Hometown Connections, Inc., that will provide advanced metering
systems and data management services to public power entities. The corporation may also
provide access to reduced cost vendor services, and public power management and strategic
consulting. (Discussion Only)

General Manager Randy Howard provided an update and presentation on Hometown
Connections, Inc. (HCI), AMP Ohio AMI Program, as well as the benefits of becoming a
founding member of HCI. This item was for discussion only. No action required or taken.

The Commission did not convene into closed session for agenda item 24.
CLOSED SESSION

24. Conference with Legal Counsel discussion with asset purchase negotiators pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8: the potential participation with other joint action agencies
in the purchase of Hometown Connections, Inc., including their existing lease and other assets
located at 12081 W. Alameda Parkway, #464, Lakewood, CO 80228. The asset purchase
negotiators will be Randy Howard and Bob Caracristi. NCPA'’s negotiators will negotiate with
Alabama Municipal Electric Authority, Public Power Inc. and American Public Power
Association. Commission instruction to the negotiators may include both price and terms of
payment.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 8
March 22, 2018



INFORMATION ITEMS

25. Hydrology Report — update and presentation.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave an update and presentation on the hydrology at the
Hydroelectric Project.

26. Lodi CT1 Area Future Development Report — update and presentation.
Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave an update and presentation on the Lodi CT1 Area
Future Development Project. The City of Lodi purchased the land around CT1 project. Future
proposed plans from the Lodi Planning Commission include building a hotel and three-story
apartment buildings adjacent to the facility. NCPA is in discussion with city staff and will keep

the Commission updated on developments. Commissioner Mark Chandler (Lodi) mentioned
that this development project is important to the City.

NEW BUSINESS

Chair Lingl recognized those members and staff that have March birthdays.

ADJOURNMENT

The March 22, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:55 am.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 9
March 22, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting / Teleconference of March 22, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
ALAMEDA Madeline Deaton
BIGGS Roger Frith
GRIDLEY Paul Eckert
HEALDSBURG David Hagele (Teleconference)
LODI Mark Chandler
LOMPOC Bob Lingl
PALO ALTO Greg Scharff (Teleconference)
PORT OF OAKLAND Basil Wong

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

REDDING

Dan Beans (Teleconference)

ROSEVILLE

Bonnie Gore

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT (BART)

Teresa O’Neill (Teleconference)

SANTA CLARA
SHASTA LAKE James Takehara (Teleconference)
TRUCKEE DONNER Joe Horvath (Teleconference)

UKIAH

Mel Grandi




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting /Teleconference of March 22, 2018

Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the

public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Nico Proco Alameda
Terry Crowley (Teleconference) Healdsburg
Liz Kirkley Lodi
Ed Shikada (Teleconference) Palo Alto
Jon Abendschein (Teleconference) Palo Alto
Kirsten Schreder (Teleconference) Redding
Michelle Bertolino Roseville

John Roukema (Teleconference)

Silicon Valley Power

Kathleen Hughes (Teleconference)

Silicon Valley Power

Randy Howard NCPA
Jane Luckhardt NCPA
Ken Speer NCPA
Dave Dockham NCPA
Jane Cirrincione NCPA
Jake Eymann NCPA
Sarah Taheri NCPA
Tony Zimmer NCPA
Cary Padgett NCPA




F,
ﬂ
4 ‘\

f-_“" ;

/ANCPA CONSENT CALENDAR

NOGRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to

determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL
Commission Meeting Date: 6\39'\ \ y

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # lD to# QO

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:

#

T

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS:

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda ™
BART 4

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto 5. AN \&

Port of Oakland 22— \Gq-20

Vg S & VEVA/AT NS

Redding 3 5 1y S A

—

Roseville Vi

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner '\9“‘\'&_\“ \D i \.Ug <

Ukiah

| - 1(-'(

Plumas-Sierra >

ATTEST: (\ N &X“ 7\\ AV

Cary A. ng@tt \
Assistant Secretary to the Commission




651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

AT
IVERSARY
e

ANN

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett - Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject:  April 18, 2018, Special Commission Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions — Chair Bob Lingl called the meeting to order at
8:05 am (EST) at the Marriott Marquis, 901 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. A
quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance are shown on the
attached attendance list.

Public Forum: Chair Lingl asked if any members of the public were present who would like to
address the Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

CLOSED SESSION

2. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northem Califomia Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville,
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated no reportable action was taken
on Closed Session Item 2.
ADJOURNMENT

The Commission adjourned at 9:11 am (EST).

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary



* Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting of April 18, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
ALAMEDA Nico Procos
BIGGS Roger Frith
GRIDLEY
HEALDSBURG David Hagele
LODI
LOMPOC Bob Lingl
PALO ALTO Debra Lloyd
PORT OF OAKLAND Basil Wong

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

REDDING Dan Beans
ROSEVILLE Michelle Bertolino
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT (BART)
SANTA CLARA Teresa O’Neill
SHASTA LAKE
TRUCKEE DONNER Joe Horvath

UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency

Special Commission Meeting of April 18, 2018

Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the

public is voluntary.

NAME

AFFILIATION

Terry Crowley

Healdsburg

John Roukema

Silicon Valley Power

Randy Howard NCPA
Jane Luckhardt NCPA
Jane Cirrincione NCPA

David Ralston

Foley & Lardner

Frank Murray

Foley & Lardner




S ANNIVERSARY'

Commission Staff Report

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636

fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

AGENDA ITEMNO.: D

Date: April 26, 2018
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: April 4, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.






651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

[ Mcpa N\
(’ et Eh phone (916) 781-3636
) fax (916) 783-7693
. N web www.ncpa.com
ANNIVERSARY
N

Minutes

Date: April 12, 2018

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Carrie Pollo

Subject:  April 4, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

. Call meeting to order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Vice Chair

Tikan Singh at 9:05 am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference
and/or on-line presentation were Alan Hanger and Debbie Whiteman (Alameda), Mark
Sorensen (Biggs), Paul Eckert (Gridley), Jim Stack (Palo Alto), Jared Carpenter (Port of
Oakland), and Steve Hance and Kathleen Hughes (Santa Clara). Those attending in person are
listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART,
Healdsburg, Plumas-Sierra, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was
established.

PUBLIC FORUM

No

2,

public comment.

Approve minutes from the February 28, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting, and the
February 13 and March 13, 2018 Special Facilities Committee Meetings. A motion was
made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang recommending approval of the
February 28, 2018 Facilities Committee meeting minutes, and the February 13 and March 13,
2018 Special Facilities Committee meeting minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
The motion passed.

Geothermal Facilities Decommission Funding Schedule — Staff presented background
information and was seeking a recommendation from the Facilities Committee for Commission
approval of a modified Decommission Funding Schedule for the Geothermal Facility based on
the 2016 Decommission Study. A draft Commission Staff Report with the draft Resolution were
available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Alan Hanger
recommending Commission approval stating that the collection of funds for the
decommissioning of the Geothermal facilities be modified based on the 2006 and 2016
Decommission Estimates. The recommendation is to continue the current funding schedule



based on the 2006 estimate through FY 2024. Starting in FY 2025, decommission funding will
increase to a flat rate of $2,417,081 per fiscal year through FY 2058. A vote was taken by roll
call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN =

Palo Alto and Port of Oakland. The motion passed.

4. Geothermal Facilities — Geysers Economic Curtailment — Staff presented background
information, and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval regarding Geysers
curtailment due to expected negative pricing.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval that the Geothermal facility not be curtailed unless Power
prices are a negative price of at least $25/MWhr, with a curtailment level maximum of 45 MW.
The amount of curtailment may need to be adjusted based upon steam field response. Only
Cycle when the daily prices are expected to be at the negative price above for 4 hours or more.
Limit cycling to once per day. Staff will also return to Facilities Committee with a report should
instances of curtailment occur. YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Roseville, and
Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto and Port of Oakland. The motion passed.

5. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Univar USA Inc. MTGSA - Staff is
seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Univar USA, Inc. for the purchase of chemicals, with a not to exceed amount of
$1,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Members. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged
against approved Annual Operating Budgets. **This item was pulled from the agenda and will
be moved to the May Facilities Committee Meeting.**

6. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA - Herold and Mielenz Inc. MTGSA —
Staff is seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Herold and Mielenz, Inc. for motor maintenance services, with a not to exceed
amount of $750,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be
charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. **This item was pulled from the agenda
and will be moved to the May Facilities Committee Meeting.**

7. Geothermal Facilities — TNG Energy Services MTGSA — Staff gave background information
and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with TNG Energy Services for labor, materials, and tools for serving wellhead valves
and other equipment, with a not to exceed amount of $750,000, for use at NCPA Geothermal
facilities. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against
approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement
were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNG Energy Services for labor, materials,
and tools to service wellhead valves and other associated equipment as part of NCPA’s
preventive maintenance and continuing operations, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000
over five years, for use at the Geysers Geothermal Facilities. YES = Alameda, Biggs, Gridley,
Lodi, Lompoc, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto and Port of Oakland. The
motion passed.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
April 4, 2018



8. All Generation Services Facilities — Chemical Waste Management Inc. ISA - Staff is
seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of an Industrial Services Agreement with
Chemical Waste Management, Inc. for industrial waste disposal services, with a not to exceed
amount of $1,500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA. All purchase
orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating
Budgets. **This item was pulled from the agenda and will be moved to the May Facilities
Committee Meeting.**

9. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — TNT Industrial Contractors Inc.
MTGSA - Staff provided background information and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNT Industrial
Contractors, Inc. for general T&M maintenance services, with a not to exceed amount of
$2,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Members. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged
against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft
agreement were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Monica Padilla recommending
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. for general T&M
maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
The motion passed.

10. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Halliburton Energy Services Inc.
MTGSA - Staff presented background information and was seeking a recommendation for
Commission approval of a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Halliburton Energy
Services, Inc. for injection well related services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members. All purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against
approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement
were available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jiayo Chiang
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. for well
related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda,
Biggs, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The
motion passed.

11. Hydroelectric Owner/Operator Responsibilities — Information-Only — NCPA Hydro staff
presented Committee updates on NCPA’s responsibility as a dam owner/operator, and potential
industry implications from the 2017 DWR Oroville Spillway incident.

Staff reviewed some of the National historical defining dam failures. The Division of Safety of
Dams (DSOD) was formed in 1928 after the St. Francis dam failure. The 2017 DWR Oroville

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
April 4, 2018



spillway incident is the biggest dam safety incident of this generation due to the amount of
evacuations. Since this incident there has been DSOD repercussions, as well as FERC
repercussions. The DSOD is primarily focused on dam safety. NCPA has adopted FERC's
principles of a supportive dam safety organization. General regulatory changes include growth
in the following areas: physical inspections, comprehensive facility reviews, regulatory
compliance and fees, consideration of appurtenant structures, and owners’ dam safety
programs and dam safety culture. The Potential Failure Mode Analyses (PFMAs) has
expanded and will continue to expand to include broader operational/societal impacts. Due to
the design of the NCPA hydro projects, safety is not a big concern. NCPA’s main concern is
cyber security or a terrorist attack.

Current NCPA projects include the McKays Point Spillway Plunge Pool Assessment with
significant in-house research, a certified Independent Consultant and FERC review. The Union
Dams dam and spillway repairs, with in-house labor planned during the summers of 2018, 2019,
and 2020. Others include union inundation mapping investigation and the Owner's Dam Safety
Program (ODSP) audit by an independent consultant in 2018. The NCPA hydro projects
covered by ODSP include New Spicer Meadows, McKays Point, Alpine, Utica and low hazard
dams.

12. All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — Leidos Engineering, LLC MTPSA —
Staff presented and was seeking a recommendation for Commission approval of a Multi-Task
Professional Services Agreement with Leidos Engineering, LLC for transmission and distribution
design, and engineering services, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All
purchase orders issued pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual
Operating Budgets. A draft Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement were available
for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Monica Padilla and seconded by Shannon McCann
recommending Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Leidos Engineering, LLC for
transmission and distribution design and engineering services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Biggs, Lodi,
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

13. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — Informational-Only — NCPA Plant staff provided
the Committee with informational updates on current plant activities and conditions at Hydro and
the CTs.

Hydro staff reported that there is now 12 feet of snow at Spicer Meadows. Runoff in the major
Sierra river basins now range from 43% to 80% of average, with NCPA’s project at 60%. March
was a great month, but still not enough. April will be above average. Collierville was forced
offline for 8 hours due to the March 22 high tailwater event. The blower upgrade would have
helped the curtailment by trimming the time to 5-6 hours instead of 8. There is also a high
probability of Collierville high tailwater curtailment on April 7 due to a warm storm.

New Spicer Meadow was in an outage from March 13 — April 3 due to a PG&E cable fault
between Salt Springs and Cabbage Patch. NCPA's lost revenue (energy + RECs) was $9,000.
The Collierville Unit 2 Generator is no longer de-rated. The unit has now been returned to full

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4
April 4, 2018



capacity at 126.5 MW. It was de-rated to 115 MW in June 2017 following interim repair after a
stator ground fault. The decision to remove the de-rate was made in consultation with multiple
generator experts after reviewing observed current imbalance, heating differentials, and
knowing that a full rewind is scheduled for this fall.

CT staff reported that 3 miles of the NCPA 8 mile southern transmission line is being upgraded.
This is a PG&E TPP project. This will increase capacity to 700MW, so both LEC and STIG will
be able to operate at full output at the same time when this is completed. LEC is 304MW, with
STIG at 50MW. The current line is rated at 330MW, so LEC has been de-rated for STIG runs.
This is also expected to reduce localized congestion. The CT1 has had 9 starts for the first
quarter, so is being used a lot more. Costs are doing better at FY18 capacity cost of $23 per
KW-Yr. YTD compared to FY17 capacity cost of $29 per KW-Yr. Forecasting is hard for this
project.

14. Generation Services Request for Special Facilities Committee Meeting — Generation
Services Administration staff presented a proposal for a Special Facilities Committee Meeting to
be held in April for review and approval of services to support the NCPA Solar Project Phase 2.

The Committee agreed to schedule a Special Facilities Committee Meeting Tuesday, April 171,
at 10:00 am to discuss this item. **Since the time of this meeting, the Special Facilities
Committee Meeting was cancelled.**

15. Planning and Operations Update —

- The TO18 TAC trail initial brief was on March 23. An updated brief is expected on April
23, with a decision by June 1. There should be significant tariff reductions.

- TO19 is delayed due to a FERC order on tax reduction. PG&E needs to file by 4/16 on
tax stated rate.

- Order 890 Complaint — FERC to hold a technical conference on May 1. PG&E, CPUC,
TANC, SCE, SC, and NCPA will all be part of the Order 890 discussion at the technical
conference in Washington, DC.

- Alameda Municipal Power will be putting out a RFP for renewable energy due to the
retirement of a PG&E power plant in Oakland.

- Due to changes approved by the CAISO Board in the CRR auction, CRR revenue will
likely be going down.

- East Bay Community Energy (EBCE) and San Jose Clean Energy (SJCE) Services
Agreements have been approved for $630,000 and $640,000. NCPA is assisting EBCE
with procurement of RA for 2018.

- Vela Wann accepted the position in Power Management as the new Energy Resource
Analyst Il.

- The Bureau of Reclamation is proceeding with a $10m settlement of the $93m due to the
over payment of power. NCPA will continue to negotiate for the remainder of the over
payments due to Members.

16. Schedule next meeting date — The next regular Facilities Committee Meeting is scheduled for
May 2, 2018.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 11:44 am.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 5
April 4,2018



Northern California Power Agency
April 4, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting

Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME

AFFILIATION

(avvie VolLlo

L LCPA

N a"%’L [- YMiganr

APA

M '"cl/\qw\/ D@&:r%k’

Nef@
Maerty L:_BL'H' hep A
AT {\r]\On M Cant Ko, ?/w \\ Q,
Monics Geowdd Palo
l_.——&;fl_v"{ 1@5’ ' ‘-C,vq < @L
/‘Gf i Q}){f 4 UC,7?/4
. baocd Need
ROAJ VCIELL.. NCPA-
Mcl &M( NcbPA
T (€ /u/[[ Vowalf NCTA
Mt Dodanr RCPA-
Montw Hawle g NCPA

’\/Llh(‘/wb Cm/L(B\A,

L,mgoc,




Northern California Power Agency
April 4, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI

LOMPOC ’r L;qu@ 5 gl

f

PALO ALTO Q.\ 74;{ -

/

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

PORT OF OAKLAND

ROSEVILLE T

SANTA CLARA

TID

UKIAH




TR
154 A&cm\

P ANNIVERSARY §

e -

Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 26, 2018

SUBJECT:

March 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

|0

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth o<~ () . METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc O City of Ukiah
San F’a""i;‘;;i':a%’r:;:; O Cityof Palo Alto [1  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley O City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other

o O o o o O

SR: 135:18



March 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)
April 18, 2018

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the April 26, 2018 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is a
summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited March 2018 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

IO,
RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 135:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of March 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,077,194
3,266,240
247,768
498,106
5,036,699
26,338,928

$ 36,464,935




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 75%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,351,986 $ 13,993,138 15,603,994 90% (a)

Debt Service (Net) 3,188,179 28,693,613 38,258,150 75%
Annual Budget Cost 4,540,165 42,686,751 53,862,144 79%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,646,279 18,055,583 27,184,263 66%

Debt Service (Net) 411,312 3,701,807 4,935,743 75%
Annual Budget Cost 3,057,591 21,757,390 32,120,006 68%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 411,940 3,432,187 3,198,552 107% (b)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 58,596 877,615 834,641 105% (c)

Other Plant Cost 185,594 1,684,252 2,095,083 80% (c)

Debt Service (Net) 474,410 4,269,692 5,692,922 75%
Annual Budget Cost 718,600 6,831,559 8,622,646 79%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 3,170,911 25,370,934 14,877,170 171%  (d)

Other Plant Cost 1,945,884 17,787,354 19,794,554 90% (d)

Debt Service (Net) 2,181,150 19,751,770 26,416,640 75%
Annual Budget Cost 7,297,945 62,910,058 61,088,364 103%
Member Resources - Energy 4,242,016 39,276,039 53,389,034 74%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 281,604 2,625,497 3,457,156 76%
Western Resources 2,717,883 15,814,106 30,119,880 53%
Market Power Purchases 4,780,479 26,075,169 19,318,025 135%  (e)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 15,380,193 154,418,121 233,822,294 66%

Net GHG Obligations - 839,320 445,917 188% ()
43,428,416 376,666,197 499,444,018 75%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 329,683 2,980,585 2,466,609 121%  (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 8,752,595 75,435,914 96,760,295 78%
Ancillary Services 291,811 2,781,631 2,639,380 105%  (h)
Other Charges 1,320,795 11,939,197 1,058438  1128% (i)
10,694,884 93,137,327 102,924,722 90%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 149,802 1,216,391 1,976,008 62%
Regulatory Representation 47,413 461,337 837,639 55%
Western Representation 51,894 382,036 829,636 46%
Member Services 49,234 281,915 436,078 65%
Judicial Action 23,939 567,998 625,000 91% ()




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 75%
This Actual Year FY 2018
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 591,059 4,079,033 5,864,452 70%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 256,895 1,773,761 2,647,017 67%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 24,743 221,338 424,174 52%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 78,712 625,942 1,161,828 54%
Green Power Project 225 1,662 17,746 9%
Gas Purchase Program 6,913 46,269 88,131 53%
Market Purchase Project 10,302 67,572 130,141 52%
Energy Risk Management 1,324 136,739 206,836 66%
Settlements 53,785 416,648 774,377 54%
Integrated Systems Support 3,103 66,370 318,562 21%
Participant Pass Through Costs 51,612 799,537 1,525,907 52%
Support Services 12,988 142,066 - N/A
1,413,943 11,286,614 17,853,532 63%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 55,537,243 481,090,138 620,222,272 78%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 10,054,998 91,075,525 70,367,243 129% (k)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 7,618,238 80,813,825 151,018,772 54%
Ancillary Services Sales 865,353 4,406,633 2,731,442 161% [0}
Western Resource Energy Sales 548,530 17,807,519 18,026,100 99% (m)
Other 1ISO Revenue 1,409,690 12,715,440 - N/A
Transmission Sales 9,198 82,782 110,376 75%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 841,650 9,117,306 15,712,788 58%
21,347,657 216,019,030 257,966,721 84%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 34,189,586 $ 265,071,108 $ 362,255,551 73%

(a) Increase in costs due to unbudgeted outside services related to the dredging of the Beaver Creek reservoir. It is anticipated that costs

will be offset by insurance and FEMA proceeds.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 774% of budgeted MWhs at 3/31/18. Fuel costs, CA ISO
charges, and other variable costs have all increased as a result of increased generation.

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 702% of budgeted MWhs at 3/31/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO

charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(d) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 269% of budgeted MWhs at 3/31/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO

charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted contracts include Gridley PV, Bart PV, as well as deals

made after the FY18 budget including certain Powerex, Shell, and EDF deals.

(f) Purchases made several months in advance. Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for

the City of Lodi.

(9) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d).

(h) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), and (d) and corresponding increase in ancillary services sales.

(i) The large budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(j) Variance due to unbudgeted legal costs.

(k) Variance due to higher than anticipated 1SO energy sales for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro.

() Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (b), (c), (d), and (h) and corresponding increase in ancillary services

costs.

(m) Variance due primarily to $1.38 million in unbudgeted displacement revenue.




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Other deposits and prepaids

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

March 31,
2018 2017

(in thousands)
17,267 §$ 44,424
45,990 30,041
4,252 654
272 198
9,940 9,657
2,159 1,566
79,880 86,540
41,713 46,267
185,411 175,337
704 531
227,828 222,135
1,504,238 1,501,569

(965,950) (935,032)

538,288 566,537
199 506
538,487 567,043
230,481 239,447
6 44
1,076,682 1,115,209
40,850 50,346
13,506 9,093
54,356 59,439

1,131,038 § 1,174,648




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
March 31,
2018 2017
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 27,642 § 21,548
Member advances 1,068 993
Operating reserves 21,103 20,020
Current portion of long-term debt 41,210 39,090
Accrued interest payable 9,567 10,441
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 100,590 92,092
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 64,589 57,774
Operating reserves and other deposits 141,734 140,863
Interest rate swap liability 13,819 16,870
Long-term debt, net 704,646 747,931
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 924,788 963,438
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,025,378 1,055,530
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 71,730 72,081
Pension deferrals 4,460 6,599
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 76,190 78,680
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (63,626) (62,418)
Restricted © 62,603 58,677
Unrestricted 30,493 44,179
TOTAL NET POSITION 29,470 40,438

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS .
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,131,038 § 1,174,648




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Nine Months Ended March 31,

2018 2017
(in thousands)
268,625 §$ 254,429
160,986 96,336
429,611 350,765
182,716 145,646
59,181 39,125
100,374 74,527
23,237 23,068
15,053 11,209
14,433 14,133
394,994 307,708
34,617 43,057
(29,692) (26,063)
4,086 797
3,368 11,797
(22,238) (13,469)
(5,764) (10,072)
(11,205) (7,041)
(4,590) 12,475
34,060 27,963
29,470 § 40,438




8E0TTEL] [ $ opIsi $  8€8WE - § S0L'vTy £r1T LTS9E § 19€'6LE L9T°L8
95€bS O - - - = = 826 160°8€ 1£8°1
905°€1 90S°€El 2 - - - - - - =
0580 - - - * » - 826 160'8€ 1€8°1
789°9L0°L [I3kAa1 (231 8E8VE 5 SO1'bZY 1T 665°SE 0LT'LEE 9er's8
9 - - = S - - - - 9
181°0€T 6LE'9S - - - 780°€T - 8L0°11 £v9'6€1 66T
L8YBES 1187 yLT = - €20°9VE 080T 0£0°L1 816'PEL 1SE°GE
661 8L - - - 121 - - - -
887'8€S £EL'T ¥LT - - T06°StE 080T 0£0°L1 816%E1 1SE'SE
(056'596) (LL6T) (68¢€) - (o£LL) (006°2L) (Eeyve) (€18°Ly) (098°652) (Zp8pes)
8€T'v0S"1 0lL's £99 - 9EL'L T08°€Th €15°9€ £V8%9 8LLY6E £61°0LS
878°LTT POb'SL - 105°8C - £vS'LE - YLS'Y L10'vS S6LLT
YOL 8¢ - - - 911l - 8 [t €I
111581 891°LS - TL9'81 - 9L8'EE - S9S'Y €L5'6Y LSS1T
E1L Ty 806°LL - 6786 - 155°€ - 1 yee'y 001°9
088°6L LSS'L 998'%1 LEED 3 LSVLT £9 L16T 869°3 $86°1C
= (Z12°09) S8LY1 ¥8L'S - 7881 (o0t1) TETT LEOL 86891
651°C 189 81 - - T6¢ 9 a2 T8¢ £8¢
066 : = = - 1z SOp1 (42 6L0°1 £0L'Y
(454 891 - 01 - - - - s -

[4Y44 108°¢ = (344 . - T - - -
066°Sy 066'Sy * = - - - - - E
LIT'LL $ 6TLLI $ €9 $ - - $ T 1 1 $ - I

pautquio)y fouaiy $IDIAIDS UOISSTIISURL ] U ON 19ua)) Afleug aUQ 'ON sanoey OLIOB[BOIPAH [CLTENGETSY
feliile} JaquISpy 2 13M0g UoISSTusuRI [, po1 10 ende)
PareIdossy paseyoing sy
SEIYNOSTA NOISSINSNV UL ¥ ONLLYYaNTD
8107 ‘T€ Yd1e]

uonEIqUIOY Ut pATRURL ,

SHOYNOSTY 40 SMOTALNO ATHITIHA ANV SLASSY TV.IOL

SEUNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO AFTTIIIHA TV.LOL
S[ELI3JOp UOISUS
199p jO Sulpuryas uo 1505 5590XY
SHUNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO AFIIFAAA

SI4SSV TVLOL

spredaid pue susodsp 1941
stasse Aro1e[ngoyy
S1aSSV ¥HHLO

LNV ONYLOATd TVLIOL
§52.1501d-U-}10M UOHOMIISUO]y

uonea1dap pajejnunode s
291A19s ur yue(d ouos[y
INVId ORLLOITd

SLASSY Q4.LONLSTY TV.IOL
9[qBAIR031 153197U]
SJUSUASIAUT
sjus[eAInbs yses pue yse)
SLESSY AALONMLSTA

SLESSV INTIND TVIOL
ssweifourd 1ayio pue Aously woy ong
sasuadxa predasg
soyddns pue Kojuasuy
S[qRAIF931 1SAIAIUL

f=1iTs)

syuedionteg
S[QBAIS0RI SIUN0IIY
SIUDUIISIAU]
sjuafeAmba yses pue ysey

SLASSY LNHIIND

SLASSY

(panrwo s,000)
SNOLLVIOJI0D YAMOd AALVIOOSSY ANV
ADNADV YAMOd VINHOATTVD NYAHLION

NOILISOd LAN 40 INFWALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVIWIOJNI TVIDONVNIA ¥IHLIO



8E0'1ELT § LS9°SST § opLsl $ 8€8'bE $  sor'vey § €T $ LT8'o¢ 1og'sLe 19T°L8
0LY'6T opE' pOT 1 (€vT11) 166°L loce) 01 6vy 0bSTL
€66°0€ 90§ YOTH1 (epz'11) LSY'L (oLe) 09T LEOL W66
£09°79 |4 - - 80£°1T = 6T 68€'6 609°L
(929'€9) 9¢8 - % (vLL'02) - (€r1'9) (yes°ze) (110°s)
061°9L ¥99°L SLT - [754T] ({44 £56 €SIy 1€9°61
09y 09t - = - - - -

0L 1L ¥0T'E SLT - [/ atd We'T €56 3384 1€9°61
8LESZO'T Ly9'OY( 199 180°9% THeLE 1Lz +90°S€ 91L'99€ 960°SS
88LYT6 686'6£1 ¥8¢€ 90982 6E€TYE - €L7°0€ 675 6£€ 879°Eh
9b9°bOL g - - £29°0pE - £LT°0¢€ 0€T°60€ 0T§%T
618'€l - - = - - 6181 -
FEL'THT 00b'sL +8€ 909°8T 9IL'l - - 00591 8T1'61
6859 68579 - - - - - > d
065001 859°0 LLT SLY'LL €08 'TE 1z 6L LOT'LT [l
L95°6 S - 8LOS 182 LEO'Y L1
0IT'1y C - 5 SSE0L - $66°¢ 0197z 0sTY
€01°12 - - - 698°C1 852 [319 0sT €129
890°1 - LLT - - - - £ 6L
w9°LT $ 8599 $ - $ SLy'Ll $ 10T°¢ § €l $ T 0LZ 54

pauIquio)) Aousiy SOIAISG UoISST 1] 1], 193] AFeug JuQ ON sanoe] SUIOSROIPAH [BWIRY1030)
ByI0 JOquIBy %9 10mog 1po1 1D fended
PaIRIDOSSY paseyaing 3&%—32
SHOUNOSTY NOISSINSNV UL % ONILVYENID
8107 ‘T€ YareN

NOILISOd 1IN ANV SHO¥N0STH 40
SMOTINI AIHEI4Id ‘STLLITIEAVIT TVIOL
NOILISOd LAN TV.LOL
patoLsauny
palomsay
sjosse [endes ur JusunsaAut JoN
NOILLISOd 1IN

SIDANOSHY A0 SMOTANI ATNIHIIA TV.LOL
S[RLIBJOP UOISUDJ
supars Kiojengday
SAANOSTH 40 SMOTANI ATHIHAId

SHELLITEVYITTVLIOL

SHILITIEVITINTIINI-NON TV.LOL

19U “)qap wiej-Suo
Auqiqer] dems oje1 jsasouy
susodap o110 pue saAlesal SuneredQ
Kniqey uoisuad 19N
SHILITIEVIT INTHIND-NON

SHILITEVI'T LNTJAND TVLIOL

slqeAed 1sa101U1 paTUOOY

1q0p una3-guoj Jo uorpod JusLny

saAtasal SuneradQ

SAOURAPE 1aqUIS|N

sasuadxa paruooe pue a|qeked sjunodoy
SHILITIEVIT INTEND

SHILITIGVIT

(33110 5,000)
SNOILVIOJUO0D ¥AMOd AALVIDOSSV ANV
AONADY FAMOd VINIOATITVD NUTHILUON

NOILISOd LAN 4O INHNALVLS ONINIFNOD

NOILLVINYJOANI TVIONVNIA YHHLO



uonRWqUIOY) Uf pareumI[

0LY'6T LG AL $ (evz1l) $ - $ 166°L s loce) $ ol $ T6v'y XA $ Papu? poudd ‘NOLLISOd LAN
090%€ (gs¢€) [ 7382 (89L°¢) (6v2) 8029 001 S9L L6LEL €L0°€E1 Teaf jo SutuuiBog ‘NOLLISOd LAN
(065Y) POL'L 7L (sLv'L) 65T £8L°1 (oLr) (ss2) (so£'6) (g€9) NOILISOd LAN NI (ISVIIOaA) ASVAYINI
(s0z°11) (€25 1) [iTZ44] (332°1) . 08t'7) 8TV (isn) (sv0°T) (S0672) SINVJIOILYVd OL SANNITY
roL's) (60 - - 124 6Tyl - (£6€) (99¢9) (vey) SINNOWY TTEVIZAODTY TANLNA
(8€2°72) 950°C 6L 885 : (z€0's) E (681°1) (TLLYD) T€ SANNIATY (STSNIIXT) DNILVYIIO NON TV.LOL
89€°€ 00€ (2 B - L58°1 - 1801 S8 1 YO
980 9L 33 885 i 856 2 9 98¢ LSS aW00U} 352.91]
(269°62) - - - 3 wrb'1n) - (9Lz'7) (evp's) (928) asuadxa 159193]
SANNIATY (SHSNHIXT) ONILVIIIO NON
LI9pE Al [Z3 (sLL9) - 90811 (868) [ 8L8TI YLLT SHONTATY ONILVYEO LN
¥66 V6€ (zso'D) 1¥0°TL 868°LLT g 150°SS SOL'E I€€y 6vS°IT 9LY 1T SASNAIXH ONLLVIZJO TV.LOL
] - [53) - 3 11z 8 v 961 (18p) +1eu ‘saseyoind (sajes) Aued [
X544 (06Z°1) orI's = a S61°E 8LS 949 605'T 9LL'E [e1ouad pue aAnEnsSUIUPY
£50°51 - w - ) 900°€ 8LI'L Iy bL8'9 Ws'E QOUBUANUIE
LET'ET X34 |£3 - - 656°01 8¢l 969°1 L6T°L £26'C uotepadeq
PLE0OOL = 4 ££1°66 - L9L L (81) (99) 6vT uOISSwsUel],
181°6§ - 188°9 $29°T s 808°2€ pIv'E £9£°1 §58°C SETIL suonessdo
91L'781 . # - 0r8'SLI - SOl 80€ L€ ¥88°1 [4x4 1amod paseyoing
SASNAIXT ONILYVIIdO
11962y €9¢ SI6°€T €TI'ILT - L16'99 LO8T 608°S LTYPE 0ST YT STNNFATI ONILVYTdO TYLOL
986°091 = v6v'6 619°SS - 00b'8% €661 €91°1 6LS°1T 86LTT Areg-pry1 2y10Q
$79°89T $  €9€ $ 1Trl § pOS‘siz $ - § LIS8L $ b8 § 99V $ 8v8°TI §  sHl $ swedionred
SHANNIATY ONILVII40
paulquio) >U=0u_< muum?—om 1SS IL 1581 1L peiiic] u.m—u@ﬂm— WO ON mbﬁEOﬂh JUIISROIPAH _ﬂEumn_uOOmv
Qo Jaquio @ lomog poT jfe] [ende)
pajeI0ssY paseyoing aidnny
SEIANOSTY NOISSTASNV UL % ONLLVYANTD
810Z ‘I€ YOIBIN PIPUL SYIUOAL JUIN Y3 10
(pap1wo s,000)

SNOILVIOJIO0D ¥IMOd TALVIDOSSV ANV
AINTIV YIMOd VINJOII'TVD NITHLAON

NOLLISOd .LAN NI SADONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAOINIATE 40 INTINALVLS ONINITINOD

NOLLVINIOANI TVIONVNIA ¥AHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
March 31, 2018

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 4,251,696

PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 4,251,696

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2018.xIsxMar Rpt 2018



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of March 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,077,194
3,266,240
247,768
498,106
5,036,699
26,338,928

$ 36,464,935




Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 26, 2018

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended March 31, 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

|)

Sondra Ainsworth <> ‘\_Y_METHOD OF SELECTION:

If other, please specify

FROM:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [X CityofLodi O City of Shasta Lake O
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a“"i;::i':?’r:r::ﬁ O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-SierraREC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [1 City of SantaClara [ Other O

SR: 134:18



Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending March 31, 2018
April 18, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $2,892,805 of which approximately $16,258 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $2,996 to Debt Service and $2,873,551 to Operations and
other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $287,509,614 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $284,137,047.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.470% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 1.490%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $148,875,000. March maturities totaled $46 million and monthly receipts totaled
$35 million. During the month $51 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately réported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 12 basis points (from 1.64%
to 1.76%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 7 basis points (from 2.02% to 2.09%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of March 31, 2018 are in
compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Droll—Hv

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 134:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

MARCH 31, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

Northern California Power Agency

March 31, 2018
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
$ 1,456,811 $ 88,929,510 $ 90,386,321 31.12%
$ 1,415,870 $ - $ 1,415,870 0.49%
$ 870 $ 4,969,515 $ 4,970,385 1.71%
$ 2,996 $ 40,503,851 $ 40,506,847 13.95%
$ 16,258 $ 153,106,738 $ 153,122,996 52.73%
$ 2,892,805 $ 287,509,614 $ 290,402,419 100.00%
$ 284,137,047




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
March 31, 2018
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS

Operating : $ 34,311,509 $ 10,226 $ 38,941,900 $ (20,305,796) $ (38,114,302) $ (15,106,585) $ (263,048)
Special Deposits 713,863 7 - (9,573,964) - 8,858,595 (1,499)
Construction - - - - - - -
Debt Service - 193 428 - (6,008,617) 6,008,479 483
Special & Reserve - (7,614) 6,761,179 (565,326) (6,427,750) 239,511 -

$ 35025372 § 2,812 $ 45,703,507 $ (30,445,086) $ (50,550,669) $ - $ (264,064)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



NCPA FUNDS
Operating
Special Deposits
Construction
Debt Service
Special & Reserve

Less Non- Cash Activity

Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary
March 31, 2018

(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
$ 38,114,302 $ (38,941,900) $ (3,111) § (23,919) § - $ (854,628)
- - 635 - - 635
6,008,617 (428) 46,119 - - 6,054,308
6,427,750 (6,761,179) (10,171) (155,025) - (498,625)
$ 50,550,669 $ (45,703,507) $ 33472 $ (178,944) $ - 4,701,690

145,472

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

4,847,162




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

March 31, 2018
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.470% 1.490%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.457% 1.421%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.639% 1.642%
Capital Facilities 1.896% 1.909%
Hydroelectric 1.570% 1.568%
Lodi Energy Center 1.770% 1.499%
INTEREST RATES
2.75
2.50 e
226 4—————————3 T
KEY INTEREST RATES R it —oions Gt s oo e
PRIOR 190 =g —— ————
CURRENT YEAR 1.00 +—— ——=—
0.75 +— — 2
0.50 f=——— - = B
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.68% 0.91% 8.53 _
T-Bills (90da.) 1.76% 0.78% | 0.00= ‘ LA
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.69% 0.77% Oct  Nov. Dec  Jan  Feb  WMar
T-Bills (1yr.) 2.09% 1.03%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 212% 1.10% . .
T-Notes (3yr.) 2.41% 1.53% T Serest TR Series2

et S 0TS 3 = Series4




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
March 31, 2018
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent

US Government Agencies $ - $ 21,511 $8,819 $ 21,308 $ 5,370 $ 133,832 $ - $ 190,840 66.05%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - - - - 14,760 - 14,760 5.11%
US Bank Trust Money Market 6 - - - - - - 6 0.00%
Commercial Paper 10,644 - - - - - - 10,644 3.68%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 52,357 - - - - - - 52,357 18.12%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 1,968 - - - - - - 1,968 0.68%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 16,763 1,118 78 119 283 - 18,361 6.35%
Certificates of Deposit 10 - - - - - - 10 0.00%
Total Dollars $ 64,985 $38,274 $9,937 $21,386 $5,489 $148,875 $0 $ 288,946 100.00%
Total Percents 22.49%  13.25% 3.44% 7.40% 1.90% 51.52% 0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we sz 8102/50/v0

ovLivLiie § o8r'2e6'97  $ svT'L Log sve'sLL'Lz ST sie'rLez § abesoAy pue jejo] puny
000'260'S 1592 6ELEDOELE 8OZ'6L6'Y 0se’l 6v8 0Z0Z/8Z/L0  000°260'S 9L02/82/20  0SEL 000°260'S g08an By [euonen |esepagy
000'860'S 0£€9Z S6r09SELE  659'SZ0'S 0se't S5 610Z/82/0L  000°860'S 9L0Z/8ZH0  0SEL 000'860'S 208N By [euoneN |elepa4
Gzy'896'e 18192 PIAOOSELE 8£2'LS6'E 69€'L orz 8L0Z/LZ/LL  0£9'000'F pLOZIBLIZL  SZ9L 000'296'¢ o04an By reuoneN [esepes
000°0L5"Y €229 TLISSVOELE §95°20S'Y 000'L 4 8102//2/IV0  000'0LS'Y §L0Z//2/70 0004 000015y ooan B UBOT] BWOH [eJepa
vor've €200L €Z00/SAS  ¥OV'VE 2000 1 vop'pe €L0Z/10/0 2000 Yop've sodn oytled Jo yueg uolun
158'6E7'8 22002 TZO0ISAS i58'6EV'S voT'L L 158'6EY'8 €L0Z/10/20  YOT'L Ls8'6EY'8 Elal wisanu| Aoushy 1800
JUNo29Yy Buduejeg vdos

982°c9 $ 982'c9 $ S0Z'L 3 982‘c9 $ S0Z'L 982°c9 $ abesany pue [ejo) pung
98269 S¥00L S¥00/SAS 98Z'€9 [ L 982'¢9 €L0Z/L0/20  vOTL 98Z'e9 wjsenuf AousBy €007
100y uondNy HHO ddIN

sgo‘sol'es  § 6v9'cor'z9  § 90¥'L 6l5 §L0's9L'es  § 8zy'L sze'ozl'es  § abeiaAy pue jejol pung
€Te'z6Y 5592 8490/9¥80 S8L'Z6Y 980°€ 608'L €TOZ/SLIE0  08Z'Z6Y 8L0Z/LZ/E0  0SLZ 000'005 208N | kemeyiey anyssog
8.0'88Y 95592 SHEX68E89  SE.'88Y vSLE 18L't £20Z/5L/C0  0L0'88Y 8LOZ/LTIE0  STIT 000'005 o08n ‘dio sjoeI0
vr8'sey §5592 9avy9/99L  §zZ'ser 800°€ 602} 2T0ZIS0/ZL  09.'S8Y 8l0Z/LZIE0  GSET 000005 oo8n "diod uoseyy
6102211 52592 LODEEBLED 6E6'E60') 62€T 105"} TTOT/LLISO  996'LZL'L 810Z/L0/20  00EC LEE'ETLL 008n "ou ajddy
£60'8Y 18592 zLA8YYELL 0ZE'98Y ¥Z6'T z6v'L TT0T/Z0/IS0  S00°/8Y 8L0Z/LZ/E0  0SZT 000005 208N "ou| 091sdsd
000202 £0V9Z ZEAVOVELE  L60°L6) 00z g6e’L 220T/92/l0  000°20T LL0Z/0ENO  00ZT 000202 o08n WA UBOT SWOH [loped
000'005°¢ G8£92 PHAVOPELE SOG'LOE'E 005} orz'L 120T/EZ/80  000'00S'E oLoz/eT/LL  00S'L 000'005'€ oodn YN UBO BUWIOH [BIOPaS
€0E0L9'T S9¥9Z SUSHIEELE SOL'0ES'T 0z9'L (4% 4" 1202/92/20  ¥81'L19'T 1102/82/80  0TLL 000°209'2 oso4an wpaI) uLe [eieped
zL6'8y 85592 §189/0/8y  SE6'L8Y ez 960°L LZ0Z/LO0  008'/8Y 8L0Z/LT/E0  000Z 000°00$ oo8an "ouf jodeq swoH
000°000'€ 79592 919S9veELE  08£°000'C 0€ST €60'L 1Z02/6Z/€0  000°000'€ 8L0Z/62/€0  0€S'Z 000°000'€ o08n 1N UBO BWOH [eiapay
8.5'78L'L SGE9T 08dBYOELE  ¥9L'99G', AT veo'l L20Z/6L/L0 80LL8L'L 9L0Z/6LIL0  00F'L 000's82°L oo8an g Ueo sWoH |elepay
12Z'186'% 99¥9Z 9M1EVOELE 9e€'888'y 061 8€8 0Z0T/LLILQ  €LE'066'F £10Z/82/80  009'L 000'6.6'y oosan g UeoT SWoH |eiepsd
£06'V6E'L 1£292 19avaLele 959'sEE’L 0sb'L ey 6LOZ/0EIS0  050°GSY'L SLOZ/60/90  OSLL 000°0€°2 oo8n WA UeoT suIoH |eJapa4
LLL'5e9'e 08292 ord43€ele  9/0'ZL9'E 00€EL zee 8L0Z/6LILL  8Y6'PZI'E SL0Z/Le/ZL 06zl 000'929'¢ go8n WpaID Uile [elepad
000°0L 90€0€ 90E0ESAS 000°0L 0500 9 8L0Z/L0/¥0 0000l 8L0Z/.0/L0  0S00 000°0L asn Hueg sn
80L'6LE'L 95002 9500/SAS 80L'6LE'L 0090 1 802'61€'L £102/v2/80 0090 802'6LE'L asn yueg sn
608'95Y'L 05002 0S00/SAS 608'95K°L 1000 ! 608'95Y'L €L0Z/08/90 1000 608'95Y'L asn Aueg sn
0 71002 vLO0LSAS 0 2000 1 0 €102/L0/20 2000 0 208N ojife jo ueg uon
v.5'9ze L 0000 0000/SAS ¥25'92€YL voz'L 1 v15'9Z€'rL €L0Z/L0/L0  vOTL r.5'9zE VL 411 wseAu| Aousby |eooy
006'€Z€'6 L0102 LOL0LSAS 006'€ZE’S 000°L 1 006'€Z€'6 yL0Z/9Z/LL  000°L 006'€2€'6 asn V'N “ueg sn
anjep bulAue) # JuauysaAu dISND  anjeA jaxie PIBIA Kunen ajeq 83lud ajeq oy an[ep pajels ueiposny / ssysni) Janssy

Anb3 o3 sheq Rumen paseyaing aseyaing ysessu)
puog
Bupesado
81L0Z/1e/E0

AINICY Y34VDd VNS0V NUIKIHIN
uoday s Jainseas| <ﬂ— Uz
Kouaby JaMod BIULOJI[ED UIBYLION o
| abeg



980'60F'59L  $

‘8LLZOLE9L

$

(2441

61/62/¢ 113un 3yqeje)

we /z:}i

81.02/50/v0

JINITHA p959T# JudwiIsanu|

Apavtenb 2jqejie) JINTHA €0b9Z# uBwWIsaAU}
Ajsauenb ajqeyied JINTHA Z0v9Z# WuauIISaAY|
Apauenb ajqeiie) JNTHA S8£9zH IUBWISIAY|
Auapienb ajgejie)  VIANG 89£9Z# UBWISIAY|
Apauenb aiqelie)  VINNA £SE9Z# JuaUISIAY|

swnAue a|qejed
awnAue 3|qej|ed
swnhue ajqejjed
swpdue sjqejjed

8244 9S€9z# waunsanu|
91Hd SSE9TH WswISaAu}
9THd PSEITH uaUISIAUY
€244 SEEITH WawWIsAAY|

Aporienb ajqejed  VIANG ZEE9TH JudwIIsanY)
Aienienb ajqe|ie)  VINNG 0£E9Z# uLWIS3AYY
8L0Z/1E/SO 1O Se [RuInOf J2a11S |lBM @Y Woly sooud piq Jo SJUSWaje}S UBIPoISNY /33lsnij wolj sasud uo paseq si anjep Jde JusLN)

‘Poyjatu JoeX9 Ue 3sn S13yjo |ie ‘poyjaw ajeunxoidde ue asn Ajunjew o3 SYIUOW g UBY} SSI] YIIM SIUBLISIAU]
sad4} j|e usamiaq uosuedwon Joj siseq e apiaoad o) seah Aep G9¢ B Uo paseq umoys si KJuUNjely o) PIaIA Juajeainbl puog,

812'815'69L ¢

665 5171 sLz'spe'sol  $ ‘STVL0L ANVYO

$20'560'6.  $ 869'969'cL  $ 96¥°L LL i'oll'ss $ £€¥S'L 9ye'ez0'sL $ abesany pue |ejo) pung
T61'229'c 29v92 69D6.LEELE 99086V 09L'L Les'L 2Z0Z/0L/90  095'7ES'E £10Z/82/80  STL'T 000'G25'€ Q08an eg ueoT BWOH [esspa4
62L020'7 2592 LDOEEBLED 90L'0Z6'E 62eC L05'L 2ZOTILLISO  8ES'0Z0'Y 8L0Z/LO/Z0  00€T Z5%'520'y s08an "ouj ajddy
000'29v 20v9z TEAVOPELE  999'6SH 00z 96€°L 220Z/9ZIL0 000'L9% LLOZIOENG 0022 000'/9% 208n WA UEO BWOH [esepad
000'629'04 SEE9Z SHADIEELE bO8'LPE 0L 0691 8sL'L 1202/20/190  000'629'0L 9L0Z/Z0/90 069 000'629'0} a08n UpaI) wied [esepa4
000'00€‘L 89£92 EMEEDYELE ££6'85Z°L 00S°} €SLL 120Z/82/50  000'00€'L 9102/0£/80  00S'L 000°00€'L 208n By feuonen |esspad
000°29L°S ZeE9C SINEDSELE  LP6'LLO'S 5Z9'L oSh'L 1202/S2/S0 000'29L'S 9102/SZ/S0 SZ9'L 000°29L's 208n By [euonen (esepad
862'7LL'9L ¥5€92 08dSVOELE  100'05Z'9L LivL ¥2o'L L2OZ/BLIL0  OV9'LLL'OL oL0Z/6L/L0  00F'L 000'0Z2'91 204an eg Ueo" sWoH fesapa4
zee'zee'y 95£92 LdINDIEELE 0S0'25L'Y g9Vl vzo‘L L20ZIBLILG  §12'082'Y 9L0Z/0Z/L0  Ovb'L 000'682'% 2080 UP31) wied [eiopay
£5%'£00's 9rz9e ZAZOOSELE 669°0V6' 0gv'} 09 6L0Z/I9T/LL  ¥9E'LYO'S SL0Z/82/180  0SL'L 000286y 208n Bi jeuoyeN |esoped
979'9/6'G 88192 PIAODSELE BES'VG6'S osv'L ovz 810zZ/L2iLL 10.'600'9 vioc/iezieL  SzZ9'l 000°026'S 208N Bi feuonen |esepay
0 1L500L LS00LSAS O 0000 L 0 €L02/L0/20 0000 0 asn Hueg sn
0 6100/ 6100LSAS 0 2000 l 0 €1L0Z/L0/20 2000 0 o08an ojied Jo ueg uolun
p68°'206'L1 20002 0000.SAS +68'206°LL voz'L ! ¥68°£06°L1 €LOZ/LONO  ¥OT'L 68'206°LL Ellal wjseAu] Aouaby 200
aAlasay BunesadQ jeisuag
anjep buiAuey # JuBWIISIAUY diSND  anjep 1axJe PISIA Aunepn sjeq aoud aeq ajey anjep pajels uelpoisng / 99)sni] Jonssj|

Ainbz 03 sheg Kunjey paseyaing aseyoing jselayu|
-puog
aAl1asay Bunesad( |esouan
810zZ/LE/C0

Z obed

poday sJainseal|
Aouaby 1omod eluiojije ussyuoN

ADNICY Y302 V¥ ABIS WD NUIHINON

VdON



we g:80 8L0Z/8LIT0

192'629'S 12002 1ZO0LSAS £92'629'G 6051 L 192'619'S €L0Z/L0/10  605L 192'6.9'G Ellal wisanu] Aousby (eao]
oAl9s9y Bujuolssiwiioaag 0sg

000°00s't $ ssy'zer't  $ ost'L 6€2 000°005'L skt 000°00S°L § abeiaay pue [e)o) pung
000'00S'L 20892 ONMBOVELE SSP'TEY L osL'L (554 8L0Z/9z/LL 000005t 910Z/92/20  0SL'L 000°'00S'L 208N N UB0T SWoH [esspa
0 5L00L GLOOLSAS 0O 2000 L 0 €102/L0/20 2000 0 20an ojile Jo yueg uoiun
9A19SdY [e12adg jewisyloan

§29°'05¢ $ 195'0s¢  $ 05’4 88 LeL'sve 851 000°Z5¢ $ abesoAy pue jejo pung
08L'€S 29992 SNd96.CL6 08L'€S £69't 88 8L0Z/8T/90  LLL'ES 8L02/82/€0  299'L 000'rS 1asn Ainseai) ‘s’
88L'%S 0€592 SINd96/ZL6 91L'vS 909'L 88 810Z/82/190  60L'%S 8102/22120  Si5'L 00055 1asn Anseai] 'gn
€6£'65 21592 SWJ96/2L6 ZLL'SS ovs'L 88 8L02/82/90  ZG9'SS SLOZ/LE/LO  OLS'L 000'95 1asn Ainseal} '§N
vie'ogl z1592 SNd96.2L6 6ET'98L ESL 88 810Z/82/90  629'S8Y 8L0Z/EOIL0  B6Y'L 000°/91 1asn fnseai| s
3VIAIRS 198Q YIL0Z 099

psrple  $ ege'ele § v99'L 16 L16'€2¢ €9 ooo'ale ¢ abeJaay pue {ejo) pung
5H'eZL 19592 ZAASSEELE  L£T'ETL LWLl 6 810Z/201L0  SEV'ETL 8L0Z/82/€0  OLL'L 000'¥ZL lasn eg UeOT 8WOH [essps
89¥°c2) ze592 ZAASSESLE  LET°€TL gLl 26 8L0Z/201L0  LiT€Th 8102122120 6.9} 000'PTL 1asn eg UBOT BWOH [e1ope4
825121 61592 SNJ96.ZL6 610'LZL ors'L 88 8L02Z/8Z/I90  S0Z'.LTL 8LOZ/LENLO  OLG'L 000'8Z1 Lasn Anseal) 's'n
92IAI9S 1q8Q VYZ10¢ 099

zie'egs’t  § Lib'ege’t  $ 6954 68 0£9'286°L 8e5'L 000'966°L  § abessAy pue [ejof pung
€L6'EET 09592 ZAASBEELE §GS'EEC WL 6 8L0Z/C0/L0  8ZB'EET 8L0Z/82/1€0 0Ll 000°6€Z 18sn eg UeoT SWoH [e1apad
L66'€€Z €659 ZAASBEELE  GSS'EET €Ll 6 8L0Z/20/L0  6T9'EET 810212120  6.9'L 000°'6€Z 18s8n eg Ueo SWoH [elepay
P1'veT 60592 TAASSEELE GSG'EET osv'L 6 810Z/20/L0  9/Z'EET 21021822 0ZY'L 000'5€Z 14sn eg ueo sWoH |esepad
€ELVET 22592 SNd96.2L6 PPO'vET ovs'L 98 8L0Z/82/90  L¥S'eET BLOZ/LE/LO  OLSL 000'5€Z 1asn Ainsesl) 's'N
8Z1'250°'L 01592 SWJ96/ZL6 Z0L'LS0°L zes'L 88 8L0Z/82/90  95T'80'L 8LOZ/EO/L0  66F) 000'950't 1dasn Kinseaiy 'g'n
991A19G 19 |ewayjoan

€16'ss8 ¢ veo'sgs  $ syl [¥) osv'188 ozr'L 000’888  $ ebesaAy pue [ejo) pung
£15'688 20592 VIAXSSEELE bE0'SE8 ost'L VL 8LOZ/LLI0  QSP'Les 210Z/90/2L  0zv'L 000888 asn eg UeoT] sWoH |esopad
anjep Builueny # Jusunsaau) diSND  anfep joxeln PIBIA Runje ajeq aoud ajeq ajey anjeA pajels uelpoIsny / dasniL sanss|

Anbg o3 skeg fumep paseyaing eseyaindg JsaJagu}
spuog
pung uoponiisuod g0z 039
8L02/1L€/€0

| abed

Moday s Jainseal)

Aouaby 1amod eiuIOgi|eD UISYJON

AINITY HIMOE WIUEOITYI NEIHINON

VdDN./

Renderoe-a =




686'¢59'2Z $

we gy:80 8L0Z/8L140

Ajs3usenb ajqejjen
Api3ysenb aiqejen
Apsyenb ajqejen
Apayienb aiqejen

JINTHY POPIZ# JUBWIS3AU|
VIAING 69€9Zi# JUBIISAAU|
VIAINd E€E9T# WaWISIAU|

JNTH ZOE9TH 3uBWIISAAU|

SLOZ/LE/SO 1O SE [ewInof J9aAIS |leM SY3 WoJj seaud pig Jo sjudiualels uelpolsny /23lsnu | woJj sadkud uo paseq S| anjep Jaxel Juauny

POyl JoEXD Ue 9SN S13Y10 ||k ‘poyiau djewnxoidde ue asn Ajunjett 03 SYIUOW 9 UBY} SSB] YIIM SjUBWIESaAUL
'sadA} ||e usamiaq uosLedwos 1o} siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep gg¢ e uo paseq umoys st Kjunjely o} pIaiA Juajeainby puog,

‘osy'ize’le $ FyIN 14 885'0€9°22 § 1021 9l'erL'lz $ :STV.LOL ANVHD

665°26S°L  $ ale'sls’t  $ vz9'L yr4ns €or'LSS'E  $ £29'L 000'855°t  $ abeseay pue [ejo) pung
000°21S'L €EE9T SINEDYELE  LOB'TLY'L 529l 0sL'L 1202/S2/50  000'L1S'L 9L0z/5TIS0 STl 000'21S'L 14asn BYN JeuoneN |esapad
655°0F 11592 €3d96/216 SLYOV ¥65 L 6vZ 8L0Z/0ZL  EOV'OY 810Z/€0/L0  SSS'L 000'Ly asn Anseal) ‘SN
N0V YSA VZ LT 09D

ses'oLv'e  § sel'ser's  § 06b°L zis 99s'65v'c  $ 06€EL ooo'siv's abelaAy pue |ejo] puny
PL8'v0S'T 26192 SNAVILELE 00E'LLV'T 0EG'L 61 6102/20/0L  6E8'E8K'T S10Z/142/20  0SZ'L 000'61L5°C Lasn N Ueo BWOH jelepay
9r0'LLE 92292 Loav3lele €24'206 ySe'L 44 610Z/0E/S0  988'0Z6 5102/20/90  0SL'L 000°'206 Lasn A UBOT BWOH ferapad
SEL'SS 9592 8dd96/2L6 090'GS 8L S0€ BLOZNLEND  LPO'SS 8102//2/20 €28’ 000'95 asn Ainsess) 'g'n
100V 9A19S9Y 3D1AL9S 102 03O

Lw'9es'LL  $ 225'062°LL  $ 1v6°L 16 199's25°LL  $ 568°4 Z91'65°LL ¢ abelaay pue [ejo). puni
6v8'96Y 8Y592 9HVHZEEYY SEL'vEY ovLE TLLy €202/90/20  0Z8'96y 8L0Z/SLED 000 000'005 208N 277 #PaID WEI
969°0v2 6v592 /3VHO0¥90  085'0vL 622°€ voL'L €20Z/62/L0  OL9'Op. 8LOZ/SLIED  0S6'T 000°052 208n Q3 UOJIBIAl AN JO Yueg
18682 05592 81¥3zervye OV0'LEL ¥OL'E 2oLl €20Z//21L0  8YL'6EL 8L0Z/SLIED  008'T 000052 o0an 9 endeg ase8@ Uyor
pLYOFL 25592 8S9DZ969E €SL'VEL 06£'€ 2L €Z0Z/60/L0  S8E'OVL 8L0Z/SLIED  0OL'E 000052 o08an ‘00 213813 BIBURD
28.'82. 15592 YMOdBIYSZ  $80'62L v00'e S0L'L T202/L0/2L  085'82L 8LOZISLIED  0SET 000'052 so08an /Auedwo) Asusiq Nem
10z'098 66¥92 LDOEEBLED €29'8E8 62T 105°L Z2OTILLISO 211098 L10Z62ILL 00ET 11z'io8 208n "ou| 8|ddy
000'Ly6 [ ZEAVOPELE ZOL'8L6 00Z'Z 96€°L TCOTI9TILG  000'LY6 LLOZIOENO  002'T 000'L¥6 o08n N Ue0T BWOH [eispad
€29'6€L £5592 OAIHESEBY €6ZTEL goL'e 8ve'L L202/60/2L  0SY'SEL 8L0Z/SLIE0  0SS'T 000052 208N VN sueg ONd
000'005'S 69€92 EMEEDYELE GGZ'OZE'S 005t £5L'L 120Z/82/50  000'00S'S 9L0Z/0E/180  00S'L 000'005°S 208n By 1euoneN |eseped
¥89'€9¢ €002 ¥E00/SAS  #89'€9€ 2000 L ¥89'¢9¢ €L0Z/10/20 2000 ¥89'€9¢ 208N ojijeD 40 jueg uowun
anjep Buifuey # JdunsaAy| dISND  onjeA jaxsel PIOIA Aumepn ajeq aoud aleq ajey anjep pajeis uelpoisny j 89Sy Janss|

anbg 01 sheq Aumey paseyaind aseyang ysasaju|
Jpuog
aAJasay Hujuolssimwossq 0ag
8L0Z/LE/C0

Z abed

uoday sJainseal)
Aouaby Jamod eluiojijen uldyHUoN

KINIDY 83402 VINEOATYD Nuakison

VdON!/



we z:LL 8102/50/v0

8LZ'8LL's  $ 686'789's  § 1291 9¢8 o9cL'062's  § 108'L 000's92's  $ abessAy pue fejo) pung
€E£9'985'S £Y29Z 6Z53ILELE  698'THY'S 089’} 968 0Z0Z/¥0/80  /8L'9YS'S 510Z/82/180  0SL'L 000'825'S asn Wpai) uled |eispay
SE6'6EL 15¥92 9OENXEELE G6G'9EL oov'L Gt 6102/L0/20 1092 2102/821L0  SiEP 000'6€} asn eg UeoT SWOH [eiepag
SB6.'LS 1€592 GSMBZ8ZLE bP9'LS Spe'L SSt 6L0Z/0E/90  082'LS 8102/L2/20  S29'L 000'28 asn Ainseas) 's'n
G16'6Y £LP9T 2ano6.ZL6  1L88'BY €811 €5 8L0ZFZISO  895'6Y 210262180  6S54L 000'0S asn Ainsessl 'g'n
V0L0Z AlSay @21A19G jqo(q 04pAH

Les‘zsL'or $ 858'scL'0z  § 685°1 68 vsz'969'0z  $ 155°L 000°s£8'0Z  § abeloAy pue [ejo) pung
YE0'vS6'C £9592 TAASSBEELE €G2'8V6'C WL 26 8L02/Z0/20  0Lb'eS6'T 810Z/82/€0  OLL'L 000'£96'C 1asn eg UBOT BWOH [esepad
S¥Z'856'T L£59Z TAASBEELE 8TZL'TS6'T gLl 26 810z/20//0  699'€56'Z 810z//2/e0 089'L 000'126'C 18sn g UBOT SWOH |elepay
0€0'196' 51592 SNd96.ZL6 ¥06'656'C ovs'L 88 8102/82/90  0GS'€S6'C 8LOZ/LE/LO  OLSL 0002/6'C l8sn Ainsealy '§'n
282'6.8'LL €159Z SINA9BLZL6  ELV'V.8'LL zes'L 88 810Z/82/90  S95°GE8'LL 8L0Z/EO/L0 00S'L 000'€26'LL lasn Anseall ‘SN
991A138 19eQ 04pAH

z00'vgo'y  $ 158°090v  $ 8LZT'L 692 606°L0L'Y  § 16€°L 000°620'r  $ aBeJeAy pue [ejol pung
zZ.9'0PY'T 00€92 LONJIEELE  LET'ETH'T 090'} 962 6L02/22/L0  L0S'0SY'T 9L02/Z0/20  0ST'L 000'280'T asn Upa1) wied |ejepay
169°0€6'L 68192 PLAODSELE 0V0'GZS') oSt orZ 8Loz/Le ) PrT6ES L 10Z/ZLIZL ST9'k 000'625°L asn BNl [euoneN [BlSpe
268's1 ors9z SAd96/216 288Gl LV fad’ 8L0T/ET/IR0  898'SL 8L0Z//¢/20  089'L 000'9L asn Anseai) "gn
L¥2'96 €059 TrdosLzLe 70.'96 sov'L 29 8102/L0/90 96796 L10Z/20/2L  SEVL 000'26 asn Ainseal} "s'n

8LL'l08'9L § 952'969'0L ¢ Pra 114 ezy'log'ol  § 9/e'L vov'zyg'al  § ebeloAy pue [ejo) pung
201'96% ¥¥59T PMEEZOL60 S80'S6Y 16T G641 €20Z/L0/€0  0L0'96F 8l0Z/wLIE0  008C 000°005 208N '0Q Buisog
£28'88Y [el4eeT4 SHAXE8E89 SEL'88Y 1zLe 182'L €202/5LC0 SLL'8sy 8l0ZivLIED  §Z9T 000°005 008N 'dio) apelQ
525 'v6Y 19592 90v0I9Z8Z6 SZI‘E6h 150°€ 8LLL TeoevLeL  0Lv'ver 8L0Z/FLIE0  008T 000°005 oo08n ‘ou} esip
6l6'581 959z SAVA09YY. SSbLay 150'€ 829'L T202/S1160  0L2'G8Y 8LOZWLIE0  0.€T 000005 os08an abeloig algngd
000'02€'S o] 4574 SHAED9ELE 8E8'GEZ'S 0se'l 89 6L02/0E/ZL  000°0ZE'S 9L0Z/0€/90  OSE'L 000'02€'s J08n By feucen fesope
000°'lzz'e $0£9Z O/MIBOVELE 864'V0T'E oS’} 6€C 8L0Z/9Z/LL  000'LZZ'E oLoZ/eZIZ0  0SL'L 000°'tzZ'e o08an N UBOT BWOH [elepad
000'¢66'L 6€£92 08Y6OVELE 9LE'SB6'L 0560 68 8L0Z/62/90  000'€66'L 9L0z/62/90 05670 000'€66'L oo8an 1N UBOT] SWOH |elepagy
160'8E €002 LE00LSAS 160'8E 2000 L 160'8€ €L0Z/L0/L0  TO00 160'8€ o08n ojljeD Jo sueg uon
ele'ole'y 82002 8Z00/SAS €LE0LZ'Y vozZ'L L ELE'0LTY €L0Z/L0/20  $0T'L €Lg0L2'y Ellal unsanuy Aouaby [eo0]
anjep buifuen # Jusu)saau| diSND  snjep e PIBIA fumep aeq aosud aeq ajey anjep paelg uelpojsny f a9)snut lanssj|

Anb3 o) sheq Aunen paseyaing aseyaindg jsatau)
«puog
0ipAH antasay “Aaq |eyden
810Z/1L€/€0

| abed

uoday sJainsear]
Aousby Jamod eluioyljen UIBYUON

AINILY 4IMO0d VW NEDE V5 NUZRIMIN

VdON



866°088'cS $

we z:p i 8102/50/v0

Auspienb ajqeied  YIAING 6S£9Z# uaURsaAU]
Apalienb ajqejied  IANG 0bE9ZH 3uaUNISaAU]
Aayienb ajqejje) JINTHY 6EETZH aUISBAUY
Apiauenb ajqejied JNTHE €0E9ZH IusWISAAY]
810Z/LE/E0 JO S jeusnor 32918 B/ 2Y) Woiy s2oud piq 1o Sjuawajels Uelpoisng /oa)snl ) woly sasud Uo paseq si anjep joyse JuaINg

POy JOBXS UB 3SN SI3U10 ||e ‘poyiaw ajewxosdde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SYJUOW g UBY) SSO UM SJUBWISAU|

‘sadA;j jle usamioq uostiedwod 104 siseq e apiaold o} Jeak Aep gg¢ B Uo paseq umoys si AJunjely o3 piSiA Jusjeainbg puog,

'696'9L5°CS 8951 8Ly zl9'es8'es 05} vov'ele'es § STVLOL ONVHD

si'Loz'y  $ ovi'vez'y  $ ovee 95¢€1 €56'99Z  § 1E€T 000°89Z°y  $ abesoAy pue |ejo) puny
9ze'/T6'E 79852 z8av3/EIE TL0'006°C 08€'Z €8E'L TTOZIELLO  TET'IC6'E ZL0Z/60/20  SLET 000'826°€ asn W UBOT BWOH [eJopad
00076 65£92 16SED9ELE /9106 0Es't fxAl 1202/82/1L0  000'v6 910Z/82/1/0  08S'L 000'v6 gsn Byl jeuoneN |esepad
£66°GYL 6£59Z 9XERZBZLE LbY'SYL 1622 150t L20TIGL0  266'SYL 8L02//220  0STZ 000°'sv} gsn Ainsees) "s'n
951001 v¥Z9z 62633cELE  09v'86 089’} 958 0Z0Z/Y0/80  6ZE°004 510Z/82/80  0SL'L 000001 asn Upa1) wie [esape
v¥Sda Z10zZ oIpAH

o $ ] $ wex penn wrvr [] $ P 0 $ abesany pue |ejo] pung
0 19062 L906LSAS 0 oro0 L 0 €L02/10/Z0  0V00 0 asn ueg sn
92UBNSS| JO 1509 Z1.0Z OJpAH

000°005‘L $ SS'zey'L  § 0siL 6¢Z 0oo‘00s‘t  $ 0sL't 000°00S'L § abeiaAy pue jejo) pund
000005 £0€9Z O/IBOVELE  SSb'Z6Y'L 0si'L 6£2 810Z/9Z/kL  000005'L 9L0Z/92/20  0SL'L 000°005°L o08an WAl UBOT] BWOH [eIopaZ
o 9100L 9L00£SAS 0 2000 L 0 €L02/10//0 2000 0 208N ojifeD Jo sueg uown
0 £0002 0000/SAS 0 LLE0 L o €L0Z/L0/1L0  LIE0 0 Eval usanu| fousby [eaoy
aAIasaYy |e19adg oIpAH

vig'069  $ viv'vis  § 06L1 9zzl 16£°169  § Si8L 000689  $ abesaay pue |ejo) puny
¥/8°069 zevoe EVEBOVELE bLb'PI9 061 9zT'L 1202/60/80  L6E'169 1102/821v0 S8} 000689 asn A UBO] BWOH [elepe
JUNo22Y ajeqay VZ10Z oIpAH
anjep Buikuen # JUawysaau| dISND  anjep yadyey PIBIA Aunjepn ajeq 3d3ug ajeq ajey anjep pajels UBIPOJSNY [ 93)SNi] 1onss|

Ainb3z o3 sheg funjepy paseyaing aseyaing 1saJ13ju}
puog
JUNo22Y 8jeday vz 10Z OIpAH
8102/1LE/€0

¢ obeg

Aouaby Jamod eruiojijen uiayon

Hoday sJainseal]

ADNMILY B2AOS V NEDIIIVE HYIHLION

VdON



wegiiL 8L0Z/E0/V0

Aiiauienb sjqejied YNNG 8SE9Z# JUaWISIAU)

8L0Z/LE/E0 3O SE |euInOr }aaJlS || 94} Woss sedlid pig Jo Sjuaalels ueipoisng /89)sni | wolp saaud uo paseq si anjep Jaxep jJuaung

‘Poyjaw Joexa ue 3asn SISO [|e ‘poyjaw sjewxosdde ue asn AjLnjews 0} SYIUOW g LUBY] SSI| YIIM SJUSLIISIAU|
‘sadA} ||e usamiaqg uosLiedwod 10} siseq e apiaoid 0} Jeak Aep §9¢ B UO paseq umoys S| fjunjely o} pIAIA JuseAinbl puog,

80e's9s'y  $ wrLeYSY  $ 606'L 8¢S £19'79s%  $ 968°} 000°185'v  § 'STVLOL ANVHO

8.1'695'L  § azrss't ¢ 612'C 9egl 152°L28'r $ olee 000895t  § abeloAy pue [ejol pund
069'vit'L a¥8ST zdavaLELe OPLTEY'L oveT £8g'L Z20ZELIL0  OEV'LbY'L ZL0Z/ELZ0  SLET 000°ety'L asn WA UBOT BWIOH [eJepa4
000'L2 8G€9Z /6SEDYELE 50189 0ES'L %A 1202/82/120  000°LL 9L0z/8Z/1.0  0ES'L 000°LL asn Byl [euoneN [eJepey
Z09'9e 71592 €3d96.TL6 9Z5'9E 651 74 8L0Z/90/Ck  lov'ee 8L0Z/EO/I0  ¥5SH 000'2€ asn Anseait 's'n
988'9lL [R4-:74 SAd96.ZLE6 S18°0L L vl 8L0z/ee/80  098'OlL 8102/L2/20  089'L 000°21 asn Ainseail 's'n
AAI9S9Y IASG Jgeq 'oed "den

ocL'o66'c  $ 868'v66'C  $ 9Ll ozl 298'066'C $ 089'L 000°cL0't  § abeiaAy pue [ejo] pung
S0Z'e9y 65592 VOEVSSEELE  LOL'EOy S08°L zelL 8102/L0/80  060'€9p 810Z//2/€0  OLL} 000°99Y 1asn &g UBOT SWOH [Bsopad
6LE'e5Y'| Zrsez VOEVSBEELE 906'Z50'L 1100 zzL 8L0Z/L0/80  YO'LSK'L 8L0Z//2/Z0  OFLL 000'Z9v'L 18sn 6 UE0T SWOH |eIspad
9v5'620'L Lzs9z y¥d96.ZL6  168'820°L €651 gLt 8L02/92/L0  STL'9L0'L 8LOZ/LEND 6551 000'680'L 18asn finseaiy ‘s
anep Builires # JuaU}SaAL dISNO  anjep yaxen PIRIA Rungep ojeq T oeq ajey an[ep pajels ueipojsng / 33ysniy Janssy

Ainb3 o3 sheq Kunepn peseyaing aseyaind iseJaju
puog
921AI3g 1qaQ sanljioe ] ded
81L0z/Le/c0
AJNILY HIMOE VINBOITYD NHIHIEDN
poday sJainseal) <ﬂ— UZ
Aouaby somod eluloyijen uIdyuUoN ‘ '
| abey

i



800'8vE

920'8ve

wegjiiL

810Z/€0/v0

8959¢ ENXSBEELE veL'L 09 8lOZ/LEISO  9Z6'LvE 8102/42/€0  SOL'L 000'67€ Lasn eg U0 SWOH [esepad
ovL'6ve £2592 EWXGBEELE  HTO'6YE z05'L 09 8LOZ/LEISO  6.T'8YE 8LOZ/LEND  bivL 000'05€ Lasn eg Ueo awoH |e1apa4
L8Z'v5e 80592 84XGBEELE ELL'PSE 9/€'L ¥S 8l0Z/5Z/S0  0€0°€SE 2102/82/2L  0SE'L 000's5€ 18sn eg Ueo? sWoH [eiepagy
1€8 [4%/72 ZLOBLSAS L€8 0090 L Le8 €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 L€8 asn isnu sueg SN
pund sQa 9010z ¢# enss| 031

6v6'esl’y ¢ ser'esi'y  $ 8sv'l 95 Luo'zyi'y  $ Lev'L IT TR abelaAy pue jejol pund
08228V 12592 VINXGBEELE ObZ'/eh 6991 19 8L02/10/90  0ZL'le¥ 8L021/2/120  Ov9'L 000'6EY 18sn eg UBOT BWOH [eIopaly
SSL'9ey 29592 EINXSBEELE 812'9EY YeL'L 09 8LOZ/LESO  TS9'9EY 810z/L2/1€0  SOL'L 000'8EY 18sn eg ueoT sWoH (eispay
olLe'ser 91592 EINXSBEELE  0LL'6EY 205 09 8LOZ/LESO  Zes|'sEy 8LOZ/LENLOD  Sit'L 000'Lirp 18sn eg U207 8WoH |elsped
1¥Z'8e8'z 20592 8IXSSEELE  068'9€8'C 9/€L vs 8L0Z/STISO  912'828'C JLozieeiel 0se'L 000'¥¥8'C 1asn eg UeoT SWOH |esapaly
182°} 11062 LLOBLSAS /ST 0090 I i) €L0Z/10/L0 0090 Pistalt asn Isnul sueg SN
pung sQ voLoz Zi anss| 037

ZoL'cle's  § evi'elee  § 0181 (] LEL'g06'z  § TSl veL'IzeT  $ abessAy pue [ejo) pung
v46'92L 82592 VINXSSEELE 806'0ZL 699'4 19 8LOZ/L0/90  8./8'GTL 8L02/L2/20  OV9'L 000622 188N eg UeoT aWoH |elspady
ve6'veL 99592 EWXSSEELE TLB'VTL veL 09 8LOTILEISO  29L'vTL 8L0Z/L2/IE0  S0L'L 000'.22 18sn eg Ue0 SWOH fesepad
80¢'22L 8169z SNXSEEELE 996922 205°L 09 8LOZ/LESO  9lv'STL 8LOZILENO  Si¥'L 000'6Z2 18sn g Ugo7 SWOH [ejapad
zIS'eeL 90592 84XGBEELE EIL'EEL 9/E') S 8102/SZ/IS0 126'0EL 210Z/8z/1CL  0SE'L 000's€L 14asn eg ueo aWoH [e1apay
veL'L #0062 VOOBLSAS bEL'L 0090 L rEL'Y £L0Z/L0/120 0090 yeLL asn IsniL jueg SN
pung sg g0102 L# anss| 037

099'90Z's  $ 8zL'voT's  $ vsv'L 9§ 609°L6L's  $ Praat s6z'8lz's  $ abesaAy pue [ejoL pung
Ly9's8y 62592 VINXG8EELE  26G'/8Y 699'L 19 8LOZ/LO/90  906'98Y 8L0T//2/120  Ov9'L 000'68Y 1asn eg U0 OWOH [BJopa
€19'08y 59692 EXGEEELE  8EQ'98Y veL'L 09 8LOZ/LE/SO 8698V 810¢/22/e0 SOL'L 000'88Y 18sn eg UB07 SWOH [esopady
¥82'969 02592 EINXSEEELE  £50'969 205} 09 8LOZ/LE/SO  89S5'V69 8LOZ/VENO  bivL 000'869 18sn eg Ue07 SWOH [elepaly
128'v€S'e 50692 8IXGBEELE GPL'EES'E Q€' vS 810Z/52/IS0  TvE'Zes'e L10Z/82/CL  0SE'} 000'2¥S'e 1asn Bg UBOT SWOH |esope4
S6T'L £006. £006.SAS G62'L 0090 L S6T'L €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 S6C'L asn 1sni) sueg sn
pun4 S voLoz L#enss| 931

9sz'zL $ 9sZ'eL $ S0Z°L l 95222 $ S0Z'L 9s2'zL $ abesaAy pue [ejo) pung
ose'cL 9v00. 9Y00/SAS 962'CL ¥0zT'L ! 952’2 €L02/L0/L0  YOT'L 952'zL wysanu) AoueBy [e007]
anjep buifuey # Jusunsanu dISND  onjeA joxiel PIBIA Aunjey ajeq adsud ajeq ajey anjeA pajeis uelpojsng J aadjsniL Jonssj

Anbg o} sheq Aunjely peseyoaing aseyoing 1sa1a3u|
Jpuog
102y uonodny H9HO O3
8L0Z/LEIC0

| abed

poday sJainseas)

AouaBy Jamod eiuiojijen uJsyoN

SINICY BIMDE ¥ VB0 YD NEIHIMON

VdON



Lzzvig'e

wegp:LL 8i0z/e0/v0

ovraz 00ravoeLe €2L15S6'c 0SSl 962 0202/50/90  ZS6'EL9'E LL0Z/OEI90  OpS'L 000'519'c asn eg Ueo") suloH |esape
655°6Y6'C 8YZ9Z PYZOOSELE 65H'9T6'T 0zZ'L vZe 6L02Z/6LIC0  TPL'866'T SL0Z/82/80  G/8L 000'€€6'C 208n By [euoneN etepaq
ST6'rL 1£002 LPOOLSAS SZ6'vL 2000 L 526'vL €10Z/84/20 2000 S26'vL 208n oj[eD jo yueg uojun
952'16G'L 2002 LV00LSAS 952'/6G'L voz'L L 952'166'L £L02/L0/1L0  YOT'L 95.°265'L wysaau) Aousby B0
9AJBSY N 8 O 231

60280t § 00g'220't  § oL [212 £06°20L°L  § SIEY €29'050°L  § abeIaAY pue [ejo) punyg
ziv'ze0'L 959 9OENXEELE 962'CS0'L 0or'L 9k 6L0Z/L0/L0  802'Z80°L 2102/82/L0  GIEV 000'5Z0°tL asn eg UBO SWOH |e1epal
L9'%Z $£59Z 8dd96/2L6 185'%C [41:4% S0e BLOZILENO  2L8'VT 8L0Z/L2/e0 €28t 00052 asn Aunsesy) 'g'n
€29 €L06L €106/SAS €29 0090 L €29 €L0Z/L0/120 0090 €29 asn IsnuL ueg sn
S49vg 4sa 90102 Z# enss| 931

690'292' § e8L'82z'z  $ Sbs'L S6L 168'z62'c  $ 6VE'E gee'esl’c  § abeJaAy pue [ejo) pung
09z'622'c S92 8€30/EELE  LEV'06LT ovs'L £08 0202/2H90  9v1L'sse'T 2102/82120  SlE€ 000'sL'2 asn eg Ueo"] oWOH [esepad
€Lyl ¥£592 8dd96./Z16 T9€'/E z8'L [ 6L0Z/LE/L0  6YE'LE 8L0Z/L2/20  £28') 000'8¢ asn Ainseas) 's'n
96¢ 90062 9006/SAS 96€ 009°0 } 96€ €L0Z/L0/IL0 0090 96€ asn IsnuL yueg sn
AS3Y sqng savd 90102 L#SS| 031

0ze'isL's szy'zey's  § L ozeL ggL'ssl'e  § zI9'L 061's69'8 ¢ abesany pue fejo] pund
168651 £9v9Z 69D6.EELE  8ILLLO'Y 0921 Lest 220Z/0L/90  90£'89L'y 2102/82/180  SZL'Z 0000047 asn eg UeoT aWoH (elepsy
802 L1 5v9Z 603VILELE  L6ZT'TPL 669'L 62zt 120212180  sro'orl 2002/82120  SZL'L 000051 asn W UBOT BWOH (eiopad
000°'09€ ' 1£€9T 17893€ele 09220V 659'L 0S4 1202/52/50  000°09¢'y 910Z/80/90  099'} 00009y asn Upa1) ey [B1epa4
599'v8 8€59Z SSMBZ8ZLE 6lb've S¥6'L GG 610Z/0€/90 Ly9'v8 8102Z/L2/R0 STt 000's8 asn Ainseai} 'g'n
06l 50062 S006.SAS 061 0090 L 061 €10Z/L0/L0 0090 06l asn 1SNy vueg sn
pung ¥sd 0102 L# anss| 937

L26'v9e  $ po6'veE  $ zoL'L 19 z99'v9e  § 29 000'99¢  § abeJaAy pue |ejo) puny
16v'z81L £¥59T VINXSBEELE Gip'Z8L 699'L 19 8L0Z/10/90  §ZZ'ZsL 8102/82/20  Ov9'L 000'e81 lasn eg UeoT sWoH |eepad
08’28l 69592 SINXSBEELE 68F'Z8L vELL 09 810Z/LE/S0  LEV'Z8L 8L02//2/1€0  SOL'L 000'€84 lasn eg Ue0T SWOH [elopa4
pund S v.10Z L#9nss| 931

[:1: 744 1) 2 M3 86°b0p°L  $ 695°L 65 £9s'e6e’t  $ LSl Le8'sor’t  § abesaAy pue [ejo puny
§20'05€ 92592 VINXSEEELE £66'6VE 699°} 19 810Z/10/90  /6¥'6YE 8102//2/20  Ov9'L 000'ts€e 18sn eg UeoT SWoH (eJepay
anjep Buifien # JUdWIISOAU) dISND  enjep jaxuey [STEITN Aunyep ajeq aold ajeq ajey an|ep pajels ueipojsng f asysni Janss|

ainb3 o} sheq Aunjey paseyaing yasng Jsedoqu|
puog

¢ abed

810z/LE/c0

poday sJainseas]

Kauaby 1amod eluiojfijesn udyuoN

puni sq 90102 Z# @nss| 931

AJHIBY B3OS VINEOITYT NEIHISON

VdON



wegpiLi 8102/€0/v0

swpAue sjqejie)  g)d4 LEE9ZH IAUNSIAU]

8LOZ/LE/E0 JO SE [RWINO( J03.4S JlEM 9Y3 WoJ) saaud pig 40 SjuaWaJelg UBIPOISNY) /88)sn) | WOy saoud uo paseq SI onjeA JoMe Juang

‘pPoyjaw JoBXS Ue 9Sh SJaYJo |[e ‘poielu jewixosdde ue asn Ajunjew o} SYUOW g UBY) SSB| YIIM SJUBLLIISIAU]
-sadA} |je usamjaq uosuedinod Joj siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep ggg B Uo paseq umoys st AJLnjepy 0} PJaIA JusjeAInb3 puog,

po'lsyiie  § ‘eLl1'gLe'9e  § 66v°L 09§ z£9'czs'2e  $ 0L} £€99'962°LE § 'STVLOL ANVHD
Lop'ocz’llL £v5'080°LL  $ eeL 085 SLL'v8Z'LL § 9051 Lg9'0zz'LL  § abeiany pue [ejo) puny
000'000'c LPE9T ZPNEDYELE 082'086°C 00E'L Lz8 0202/0€/90  000'000°E 9102/08/90  00E'L 000'000°€ 208n Bi [euoneN |esepad
anjep Builuey #jueunseau] dISND  enjep 3l PIRIA Kumew ajeq a3ud ajeq oy anjep pajels uelpojsny J a9ysniy lenssj
amnbg o} skeg Runmep paseyoing sseyoing PEETENT
puog
9AI9SAY N '? O 231
810Z/1€/€0

¢ abed

Hoday s Jainseal}
Aoueby Jamod eijuiojien usayuoN

ADNISY §3:04 V A0V NEIHION

VdON /



Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\o-

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth Q&_D;’METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi I City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F"’“"‘;‘;:g?’f::; O  CityofPaloAlto O  Plumas-Sierra REC [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [J
City of Healdsburg [1 City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 143:18



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
April 18, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of 2 portable air compressors, 1997
Ford F800 boom truck, 2000 Ford E350 van, 1999 snorkel man lift, 1997 Ford Ranger,
1999 Ford Ranger, 2004 Ford E-350 with utility bed, office furniture, 23 iPhones, and 2

black and white copiers.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days

of such action.

In accordance with that policy, the following disposal or destruction is hereby reported:

*Method of

Net Cost From

Property Description Quantity Disposal Disposal

Ingersol Rand portable air compressor 2 PS $ 1501.00
1997 Boom Truck F-800 1 PS $ 5682.00
2000 Ford Van E-350 1 PS $ 1500.00
Snorkel Manlift ATB 1 PS $ 5125.00
1997 Ford Ranger 1 PS 3 1500.00
1999 Ford Ranger 1 PS $ 1500.00
2004 Ford F-350 1 PS $ 1860.00
iPhone 5 21 S $ 760.88
iPhone 6 2 S $ 97.00
Sharp B&W Copiers 2 S $ (250.00)
Office furniture (bookcases, desks, chairs, etc.) 19 S $ 0.00

Total $ 19275.88

"Note: Public Sale (PS); Private Sale (P), Disposal — Net Scrap Value (S)

SR: 143:18




Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

April 18, 2018

Page 3

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

> oo

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Declarations of Surplus

SR: 143:18



I INHINHOVLLV

Amoeyg (2) SOIHIAL 000°0ST ‘ouBa) PajUnO
[BULIdY) 005y 756-dD 00°00S1$ JAY xog ‘augduy [2sA1( ‘pAq ANBYA 0SE-d PLO] $OOT I 8
Anpoeg 69S8EVAMTZNTTYALATHNIA 19YS Jadure) “IA 690°891
[BHLIY}097) S6b-dD 00°005$ 1Ay ‘WIS YU ‘qe) Jen3ay Nd Jeduey prog pXy 6661 ! L
Aoey SO €¥8°OTT  ‘CESSSV.LAONTFUILATANIA
JBULIDY)03D) por-do 00°005$ JOAY WIS 3ONS ‘qeD) Jemday Nd 195uey paod pXp L661T 1 9
Aneg ajqeaadouy ; uopdadsul pajreq ‘TIEC66HNS
[BWIdY)035) 00°00S$ 1004 “S4Y 0°6L0E W 09 €°L'V IPIUBIN [DU0US 6661 I S
&npoey SI[IW 6LS TOT ‘PL6600T #OM ‘T60TLVHAITHEASLATANIA
[BULIdY309D) 1S6-dD 00'00ST$ JOAY “{oouwy suidua/m BB USIH ‘UBA paog 0SEH 0007 I 14
WITOHd
UADOTY 10O ‘0Z800VAA0D08XAAATHNIA wooq
Aoy (0L “suea3 prepuels ‘auidug suywn) ¢°s “siy §'Spe‘o
[BULISY)03D) 00S-d9 00°000SS$ 1Ay ‘safrmt 9 E8Y°9T ‘008-A P10 L66T 00S-D() HINL], woog I €
Apoey 0'08LY "STH ‘60SP AMAAD ‘9SE88P-TSEEOTHNIA
1BULId0D 68P-dO 00°00S$ JOAY 8861 “lossarduwio) ary 91qela04 0ST pury jostaduf 1 z
Anpory 0'€ISY *STH 00S¥ MAD ‘LIBIST-SSSISTHNIA
JBULIdY09D) 1S7-d9 00'00S$ IAY $861 ‘10ssarduwrod a1y IqeLI0d SEE puey [ostoguy 1 1
NOILVOOT 10aloag 10 . (SNIA % SND'T ‘S IPPOI #
ALIS wesdoug TV10L LINA | ONOD spqeayiddy jry Surpnjour) W0 | ALO | WA
VdON ANTVA QILVINLLSA NOLLJIYOSAa

SSEOXH 40 NOILLVYVIDAd
ADNTIV FIMOd VINIOAI'IVD NIHHLIAON

810¢/0e/1 Qg




[ INAINHOV.LLV

(JADVYNVIN TVHINID)

(S) aVHDSs “@ ¥00d (V) ADVHAAY (D) 00D ‘() INTTTIOXT NOILIANOD «» 9/ \ / \ﬁ ALVA \(\_v ]S ‘AFIO0Ud OL
m NOILVZIJOHLAV
TUNSVAW A0 LINA = W/« Qu%zﬁé
HAOD A9 qIAOUAY
ANTVA dVHOS LAN ON 1Vs0dsid DY0 )ﬁ
e —— HDVS A MIvd
ATVS ALVAIN X  a1vsoIidand [ R / BIUSRQ WO : Ag qAUVITAd
*NOLLISOJSIA AIANTWINOD T

“Anpqepuadap yoe| pue sopim Auew dasy [[e ‘saredas Surynboaa aae way) jo
0V "SONAEA DY 10 04pAY 3y3 woly A[oe [eW10Y)035) 913 03 UIAL3 40 pasn dseyaand 2.10M Judwdinba pus s3PIY2A oY) JO IV TTVSOJSIA/SSAIXE WO NOILLVDIALLSOf




00°098°L $00°sz0'L 00°6¢ce $ | 00'esy’L $ SOIN 000°0G L ‘1oseIQ 0GE-d4 PIod ¥00Z 8 way

00°159 $ 00'65. $ | 00°00S°t % | 00°00¢€ $ | 00°0SL $ | 001821 $ SN 690891 ‘BIUS XINS 'qeD By Nd Jebuey piod vXy 6661 2 Waj|

00°159 $ 00°00S'L s 00'g8lL $ | 00'2se’L $ €891 1 "BIUS NS ‘qed Bay Nd Jebuey piod vXy 2661 19 wal

00'6ZL'S 00°005 00°001 $ | oo'est’l $ SINOH 640€ 14 09 9° L'V HIIUB |9XI0US 6661 G Wa})
00°620'L 00°005't $ 00’052 $ | oo'gey $ 615102 SOIIN UBA P104 06€3 000Z 't Way

00°169'¢ $ [ 00052 00°05¢ $ | 00°289' $ SOl L8Y'9Z 008-4 P10 2661 00G-ON ¥onuL woog :¢ wa)|

00999 $ 00°0S $ | 00Z¥S $ 8861 ‘Jossaldwo) iy SjqeHOd 0GZ puey |jos1abul. iz way

00°LS9 $ 00'GY $ | 00°ge8 $ ¥861 ‘JossaidwioD Iy S|qenod GEE puey [losiabu] |, way

asnoH ned ouyiag yuel4 | Pployio uay | ulaAsg umeYS | uosjep\ UBSQ | doeg SepEUD | OjIinIL UMBN | plesid yieaH

1Sd Wd 00:Z Je 8102 ‘v I4dy 2wy l/aeq pig
Ajijioed Jewayjoon siashen
Auadoid snjding jo jesodsig




TNDHTR#RN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Bid on Sale of Surplus
Property/Bill of Sale

INSTRUCTIONS:

Read and complete this form.

Place in sealed envelope with your name on outside and return to NCPA representative,
The successful bidder will be so notified within 24 hours after the scheduled bid opening.
This form may also constitute a Bill of Sale for all sales of surplus whether by sealed bid,
auction or a negotiated sale.

bl N

DECLARATION:

e Iunderstand that if I am the successful bidder, I must render payment and remove the subject
property within 48 hours of receipt of such notice, unless other arrangements are approved in
writing by NCPA prior to the bid opening.

e Ihave read and acknowledge the terms and conditions of sale noted hereon and on the
reverse side hereof.

e [ hereby submit the following bid as described below:

NCPA
Property Net Unit Total Bid
ID No. Description Quantity Price Bid Amount

T7ens™]  Tugecsol/ B 225 ! Fgzs Foec™
Signature of Bidder/Buyer Date: Z/Zﬁ/_’é?

Location of Property: é&/,,/g =z S

NOTES:

e NCPA reserves the right to accept or decline all or any part of the above bid.

e Terms and conditions of sale are stated on reverse side of this form and are effective for
all sales, whether by seal id, auctjgn or a negotiated sale.

e Bid Accepted by: AN - {3\/\“‘“’ Date: L//L'//Mfg

(Highest only) (NCPA Representative)

DISTRIBUTION: Original to Treasurer-Controller
Copy to Successful Highest Bidder

ATTACHMENT 3 1of2



/ NORTHERN CALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY

EMPLOYEES OF
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
OR IT’S CONTRACTORS

To be eligible to participate in this sale, you must certify by signing below:

I hereby certify that I have not:
a) Participated in the determination to dispose of the property,

b) Participated in the preparation of the property for sale,
c) Participated in determining the method of sale,

d) Acquired information not otherwise available to the general public regarding usage,
condition, quality or value of the property.

Signed: e
Organization: M /D/gl

Original to Treasurer-Controller

ATTACHMENT 6



/

i &
ye

&

/INCPA

/{" NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENEY

Bid on Sale of Surplus
Property/Bill of Sale

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Read and complete this form.

2. Place in sealed envelope with your name on outside and return to NCPA representative.

3. The successful bidder will be so notified within 24 hours after the scheduled bid opening.

4. This form may also constitute a Bill of Sale for all sales of surplus whether by sealed bid,
auction or a negotiated sale.

DECLARATION:

e lunderstand that if T am the successful bidder, I must render payment and remove the subject
property within 48 hours of receipt of such notice, unless other arrangements are approved in
writing by NCPA prior to the bid opening.

e I have read and acknowledge the terms and conditions of sale noted hereon and on the
reverse side hereof.

e I hereby submit the following bid as described below:

NCPA

Property Net Unit Total Bid

ID No. Description Quantity Price Bid Amount
Thous 7 1492 Euyd Q\M..a,./ g 1500 1500
Ther 4 2000 Ford Yeun ) (500 15Gc,

Signature of Bidder/Buyer: %ﬂ M%,, Date:_ 03-727-1§,

Location of Property:

NOTES:

o NCPA reserves the right to accept or decline all or any part of the above bid.

e Terms and conditions of saje are stated on reverse side of this form and are effective for
all sales, whether by sealegd big, auctian or a negotiated sale.

e Bid Accepted by: L \{\'\ i Date: L}/ Lf/ 2o/

(Highest only) (NCPA Representati\'ie)

DISTRIBUTION: Original to Treasurer-Controller
Copy to Successful Highest Bidder

ATTACHMENT 3 1 of2



/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

EMPLOYEES OF
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
OR IT°’S CONTRACTORS

To be eligible to participate in this sale, you must certify by signing below:

I hereby certify that I have not:

a) Participated in the determination to dispose of the property,
b) Participated in the preparation of the property for sale,
¢) Participated in determining the method of sale,

d) Acquired information not otherwise available to the general public regarding usage,
condition, quality or value of the property.

Signed: (,/['/\./ Ww
Organization: __ A/¢PH

Original to Treasurer-Controller

ATTACHMENT 6



f@ﬁuy— DeLFiao
/ 14120 Rock Pice Ropd

£\ ’z,
j érs;g A PUBLIC AGENCY \(s 6_{- ‘/ | - j
A5 |

Bid on Sale of Surplus

Property/Bill of Sale -.PX-O;JC ’4-051— "’6‘-} -52.% {

INSTRUCTIONS:
1. Read and complete this form.
Place in sealed envelope with your name on outside and return to NCPA representative.

2.

3. The successful bidder will be so notified within 24 hours after the scheduled bid opening.

4. This form may also constitute a Bill of Sale for all sales of surplus whether by sealed bid,
auction or a negotiated sale.

DECLARATION:
e Tunderstand that if I am the successful bidder, I must render payment and remove the subject

property within 48 hours of receipt of such notice, unless other arrangements are approved in
writing by NCPA prior to the bid opening.

¢ I have read and acknowledge the terms and conditions of sale noted hereon and on the
reverse side hereof.

e I hereby submit the following bid as described below:

NCPA

Property Net Unit Total Bid

ID No. Description Quantity Price Bid Amount
Tfen | Toguutotl 1e0 A tospposse | €5), o+
e 2 Togupi) Re¢ fe s _B ] 666 o0
Tten 3 fore Bosm Jro- [ 385/ po

Date: 4-T-18

Signature of Bidder/Buyer: ﬁ:@

Location of Property: M’MS L

NOTES:
¢ NCPA reserves the right to accept or decline all or any part of the above bid.
o Terms and conditions of s e are stated on reverse side of this form and are effective for

all sales, whether by seale ) auctl or a negotlated sale.

o Bid Accepted by:
(Highest only) (N CPA Representatlve)

DISTRIBUTION: Original to Treasurer-Controller
Copy to Successful Highest Bidder

ATTACHMENT 3 Iof2



| A PUBLIT AGENCY

N ORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Bid on Sale of Surplus
Property/Bill of Sale

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Read and complete this form.

2. Place in sealed envelope with your name on outside and return to NCPA representative.

3. The successful bidder will be so notified within 24 hours after the scheduled bid opening.

4. This form may also constitute a Bill of Sale for all sales of surplus whether by sealed bid,
auction or a negotiated sale.

DECLARATION:

* Tunderstand that if I am the successful bidder, I must render payment and remove the subject
property within 48 hours of receipt of such notice, unless other arrangements are approved in
writing by NCPA prior to the bid opening,. .

o I have read and acknowledge the terms and conditions of sale noted hereon and on the
reverse side hereof.

e I hereby submit the following bid as described below:

NCPA
Property Net Unit Total Bid
ID No. Description Quantity Price Bid Amount
ﬁ"f“ 6 ﬁr\f (Con cer 1 £5/. 0o
Thlena 7 o ﬂms«j» ( (S 0o
Thin @ 304 ford F359 ) 1960, o
Signature of Bidder/Buyer: Z ssscanigil Date: 4-J-&

Location of Property: be Y5t

NOTES:

e NCPA reserves the right to accept or decline all or any part of the above bid.

e Terms and conditions of sple are stated on reverse side of this form and are effective for
all sales, whether by seal id, aucfion or a negotiated sale.

e Bid Accepted by: W Date: )‘}/ L{ / 2'0[5

(Highest only) (NCPA Representative)

DISTRIBUTION: Original to Treasurer-Controller
Copy to Successful Highest Bidder

ATTACHMENT 3 1of2



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Bid on Sale of Surplus
Property/Bill of Sale
INSTRUCTIONS:
1. Read and complete this form.
2. Place in sealed envelope with your name on outside and return to NCPA representative.
3. The successful bidder will be so notified within 24 hours after the scheduled bid opening.
4. This form may also constitute a Bill of Sale for all sales of surplus whether by sealed bid,
auction or a negotiated sale.
DECLARATION:
¢ Tunderstand that if I am the successful bidder, I must render payment and remove the subject
property within 48 hours of receipt of such notice, unless other arrangements are approved in
writing by NCPA prior to the bid opening.
e 1have read and acknowledge the terms and conditions of sale noted hereon and on the
reverse side hereof.
e I hereby submit the following bid as described below:
NCPA
Property Net Unit Total Bid
ID No. Description Quantity Price Bid Amount
Mo 25 1999 Snocwer mastifh \ 451255

\ N\
Signature of Bidder/Buyer: \%,_&‘/\Jg_ LM Date: Y- Q- 1¥

Location of Property:

NOTES:

NCPA reserves the right to accept or decline all or any part of the above bid.
Terms and conditions of sale are stated on reverse side of this form and are effective for

all sales, whether by sealed bid, auction(gr a negotlated sale, g
Date: )\l / k/ Zo| 3

e Bid Accepted by:
(Highest only) (NCPA Representatlve)
DISTRIBUTION: Original to Treasurer-Controller

Copy to Successful Highest Bidder

ATTACHMENT 3 1of2



A PUBLIL AGENCY

" NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

EMPLOYEES OF
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
OR IT’S CONTRACTORS

To be eligible to participate in this sale, you must certify by signing below:

I hereby certify that I have not:
a) Participated in the determination to dispose of the property,

b) Participated in the preparation of the property for sale,
c¢) Participated in determining the method of sale,

d) Acquired information not otherwise available to the general public regarding usage,
condition, quality or value of the property.

Signed: \\ & hath g

]
Organization: \Li Q’Q B

Original to Treasurer-Controller

ATTACHMENT 6



[ 98eg

OH SI &/u 00°0v$ | 00°0v$ b (pa[o£oai) pairedal aq 3, Ueo ‘G QUOYJT | .y I €1
OH opAHE/M | 00°0TI$ | 00°0TT$ p: (ps1o£0a1) pairedal aq 3, UeDd °G QUOYJT | .y I A
OH IS\ "UeD e/u 08°01$ | 08°0I$ h: (parokoar) parredar oq 3,ued °G SUOYJT | .0 I I
ZSI .
: : 9[0A291) parredal 9q 1. UBD “C SUOYJT
OH [ 5] /5 80'8C$ | 9¢6$| W (ppokoar) parredar oq j.ued °g suoydr | 3 0T
I SI . . ‘
OH LS mgem | 000CIS | 00098 | ¥ (papoAdar) parredar oq . ueo ‘g ouoyqr | | T 6
1041 . . ‘
9[0A221) parredal aq 1. ued ‘¢ auoyJr
OH [ OFD ¥/ 000I$ | 00S$| ¥ (p3[o40ar) parredor oq j.ued ‘g suoydt | | T 8
OH B/u 00'ZL$ | 00°TLS | (pa10Aoa1) aredar 0} G6$ G QUOYJT | .y I L
OH /U 00'SLS | 00°SL$ b (Pa104291) 112d1 0) G6$ G SUOYJ | .y 1 9
OH B/U | 00°001$ | 00°001$ p: (Pa10A201) 118d0I1 03 G6$ ‘G SUOYJT | .y 1 S
OH B/u 00'81$ | 00°81$ B (pooAoar) parredar aq 3,ued ‘G SUOYJT | .oy I v
. . GHTAX B THX b 11
o¥a B/u 000$ | 00°0$ S Kex preoqioy /m oqe]. | 2o € €
. . GHTAX SHSHX,TUILT
o¥a e/u 000$ | 00°0% S s19mqes SuBuwy 7 /M [EA FIGD | 20 I z
. . ZAX, % THX, %91
o¥a e/u 000$ | 00°0% S A I S I
#LOAOUd | TVIOL| LINN| #« (5t -T *
# Q'] % [opow S[qestjdde e Surpnfour) #
NOILVOOT | ¥O JID0LS/dO¥d anvA | QN NowLargosad | Y| 210 | warr
M aarvnisg | 99 n
SSHOXH A0 NOILLVAVIOHd
810T/L/E

AINIDV HIMOd VINHO4ITVD me_._._.xoz /

<n_U7_

A3N3I9Y J118N0d ¥




798eg

OH B/U 00°0$ 00°0%$ S | sdoy oreurure| ‘suone)syiom preoqssaid JouIo) . ré 6¢C
OH B/u 00°0$ 00°0$ S SYSOP AOE X M09 | po I 8¢
OH B/u 000$ | 000$ S o[qe)  9€ X M8V | g I LT
OH B/u 000§ | 00°0% S $9580Y00Q M 9E X H TL | g 9 9T
OH e/u 0008 | 00°0% S (o104931) proI(J BJOIOION | .5 I Y4
OH /U 0008 | 000$ S (970£991) 901A9D 921 SPUBY JUY SNIY | -pq I vT
OH /U 000$ | 00°0$ S | (9104091) SpIeOITE [PV 29 UOZLIOA SSO[RIIM | -py (4 €T
OH /U 000$ | 000$ S Ued Usexn) [BON | .py I (/4
OH /U 00°0$ |  00°0% S 19s 3jsop padeys-N A 0T1 X M6 | -py I 1T
OH B/u 000$ |  00°0$ S 9580300q US[ X MIE X HTY | g I 0T
OH /U 000$ | 00°0$ S $95EOY00q (AST X MIE X HOE | -pg z 61
OH e/u 00°0$ | 00°0$ S SOIqe) A9E | g 4 81
OH e/u 000$ | 000$ S SITBYD 1SOND) | .,y (4 L1
O B/u 000$ | 00°0$ S sIreyd pasasjoqdy) | ., I 91
OH /U 000$ | 00°0% S S IOMBIP OM} AYTX MVT | -go I ST
OH /U 000$ | 000% S ©ZUSPOIO JOT X MTL | g I I

NOILVDOOT | ¥O MMOWMMWOMM R EMMM Mmm S arm o QSSEQM%MM%MM% \m ALO Emm

AdLVINLLSH
8T0T/L/E

AON3IV HIMOd VINYO41TV3 NHIHLHON

VdONL

AINIOY 217804 V \

y

v




¢ 98eq

1 INIWHOV.LLY VHTIOYINOD — YTANSVAIL OL TVYNIONIO
(Jo3eUBA [eIOUSD)
(D ATOADHY (S) AVHDS (D) YOOd (V) HDOVYHAY P aggdodd oL
©) o0 ‘(@ INATTHOXH  NOLLIANOD s+ Y\z | m Wm NOLLVZI4OHLNV
HINSVANW 40 LINN =W/ = . CISIA, 'UaD 1IpISIssY)

HAN'TVA dVIDS LAN 88°'L09% - TVSOdSIA X
(10N
90S4) ATVS ALVAId H€IVS OI'1dNd

‘NOILLISOdSIA AHANTFIWINODHY

AT Ad QAAOUAY
\m k C(€(0/0F3):(0)
USQOH Yeus] Ad dddvdddd

"I9)[9US S, USWOM B 0) PAJRUOP 3q UeD A3} OS ‘WY SPIu ey} U01eo0] VIDN OU

SI 90U} pue Papasu IOFUO] OU dIe §-9 SWII)] "Yord J0J ()([$ SUNIPIIO ST SSO[OIIA UOZLIDA ‘IoAamOY ‘parredal oq ) Ued SUO pue ued suo ‘Suruorouny
Io3u0] ou a1e §294 swd)] Tesodsip 10j Aed 03 Sutaey jou ouelre 0} A1} pue Iojney deids € Jorjuod 03 jJdweye (1M | ) Jo Aue a3e) 0} SurjImun

aIe AWy UOHBATES 9T} PUR SOLISNPU] 1010S9(] “[[IMPOOL) "OnJeA OU ST 9I0Y} ‘SIOPUSA JO3IBW AIBPUO0OaS [800] SUNOBIUOD ISV “IST] AIOJUSAUL

Aue "o pajsi| 10U dxe A3y pue Wiy Joj Sunpou pred VIDN oeq WD) Juem Jou op A9} pue 1S9 IS £q SN 0) USAIS 910M dA0QE ¢-] SUWA)]

CTVSOdSIA/SSHOXH JOd NOLLVOIALLSNS

OH e/ <0ST$> | <STI$> s1do) M22d NOSSIN-IV dIeys | .o 4 14
OH i R 00'01$ | 00°0T$ (Pa1040a1) parredar aq 1,ued ‘g SUOY ! | .y I €€
OH T e/u 00°L8% | 00°L8$ (pajoLoer) parredar oq 3.ued ‘g SUOYJT | .oy I 43
[ OIpAH
704D
OH ISI| 00CEI$| 00TT$ (pajo4oar) parredar aq 3, ued °G suOY! 9 3
1 dIVOS
[ SAISS Jelduar) e/u B
OH SI e/u 00'S¥$ | 00°SH$ (parokosr) parredar 9q 3, Ued ‘G SUOYJT | .oy I 0€¢
810T/L/E

AINIDV HIMOd VINHOITVD NUIHLHON

<n_UZu¥.

AON3IDY Di18nd v




ANNIVERSARY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

(916) 781-3636

www.ncpa.com

03/16/18

Items 1-3, 14-22 and 26-29 had no value and were donated to Family Promise of Sacramento a
nonprofit organization committed to helping low-income families achieve lasting independence.
Items 4-13 and 30-33 had recycle value and were recycled through Verizon Wireless’s recycle
program and the money was received via a credit to our account. Accounts Payable was provided
a list of which department the phones came from and the credits were pushed back to those
departments. Items 23-25 had no value and were recycled with SIMs recycling when the IS
Department scheduled one of their recycling runs. Item 34 will be picked up by Smile in the very
near future and recycled in their copier recycling program at a cost of $250.

Knat Holben

7//%

5
/

73



[/ Mcea

20

——

P ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Decommission Funding for the Geothermal Facilities

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

April 26, 2018

15

FROM: Ken Speer l(j

Department: Geothermal

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o o o o o

City of Lodi
City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o 0o o o O

SR: 137:18




Geothermal Decommissioning Funding
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-26, stating that the collection of funds for the decommissioning of the
geothermal facilities be modified based on the 2016 Decommission Study. The recommendation
is to continue the current funding schedule ($1,578,823 per fiscal year) based on the 2006
estimate through FY 2024. Starting in FY 2025, decommission funding will increase to a flat rate
of $2,417,081 per fiscal year through FY 2058.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA is currently reserving funds for the decommission of its Geothermal facilities. A 2006
study estimated that the decommission cost to be $24.1 million (2006 dollars). Assuming an
escalation rate of 2.5% and decommissioning to occur in FY 2034, the cost was projected to be
approximately $46 million (2034 dollars).

A new decommission study was conducted in 2016 by Black and Veatch. The new study
reported a substantially higher estimate of $59.3 million (2016 dollars). Assuming an escalation
rate of 2.5%, and extending the decommission date to FY 2058, the cost was projected to be
approximately $100 million (2058 dollars).

The debt service for the geothermal facilities is approximately $5 million/year through FY 2022,
then drops to roughly $3.5 million in FY 2024 and FY 2025 before it is retired. To minimize the
fiscal impact to Members, it is proposed that decommission funds continue to be collected using
the current schedule. Once the debt service is retired in FY 2025, decommission funding will be
increased according to the 2016 study. This will increase the collection of decommission
funding from $1,578,823 to $2,417,081 (difference of $838,258) each fiscal year through FY
2058.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Acceptance of this recommendation will increase decommission funding from $1,578,823 to
$2,417,081 (difference of $838,258) each fiscal year starting in FY 2025 and continuing through
FY 2058. Funding has been included in the current fiscal year budget and is available in the
Generation Services, Geothermal account for this purpose. Cost allocation will be based on
project participation percentages.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 4, 2018, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 137:18



Geothermal Decommissioning Funding
April 26, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

oo

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
s Resolution

SR: 137:18



RESOLUTION 18-26

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING MODIFIED DECOMMISSION FUNDING SCHEDULE FOR THE NCPA
GEOTHERMAL PLANT

(reference Staff Report #137:18)

WHEREAS, NCPA is required to collect funds for future decommissioning of its Geothermal facilities;
and

WHEREAS, a 2006 study estimated the decommissioning cost to be approximately $46 million in the FY
2034; and

WHEREAS, the 2016 study estimated the decommissioning costs to be approximately $100 million in FY
2058; and

WHEREAS, NCPA staff recommends decommission funding based on the 2006 study continue until the
geothermal facilities debt service is retired in FY 2024, at which time staff is recommending an increase in
decommission funding per the 2016 study, which will then continue at a flat rate through FY 2058; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency adopts
the recommendation to increase the collection of decommission funds for the NCPA geothermal facilities to a
flat rate of $2,417,081 per fiscal year, starting in FY 2025 and continuing through FY 2058.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



7 ANcea N\

[ 50 )

e —

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for well related services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\

FROM: Ken Speer ‘,{,S

Division: Generation Services

Department: Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager NA

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

[X]

o o o 0O O

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

O
O
O
O
O
(]

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o 0O o o od

SR: 138:18




Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-27 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. for well related
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”),
or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Well related services are required from time to time related to project support at facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA is currently working on additional agreements with
similar service providers, including BJ Services, Schlumberger and TRB Oilfield Services.
NCPA seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever services are needed. Bids are
awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and
availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 4, 2018, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on April 9, 2018, and was approved.

SR: 138:18



Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 26, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

D Dxir—fe

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

SR: 138:18



RESOLUTION 18-27

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH HALLIBURTON
ENERGY SERVICES, INC. '

(reference Staff Report #138:18)

WHEREAS, well related services are periodically required at the facilities owned and/or operated by
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Halliburton
Energy Services, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities, in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Halliburton Energy Services, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for well related services for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or
by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Af\/rc‘pA

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
HALLIBURTON ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc., a
Delaware corporation with its office located at 3000 N. Sam Houston Pkwy E., Houston, Texas
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 20
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section1. ¥ SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5  Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven-day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc..
Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars ($1,000,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement; provided however, notwithstanding such limit, Contractor shall be entitled
to compensation for all Work satisfactorily completed pursuant to any Purchase Order(s) and
the terms of this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month

during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have twenty (20) days from the date of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement. Contractor’s prices are exclusive of federal, state or municipal taxes,
if any, which may be imposed on the Contractor’s sale or use of any goods or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 24



24

2.5

Section 3.

services performed. Agency agrees to pay such taxes in addition to the prices in
Contractor’s price list.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
sudden and accidental pollution, products liability, covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily injury,
death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise
out of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a limit of
$2,000,000 per occurrence/$4,000,000 aggregate.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or liability,
including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by
the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a limit
of $1,000,000 per each accident. This insurance shall provide contractual
liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent
coverage may be excluded from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 24



4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable.

Pollution Insurance. Addressed in Section 4.2.1.

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein. To the extent of the liabilities assumed and
indemnities given by Contractor under this Agreement, Agency shall be
added by Contractor as an "additional insured" to the insurance required
by section 4.2. Such coverage shall be primary, and shall provide
coverage without contribution by Agency's insurance or self-insurance.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Reserved.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance
and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the
specific Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the
Work is to be performed as an additional insured to the extent of the
liabilities assumed and indemnities given by Contractor under this
Agreement.

Waiver of Subrogation. To the extent of the liabilities assumed by Contractor
under this Agreement, Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer
of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any

loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to
effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 24



and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements

required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall
apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have
been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and
agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

5.2

5.3

Definitions.

5.2.1 “Agency Group” shall mean Agency, its contractors of any tier (other than
Contractor) and/or its/their officials, commissioners, directors, officers, employees,
agents, consultants and volunteers, and to the extent Agency members, SCPPA, or
SCPPA members use this Agreement, Agency Group includes those entities

5.2.2 “Contractor Group” shall mean Contractor, its parent, subsidiary and affiliated
companies, its subcontractors of any tier, and/or its/their directors, officers, employees,
agents and consultants.

5.2.3 “Liabilities” shall mean any and all claims, judgments, liabilities, settlements,
losses, damages, costs and expenses, including but not limited to, those related to
attorney’s fees, property damage or loss (whether the property is owned, operated or
hired) and personal injury or death.

Indemnities.

5.3.1 Contractor shall to the fullest extent allowed by law, with respect to all services
performed in connection with this Agreement, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
Agency Group from and against any and all Liabilities arising from any injury, iliness,
death or damage to property (whether owned operated or hired) of any member of the
Contractor Group, even if due in whole or in part to the fault, breach of contract or
statute, or negligence of any member of Agency Group, provided that such obligations to
defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency Group shall not apply to the extent that
such Liabilities are caused by the sole or gross negligence or willful misconduct of the
Agency Group.

5.3.2 Agency shall to the fullest extent allowed by law, with respect to all services
performed in connection with this Agreement, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
Contractor Group from and against any and all Liabilities arising from any injury, illness,
death or damage to property (whether owned operated or hired) of any member of the
Agency Group, even if due in whole or in part to the fault, breach of contract or statute,
or negligence of any member of Contractor Group, provided that such obligations to
defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Contractor Group shall not apply to the extent

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 24



that such Liabilities are caused by the sole or gross negligence or willful misconduct of
the Contractor Group.

5.3.3 Each party shall be responsible for and shall indemnify the other party from and
against any and all Liabilities incurred by, in favor of or on behalf of a third party but only
to the extent such Liabilities are caused by the fault, breach of contract or statute, or
negligence of the indemnifying party or any member of the indemnifying party’s Group.
For the avoidance of doubt, the term “third party” shall exclude any member of
Contractor Group or Agency Group.

5.3.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, Agency shall be
responsible and liable for and shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor
Group from and against any and all Liabilities, regardless of cause or fault, arising from:
a) any damage or loss to the well, hole, casing, reservoir or productive formation and
any other surface, subsurface, or subsea loss or damage, and
b) the use of radioactive material (including any pollution, contamination and
associated clean up), and
c) any blowout, fire, explosion, cratering or other uncontrolled loss or flow of oil, gas,
water or well fluids, and
d) removal of debris and cost of regaining control of any wild well, and e) any
pollution and contamination (including clean up)originating below the surface or
resulting from any seepage, blowout, fire, explosion, cratering or other uncontrolled
loss or flow of oil, gas, water or well fluids;

Except that this subsection shall not apply to the extent that any of the foregoing is
caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor Group.

5.3.5 Contractor shall be responsible for and indemnify Agency Group for any pollution
or contamination originating at or above the surface of the land from any substance in
the care, custody, and control of Contractor Group, which was originally brought onto the
work site by Contractor Group.

5.3.6 Contractor shall place any Hazardous Materials in appropriate storage containers
so that Agency can arrange for proper transportation and disposal offsite. Agency
agrees that it will, at its sole expense and risk, store, manifest, transport and dispose of
any spent or used chemicals or hazardous waste as defined by the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq.), as amended from time
to time and the regulations promulgated there under, (“Hazardous Materials”) resulting
from or incident to the job and assumes all responsibilities and obligations associated in
any manner with such Hazardous Chemicals. Furthermore, Contractor shall not be
responsible for the signing of manifests or for the storage, transportation or disposal of
such Hazardous

Materials. The cost and responsibility for storage, transportation and disposal of such
Hazardous Materials shall be the responsibility of Agency. Agency shall fully protect and
indemnify Contractor Group from any liability incurred by Contractor, under statute,
regulation, or otherwise, arising from Agency’s failure to properly store, manifest,
transport and/or dispose of such Hazardous Materials.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 6 of 24



5.4

5.3.7 UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED TO THE CONTRARY, THE RELEASE,
DEFENSE INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS OBLIGATIONS IN SECTIONS 5.3.1
THROUGH 5.3.5 SHALL APPLY EVEN IF THE LIABILITY OR CLAIMS ARE
CONTRIBUTED TO OR CAUSED BY THE SOLE, JOINT, OR CONCURRENT ACTIVE
OR PASSIVE NEGLIGENCE, FAULT OR STRICT LIABILITY OF THE INDEMNITEE,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE AIRWORTHINESS OF ANY AIRCRAFT, OR
PRODUCT LIABILITY, WHETHER IN THE DESIGN, MANUFACTURE,
MAINTENANCE, OR MARKETING THEREOF, OR FROM A FAILURE TO WARN OF
SUCH DEFECT, OR ANY DEFECT IN DATA, PRODUCTS, SUPPLIES, MATERIALS,
OR EQUIPMENT. BOTH PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS STATEMENT IS
CONSPICUOUS AND AFFORDS FAIR AND ADEQUATE NOTICE.

5.3.8 Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any indirect, special, punitive,
exemplary or consequential damages including, but not limited to, damages for lost
production, lost revenue, lost product, lost profits, or lost business or business
interruptions, from any cause whatsoever, including but not limited to the negligence or
breach of duty, statutory or otherwise, of either Party, and each Party hereby releases
the other in this regard.

5.3.9 The indemnities provided for in this Section 5.3 shall be limited to the extent
necessary for compliance with laws or regulations applicable to the performance of the
Services hereunder, and to the extent any such laws or regulations are in variance with
the indemnities provided in this Agreement, such indemnity shall be deemed to be
amended so as to comply with such laws or regulations.

Transfer of Title. If Contractor's Work involves its transporting hazardous materials,

Contractor shall be deemed to be in exclusive possession and control of such materials
and shall be responsible for any damages or injury caused thereby, including without
limitation any spills, leaks, discharges or releases of such materials, until Agency
accepts delivery at its Site. For the purposes of this Agreement, such acceptance shall
occur when Contractor or its agents complete transfer of such materials into appropriate
containers, machinery, storage tanks or other storage apparatus identified by NCPA.
For clarification, it is understood by the Parties that Contractor’s only transportation of
hazardous materials will be the transport of Contractor’s materials to the work site prior
to commencement of the Work. In the event a spill, leak, discharge or release, prior to
the delivery of such Contractor materials to the work site, requires notification to a
federal, state or local regulatory agency, Contractor shall be responsible for all such
notifications. Should Contractor be required to remedy or remove such materials as a
result of a leak, spill, release or discharge of such materials into the environment at
Agency's Site or elsewhere, and where such leak, spill, release or discharge of such
materials occurs prior to the delivery of such Contractor materials to the work site,
Contractor agrees to remediate, remove or cleanup Agency's Site to a level sufficient to
receive a “No Further Action Required” or “Closure Letter” from the appropriate
regulatory authority.

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 24



6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the resuits of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that is due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from Contractor’s failure to comply with the provisions of the
Affordable Care Act in the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied,
to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind
Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 8 of 24



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. Not applicable.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 9 of 24



than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.
8.1 Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.
In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093

Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 10 of 24



8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

9.1

9.2

may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section

4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product in its possession or required to be delivered
by Contractor in order to complete the applicable scope of work,
excluding the data specified in Section 9.1;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Seek the remedies available to Agency under Section 11.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. Except for data or
information related to the performance of Contractor’s personnel, materials
and/or equipment, all reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys,
photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, records, files, or any
other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that Contractor
prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby
agrees to deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the
Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in
writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-parties to this Agreement any
data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents, which are the property
of Agency. If requested by Agency, Contractor shall provide to Agency any data
or information regarding the performance of the materials used by Contractor in
the performance of the Work and injected and/or left on site.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 24



9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency to the extent necessary for the Agency to
verify the accuracy amounts charged by Contractor and Contractor’s compliance
with the requirements of this Agreement and comply with applicable laws. Under
California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at
the request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three
(3) years after final payment under this Agreement for the verification the
accuracy amounts charged by Contractor and Contractor’'s compliance with the
requirements of this Agreement and comply with applicable law.

9.4  Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering of Confidential Information, as evidenced by written
records thereof, or (d) was not marked as Confidential Information in
accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 12 of 24



Section 10.

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials (subject to Section 5.3.4 and 5.3.5) and rubbish,
stemming from or relating to Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be

solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Contractor’s
equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site
an unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 13 of 24



have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be in good
condition.

10.3 Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

Section 11. WARRANTY.

11.1  Contractor warrants that all Work (including but not limited to all equipment and
materials supplied in connection therewith) shall be free from defects in design
and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with
all applicable engineering, construction and other codes and standards, in
accordance with prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement and the Purchase Order applicable to such Work, all
with the degree of high professional skill normally exercised by or expected from
recognized professional firms engaged in the practice of supplying services of a
nature similar to the Work in question. Contractor further warrants that, in
addition to furnishing all tools, equipment and supplies customarily required for
performance of work, Contractor shall furnish personnel with the training,
experience and physical ability, as well as adequate supervision, required to
perform the Work in accordance with the preceding standards and the other
requirements of this Agreement and the Purchase Orders. Agency shall have the
right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own expense to perform,
within thirty (30) days after Contractor leaves the work site all further services
which may be required to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s
failure to perform any Work in accordance with the standards required by this
Agreement or the applicable Purchase Order, provided that Contractor’s liability
shall not exceed an amount equal to the cost of the defective Work. Moreover, if,
during the term of this Agreement (or during the one (1) year period following the
term hereof), any goods or other materials provided by Contractor under this
Agreement fail due to defects in material and/or workmanship or other breach of
this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any reasonable notice from Agency within
such one (1) year period, replace or repair (excluding downhole retrieval and
installation unless due to Contractor’s gross negligence in performance of the
Work) the same to remedy such defects or breach. Unless otherwise expressly
permitted by the applicable Purchase Order, all materials and supplies to be
used by Contractor in the performance of the Work shall be new and conform to
specifications.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 14 of 24



11.2

Notwithstanding the foregoing, because of the uncertainty of variable well
conditions and the necessity of Contractor relying on facts and supporting
service(s) furnished by Agency and others, Contractor is unable to guarantee:

11.2.1 The effectiveness of the equipment and materials, nonetheless,
Contractor does warrant that its equipment will comply with the stated
specifications i.e. a pump is able to pump at the pump’s rated capacity,

11.2.2 The accomplishment of Agency’s intended purposes or results for
which the services and equipment were sold and/or used,

11.2.3 The accuracy of any log or chart interpretation, research analysis, job
recommendation or other data or service furnished by Contractor to Agency
under the terms hereof, or

11.2.4 The accuracy of data transmitted by electronic means, and Contractor
shall not be responsible for accidental or intentional interception of such data
by others. Should data be corrupted in transmission for whatever reason,
Contractor shall provide data to Agency by another means.

11.3 Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

11.4

Section 12.

THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS OR OTHERWISE, WHICH EXTEND BEYOND
THOSE STATED IN SECTION 11.1.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 15 of 24

GS-VEN-2017-093



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of a written accident report, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Not Used.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 16 of 24



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may not make campaign contributions or make
gifts to elected officials or employees of Agency and if this Agreement is used by
Agency members, SCPPA or SCPPA members their elected officials or
employees in violation of in the Political Reform Act, codified at California
Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
Attention: Michael Noel

34722 7" Standard Road
Bakersfield, CA 93314

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 17 of 24



Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Not Used.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached

hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.111

13.11.2

13.11.3

13.11.4

13.11.5

13.11.6

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 18 of 24



remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
~ (if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 19 of 24



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY HALLIBURTON ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, ISAAC PATERNTI,
General Manager Sales Manager
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 20 of 24



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK
Halliburton (“Contractor”) shall provide injection well related services as requested by the
Northern California Power Agency (‘Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

e Acidizing Services

e Cementing Services (Plug Backs, Cement Casing, PTA etc)

e  Coil Tubing Service

e Miscellaneous Pumping Services (Nitrogen, Well Kills, etc)

e Tools and Completion Services (CIBP, Packers. Retainers etc)

e  Sperry Directional Drilling Services (Directional Motors, Drill Bits etc)

e  Wireline Logging and Perforating Services (GR/Neut Log, CBL, Casing Inspection logs,

Perforating Guns etc)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.
Revd 6/27/2017

Page 21 of 24



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Work performed varies and will be bid at the time services are needed.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 22 of 24



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
HALLIBURTON ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 23 of 24



EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to

time,

HALLIBURTON ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-093
Northern California Power Agency and Halliburton Energy Services, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 24 of 24



Commission Staff Report

Date April 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: Leidos Engineering, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility
Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\S

FROM: Ken Speer ;c‘iﬁ

Division: Generation Services

Department: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O o O o O

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

O o o o o o

SR: 139:18



Leidos Engineering, LLC — 5 Year MTPSA
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-28 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Leidos Engineering, LLC for
transmission and distribution design and engineering services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Transmission and distribution design and engineering services, including grid planning, power
delivery, and environmental and asset management services, are required from time to time
related to project support and plant operations at facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. Leidos Engineering, LLC is a provider of these
services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling agreements
for similar services with Burns & McDonnell and Power Engineers, Inc. NCPA seeks bids from
as many qualified providers as possible whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded to the
lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the
services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 4, 2018, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on April 9, 2018, and was approved.

SR: 139:18



Leidos Engineering, LLC — 5 Year MTPSA
April 26, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

P e

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Leidos Engineering, LLC

SR: 139:18



RESOLUTION 18-28

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH LEIDOS
ENGINEERING, LLC

(reference Staff Report #139:18)

WHEREAS, professional engineering services, including transmission and distribution design, grid
planning, power delivery, and environmental and asset management services, are periodically required at
facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Leidos Engineering, LLC is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Leidos
Engineering, LLC to provide such services as needed at all NCPA, Member, SCPPA, and SCPPA Member
facilities in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement
with Leidos Engineering, LLC with any non-substantial changes as approved by NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for professional engineering services, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”),
or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



4:;%:.;:- HUWNES AGENLY

MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
LEIDOS ENGINEERING, LLC

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Leidos Engineering, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal office located at11951 Freedom Drive,
Reston, VA 20190 (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of

, 20___ (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,

Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven day period

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 1 of 16



Section 2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services
on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT
TO EXCEED One Million dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in
Consultant’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B.
This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the
Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Services performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’s Scope of Work identifies tasks,
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense,
with supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this

Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 16



2.4  Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant
fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90)
day period, Consultant is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consuitant shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Services.

Section4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed by Consultant with limits of not less
than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, for bodily injury, death,
personal injury and property damage caused by the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, and Consultant shall be solely responsible for any self-
insured retention or deductible.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) or equivalent for the term of this
Agreement covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of
any action, arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle
(symbol 1), whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency
premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
each accident, and Consultant shall be solely responsible for any self-
insured retention or deductible. This insurance shall provide contractual
liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent
coverage may be excluded from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 3 of 16



4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.
Consultant shall maintain umbrella insurance in an amount not less than
ten million dollars ($10,000,000).

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Consultant shall be solely responsible for any
self-insured retention or deductible. Such insurance shall be on a “claims-made”
basis, subject to the following conditions: (1) the retroactive date of the policy
shall be on or before the Effective Date of this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be
maintained for at least five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if
requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be provided during this period;
and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services, coverage is
canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five
(5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, provide
evidence of coverage during this period.

4.4  All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, including the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
material reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification
adverse to Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides
services to Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members,
Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, including the specific
Agency member, SCPPPA or Agency member for which the Services are
to be performed.

4.5  Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 4 of 16



4.6

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall
include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by
Consultant, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION, CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES, AND LIMITATION
OF LIABILITY.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims that
arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful
misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of Services under this
Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate
to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”). Such obligations to
defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent
that such Liabilities are caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or
willful misconduct of the Agency.

Limitation of Liability. No employee of Consultant shall have individual liability
to the Agency. To the extent permitted by law, the total liability of Consultant, its
officers, directors, shareholders, employees and subconsultants for any and all
claims arising out of a Purchase Order, including attorneys' fees, and whether
caused by negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or
contribution, or indemnity claims based on third party claims, shall not exceed in
the aggregate, the revenue actually received by Consultant under this
Agreement, under the specific Purchase Order at issue, or the insurance limits
whichever is greater. In no event and under no circumstances shall either party
be liable to the other party for any principal, interest, loss of anticipated revenues,

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 16



earnings, profits, increased expense of operation or construction, loss by reason
of shutdown or non-operation due to late completion or otherwise or for any other
economic, consequential, indirect or special damages.

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. .

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

6.2 Consuiltant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 6 of 16



6.3

6.4

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

Section 8.

8.1

capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency,

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 16



8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

9.1

9.2

however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section
9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section

4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that are unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services, if Consultant is unable to cure the incomplete or
non-confirming Services within thirty (30) days of written notice from
Agency specifying the non-conformities.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 16



for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 9 of 16



9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Section 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1  Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

10.2 Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

10.3 Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 10 of 16



10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

10.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Keith Deaton

Leidos Engineering, LLC Corporate Headquarters
11951 Freedom Drive

Reston, VA 20190

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 11 of 16



10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shali control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one

agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 12 of 16



10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Consultant provide services to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this Section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Services
relating to such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY LEIDOS ENGINEERING, LLC

Date Date

RANDY HOWARD, General Manager KEITH DEATON, VP Power Delivery
Services Division Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 13 of 16



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

At the request of Agency, Leidos Engineering, LLC (“Consultant”) shall provide the following
services to the Northern California Power Agency, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members,
including but not limited to:

Transmission and Distribution design and engineering services
Grid Planning services

Power Delivery services

Environmental services

Asset Management services

Smart Grid services

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 14 of 16



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount
set forth in Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and

an estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Billing Class Hourly Rate Typical Project Roles

3 $38.00
4 $51.00
5 $64.00
8 $77.00
7 $90.00
| 8 $102.00
I 9 $115.00
! 10 $128.00
11 $141.00
12 $154.00
13 $166.00
14 §179.00
15 $192.00
16 $205.00
| 17 $218.00
18 $230.00
19 $243.00
20 $256.00
21 $269.00
2 $282.00
23 $294.00
24 $307.00
2 $320.00
26 $333.00
27 $346.00
28 $358.00
29 $371.00
30 $384.00
31 $397.00

o

Clerical, Administration, Junior Engineers,
and Technicians

Staff Engineers, Consultants,
and Technicians

Senior Engineers, Consultants and Technicians,
Managers, and Principals

Executive Engineers and Consultants,
Senior Project Managers, and Principals

Executive Engineers and Consultants,
Senior Project Managers, and Senior Principals

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the

time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

GS-VEN-2018-004

Page 15 of 16



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of:

LEIDOS ENGINEERING, INC. (Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between . GS-VEN-2018-004
Northern California Power Agency and Leidos Engineering, LLC.
Rev'd 6/27/2017 Page 16 of 16



/ "Lf’fﬁ:\\\
[/ Mucon S\

\ &
g __-

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: TNG Energy Services — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement to

April 26, 2018

service wellhead valves and other associated equipment as part of NCPA's preventive
maintenance and continuing operations; Applicable to the following projects: Geysers

Geothermal Facilities only.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\W

Department: Geothermal

FROM: Ken Speer >

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

o 0o o 0o o X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o 0o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

Oo o o o o g

SR: 141:18



TNG Energy Services — 5 Year MTGSA
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-30 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNG Energy Services for labor, materials and
tools to service wellhead valves and other associated equipment as part of NCPA’s preventive
maintenance and continuing operations, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000 over five years, for
use at the Geysers Geothermal Facilities.

BACKGROUND:

Servicing of wellhead valves and other associated equipment is required from time to time as
part of NCPA’s preventive maintenance and continuing operations at the Geysers Geothermal
Facilities.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other agreements for similar
services with Northern Industrial Construction and Danick Mechanical, Inc. NCPA seeks bids
from as many qualified providers as possible whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded
to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of
the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 4, 2018, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (2)
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNG Energy Services

SR: 141:18



RESOLUTION 18-30

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TNG ENERGY
SERVICES

(reference Staff Report #141:18)

WHEREAS, servicing of wellhead valves and other associated equipment is periodically required at the
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Geysers Geothermal Facilities; and

WHEREAS, TNG Energy Services is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNG Energy
Services to provide such services as needed at the NCPA Geysers Geothermal Facilities in an amount not to
exceed $750,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNG
Energy Services with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $750,000 over five years for servicing of wellhead valves and other associated equipment, for use at
the NCPA Geysers Geothermal Facilities.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



%CPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
TNG ENERGY SERVICES

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and TNG Energy Services, a
corporation with its office located at 3505 Standard Street, Bakersfield, CA 93308 (“Contractor”)
(together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2018 (“Effective Date”) in
Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, when the contractor
receives the maximum compensation referenced in Section 2 or five (5) years
from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever occurs first.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Scheduling of services with Contractor must be done at least three
weeks in advance. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of
the Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED SEVEN HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND dollars ($750,000) for the Work, which
shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

23

24

25

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 20



Section 3.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable

All Policies Reguirements.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 20



4.6

4.7

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 20



Section 6.

by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

6.2

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 20



6.3

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 6 of 20



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement. Contractor shall provide payroll records if requested by Agency
pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1776.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 20



8.3

8.4

Section 9.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section

4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 20



part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

9.4  Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (¢) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor, to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 9 of 20



Section 10.

by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’'s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall not use equipment owned or
property provided by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is
performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 10 of 20



Section 11.

1.1

11.2

11.3

Section 12.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 20



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. Itis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

131

13.2

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 12 of 20



13.3

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Greg Perrone, General Manager
TNG Energy Services
3505 Standard Street
Bakersfield, CA 93308
greg@tngenergyservices.com
Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Randy S. Howard
General Manager
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028

Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 13 of 20



With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
.cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 14 of 20



13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TNG ENERGY SERVICES

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager GREG PERRONE, General Manager
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 15 of 20



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

TNG Energy Services (“Contractor”) shall provide labor, materials and tools to service wellhead
valves and other associated equipment as requested by the Agency as part of NCPA’s
preventive maintenance and continuing operations at the Geothermal Facilities. Services
include rebuilding WKM Well Valves for stock.

The Scope of Work excludes any work that would qualify as a public works project under the

Public Contract Code and guidelines established by the State of California. EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

N7 ENERGY SERVICES

CALIFORNIA / NEVADA WAGE

SCHEDULE January 1, 2018 through

December 31, 2018
Day Rates Straight Holidays Prevailing Prevailing Prevailing
Time Wage Rates | Wage Saturday | Wage Sunday

Field Service Engineer $1,500.00 | $2000.00 $1,950.00 $2,250.00 $3,000.00
Field Service Supervisor $1,250.00 $1650.00 $1,625.00 $1,875.00 $2,500.00
Field Service Technician $950.00 $1,250.00 $1,235.00 $1,425.00 $1,900.00
Certified Welder $1,100.00 | $1,450.00 $1430.00 $1,650.00 $2,200.00
‘Welder Helper $950.00 $1,250.00 $1,235.00 $1,425.00 $1,900.00
Service Vehicles (per day) $825.00 $825.00 $825.00 $825.00 $825.00

These rates include wages, benefits, meals and lodging, payroll taxes, worker’s compensation,

overhead, tools, PPE, and required insurances. This does not include state sales taxes.

Designated Holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Veteran’s Day, Independence Day, Labor
Day, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas day.
All additional consumable materials, rentals, freight, and third-party subcontracts shall have a

fifteen percent (15%) handling charge.

All work to be performed under the TNG and NCPA MSA

Terms: Net 30

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

GS-VEN-2018-028

Page 16 of 20




NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 17 of 20



EXHIBIT C — Not Applicable
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 18 of 20



EXHIBIT D — Not Applicable
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to

time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 19 of 20



EXHIBIT E — Not Applicable

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

Itis an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-028
Northern California Power Agency and TNG Energy Services.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 20 of 20



" NePa

20 ),

P ANNIVERSARY §

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services

Agreement for general T&M maintenance services; Applicable to the following

projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

N

FROM: Ken Speer /9

Division: Generation Services

Department: Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O
O
(]
O
(]

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

o o o o o O

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o 0o o o o O

SR: 142:18



TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-31 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. for general T&M
maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

General T&M maintenance services are required from time to time related to project support at
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years,
to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA
procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has similar agreements in place with
Performance Mechanical, Inc., Danick Mechanical, and RAM Mechanical. NCPA seeks bids
from multiple qualified providers whenever services are needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest
cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on April 4, 2018, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on April 9, 2018, and was approved.

SR: 142:18



TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
April 26, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

DOCAf

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

SR: 142:18



RESOLUTION 18-31

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH TNT INDUSTRIAL
CONTRACTORS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #142:18)

WHEREAS, general T&M maintenance related services are periodically required at the facilities owned
and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with TNT Industrial
Contractors, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years for general T&M maintenance services for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or

by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



ANCPA

B4 RN CALINORR A I AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
TNT INDUSTRIAL CONTRACTORS, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 3600 515 Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95823 (“Contractor”)
(together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2018 (“Effective
Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Reqguest for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED TWO MILLION doliars ($2,000,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement.

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 23



25

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

41

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 23



4.3
4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable.

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

4.51

4.5.2

4.5.3

4.54

Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to
provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy endorsements, as
referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring

that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 23



Section 5.

5.1

5.2

53

Section 6.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 23



Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6  Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 6 of 23



Section 7.

of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work:
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 23



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section

4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;
8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,

and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 23



Section 9.

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 9 of 23



agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 10 of 23



Section 10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

11.1

PROJECT SITE.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 23



11.2

11.3

Section 12.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

12.1

12.2

12.3

124

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. ltis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 12 of 23



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12,9

1210

Section 13.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitied. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 13 of 23



whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Attention: Joshua Twist

3600 51t Avenue

Sacramento, CA 95823

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 14 of 23



13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. Ali exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 15 of 23



13.13

13.14

13.15

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent

opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TNT INDUSTRIAL CONTRACTORS, INC.

Date

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, JOSHUA TWIST,
General Manager President

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 16 of 23



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. ("Contractor") shall provide T&M maintenance services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or
SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:
* Piping work

Hydrotesting

HRSG maintenance

Catalyst maintenance

Troubleshooting

Underground piping maintenance

Outage support

Rotating Equipment Alignment

Structural steel work as necessary to provide access for necessary facility

maintenance

The Scope of Work excludes any work that would qualify as a public works project under the
Public Contract Code and guidelines established by the State of California.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 17 of 23



EXHIBITB
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated

amount of expenses is as follows:

These rates are effective through June 30, 2019

Classification Straight Time Overtime Double-time
Pipefitter Journeyman $106.84 $142.00 $172.51
Pipe Welder / Foreman $118.25 $154.96 $201.00
Carpenter $106.00 $151.00 $193.00
Laborer $79.20 $100.80 $122.40
Shop man / Truck Driver §75.20 $96.80 $118.40
Project Manager $105.00

Sr. Project Manager $125.00

Working Hours: - Straight time pay for the first 8 hours in a regular working shift, and time and one half pay up to 10 hours,
After 10 hours they shall receive double time pay. On Saturdays, Pipefitters receive time and one half for the first 10 hours of

work, and double time after 10 hours. On Sundays and holidays Pnpef‘ itters will receive double-time pay.

Show up time: — Workers whom show up for work and no work is provided shall receive the following show up time pay:

Pipefitters — 4 hours, Laborers — 2 hours, This is language that is in our collective bargaining agreements. We will organize and

manage our projects to make sure our craftsmen are properly utilized to prevent all non-productive expenditures.

Shop Fabrication: - Any shop fabrication that takes place will have a $75 fee per day.

Equipment: - All rental equipment will be charged at local rental rates plus 10% overhead and 10% profit.

Materials: - Will be billed at cost plus 10% overhead and 10% profit markup.

Subcontracters- Will be billed at cost plus ten percent mark up. Our payment terms are Net Fifteen Days.

Bookkeeping services will be bitled at $65.00 per hour, not to exceed forty hours per work week.

These rates are subject to change due to insurance or other unforeseen costs. You will be notified in advance of any

possible changes.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 18 of 23



TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. 2018 Equipment Rates
Standard
Equipment e | == n.:.::'.“
Truck
Cutting torch sstup Yes 5 L[ 40.00
Bandsaw. portable Yes 5 ... 18818 16.00
Air impact wrenches R AN 25.00
| Chain hoist Y &5 3 ) 875 [ § f0.00
Cable come-a-fong Y5 5 188 | § 15,00
| Magnetic drill press LI - 50.00
7.5 Ton boom truck S B250 | §  500.00
Forklift 4K electric 3 . ’:Ei’b $ 150.00
| Portable generator 5. 625 | § 50.00
| Electrical distribution panel s rs0 s 60.00
| Gang box s si3ls 25,00
Ironworker / press 5 1875 | § 150.00
Mutti ton rollers 3 313 1 § 25.00
9 inch grinder Yeu $ . 1e8]8 15.00
4.5 inch grinder Yes 5 1131 8 8.00
| Straight gringer Yeo ]% 280 0s 2000
Roto-hammer Yes s 313 |1 % 25.00
Gas cut-off saw 5 626 | § 50.00
Electric cut-off saw 10" 5 625 50.00
7.25" womm drive carpenter saw Yes 8 B3 s 25.00
Pips cutter 1/2" - 4" Yes $  swlg 25,00
Pipe rolier Yes 5 oo | $ 80.00
| Pipe alignment clamp Yes 5 125 | § 10.00
Hydrostatic test pump { 10,000 psig} 5 6525 [ § 50.00
Fabrication table 5 125 | 8 10.00
| Builders level § 313 |1 9 25,00
| Laser level w/ tripod 5 o 625 1§ 50.00
Tripod pipe vise Yes ¥ BEALH I 25.00
Pipe jacks,, L ) R —1
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046

Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 19 of 23



Threading Machine 1/2"- 2" 5 1250 | § 1000
Auto wire feed welders 5 938 | § 7500
250 Amp {gas} poriable welder w' 50" leads 3 1bbo LS 120,00
250 & 300 amp (480/3/80) poriable welder w/ 50’ [eads 5 L .’2-?‘0 | $ 86.00
Weld lead, 50 feet 5 188 | § 15.00
Stud welder §  r2s0[$ 000D
1504 Tig welder {110/1/60) $ X b’bU 5 44,00
Plasma torch (480/3/60) 5 3 500
172 & /4 Ton pick up ruck 5 § 136.00
1 Ton 12ft. Flaibed 5 $ 150.00
24 ft. Flat Bed Truck . S $ 25000
PVC heater 5 B8 | § 15,00
Fischer Pipe Saw 5 B ﬁzs % LR
Gehi 10K Extendable Forkiit §  e250 |5 s00.00
310 Deere Backhoe $ 000§ 40000
Sullair 185 ¢im Air Compressor 5 1668 | § 136.00
| 2 axle Dump Trailer s i1.2b | § 50.00
| Gas Powered Wacker $ 1063 | § B5.00
Vigtaulic Groover 5 RALER 65,00
PAC Il Walk behind concrste saw ({ plus biade replacement} 5 063 | % 85.00

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

l, Joshua Twist, President
(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)
do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 21 of 23



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to

time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 22 of 23



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-046
Northern California Power Agency and TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 23 of 23



7 ANcea N

20

—— —

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2018
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  April 26, 2018
SUBJECT: Approval of Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent
=0

g
AGM, Power Management NA

Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

FROM: David Dockham ¥ METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [] City of Lodi
Alameda Municipal Power X City of Lompoc X
San Franci;::iga%:l::; O City of Palo Alto [
City of Biggs City of Redding [
City of Gridley X City of Roseville [
City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

O

X X

X

o 0O

SR: 144:18



Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt and approve Letter of Agreement 18-
SNR-02130, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute Letter of Agreement
18-SNR-02130, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Letter
of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) members are subject to a variety of environmental
mandates that require the use of Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to demonstrate compliance
with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that not less than 50% of retail sales be served by
renewable energy resources by 2030.

The NCPA members are preference power customers of Western Area Power Administration
(WAPA) and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource product, which consists of
various products including the energy, capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the
hydroelectric facilities that make up the Central Valley Project (CVP).

LETTER OF AGREEMENT:

Pursuant to Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, WAPA has established a program to distribute
RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers. Certain NCPA members who
have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into
Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, on their behalf, in order for NCPA to receive RECs from
WAPA.

Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 specifies the terms and conditions under which RECs are
transferred from WAPA to preference power customers. Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130
has a term of one (1) year, expiring July 31, 2019; applies to RECs produced by CVP facilities in
2018; and allows either party to terminate the agreement upon a 30-day prior written notice.
RECs received pursuant to Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 are nontransferable, except
NCPA may transfer RECs to members it represents under the agreement. WWAPA does not
warrant or represent that the RECs provided from the CVP will satisfy any Federal or State
renewable energy mandates.

Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 is attached to this staff report for your reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs associated with entering into Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 are estimated to be less
than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to Base Resource
percentages of the represented members. NCPA’s administrative costs for development and
administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost
allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget.

SR: 144:18



Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130
April 26, 2018
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Dl

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: 2 (Resolution 18-32 and Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130)

SR: 144:18



RESOLUTION 18-32

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF LETTER OF AGREEMENT 18-SNR-02130

(reference Staff Report #144:18)

WHEREAS, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) members are subject to a variety of
environmental mandates that require the use of Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) to demonstrate compliance
with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that not less than 50% of retail sales be served by renewable energy
resources by 2030; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA members are preference power customers of Western Area Power Administration
(WAPA) and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource product, which consists of various products
including the energy, capacity, and environmental attributes produced by the hydroelectric facilities that make
up the Central Valley Project (CVP); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, WAPA has established a program to
distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers, and certain NCPA members who
have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into Letter of Agreement
18-SNR-02130, on their behalf, in order for NCPA to receive RECs from WAPA; and

WHEREAS, Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 specifies the terms and conditions under which RECs
are transferred from WAPA to preference power customers, and

WHEREAS, Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 has a term of one (1) year, expiring July 31, 2019;
applies to RECs produced by CVP facilities in 2018; and allows either party to terminate the agreement upon a
30-day prior written notice, and

WHEREAS, costs associated with entering into Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 are estimated to be
less than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to Base Resource percentages
of the represented members, and NCPA’s administrative costs for development and administration of the
agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described
the NCPA annual budget, and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, and authorizes the General Manager of NCPA
to execute Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive
modifications to Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

on roll call:

Alameda

San Francisco BART

Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

, 2018 by the following vote

Vote Abstained Absent

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 18-32

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Department of Energy
Western Area Power Administration
Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region
114 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 95630-4710

APR 9 2018

Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130

Mr. Randy Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Dear Mr. Howard:

The Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is a customer of the Western Area
Power Administration’s (WAPA) Sierra Nevada Region (SNR) and has executed Base
Resource Contract 04-SNR-00782 with WAPA. Some of SNR'’s customers have
requested that SNR make the renewable energy credits (RECs) that may be associated
with SNR's hydropower generation available to them to assist in meeting their
renewable requirements. Although SNR is willing to initiate a 2018 REC Program, SNR
does not warrant or represent that the RECs it provides under this program will satisfy
any Federal or State renewable portfolio standards.

This Letter of Agreement (LOA) provides the terms and conditions under which SNR will
apportion RECs to participants in the 2018 REC Program in association with power
generated in 2018.

1. Participation in SNR's REC Program:

1.1 In order to receive an apportionment of RECs from SNR's REC Program,
NCPA must be a Western Renewable Energy Generation Information
System (WREGIS) Account Holder. SNR will not apportion or create RECs
for NCPA until its WREGIS Account Holder status has been verified.

1.2 Project use customers may participate in SNR'S REC Program by providing
written notice to WAPA at least 60 days prior to the first day of the first month
that such customer desires to begin participation.

1.3 All RECs provided under this LOA shall be from the vintages January 2018
through December 2018.



Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130

1.4 For the purposes of participating in SNR’s REC Program under this LOA,
NCPA shall include the following members and the base resource
percentages they have assigned to NCPA:

1.4.1
142
14.3
14.4
1.4.5
1.4.6
147
1.4.8
14.9

Definitions:

Alameda Municipal Power

Biggs, City of

Gridley, City of

Healdsburg, City of

Lodi, City of

Lompoc, City of

Oakland, Port of

Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative
Ukiah, City of

2.1 “CVP RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from Central Valley Project hydropower
generation.

2.2 “Stampede RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from the Washoe Project hydropower
generation.

2.3 “Unclaimed RECs" shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with SNR’s hydropower generation from Lewiston, Nimbus and
Stampede that are not being claimed by other preference or project use
customers.

Apportionment of RECs:

SNR will apportion the RECs in a three-step process. Calculation of
apportionments will be completed as follows:

3.1 CVP RECs:

3.1.1

SNR will calculate the percentage contribution from each unit/project
registered with WREGIS to the amount of Base Resource generated
each month.

SNR will then calculate the amount of Base Resource NCPA
received each month based on the sum of power scheduled to NCPA
from its Base Resource percentage and its contribution to or
allocation from the Hourly Exchange Program.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130

3.1.3 Finally, SNR will apply NCPA’s actual month’s Base Resource
percentage as determined in Subsection 3.1.2 above to the CVP
RECs associated with that month’s Base Resource from each
unit/project as determined in 3.1.1 to determine NCPA's
apportionment of CVP RECs for each month in calendar year 2018.

Unclaimed RECs:

3.2.1 SNR will normalize the participating customers’ Base Resource
percentages for calendar year 2017 by dividing each customer’s
Base Resource percentage by the total of all participating customers’
Base Resource percentages.

3.2.2 SNRwill then apply NCPA’s normalized percentage to the total
Unclaimed RECs for each month in 2018 to determine NCPA’s
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs.

3.2.3 NCPA acknowledges that its normalized percentage, used for the
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs, may change during the term of
this LOA depending on the number of participating customers.

Stampede RECs:

Stampede RECs will be held in WREGIS until SNR can determine the
annual amount of RECs due to the Truckee Donner Public Utility District
(TDPUD) and the City of Fallon (Fallon) before allocating the Stampede
RECs to others. Once SNR has determined the percentage of the
Stampede RECs to be provided to TDPUD and Fallon due to their
contributions to the Washoe Project, the remaining Stampede RECs will be
apportioned to the participants pursuant to the procedures provided in
Subsections 3.1 and 3.2 above.

SNR will transfer NCPA’s CVP and Unclaimed RECs apportionments
through WREGIS after the RECs have been created by WREGIS.

SNR will transfer Stampede RECs apportionments through WREGIS after
the TDPUD and Fallon percentage has been determined and the Stampede
RECs have been created by WREGIS.

Nontransferable:

NCPA hereby acknowledges and agrees that RECs associated with WAPA power
are neither transferable nor available for resale by NCPA; Except That, NCPA may
transfer RECs received through SNR’s REC Program to the members listed in
Subsection 1.4 above.



Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130

5. Compensation to WAPA:

5.1 WAPA's costs to administer SNR's REC Program will be paid by those
participants receiving an apportionment of SNR's RECs through WREGIS.
Each participant’s costs will be determined based on the participant’s pro
rata share of RECs. WAPA's costs will include, but are not limited to, the
following:

5.1.1 WAPA’s costs to join WREGIS as an account holder;
5.1.2 WAPA's costs for WREGIS to create RECs;

5.1.3 WAPA'’s costs for transferring RECs from its WREGIS account to
participant's WREGIS account;

5.1.4 Any other costs WAPA may incur for its participation in WREGIS to
operate this program; and

5.1.5 Any other costs WAPA may incur from a third-party due fo providing
services hereunder.

5.2 These costs will be provided as a line item on NCPA’s monthly electric
- service bill from WAPA.

6. General Power Contract Provisions:

The General Power Contract Provisions dated September 1, 2007, are attached
hereto and are hereby made a part of this LOA the same as if they had been
expressly set forth herein.

7. Term:

7.1 This LOA must be signed by NCPA on or before June 1, 2018 in order for
NCPA to participate in SNR’s 2018 REC Program.

7.2 This LOA shall become effective on June 1, 2018, and shall terminate
July 31, 2019; Provided, That either NCPA or SNR may terminate this LOA
upon 30 days advance written notice. All obligations created under this LOA
while in effect shall remain until satisfied.

If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions written above, please indicate
your approval by signing and dating both originals of this LOA and return one to



Letter of Agreement 18-SNR-02130

Ms. Sandee Peebles (N6213) at this office. If you have any questions, please contact

Sandee at (916) 353-4454.

In Duplicate

Sincerely,

1
\

Sonja A. Anderson
Vice President of Power Marketing
for Sierra Nevada Region

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By:
Title:
Address:

Date:




7 Mcpa N

20 )

% nl\ "*/'-
"ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: Hometown Connections, Inc. — Become an initial Member of Hometown
Connections, Inc. (HCI), Pay Membership Fee, Appoint NCPA’s Representative and Alternate
Representative, and Provide Financial and Accounting Support Services to HCI

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

9

If other, please specify

FROM: Randy S. HowardV%L,‘ METHOD OF SELECTION:
General Manager N/A
Division: Executive Services
Department: General Manager
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members CityofLodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a“"i;‘;:i'ga%’ r:r:;at 0 Cityof PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [J
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 133:18




Hometown Connections, Inc.
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA Staff recommends that the Commission approve Resolution 18-24 authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to make payment for the buy in amount required to become
an initial Member of Hometown Connections, Inc., (HCI). The buy in amount shall not exceed
$265,000, and shall include the following political subdivisions or governmental
instrumentalities, as approved by their governing bodies (collectively “Joint Action Entities”):

Alabama Municipal Electric Authority (AMEA)
American Municipal Power, Inc. (AMP Ohio)

MPUA Resource Services Corporation (MPUA RSC)
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)

Vermont Public Power Supply Authority (VPPSA)

NCPA Staff recommends that the Commission designate the following persons to serve as the
Representative and Alternative Representative on the HCI Board of Directors (“Board”) for
NCPA, and that they shall serve until his or her successor is appointed by NCPA or until his or
her earlier death, resignation, inability to serve, removal, or disqualification:

NCPA:
Representative: Randy S. Howard, General Manager
Alternative Representative: Monty Hanks, Chief Financial Officer

NCPA Staff recommends that the Commission approve NCPA Staff participation as officers on
the Board, support the Board of Directors election of Randy S. Howard to serve as the Chair of
the Board and Monty Hanks to serve as Chief Financial Officer for a term of two years, and
support all duties and responsibilities thereof.

NCPA Staff also recommends that the Commission authorize the General Manager or his
designee to enter into an agreement to provide financial and-accounting support services to
HCI with any non-substantial changes as approved by NCPA General Counsel, which HCI
Board of Directors has approved to not exceed $25,000 one-time set-up fee, an annual audit
and tax filing fee of approximately $17,500, and a monthly fee of approximately $2,750, which
shall escalate annually and increase with increased activity.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA Members tasked NCPA Staff with expanding the services that NCPA provides to its
Members. However, NCPA Members also requested NCPA Staff minimize additional direct
costs to Members caused by increasing staffing and increasing PERS liability at NCPA to
provide these services. Thus, NCPA Staff has worked with Joint Action Entities from across the
country to find a way to increase the purchasing power and obtain additional savings for
NCPA’s Members. The Joint Action Entities decided to explore the creation of a nationwide
joint action entity that could expand the services each joint action entity could provide on their
own. The culmination of that effort is this proposal to become an initial member of HCI.

SR: 133:18



Hometown Connections, Inc.
April 26, 2018
Page 3

The idea and discussion began with AMP Ohio presenting the opportunity to obtain a robust
advanced metering infrastructure (AMI) program at a reduced cost. Since only some of NCPA'’s
Members have deployed AMI, NCPA Staff asked AMP Ohio representatives to come to the
Utility Directors’ Retreat in 2017 to present their program. AMP Ohio had over 20 responses to
its extensive request for proposal process and selected Silver Spring. The Silver Spring system
not only provides a large platform for multiple levels of analysis, but also allows any meter to
connect and work with its system. AMP Ohio has invested over a million dollars in setting up
the system. NCPA was not the only agency looking to take advantage of the work AMP Ohio
has already done on AMI. As more entities considered getting AMI from AMP Ohio, the price
per meter continued to decrease.

AMP Ohio also wanted to set up a separate entity to hold the AMI system as it expanded
beyond AMP Ohio’s members. Thus, the Joint Action Entities began to discuss the formation of
a new entity to leverage their collective buying power to obtain cost reductions for an expanded
group of services to include, but also expand beyond AMI. Since Hometown Connections
International already existed to provide services to the American Public Power Association
(APPA) members, the Joint Action Entities believe it provides an existing staff structure for
launching HCI. Hometown Connections International is currently and through a 10-year
services agreement with APPA, will continue to be recommended by and endorsed by APPA.
NCPA Staff saw an opportunity to meet one of NCPA'’s strategic goals of expanding services to
NCPA Members without adding all of the staff required to provide these additional services.

NCPA is based upon the many benefits of joint action. NCPA Members have worked together
to take advantage of economies of scale and to increase legislative and regulatory influence.
This same goal of public power entities joining together to obtain programs, equipment and
services at large scale pricing is driving the creation of HCI.” HCI would focus on expanding the
services offered through NCPA’s Support Services Program including AMI, public power
management consulting and large scale pricing for vendor services. Joining HCI would further
the initiatives in NCPA’s Strategic Plan. “New Services and/or New Business Structures” is one
of NCPA's initiatives to achieve NCPA'’s Vision and Mission. NCPA's Vision is to be the premier
provider of energy services to public entities. NCPA’s Mission is to provide our members cost
effective wholesale power, delivery support, energy-related services, and advocacy on behalf of
public power consumers through joint action.

Through participation in HCI, NCPA Members would have access to the robust AMI system
AMP Ohio has created with Silver Spring at competitive rates. As an initial member of HCI,
NCPA Members will have favorable pricing verses those entities that are not members of HCI.
Hometown Connections International’s current services include public power management
consulting, public power auxiliary staff to fill temporary positions and preferential pricing from
vendors. Hometown Connections International has preferential pricing in the areas of
community solar, compensation studies, cost of service studies/rate design, customer and
employee research, customer engagement, customer information solutions, cyber liability
insurance, cybersecurity monitoring, energy analysis, energy trading & risk management,
energy workforce solutions, interactive distributed generation, IT services, LED outdoor lighting,
meter and operational data, mobile workforce solutions, performance management, property
insurance, smart grid software, smart meters, and technology consuiting.

SR: 133:18



Hometown Connections, Inc.
April 26, 2018
Page 4

Organizational Structure

HCI will be a charitable nonstock Delaware corporation. Similarly, Randy S. Howard is currently
the Chairman of the Central Valley Project Corporation (“CVP Corp”), a California nonprofit
corporation. NCPA handles all of the board meetings, staff support and accounting for CVP
Corp. CVP Corp directs the displacement program with the Western Area Power Administration
and restoration fund program and budget leveling services. Thus, NCPA has familiarity with
using the nonprofit corporation structure to meet the needs of NCPA’s Members. And, the
potential initial members of HCI have asked NCPA to assume similar accounting support for
HCI giving NCPA clear vision into the financials of HCI.

HCI will acquire the assets of Hometown Connections International from the APPA and
Alabama Municipal Electric Authority. In addition, AMP Ohio will contribute its AMI program to
HCI. Each entity that decides to become an initial member will contribute $265,000 in cash or in
kind as an initial contribution to establish HCI. Any further contributions will be at the discretion
of each member. To keep the liability within HCI, all binding agreements will be among HCI and
the selling entities. None of the members of HCI, all of whom are joint action entities, will be
pledging assets or providing security for HCI’s acquisitions. HCI will enter into an asset
purchase agreement for the assets held by Hometown Connections International and will
acquire the assets held by APPA and Alabama Municipal Electric Authority. HCI will be
assigned Hometown Connections International’s current vendor discount agreements. HCI will
be the only signatory on all of the agreements.

The small number of employees at Hometown Connections International have a defined bonus
program structured to retain employees — a Long-term Retention Compensation Plan, and a
401K plan with a 3% match. Although HCI will be taking all employees and their existing bonus
structure, the retirement plan is employee funded and does not contain PERS like outstanding
liabilities.

Each HCI Member will have a director on the HCI Board. From this platform NCPA will be able
to influence the direction of HCI and the programs and services it provides. Although offering
AM I services is an initial focus of HCI, the Joint Action Entities also want to provide large scale
discount pricing for other services.

All of the other Joint Action Entities have passed resolutions to become initial members of HCI,
so NCPA will be the last entity to act on this proposal. Hometown Connections International has
an existing relationship with The Energy Authority (TEA) who is a direct competitor with NCPA
for power management services in California and is going to serve the County of Los Angeles
and the City of Long Beach community choice programs. If NCPA is not a member of HCI, TEA
will continue to be HCI'’s preferred provider for those services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the initial membership is $265,000. This project was not included in the current
fiscal year budget however funds are available in the General Manager’s budget to fund this
project. Cost allocation will be based on 50/50 participation percentages; 50% based on size
allocation and 50% equally shared. No additional budget augmentation is being requested with
this approval.

SR: 133:18



Hometown Connections, Inc.

April 26, 2018

Page 5

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation provided herein was reviewed by the Utility Director Group on several
dates and was discussed by the NCPA Legal Committee.

Respectfully submitted,

P Dol

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment:
¢ Resolution18-24

SR: 133:18



RESOLUTION 18-24

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING INITIAL MEMBERSHIP IN HOMETOWN CONNECTIONS, INC. (HCI), PAYING MEMBERSHIP
FEE, APPOINTING NCPA’'S REPRESENTATIVE AND ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE, AND PROVIDE
FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING SUPPORT SERVICES TO HCI

(reference Staff Report #133:18)

WHEREAS, NCPA's Strategic Plan and desire of the Members is to expand the new services and/or new
business structures that will provide our Members cost effective energy-related services on behalf of public
power consumers through joint action; and

WHEREAS, Hometown Connections, Inc., is established to offer energy-related vendor products with
aggregated pricing, management and energy related consulting services, training support, and technology
services and support, such as AMI; and

WHEREAS, Hometown Connections, Inc., filed the “State of Delaware Certificate of Incorporation A Non-
Stock Corporation” with the State of Delaware Secretary of State for Hometown Connections, Inc., on March 27,
2018; and

WHEREAS, Hometown Connections, Inc., applied for and received from the Internal Revenue Service an
Employer Identification Number for the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, Hometown Connections, Inc., has agreed to acquire the assets of Hometown Connections
International; and

WHEREAS, the membership of Hometown Connections, Inc., scheduled an organizational meeting on
April 10, 2018, and carried out the business of the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency hereby
adopts and approves the following:

1. MEMBERSHIP

Authorizes the General Manager or his designee to make a payment for the buy in amount required to
become an initial Member of Hometown Connections, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $265,000 and which shall include the following political
subdivisions or governmental instrumentalities, as approved by their governing bodies:

Alabama Municipal Electric Authority (AMEA)
American Municipal Power, Inc. (AMP Ohio)

MPUA Resource Services Corporation (MPUA RSC)
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)

Vermont Public Power Supply Authority (VPPSA)



2. APPOINTMENT OF NCPA REPRESENTATIVE AND ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Designates the following persons to serve as the NCPA Representative or Alternative Representative on
the Board of Directors and shall serve until his or her successor is appointed by NCPA, that made the previous
appointment or until his or her earlier death, resignation, inability to serve, removal or disqualification:

NCPA
Representative: Randy S. Howard, General Manager
Alternative Representative: Monty Hanks, Chief Financial Office

3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Approves that on April 10, 2018, the Board of Directors elected Randy S. Howard to serve as the Chair
of the Board and Monty Hanks to serve as Chief Financial Officer for a term of two years and that the NCPA
Commission supports these appointments and all duties and responsibilities thereof.

4, FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING SERVICES

Authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into an Agreement to provide financial and
accounting support services to Hometown Connections, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by
NCPA General Counsel, which HCI Board of Directors has approved to not exceed $25,000 one-time set-up fee,
an annual audit and tax filing fee of approximately $17,500, and a monthly fee of approximately $2,750 which
shall escalate annually and increase with increased activity.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 18-24 2-



Commission Staff Report

April 18, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: Approval of Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Monty Hanks W

Assistant General Manager/CFO N/A
Division: Administrative Services

Department: Accounting & Finance

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o O O o O

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

(]
O
(|
O
O
O

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o O 0O O o o

SR: 136:18




Annual Budget for FY2019 — Approval
April 18, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

The NCPA Commission adopt and approve the FY 2019 Annual Budget and Working Capital
Deposit and Funding Requirement as outlined in Resolution 18-25 and as detailed in the
attached budgetary support and Annual Budget document.

BACKGROUND:

In October 2017, the Commission approved budget guidance for the NCPA FY 2019 Annual
Budget. Staff began preparation of the proposed budget during the following months. From
January through April 12, 2018, staff presented the budget to various Commission
Committees as follows:

» Facilities Committee (February 13th, March 13th)

» Legislative and Regulatory Committee (February 21st)
o Utility Directors (March Sth Retreat), (April 12th)

e Budget Preview (Commission meeting March 22nd)

 Lodi Energy Center Project Participants Committee (February 12th, March 12th, April
oth)

Presentations made to the Commission and Committees during review of the proposed FY 2019
Annual Budget are located on the NCPA website at: www.ncpa.com under the Meetings
heading/ Committees subheading on the dates indicated. The entire budget document is
available on the Agency’s extranet site, NCPA Connect.

All changes resulting from the budget review meetings have been incorporated into the
proposed FY 2019 Annual Budget.

Overview of the FY 2019 Annual Budget

This proposed budget totals $363.5 million (net of revenues). Overall results are 0.35% or
$1.3 million dollar increase over the FY 2018 approved budget. Budget changes include:

¢ Overall operating costs (non-personnel related) are 5.9% above 2018 budget levels
mainly due to increased maintenance costs at LEC for increased generation.

¢ Higher transmission costs due to higher load forecast ($7.6 million)

* Increased overall operating and maintenance costs ($4.4 million) mainly due to
projected increase in generation.

* Increased Member Contracts related to new contracts in effect for full year ($2.7
million)

» Salaries and benefits increased primarily due to a reduction of the CalPERS discount
rate for the retirement plan ($2.2 million).

 Increased projected energy purchases by LEC including regulation down requirements
($1.4 million)

e Netincrease of 1.83 FTE composed of 0.37 increase in Human Resources /
Administration, 1.00 FTE increase for casual intern positions and 0.46 additional FTE
in Hydroelectric plant.

e LEC debt service costs decreased $0.3 million resulting from the 2017 refunding.
NCPA continues to monitor federal budget cuts to the Build America Bonds interest
subsidy program ($0.5 million). Restoration of this funding continues to be a focus of
current advocacy efforts in Washington DC.

SR: 136:18



Annual Budget for FY2019 — Approval
April 18,2018
Page 3

» Decreased net Load Aggregation costs related to decreased purchase pricing per
MWhr ($2.9 million)

e Hydroelectric debt service costs decreased $3.1 million as a result of the 2018
refunding

e Increased LEC revenues ($32.6 million) offset by increased fuel costs ($18.2 million)
related to higher generation.

Working Capital Deposit and Funding Requirement

The Agency provides Working Capital for its Participants and Programs through a combination
of:
e Month Ahead Advance Billing;
» Project Financed Deposits; and
* Working Capital Participant Deposits of 15 to 30 days’ equivalencies — see attached
Analysis of Working Capital Requirements.

In connection with the preparation of the Annual Budget, the Working Capital Participant
Deposits are adjusted each year to reflect any changes in the Annual Budget. The proportional
allocation of these deposits are based on the participant’s percentage in each Project or
Program. Any additional deposit required is billed via the monthly All Resources Bill (ARB) and
any Refund credit is deposited to the participant’s account in the NCPA General Operating
Reserve (GOR).

Please note calculations for the Lodi Energy Center have not been included based on the 60-
day Operating Reserve requirement in the Power Sales Agreement (PSA) for that Project.

Staff will provide a brief PowerPoint presentation at the Commission meeting outlining the
changes made after the March 22, 2018 Commission meeting. A summary of the proposed
annual budget, analysis of the working capital deposit and funding requirement, and a copy of
the PowerPoint presentation are attached.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Executive Summary section of the budget document contains an analysis of the overall
budget. Total proposed annual budget cost for FY 2019 is approximately $363.5 million, which
represents an increase of 0.35% or a 1.3 million dollar increase over the FY 2018 budget as
summarized in the attached schedule. Allocation of the FY2019 Annual Budget between
members and LEC participants are based on participation levels in NCPA programs and
projects and the approved cost allocations. Final funding allocation for each member is
attached to this staff report and shown on page 137 of the budget document.

The total calculated FY 2019 Working Capital Deposit and Funding Requirements for the
Annual Budget has increased $55,658 or 0.58%. The increase is primarily from higher
transmission costs due to increased generation. The attached schedule shows each
participant’s Additional Requirement Charge or (Refund). The Additional Requirement Charge
will be billed on the next ARB following Commission approval, and Refunds of credit amounts
will likewise be deposited into the applicable participant’s individual GOR account.

SR: 136:18



Annual Budget for FY2019 — Approval
April 18, 2018
Page 4

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The Legislative and Regulatory (L&R) Committee reviewed the L&R Program budget at their
meeting on February 21, 2018 and unanimously approved the proposed program budget and
recommended approval by the full NCPA Commission.

The Facilities Committee reviewed the Generation Services (except LEC), Power
Management and Administrative Services/Executive Services budget at their meetings on
February 13th and March 13th. The Committee unanimously recommended approval of the
Generation Services budgets, Power Management budget, and the Administrative and
Executive Services budget.

The Lodi Energy Center Participants Committee reviewed the project budget on February
12th, March 12th, and unanimously recommended approval to the full Commission at the April
9th meeting.

On February 13, 2018 the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended to the Commission
the continued funding of the PERS and OPEB unfunded liability at the 15 year amortization
schedule.

Respectfully submitted,

T R— b

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
— Resolution 18-25
— Budget Summary
— Participant Funding Summary
~ Pay Schedule
— Analysis of Working Capital Deposit and Funding Requirements
— PowerPoint Presentation (Budget)

SR: 136:18



RESOLUTION 18-25

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2019 ANNUAL BUDGET AND WORKING CAPITAL
DEPOSIT AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS AND ADJUSTMENTS

(reference Staff Report #136:18)

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Northern California Power Agency Joint Powers Agreement
("the JPA") provides in Article lll section 3 that,

"3. None of the debts, liabilities, or obligations of NCPA shall be the debts, liabilities or obligations of
any of the parties to this [Joint Powers] Agreement unless assumed in a particular case by resolution
of the governing body of the party to be charged"; and

WHEREAS, certain members have assumed obligations of NCPA through approval of agreements by
their governing bodies, such as the project third phase agreements, the Pooling Agreement, the Facilities
Agreement, the Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement, the Scheduling Coordination
Program Agreement, etc.; and

WHEREAS, the JPA provides in Article IV section 3(a) that,

"3(a). Each party hereto agrees that it will annually contribute, in proportion to its respective total retail
electric power load (or where no retail load exists, the consumptive power load, or where no
consumptive power load exists, other suitable measure as approved by the Commission) for the
previous calendar year, to a fund or budget of NCPA which may cover up to one-third of legislative
and regulatory activities or other NCPA general expenses not covered by other agreements or revenue
sources, as may be approved by the Commission; and that such annual cash contribution to said fund
or budget by any party may be up to fifteen cents ($0.15) per megawatt hour (MWh) of said total retail
electric power load or consumptive power load, or where no consumptive power load exists, other
suitable measure as approved by the Commission, as submitted by such party to the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission or other governmental regulatory authority"; and

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure for the Commission of the Northern
California Power Agency (the NCPA Bylaws) provide in section 11 that,

"11. Budgets.

(a) NCPA Budget. The General Manager shall, not later than at the regular Commission meeting
in May of each year, present a proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year to the Commission,
together with a statement of the payments to be required from the Members by such budget.
Such budget shall include the various NCPA Project budgets. The Commission shall adopt
such budget by resolution, with any changes ordered by it, not later than the regular meeting
in June’; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the NCPA Bylaws, the General Manager of NCPA has presented a
proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2019; and

WHEREAS the proposed budget in accordance with the JPA includes a proposed charge to the members
of $0.15 per MWh for a total assessment pursuant to the JPA of $1,399,416; and

WHEREAS, certain of the members of NCPA have from time to time entered into a variety of agreements
for the development and operation of NCPA Projects and Programs by which said members have agreed to be
responsible for the costs of said Projects and Programs; and



WHEREAS, costs for each of the NCPA Projects and NCPA Programs have been included in the
proposed 2019 NCPA Annual Budget, and the Participants in each such NCPA Project and NCPA Program
acknowledge that approval of the NCPA Annual Budget constitutes approval of the annual budget for each of
said Programs and Projects; and

WHEREAS, all other costs not included in the JPA assessment have been primarily incurred, by original
design, either directly or indirectly on behalf of NCPA Projects or in support of NCPA Programs developed and
approved by the members over the years; and

WHEREAS, Project and Program costs have been equitably allocated between and among the NCPA
Projects and Programs and such equitable allocation methodology has been approved by the Commission in
previous budgets and through specific studies and Commission actions via Resolution 10-16 (Power
Management Costs), Resolution 10-106 (Legislative and Regulatory Costs); and

WHEREAS, all such costs are operating and maintenance costs within the meanings and descriptions
provided in both the Third-Phase (Take-Or-Pay) Agreements and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) Uniform Chart of Accounts, used to account for the Projects; and

WHEREAS, the Project Participants in all NCPA Projects through recommendation of the NCPA
Facilities Committee and the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee have recommended approval
of a FY 2019 Annual Budget; and

WHEREAS, the participants in the Legislative and Regulatory Programs through recommendation of the
Legislative and Regulatory Committee have recommended approval of the Legislative and Regulatory program
budget as presented in the 2019 Annual Budget; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2019 Annual NCPA Budget is a comprehensive document that delineates, among
other things, each member’s fully allocated financial cost responsibility in connection with each and every
service provided by the Agency through its various projects and programs; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2019 Annual Budget for individual Projects as recommended by the respective
Project participants of the various Projects and the related costs and revenues thereof are reflected in the
Agency’s proposed FY 2019 Annual NCPA Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Agency provides Working Capital for its Projects and Programs through a combination
of month ahead advanced billing, project financed deposits; and working capital participant deposits of 15 to 30
days’ equivalencies; and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2019 Working Capital Deposit and Funding Requirement schedule shows
each participant’s Additional Requirement Charge or (Refund); and

WHEREAS, the Additional Requirement Charge will be billed on the next ARB following Commission
approval, and Refunds of credit amounts will be deposited into the applicable participant’s individual NCPA
G.O.R. account; and

WHEREAS, the FY 2019 Annual NCPA Budget document also contains certain proposed position
changes, reclassifications and salary or pay schedules which also require Commission approval: and

Resolution 18-25 -2-



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency

as follows:

Section 1. This Commission hereby finds and determines that the recitals contained herein above are
true and correct.

Section 2. This Commission finds that the adoption of this resolution is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act. It is not an action which will cause either a direct physical change in the
environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment (reference staff report
147:17).

Section 3. This Commission hereby irrevocably adopts, approves, and authorizes the program and
project budgets which are an integral part of the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget of the Agency, and it
hereby irrevocably adopts, approves, and authorizes the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget of the Agency.
The Commission members hereby confirm their commitment and that of their respective member agencies,
to provide funding of the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget of the Agency in proportion to their individual
shares therein, as shown in the attached summary of budget costs after full allocation of costs to all projects
and programs of the Agency.

Section 4. This Commission hereby irrevocably adopts, approves, and authorizes the related
participant charges or refunds from the analysis of the Working Capital Deposit and Funding Requirement
schedule for Fiscal Year 2019.

Section 5. Not withstanding the generality of the foregoing, the Commission does hereby approve the
classification and position changes and salary or pay schedules as noted in the Annual Budget and
authorizes the General Manager to implement such changes.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following

vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY PADGETT
CHAIRPERSON ASSISTANT SECRETARY

Resolution 18-25 -3-



%9'L €16'880'9 880'€EZ 588'668'S
%10 $90'5€2 19¢°'15 869'¢8)
%€0 €1£'e56 SS 692'€96
%L0 S9.'%05°C Eigaid! £1£'86€'C
%90 628°G6€°C 8Lz'se 119'00¢'2
%00 (£29°02) 6191 re'2LL)
%2 0 000°629 - 000629
%)L cer'esL'y GEZ'OLL 861'¢/0'Y
%10 195°Zep @' ¢l6'cel
%20 1s2'sv8 €6v'LL 8G/'/28
%20 005588 L18'sk £89'0€8
%S0 1z21'020°C 1€8's¥ ¥8.'v.6'L
%662 £68°25¥°ZLL 119'6v9'6 282218201
%¥'0 v.Z'6vS'L 0£8'06¥ 8ct'850' L
%20 P1€'20LT yev'ost 0v6'92s'Z
%8°L2 ¥26'8€5v0L 619'822'2 G62'09.'06
%0°L L12'299°e 299'61°L 609'99%'Z
%9°S9 86¢£'804°0bC 896'710°C 0£8'€69°ShZ
%E 'S 199'765°0LL €15°100C1 8%71'€6G'851
%E'0 2L6'221°) §50°2.9 216'GhY
%6°LE 099'625°2v1 8£1'922'65 225'€08'28
%20 202818 (8Le'e6t'3L) S20'8lE'6l
%S0~ (v8z‘118°)) (695'022'c) §82'656'L
%20 0LV'ELL S01L'9e $9¢'//9
%e L AN Zaprd (868'291'92) 7€0'68€'€S
%2 02 182'€L19L (5v6'986'8) 289'001'68
%E'8 0ze'eesLe (z20's06°01) 26£'8€C'CY
%6} (4434740 (c29'c8g) $65'929'2
%60 15¢'€€T'e G6.'eGl 295'620'c
%8} 9£Z'8v6°9 ye'lel'y ¥6£'018'C
%L 206'SS€°22 $ |(sc8'686°L) $ | ovL'sve'6T $

% 6102 (oa@)/ou| 8102

jebpng pasodoug
0€ INNT A3AN3 ¥VIA TVOSId

$1390N4 TYNNNV
AONIOV UIMOd VINHOLITVO NYIHLNON

lejolqng
uonedmiped g edueldwod YIN/IOIM
uonisinboy ejeq puy |oNU0D WRSAS
UOHeUIPIO0?) 3jNpayos
Juswoebeuepy 92In0say awi-eay B yojedsig
:yojedsiq peo puy |0JjuoD WaJsAg
Juawabeueyy Jamod
sweiboid 0) 1509 Jo3alIg UOHOY [eipnp
uondy [enipne
fejoyang
$90198 Hoddng Joquispy
uonejuasaiday ulaisapp
uopejuasaiday Alojeinboy
uopejuasaidey annejsifio
Kioyejnbay B aanejsiba
S3DIANTS INIWIODVYNVYIN
NOISSINSNY¥L TV10L
sabieys Jayio
(Sv) seoiieg Aejipuy
Buisaym OO
(OWD) abieyn uswabeuep puo
J0jesadQ waysAg yuspuadapu|
NOISSINSNVY.L

S32UNOSTY NOILVNEANTD Tv10OL
fejoang
suonebiqo 9HO 18N
§}s09 uonebaibby peo
Saseyaind Jomod Jael @ sjoenuod vdoN
92In0S3Y WIB)SOM
SBS) |einjeN - S90IN0SAY AW
ABIdu7 - $32IN0SAY JOGUIDI

rejoiqng
J8juag ABieuz 1po
(911S) Z "ON auigun | uogsnquiod
} "ON @uIgn] uoRSNqWoD
Jewayjoas
oLo9je0IpAH
sjueid YdON
S304NO0S3Y NOLLVIANTD




LZ¥0pS'e9e $ | 628'v82°L $ | svs‘sse'zoe $
v9z 1291 ¥92'9.0°Z4 000665
900'68.°0L 900'G8.'0L -
9z9‘s8l 9z1'62L 005'65
7€9°269°1 zel'zoL'L 005'seS
%0001 169°'k12'9L8 $ | evLiiogsl $ | 8¥5'098°29¢ $
%0°0 (91£°2p) (o18'zy) -
%0°0 gle'zy 9le'Ty -
%¥ 0 0.1'619°} £92'¢6 106'62S'|
%¥ 0£2'92r'SL 104209 625'8L8'7L
%L'0 091°692 (80v'L¥) 895'01€
%20 962°9¢6 G6E'€9l \v8'cL.
%20 80V'LLS 61220l 06l'0L¥
%10 828°85¢ 9/1'95 159'20¢
%10 11852 /%0'0S 0£8'v0Z
%00 815l (z6g'1) gl6'opL
%0°0 66Z°601 Pov'Ls 658'/S
%SZ 1v1°8T2°6 €12'782 YEY'ev6's
%P 0- (L15'52¢°L) (9e2'l) (622'19¢'1)
%00 158904 (z8L'12) 6£9'821
%0°0 o0zr'LL (z65'01) 210'e8
%00 syl (991'91) 606'9l
%E0 ¥r9'8Z1L L (998'02) 0LG'6¥L'L
%0°0 L9501 0GL's 16¥°001
%0°0 089'v91L zov's 8Lz'651
%0°0 8ce'sl 259 989/
%20 686°6£8 (6z1°Z8E) yL1'TL8
%10 £8€°9¢Ct £90°St 0ze'eey
%L°0 8£9'V9L'T ¥0.'12L ¥£6'2¥9'c
%0°0 50181 LE1'6 696'Z/1
%10 812'cop 298'LL 15¢€'16¢
%20 00L°Lir8 09Z'Ce 0¥8°'808
%0°0 095°stL 621'8 Lev'LeL
%10 8z.L'6vS 815'sy 0L2'70S
%20 9Z6‘2v9 66Lv1 121829
% 6102 (0aq)pul 810Z
jebpng pasodoud
0€ ANNr GIANT ¥VIA TVOSId
$139aN€ TYNNNY

1S0D 139dN8 TVNNNYV L3N d3LSNrayv Tv.ioL
fejoiqng
SJIBWOISNY WO} dNUIASY
(ABojopoyjaw 99V BIA pajeso||y) aNudAdy adIAIeS Nd
(ABojopoyjaws JuexaN eja payeso]y) SnuaAsy aslAIes Nd

ANNIAIY ALYVd QHIHL ¥3HLO

1809 139an4 TVNNNY 13N TV1O0L

SLINIWISUNEGNITH SIOIAYTS LI0ddNS
SIDIAMIS 1H0ddNS
(313 's3NAa "ONVL) S1S00 HONOYHL SSVd LNVdIDILdVd
SAJIAYIS LNTFWIOVNVIN TV.LOL
uoddng swe)sAg pajeibaju|
lejoyang
Buuojuow g uoyepifeA ejled 0S|
Buuoyuopy g uoneplleA joRuod [eaq
sjuswives
|ejoyqng
sishjeuy g mainey ypaid Aued-isjunod
SaIARDY 8 sBulesin DY ‘00Y
juowabeueyy ysiy ABiauzg
judswabeuep sJomod - [ejOIqNS
sweiboid 0} 1509 1auq Juswabeueyy Jamod
108f01d Jamod aseyoind joxiein
welboid aseyoind ses
108[01d Jamod usaln
lejoiang
UOIBISIUIWPY PUE UOIEUIPIo0D Juswaalby Buljood
£oeo0ApY % uojRlUSsaIdaY LIB)SBA
£oe00ApY 2 uoReuasaldey ONY.L
uonebnr ' uoiesIUWPY pue uojenobaN JuiB 19eRU0D
SHeYY [eUi)XT @ SOAS UOISULIODISIUL ‘UILIPY 10BQUeD
snepy Aojeinbay g buunjonisay Asnpu|
lejoians
uonessiulwpy Juswaaiby sajjoe4
SpJepue)s Juawemes ¥ JadQ [00d Jamod
Buinpayog-aid
suoloesuel] [an4 % 18Mod
JWBA 9 sisAleuy sty ‘uoneziwndQ ‘Bujuueld soinosay
Buysesaiog
Buipes] @ Bujnpayosaid ‘Buiuueld bugsedsaio

panuiuod

AINIOV ¥3IMOd VINYOLITVO NYIHLION



{12N) siwswaanboy Bupund anbay Bugpung

"61502 Jo aunjeu Juabuljuoa o) anp sjued|agued 0} PAjEDOE Joll ing ‘LSO LIOGNE TYANNY L3N Ul papnjou) SajeuR)s3 - Amo ouryy .

0} anp urid wioy umoys .
(908'z83'e) 98£'792 952502 = £51'781 £90'vES'LL TavZ989) oS 0s6'LYZ's Tocoseo ] e le22’z01] [0 orL'eeL'L Traz 290 66v'958'L (109p) 1oy
's8L'0T 68’6l TSTEE = BT8PV SEHL 729067 9T6%0C 8 68L'6 L¥6°00¢'68 7899 rrowe SIS IT TSSBLIC 8Tecelse 150D 1aBpng fenuuy 1N BLOZTAL
V8g'z08'v $|ss0’zee ¢ [seouev's s [su'ver  $[esi'zer ¢ [Lataa'sor & |osvicrs ¢ |Lzo'ter & ssv'sw's ¢ | sloves's ¢|6z0'z03'9  §|sse'see’s  §[iz0ezt ¢ clsea’sz ¢ |sw'aieie § | zzvorsess | 1500 139008 TANNY L3N
B [ 662 ) [cegszl ___ |wos'®) 05°s] 628l 8201 ) i) 6ove) g
o6} 809'8) 05°s] 820] onj eL2 sov'z} T-}o_ Sjuediojueg o) sypRI0
821'vs gL £9¥'L9 sediofied VION-UON
SIYI0 - JBWSSISSY VI
(L¥e'zes‘ol}  |(vez‘oz) {ecz'vd) (rse) (¥s) (60L"L2) (628'01) (665911} [{s82's51) {raz's 2921}
(900's82°01 (900°382°01 SUBOISND WY BNUAATY
(bo1's) (rag) (vs) (sz6) (vc'er) (s28'9) (189's) (ziv'z) (e8) (a28°2) (668'02) {929'851) (©3v) enuaney sojaiss Wd
(529'26) (vezoz) (zc1'99) - - 2ve'czs) (z62'v2 I o12'25) (s16'15) (e12'252) (vor'0g) (689'881) (Los’ce) (s6g'81) (s95'c)} (ezz'60L) (0ov'3))} (ze9' 2691} {uexaN) anusray soineS Wd
SNNIATY ALY QUIHL ¥3HLO
(s1e'zp) SuBWesNqUETY Sa3AIRS Hoddng
neTY ‘s9aniag poddng
o' s0e'vl [ 918'508 786'e9 900°c8 90¥L 820'%1 [ 185'6T 80001 11581 ¥EB'L XD 000°07Z 918101 [T 51509 ybnoayy sseq
0000} 5994 JajsUBL SJRIU2D SIDUM
000°001  S{09004q 0INDS JSqWB
sul's o 92l zsz'os s'9 689, £95'7 957 ' 000'09 'y 000'0Z1 SoueudMIEN BULRIPIN
00g's 000'9 008'z 000’ 000'8} ‘suopduosqng
1289 189 199 299 199 299 199 199 299 199 299 299 299 199 199 000'0s sonQ 330
999 696 88 198's 66t 16v'e Ls0's 986 a0z s €0t 8 s 15092 senq 4330
sy 8y 8y v sty'z 9EKT 8y i sv'e 8y 98Y'z 3y 89 89 9eve (113 s8nQ ¥d3s
on's s8lzk oL o829 808 ey L18'88 23378 sae'sz o9y’ 9lg's 690 ne'iz $99'70¢ 59NQ Vddy
0oLy 0oLy Miog sbeig
cee'vee 91°eeh oo0o‘o8t - oo0g'ze8 Bupinsued XAVE
s20'01 swLL 5.8'8 9e8's9 188°2 ve6'se pes'sLl 10S -ONVL
8S9'CYL 156'c88 [T TivozL 88L2ZLY ¥99'880°L (g 110028 160V SLVIBYT 0z8'viy LTV 9zg'8EE yosae Z00'9L 969°7LL 1861221 0sZ'9TYL
[ [T e = 806'608°C 788°618 p Vi8'E0V 25¥zse 208°66LL GLS'LVE [T A SLVEET 08Z'cZ} 8988 SHET0L LEE626 0zv'389°0L
8Tl Wtk $9£°8Z ove's 999's 925'L 0zvLiL uieiBosd aseyaing sen
008’0l 289'11 19624 oog'0L oos'ol 00801 sz 008’0l 158'90L weuBoid 9seyaing Jeuien
- - - - - - - - [371 sPL wieiBosd 1amog UsalDy
vesivi 62z’ 806'60¢'e z8B'619 ri8'cor zsv'zse 208'662'L z6s'zee sLo'eBL'L LeeniT pis‘cor zva'en s8v'cLo 157836 00¥'£05'0L Siuawaas 3 B s ABlauz
'S '0IVOS Wby samod
ANIWIDYNVA ¥3MO0d
V107 16681 3 ©28'981 90702 - 29871 evLLb 98z'6hL [0 51069 79V 808 ¥05T [ 028’58 11588
00008 +» fouabuguop
o v0' 166'8L . cIe'991 sov'oz °ss'sL v 98z'6LL 86¥'L) 910'c9 2900 808 ¥05'Z sc8 oeg'sy L1g'v0s sejey 7 syueL
) uonay feripny
Y8501 08T1LZL TLY'0ZL 2059571 LT'88Y [ cHZe0k 268°cH1 85295 £38'60L 898'961 1876 21968 [y 81989 [T} TEVEBLY
oVl 9EVT 15108 £80'698 98t'281 [T vB9'sL 79v'sT B [ §09'99 16021 cor's 6292 258 BRG] £I6LECT uowsSosSY Yl
£96'9 w ir Lye'sel e yiTveL su'a voy'se 9z8'L¥T 9619 WL ©90's Tk o6's 108's 98Z¥Z 15T'sv8 opepuosaidoy WRISIM
s9v'vz sz 808'22 619'sst 166'v8 768'sy z88'sz £16'sT L2151 92T'sT Loz'se 202's2 808'2 zz6'z - 9g1'ss 825'609 uogeuesaxday Alojeinay
ozg'sy 609'ss ssL'7e sv'oge osz's vl 862’59 ui'es eag'szL 09s'ss 985’28 e ¥6T'6¥ rel'ty - ¥es'sL 159'08¢°} uoyeesaiday anyersiBa
ANOLYINOIY ® IAYISION
‘$30INYSS INSWIDYNVIN
Lee'ezz'e lest't) SYLBLLT > > srecs'sy LD - 8pLTE'E £eTH00'e ¥86°091'22 veo'sez'e $60'885°0L. 859'668'L 208'c8L 209'80% 208866'6 1657078 B OVFTLL
16E'582T 205081 = 8z'9c8'ey - 7 79100 VEBE0SLZT BBL0VTT 62816501 608'006') [N $59'80Y 209'6€6'6 LTS TEB'SHTLL Jopesndo waysAs Juapuadapu)
esvL] fesz1] () (CZ] WE “eme.—v A_“w@v [Z] liez'sl uvoz)
(es¥)) ] Jeevi ] 68! o] loct (ol T3517 [iegD 2 Weyd euwsyios
(opa‘s) {os9) (01) (svo'e) (o83} {02 tog1's) (s8¥'s) } jueid [eunayjosn
+ UOISSUISUES) JUEld YION
NoISSSNvaL
€9£208°82 (X3 £9TVEN'S = E SY9'08TLS | YV BTV'S - 155729's S6E12TS BLTTLE6S SH/IrEL L6TBITBT | TV ORLY TIVISET SITIML £S9BSBLL SEBUITTT | shsTLonE
1901958 = 199197 . 3 veozesee |- 1SE729' 9BILITY 990°tiTee 798°207's GV LETEL ZIV'5E0'T SIT'9LST §28'209 88560251 [T 19976501
655°CZH 9299 [T 185701 T X 815'50¢ 650 szt ‘suonebiqo OHO 1IN
190'198's 101'680'% 989'092'Z¢ 18e'z90's sL¥'ess'y 96ZT'9R'EE | 202'v66'Y YeE'8LS'9L WL'YEET zLT'98e'L vez'sle 106'826'%L ns'esz 098'625°251 Si50D uopeBBEY pro
o - - - seLTy 'Ll i ws'uz - £00'82Y yE'sE Lor'818 SISEYDING 19MOG 14T F SPRIUOD VION
(v21 ce) " T {zco'ss) (8v6'L22) (sh6°081°L) (vs6'0s) (vz9'vs) (921'v2) {esv'cs) (ove's0) - (373 D] (8Z'LLE'L) 22IN0S3Y WIRISIM
= o178 i T 4 - - - szi'zvl £08'8LY z88'9T poe'se \sv's - auv'elL SeQ [eMEN-SeDNOSY JaqUIRY
" SV IYLL 200'829 are 99229508 cLvzse T T . 5T'388'e seKiET' e ABroug-sovumosey Jequei
968°BE VL 6LV 709298} - ¥IVERTEL | veveer's - 602258 ZLT0PS'S 185291 ZHR0zLDL 896008 ¥ag'vie £5V601 S9N T 8150219 varoeL'aL
969'WEPL = [T r r scr'ese’s 5 - 962552 951299 £26Z60's Gooves | seeee T8 SOLEN'T = weeeels | JeueD A6reuz 1po
" - e . - 8920197 - - abu'sss 560087 r T - - saL'9ze’L zEIVTL (OLLS) ZoN euliny. uopsnquiod
d - z6'6z r T ez Lves i - ov2'ss ue'sal ss0'eey 1o'ssl aen o9t's 815'50L se'eer'e +“ON BUIGINL UBSNGUIOD
- o8IV 162'968 - " £26280's ot - Lsg'sy 928'697 Lya'eTL LzstesT orr'ez e8's1 22961} £82'996'9 feueUj0ss)
= $|- $ | zzo'ess $|- $|eama'os  [ees'cezizs |- $|- $ | z2o'enrs ucoses | eve'ssss s9t'v00'ss L61'BLSS - |- $ | so1'268'28 Z06'sst°228 ouphH
o aw yepin Touuog e EED apinasoy Buippay PuEPED EEH oY ofed Sodwo P01 BingspiesH | Aeipio sbbig va epowiery | ebpng | 335 5
L] -soyoniL Eseys eues Joyod sewnjd
196pNg 6L0Z A4

Kouoby 1amod ejusoged uisypoN

Gen) swawasnbay Gupuny uedioped



{ss049) sjuswiasnbay Bugpung ‘1500 Jo aimpey 3 onp o 9 ‘LS00 139ANS TYANNY LIN U PIPNjaul sojeuiss - Ajuo ouRi ..

1P uogeoojfe Juedjofied o) Inp Jueld woiy umoys ok
185708, + [ceo'zict  [elosev'es [suu'vers |esteer VIV9L8S0Ls | Ievieret | Lovers 9889y mM 9156985 | elcudpval | S10CE0LLE | IELote! ¢ | 566'80E'EE | DL0LEZ'LS ' LS 0ps"
¥v8'e6a’lL | 89870821 | cheEaTy | Svl (33 OEOSYOLEL | LOBLLLS | 68T SSZ'LST 1999189 | 2215074y syisyy |60 Rnn“« wﬂ.-ﬂ VEELZST | SL9'S9L Sng.m:uwm Nm.wwmﬁ« ﬁﬂaﬂﬁ 1500 LSANE I 43N
869521 EN vy 3 EQ 568185 EC vacL 753 StIez | veLear 09805 (75153 E3 Iover 0S6€ Z605t S9Z191 $8TBLOT w0 5YIO PUE 3R
s00'g2'01 900'582'01 S19UI013ND Wol) INUBASY
- LYY z08'se . - yezole 181's8 B - 208 - 1902 0862 8192 ez - BLLBLL 000°002 sanuRASY AN
i ” - r ” - = = - - - - - - - s3jeqay ejos
§£9'26 yez'oz [47) 3 e 586'1.09 998'98 56 o00'ss 850'58 185'0% 616'95 SI8T we'ee 6011z 678'04 e6g'91L 662651 e9z'98Et SNUSAYY 2AINISS Wdl
s - 986781 666'81E o0'0z2'L | STEtler's ser'ozl szz'aoe zi92¢l 919'8vE 06L'554 801'989 §92'956'6 TUPRID WBO Widlsom
P zee'L 9 - - - e6v'sy 1e0'ee - - - 16088} 156'686 SHpaIO podsuel) sulpdid pue jond
WTYeT 855’07y Le0'69'h  [ZLieL £8LL0L €992 LYUET SHPRIO JojsuEL) SED)
006'015 [ 916'609°) 098'908 ezL'e 16'8L seL'sLL as1's6 us'Ly SEL'69 18297 us'y BYE'sTL 08LTIE 6ZL'E0b'Y s9feS S30jMaS Alefiouy
869 61'9 966'8Y lor's N €90y e ss0'y us 182 yeo'sl Suc'0LL S[eS UorsS|WISURIL
089’9 12Z'168'8 106'0v0' solped piyL o) safes ABiou3
66C'CC0'9T | 6v6'E99'L | s68'vBET vizee | ess'evey 196’556 669'4ELY oz8'ses’z  |osv'sso'o, |vsezozz  [ses'skit | uzuez | secesy'e | oso'sa's 682'955'001 sjuelg-sojes ABiouz oSt
TLEYE |- 628'659 wo'shive |- - 652'998'7 zs'zy'y | 90C'804'vE szo'sz0’t [ lev'zz'e | su'soe ol5'383 | ssrzer  [lzel0ss'zL | Zes'zev's Lav'aMy'LeL sofes ABiou3 os|
- SOfeS Jamad Jae
FNNIATY ALYV QUIHL SSTT
1509 1390nA VNNV SSOND
SuRdpIEg 0) SUPIO
SWedioRIRd YAON-LON
SISO - WRISITSY VP
(s18°20) spRwasINqUIEY saoinies poddng
sie'zy S0IAIeS Joddng
G153 EZNEE SLE'€08 Z8E'E9 5005 s 820Vl GVE 6L 1856C 201 11581 VeaL SELTL 0005E 91810} 0LL619 1500 YBoay ssed
0000k 8323 J3jSUEIL ABID SIOUM
000'00} e S1200UG 2ONIDS JoquIB
sev's zsz'ol su's zsz'ol 621’9 689't €952 2862 szL's 000'9 szi's 000'0z) soueuslUIEN BuLRIO
- o0g's 000'9 005z o00's 000’8l suolidudsang
199 199 199 99 99 299 199 299 99 199 199 199 199 299 1998 oca'al snq 330
s €36 588 190 2665 1eb'e 150'S 588 9107 yig 223 58 e 190'vZ seng 033g
8¢ 8 8y 59T sev'e oev'z 8% 8y %wY'Z 8% sev'z 8y 8y 8y 9T 000'6k N0 Vd3s
wi's ssizk | om'uL 1529 z8z0s zi6'ey ug'se 16821 sse'sz osp's 518' §90't W'z 595208 N0 VddvY
ooz'y 0oL’y Mio 8859
£EE'VES - 191'ge) 000'084 - 005’268 upnsuod xwva
sL0'0L vl 68'8 968'39 188’ vE6'69 yee'sLL 10§ -ONVL
¥E95 05E ¥FL 958985 | 2i5'lz) | BeL0zk GTIBELY PIETYOL | 065w 811225 [89131S | Se016bT 608'LLy [ 08381 $ZL55L [ SIEIRZL POL L6V 5L
V695 SITThL SPBZaY - - X0 [5] - $1550v B3 816 L08F [ E D ShETZL | 6lZes | zasol [ VE0'LvZ 0
SEEll EG Isver 6L£8 2028 1887 [y wreibald aselong seg
1ze evzz) e85's) 12 1z 128 88b'6Z zv'iL oz weiBo1 95EUIIN TN
- - . - - . . - * ¥96'7 L4 ueiBold Jamod usainy
ve9's sz s8iory zevze's o'zze pi5'S0Y z50'vse 816208 0'vze wevelL  |wTsie 8LE'p0L 9EE'99 0L1'2L8 S91'UL6 SES'YSg0L SMRWIDRS T WO sl ABsou3
‘SS| ‘A0S Wb Javog
ANIWIOVNVIN ¥IMOd
2 16681 F - ©LE95) S0V'0T - X3 LI SBLGLL (2 S 2 809% $05T = (] 1TSS
00005 | +u ousBuguogy
20T 16688 id o sL8'98L sov'07 - £5671 chLLL 98L'5hL 8ev'LL Slo's9 L' 809 $08' 98 osg'ss LLE'pos SIEY 3 SpUeL
uoRoY [Eroipny
100501 Z19'.ZL | 86L0Z ZZV05T L 08866V [ 065'EDL [T 296695 ELZ 0L BS'Z61 Z09'c8 12668 Vov L $25'69 S SET LY
y=aT VT | TIZOE 827095 691181 S80021 ULEL [ 4 €502 750 32 yIvs VEST 6CL6S S88'5S ©BI0VE L WaWISsIsEY V-
196'9 azn |- 910'v61L 150'85 6e8'val zzz 925's¢ eL9'svT 8l5'9 z05'14 080's ase'st 896' s£8' 6982 091'8v8 uopeussaday Wejsam
YESPE 0zz'eT | vos'iz 151951 vZT'ss £s0'sy ¥99'€T v00'S2 v98'YS sie'st dze'ee £8Z'6T £89'1Z 56602 ] zsz'ee oLLLLS uolejwasadey Aoginbay
zzo'ss vZR'es | 28629 2L sig'spl evE'LLL £68'sS Lee'es SE0'VZL 8sLUS v8a'z8 ezu'es ey £08'2y - 188'5L $L9'56E"L uopepssaIdoy aNJels|BET
ANOLYIND3N 7 IAUVTSIOFTT
S3DIAETS INTWIOUNVIA
OveECe | 864 TI0E6LZ |- = B AT - 266456 € T A 60VeVZE | 1IC6I90, | J0CE0ES | Y0SBBL | ccaOlb | 8ecses’s | 989966 X
e ELT 10V eBLT 618800V Z6EISTE 0SE910% | 196 TETEL SIDEYZE | ZyC8eS0L | 0BBZOG | COGZBL | 8850V | 0559666 | 0BGLSCS CZLVTBTIL 10j2:9d0 waysAs Juepuadopul
1851 1156 32 - = Gzl = = 65T'1 T WeS 6zl Z59 208 3 £ 901’6 X3
I8t 159¢ ZWEL (3 33 105 (53 61 S92 £5601 (33 T el [pussyiosg)
0z0'9 56's 723 56 a9l 86’ vov vou'st S08'v8 | Weid euayioes
» UDjSS|WISUE1L JuBld VION
NGISSTASRVAL
€ZI8ISV8 | eecellZ | 56V 96Z0F |- = 7295518l | SsBOMOLE |- 6vB'L088 SVEVIG')) | 1S0BS/80L | 6CLOZL1) | Zoveavvy | ZBUBBLZ | 0BCTYEY | 1G9 SIvl | 68LVBEYe | IWUELSr | ESABLEELS
eCEB06Zy |- leE6BeS |- - SZLwiEz, |- = V1088 | vPCEL00L | Lea0ES VE 050028 | JSC6CCt | 1ZG0SGE | EB60I0C | EoVeVLL | 60BUL96C | COBBOSZE | PABOLYERE
6S9'ET) E75 oTT'I6E 155701 vz 9BYDL 815508 659'L sy SUCEBIGO OHD 1N
£66'806'2Y 1sz'vze'y §22'000'4Z) LBEZ50'S egg'sas's | 088'zen'se L0z've6'y | vee'BLa'slL |svi'vee'z | Z/z'9ec’t | vEZ'tie [sio'vis'sh | LLg'esTL | esz'sse'ss 3600 uojiebaIBBy peo
i - - T 81’0l seg'z68't |- SLV'Y6T - 954'18LTL | 0L6'S8L £e0'ses'sh SBSRUDING JOMOJ JOIE 3 SIPEHU0D YAON
08Z'pL8 b srr'v00'L sopivs’s | piv'seror 9eL'ses ZeE'shs sy vea's0'h | iwsosy |- 9667007 Blg'sve'te =aInosey Weisam
173 i - - i R = - i 551'v9g see1e8’ | zzT'ool £8v'251 0Tl - BIT'BEO'E SED [eInjeN-230IN0SeY 19GWIRN
- ) 020'1SL'T azz'ere 20'c61 't - 1ezves’ [~ - - r Y079l | nig'sr's AB1auzsacinosay requia
06t0l9ly |Z6esLT | p08S0BY |- = Zea'tel E - SOL'Ve8'L | oevserzh €60B06 Y | SevvpCiz | 195429t | Zec8ea) | HZLZLE | 0860MLS 1191Z9%) | piaceaeal
OBE0LS LY |~ EXSTE * orieze A 198'619 i eav'laL’ €S60228 | 20§'1TV'L SLL669'L | B08'LET 088'0LLS = veLZoL'SE Jojueg ABsouz 1po
- I N d * - rrzveLe . - ovo'vey Lzv'ssh'e - - T znL'be9') zs8'zvi's (91LS) Z "ON suiin UoysnguInD
- 866'9vE - - oLrges’t - - esi'sa - 866'12Z 802608 866'122 oze'el o8v'L - or'oes 102'508' L "ON 2uigin L UogisnqwieD
weenT  |wswel |- - sv'ovzsl | eeo0zz |- - 299’0z - vorest’  |see'szs'e  |osetsel | sse'ert ves'ss i zuL's6L's Ti0zeee Iewaypee
$|- $ | serasons |- $|- § | ses'ess'el § |szZomp'es |- $|- $|sev'ios  §|ozv'ezzzL ¢ |e0m'szz'l$ | soe'es's §|ssezzz |- $|- $|- $ | ese'ses’ss | sis'ass'iss ouphy
o aiL yenin 4auuoq e el anssoy Tuppey PuepiEQ euR)S o4V ofed ipo GinqspiEan | felpio sBbig luva EpalEly wbpng $I5uN0STY NOIVEINTS
Ay Syl ejseys eues o yog sSewnig

3ofipng 6102 Ad
{ssoup) bay Buipung i
Aausby Jamod erusopeD weyponN




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL WAGE STRUCTURE

Effective December 23, 2018
MINIMUM CONTROL POINT CTRL PT PLUS 15%
GRADE JOB CLASSIFICATION/JOB FAMILY ANNUAL HOURLY ANNUAL HOURLY ANNUAL HOURLY

15 ACCOUNTANT/ANALYST | 68,611 32.99 85,764 41.23 98,628 47.42
17 ACCOUNTANT/ANALYST Il 79,288 38.12 99,111 47.65 113,977 54.80
19 ACCOUNTANT/ANALYST I} 91,628 44.05 114,535 55.06 131,715 63.32

9 ACCOUNTING CLERK | 44,457 21.37 55,571 26.72 63,907 30.72
11 ACCOUNTING CLERK (I 51,376 24.70 64,220 30.87 73,853 35.51
13 ACCOUNTING CLERK Il 59,371 28.54 74,214 35.68 85,346 41.03

9 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT/OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR | 44,457 21.37 55,571 26.72 63,907 30.72
11 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT/OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR 11 51,376 24,70 64,220 30.87 73,853 35.51
13 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT/OFFICE ADMINISTRATOR ill 59,371 28.54 74,214 35.68 85,346 41.03
30 AGM I/SENIOR DIRECTOR (E.g. Business Development) 203,011 97.60 253,764 122.00 291,828 140.30
31 AGM Il (E.g. Power Mgmt, Generation, Leg & Reg, CFO/Admin) 218,237 104.92 272,796 131.15 313,716 150.82
32 AGM I 234,605 112.79 293,256 140.99 337,244 162.14
23 ASSISTANT CONTROLLER 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
25 ASSISTANT MANAGER: INFORMATION SERVICES 141,409 67.99 176,761 84.98 203,276 97.73
6E ASSISTANT, STUDENT | 27,572 13.26 34,466 16.57 39,635 19.06
6F ASSISTANT, STUDENT II 34,245 16.46 42,806 20.58 49,227 23.67
6G ASSISTANT, STUDENT Hil 42,565 20.46 53,206 25.58 61,187 29.42
6H ASSISTANT, STUDENT IV 49,171 23.64 61,464 29.55 70,684 33.98
14 COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY ANALYST 63,824 30.68 79,780 38.36 91,747 44.11
17 COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY ANALYST | 79,288 38.12 99,111 47.65 113,977 54.80
19 COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY ANALYST Il 91,628 44,05 114,535 55.06 131,715 63.32
21 COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY ANALYST lil 105,887 50.91 132,359 63.63 152,213 73.18
23 COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY ANALYST IV 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
20 ENERGY RESOURCE ANALYST IlI 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
16 ENERGY RESOURCE ANALYST | 73,757 35.46 92,196 44.32 106,025 50.97
18 ENERGY RESOURCE ANALYST Il 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 58.91
23 ENERGY RESOURCE ANALYST IV 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
16 ENGINEER | 73,757 35.46 92,196 44.32 106,025 50.97
18 ENGINEER I 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 58.91
20 ENGINEER {il 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
23 ENGINEER IV 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
24 ENGINEER V: SUPERVISING /PLANT 131,543 63.24 164,429 79.05 189,094 90.91
20 ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH & SAFETY SPECIALIST 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
16 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 73,757 35.46 92,196 44.32 106,025 50.97
31 GENERAL COUNSEL 218,237 104.92 272,796 131.15 313,716 150.82
36 GENERAL MANAGER 313,307 150.63 391,634 188.29 450,379 216.53
16 GEOLOGIST | 73,757 35.46 92,196 44,32 106,025 50.97
18 GEOLOGIST i 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 58.91
20 GEOLOGIST Il 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
23 GEOLOGIST IV 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
24 GEOLOGIST V 131,543 63.24 164,429 79.05 189,094 90.91
16 GOVERNMENT RELATIONS REPRESENTATIVE I 73,757 35.46 92,196 44,32 106,025 50.97
18 GOVERNMENT RELATIONS REPRESENTATIVE il 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 5891
20 GOVERNMENT RELATIONS REPRESENTATIVE ill 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
22 GOVERNMENT RELATIONS REPRESENTATIVE IV 113,829 54.73 142,286 68.41 163,629 78.67
16 HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST | 73,757 35.46 92,196 44.32 106,025 50.97
18 HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST il 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 58.91
20 HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST IIl 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
13 HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT 59,371 28.54 74,214 35.68 85,346 41.03
27 HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 163,416 78.57 204,270 98.21 234,910 112.94
25 HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER 141,409 67.99 176,761 84.98 203,276 97.73
13 LEGISLATIVE PROGRAM ASSISTANT 59,371 28.54 74,214 35.68 85,346 41.03
27 MANAGER, INFORMATION SERVICES 163,416 78.57 204,270 98.21 234,910 112.94
27 MANAGER, INFORMATION SERVICES & POWER SETTLEMENTS 163,416 78.57 204,270 98.21 234,910 112.94
29 MANAGER, PLANT 188,848 90.79 236,059 113.49 271,468 130.51

-132-




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADMINISTRATIVE GENERAL WAGE STRUCTURE

Effective December 23, 2018

MINIMUM CONTROL POINT CTRL PT PLUS 15%
GRADE JOB CLASSIFICATION/JOB FAMILY ANNUAL HOURLY ANNUAL HOURLY ANNUAL HOURLY
25 MANAGER, REGULATORY PROGRAM 141,409 67.99 176,761 84.98 203,276 97.73
26 MANAGER, RELIABILITY COMPLIANCE 152,015 73.08 190,019 91.36 218,521 105.06
17 MATERIALS/WAREHOUSE COORDINATOR | 79,288 38.12 99,111 47.65 113,977 54.80
19 MATERIALS/WAREHOUSE COORDINATOR II 91,628 44.05 114,535 55.06 131,715 63.32
7 OFFICE ASSISTANT | 38,470 18.50 48,088 23.12 55,301 26.59
9 OFFICE ASSISTANT Il 44,457 21.37 55,571 26.72 63,907 30.72
16 POWER SETTLEMENTS ANALYST | 73,757 35.46 92,196 44.32 106,025 50.97
18 POWER SETTLEMENTS ANALYST I 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 58.91
20 POWER SETTLEMENTS ANALYST I} 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
25 POWER SETTLEMENTS MANAGER 141,409 67.99 176,761 84.98 203,276 97.73
23 SCHEDULER/PLANNER, POWER 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
23 SENIOR COMPUTER TECH. ANALYST, POWER (E.g. BILLING) 122,366 58.83 152,957 73.54 175,901 84.57
18 SHAREPOINT ADMINISTRATOR 85,235 40.98 106,544 51.22 122,525 58.91
4 STUDENT HELPER (OFFICE/PLANT) 30,971 14.89 38,709 18.61 44,512 21.40
27 SUPERINTENDENT, GENERATION RESOURCES 163,416 78.57 204,270 98.21 234,910 112.94
22 SUPERVISOR I, POWER SETTLEMENTS 113,829 54.73 142,286 68.41 163,629 78.67
20 SUPERVISOR I, (CHEMICAL, GENERAL SERVICES) 98,500 47.36 123,125 59.19 141,593 68.07
24 SUPERVISOR II, (PLANT, ENERGY RISK, ENGINEERING) 131,543 63.24 164,429 79.05 189,094 90.91
27 SUPERVISOR [II, (POWER MGT., COORD. OP, REG/ENV COMP) 163,416 78.57 204,270 98.21 234,910 112.94
27 TREASURER-CONTROLLER 163,416 78.57 204,270 98.21 234,910 112.94
HEA HYDRO TECH 93,350 44.88 120,806 58.08
HEA HYDRO TECH APPRENTICE 63,253 30.41 86,466 41.57
HEA HYDRO TECH OPERATOR 126,859 60.99 126,859 60.99
IBEW CT SPECIALIST - LEAD 132,350 63.63 132,350 63.63
IBEW CT SPECIALIST I - V 90,667 43.59 126,006 60.58
IBEW MECHANIC OPERATOR - LEAD 124,426 59.82 124,426 59.82
IBEW MECHANIC OPERATOR - LEAD (RELIEF) 124,426 59.82 124,426 59.82
IBEW MECHANIC OPERATOR I -V 90,667 43.59 118,518 56.98
IBEW OPERATOR TECHNICIAN - LEAD 127,629 61.36 127,629 61.36
IBEW OPERATOR TECHNICIAN - LEAD (RELIEF) 127,629 61.36 127,629 61.36
IBEW OPERATOR TECHNICIAN | - V 90,667 43.59 121,638 58.48
IBEW STOREKEEPER 61,464 29.55 73,736 35.45
IBEW TECHNICIAN CHEMICAL/PERFORMANCE 112,216 53.95 112,216 53.95
IBEW TECHNICIAN OPERATOR - LEAD 131,622 63.28 131,622 63.28
IBEW TECHNICIAN OPERATOR | - V 90,667 43,59 125,466 60.32
SCHEDULE COORDINATOR | 72,010 34.62 96,158 46.23
SCHEDULE COORDINATOR It 101,171 48.64 117,146 56.32
SCHEDULE COORDINATOR Il 122,678 58.98 141,752 68.15
SYSTEM DISPATCHER 111,779 53.74 156,437 75.21
SYSTEM DISPATCHER, LEAD 122,678 58.98 164,278 78.98
Page 2 of 2
Note* Non-union employees whose whose salaries exceed the control may be granted a lump sum merit increase which is not added to base pay.
Note ? IBEW = International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
HEA = Hydroelectric Employees Association
These are union classifications subject to the Memorandum of Understanding and
overtime, shift differential, relief, upgrade and travel pay may be added to base pay
when appropriate.
Note® Schedule Coordinators and Dispatchers receive overtime, relief pay in addition to step increases.
Note * Slight fluctuations from budgeted rate assumptions may exist for non-represented classifications due to methodology corrections

recommended by wage and time study consultant.

-133-




"AIesse08U palepisuod [e)ides BUDLOM ON "SIOUBMOJE HHO) JON JOA0D SJUBWHILILICD oo 1)
“Kiesseoau passpisuoo |epded Buppom oN “0S1 Ybnouu sefes ABiaus Aq jesyo ale 0OSIVD - siso) uohebiaibby peoq (H)
"0°G @Inpayas YO 0s[e 89S "sjuswalinbai [ejdes Bunpom JoAd 0} salasay W0 2jeledas e sujejuiew joafoid sy (©)
*AIesss23u paJopisuod jejides Bunjiom [euoippe oN “senss| weibosd Buijood pue AlojeinBey ‘aanesiBo yim pajeioosse sisoo [eba) Auewnd ale sjsod uonoy [eipn (4)
“Kaessa03u passpisuoo [epdes Bunjiom [euonippe oN ‘sysodap juedioned pasinbas juswaaiBy weiboid IS Aq painoes ase sjsoo 0G| (3)
"sejewjsa aseyaund 19Bpng Jua.no uo paseq [ejideo Bunjiom shep | Ajejewixoidde sjuesaidal pasodoud aA0qe 3Y| pus yjuow Jaye
sAep og 0) | pannbai Ajjesouab uswAed yym siseq pajewse Ue UO pajiq aJe sjuswainbai aseyoind Jamod Jaxpepy (Q)
*Aiessa0au paJapisuod [ejdes Buniom oN
"PUS Yluow Joye sAep gg 0} G| palinbel Afleseush JuswiAed Uym siseq pejewlse Ue uo papiq aJe sjuswainbal pung uojelojsay pue WO ‘ABisua usdsapy (D)
"Kiessa0au pasepisuoa [ejdeo Bupiiom oN "YdON yBnoay pajiiq eoueape Jo syuedioied o) Aoaup pajliq Jayjie sjunowe Joeujuod oyoads sjuasaiday (g)
‘wesBoud yoea Joj paurejurew st [eydes Buijiom
SABP Og JO WNWIUIW & Jey) ansua 0} auop sem sIy] "Jabpng 6| A4 aY} JO G9g/0E Juasaidal sjunowe pasodold ()
‘Aed o} sAep og Uy Ypuow snoaid ay) 1oy B Yjuow 8L J0 LjG| B SI9A0D PUE quiny} JO 3jnI piepuels AJjin e si (Jeak e Jo g/1) wewalinbad

Aep g v "0S| 8y} Butpnjoxe ‘Jafipng pesodoud ey} Jo Juswainbai Aep og e Ajsjewixordde sjuasaidal 09g'£85'64 JO [BNdeD BUOM 6| A4 YL
SP8'vOL'EL $ 859'GS $ 20z'825'6 $ 20Z'8Zv's  $ 000'00L'L $ 098'€856 & vBL'BYE'COL $
879°05 929'062'L 929'062'L - 22 1ve") v/8'9LL L)

- - - - 0L1'619'L s1s0 ybnaiy ssed juediopied
6€9'ce (ZsLs) €81'92 £81°92 T4 244 0s8'zLC Hoddng suwis)sAg pajelBaju|
290'911 zL'eL L¥9'e9 Ly9'e9 Sle'lL T6E°LY6 SiusWapIes
¥00'2e oge'y 000°LL 000°LL 9ee’ie GB8G'6GZ swabeuep ysiy ABisuz

(062'8LL) - - - - (FetL'ovt'L) whid 0} 309 J02.lq uswebeue)y Jamod
olg'el {(o6v'L) 169'01 169'0) 102'6 vLO'ZLL weJBo1d aseyoind e
6856 (198) pie'L el £6£'9 18L'LL weiboid aseyoind se
G9¢ (s12'L) 65b'L 66b'L rbe ¥96'2 103l01d Jamod usaie
G88'6EL (riv'L) 119'76 129'%6 152'¢6 £29'vEL'L uojelsiulwpy J0BHU0D
001'¥S £0Z‘L y98've #98'¥E 190'9€ £18'8ch sileyy Bay g Buunjonuissy feusnpu)
whL'Zre €251 €96'212 £96'212 960'822 19V'eLL'T Buinpayosaid 3 Bunsessioy
69625 0L6°6L olo‘zey 010'z8y 6.6°105 9lt'L0L'9 Yojedsiq peoT pue jouoQ walsAs

- - - - 000°529 {d) uonov [etarpnp
80'vS 06l Zr8'se zr8'se zeo'oe 68E'acy S8DIALOG Joquisy
89601 €251 681'89 68189 zLL'69 091'8¥8 uonejussaldey uleIssp
60€'60} 920"y 1¥8'89 L¥8'89 €82 919'988 uofjejuasaiday Aiojejnbey
6lv'ere 898'¢ [4% ar4:]! [4% ar<:]! 082'991L 890'€20'Z uonjejuesaiday anjeisifa]

S3IJIAYIS INTNIOYNYN
(981'61) 6vL'vL2 6V.'vLT - 295'652 #90'1€6°G11

- €2L'1282L1 (3} osi
8el'y (vee) £55'c £55'¢ 65L'e [T 1 T "ON jue|d [euLayjoes
89.'0 (z2) veSy yeS'y (4544 006'¥S | "ON jueld [euayjoe)
1£8°12€ (o22°81) 199992 199992 168'L¥C zL0'910°e 9UjoR}R0pAH

NOISSINSNVEL
161'%C 178'296'L 128'298'9 000'004°L £20'286'L 958'00€'0LS
6vp'8EL - ) z16'C2L') (1) suonefilao SHO 18N
692'858'€.2 (H) OSIv9 - 1509 uoyebaiBby peo
(508°150°1) (ves‘ezL) 926'S¥T 9Z6'Ghe zes'sll $ €€0'6ES'SL (@) ssseyand semod 1exsey

- - 819'6VELE (0) eamnosoy wieysep

- - 8.2'260'¢ (8) seo - sounosay Jequispy

- - y18'aby'v9 () ABiau3 - somnosay Jequisiy

- - PEL'TIL'S8 (9) Jowag Abisuz Ipo
988'2L0'L 088's LhL'80L (682°162) 000°000'} 185'81L 298'erL's (9ILS) Z "ON @uiqin uopsnquiod
961 '69% $88'96 z16'612 z16's1e 16L'21E 10L'508°¢ 1 "ON 3uiqun L uolsnquio)
TeLzee'y 206'681 £16'1£9'2 £16'1€9'C §18'128'2 780'zeE've [euLBY 099
zer'Ie0's $ (920'9v1) $ v9E'09Ly ¢ $9C'090'vy  $ 000°00L $ 88Z'vl0Y $ €0S'Ov8'SYy 9Uj03120.pAH

fended Buppiopn (uwbay ssedx3) leloL _ suojeledo _ spuog wory | (y)pesodosg | 1500 jebpng
sheQ Gp wby p.ppy aouejeq 810z JAd fenuuy
Auo Jeided bunpiopm sheq og
wnpueJowapy B

19bpng 6102 Ad

sjuswaiinbay fejiden Bunjiop Jo sishleuy

Aouaby Jamod ejuiogien uisyuoN



8G9'GS $ 098'¢85'6 $ 202'825'6 $

¥88'Gl £66'62¢ 690'vLE yenin
9zL'cl vSh'Z61 8z¢e'6.l aiL
8l¥ G/S'cl 160'cl lauuoQ aayoni|
(gS6) v6L'cl 6vL'vl ayeT ejseys
1G2'€l Ger'sre's v19'v12'S dAS
(oL5'p) 12G°180°L /€£0'980°L d|linesoy
zzl'L ZeL'se 0L0'¥E Buippay
G8Y'y G9e'0S 088'Gy puepjeQ jo yod
Z99'¥ 0L0‘9rL 8ve' Lyl elalg sewn|d
(082'22) GzL'68L°L sov'LLZ'L o}|v ojed
668'S G/1'90€ 9/8'00¢€ oodwon
(250°'%1L) ¥68'c0Z'L 1G6°212°) Ipo
861yl 62.'922 legzie BingspjesH
z6g'e 9c1L'9g 4 A4S Aslpuo
6v6 8€£9'GZ 688'¥2 sbbig
(045°22) 91/'¥91 ove'ere Lyve
¥80°/€ $ 296'612°L $ 898'Z8L‘L $ epawe|y
(punjay) ebieyn juswialinbay pueH up juedionied

juawalinbay Buipung ysodaq
leuoippy yebpng 610Z Ad lejol

juswaiinbay Buipung 610z A4 pue Jisodaq jepdes Buiyiop
Aouaby 1amod ejuiojije WIBYuoN




o e B702 92 il

049/S9AS ulwpy NHY
S)ueH AUuo

mﬂlwﬂ ° N h m°> — mom_u AINIOY HIMOJ VINYOSITYD NHIHLHON/
}a8png |enuuy <n_U7_ _

S.VdON Jo |eroiddy




(uondope) gunes UOISSILLIWOY
(MalIAa) Jeuly) Bunsan an
(leroidde) 9dd 031
U9 UOISSILLWOY
99HIWWOY sanljioe]
M3IN8Y Odd J31
CEVEN Nefp
93l Y@
99)llWWo) sanyjioed

MOIABY Ddd I3
Apuey yum malral |eusalu|

UOISSIWIWOY 7 SN W04} uonoalip 198png

sunssy

[4

w9 |Udy
wCT ludy
n6 1Udy
puCC YoIBN
wET Ydey
wCl UYdiey
w6 YdIey
1sTC Aenigad
wET Aenigad
ncT Aenigad
Aenuer

1900190

198png 6T-8TOTAL @Y} Jo SuiIaA

AONIOV H3IMOd VINYOAITYD NYIHLYON <n_U-Mo\



— 0 Iyt s in Eilad il i ==

€

s)so9 ybnoayy ssedm joddng swaysAg pajesbayum

juswabeuey ysIyE

sjusws|pes m uonoy jeipnrm Aioyeinbay » aane|sibao
juswabeuely Jamod m uolissiwsuel ] m $92IN0SaYy uoneIauds)
(reury) (ya1epy woyy)

6102 pasodoid

6102 pasodoud

S

0PS'€98$  860°298%  952°29g$

8102 paroiddy

0$
- 000°05$

i

000001$

1

- 000°051$

- 000°002$

000°'052$
000°'00€$

000°‘0S€$

000°00¥$

ANANANAN

spuesnoyj uj

‘uoljessuab

pasealoul 0} anp s)sod uoissiwsuel) Jaybiy wouy Ajuewnd .w_row Ad Wolj %Ge 0
Jo uoljjiw ¢ $ Jo Bsealoul Ue SJO9|)al ‘Senuanal Jo Jau ‘1ebpng 6102 A4 pasodoid

AONIOV Y¥3IMOd VINYO4I1TYD NYIHLYON <n_UVo\

(32N) 198png 6T-8TOCAd pasodoid




51502 P3INP3J Ul YOTTS~ PRUIWOD 71D “T1D ‘099

9NUaAaJ 9WOJU] 1SaJalul Ul v_oomm JO 9SEaJdU|

DY Ul 0P TS JO uoidNpay

OAJ9SaY aJUeU3JUIBIA 93} JO UOI]I9||02J Ul v_OOmm JO UOI1oNpaYy
(suswialS /M ¥S11) IN'BO 3|qelIBA Ul Y00HS 4O UOIIINPaY
$1S02 PadnpaJ ul Uol|jiw £ TS« :491ua) ABiau] 1poT]

9NUIADJ 3WODUI 1S3J31UI Ul YOOES JO aseaudu| -
(S/p Ajulew) 150D |eNUUY Ul WZ TS JO UOIIINPAY -
$1S0J PadNPaJ Ul UOI||IW G TS~ :0JpAH

Yoie\ ul pajuasaid 1a8pnq wiol) sagueyd Jofe\

AONIOV ¥3MOd VINYOLITYD NYIHLYON <n_U—V_o\



S sieah 0 Bunesqa(a] | 8T0Z-896T

AONIOV H3IMOd VINYOAITYD NYIHLYON d‘n_U_V_o\




|f »P 0 \' ‘
..I‘t, ') /J‘.. i
N =

- . /e
ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date: April 17, 2018
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: April 26, 2018

SUBJECT: Siemens Energy, Inc. — Change Order No. 1 to Long Term Maintenance Program
Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: Lodi Energy Center

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM:  Ken Speer 7{ - METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [J City of Shasta Lake [J
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [
San F'a“"i;::i':aTVr Ar®d O CityofPaloAto O  Plumas-SieraREC [
« ? City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
) City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [J Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 140:18



Siemens Energy, Inc. — Change Order No. 1 to Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement
April 26, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-29 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute
Change Order No. 1 to the Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy,
Inc., with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel for use at the Lodi Energy Center facility.

BACKGROUND:

On September 13, 2010, NCPA entered into an agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. for not-to
exceed $50,000,000.00, for long term maintenance support for the Lodi Energy Center.

On November 1, 2014, NCPA executed an Amended and Restated Long Term Maintenance
Program Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. for the Lodi Energy Center. The change was
related to the installation of upgraded parts, and also extended the contract through three major
overhauls.

Change Order No. 1 will add additional scope related to rotor exchanges, steam turbine heating
blanket, generator inspections, flex fire, and Energy Management consulting. This change
order will also extend the sunset date from 2035 to 2041. In addition to the expanded scope,
this change will increase the service intervals, resulting in a decrease in the unit price rate.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This Change Order No. 1 will add $12,720,190 of work to the scope, and will save the members
approximately $990,362.00 per year due to a negotiated reduction in the unit price rate.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This vendor was originally selected as a result of Formal Bidding done in accordance with
NCPA’s procurement policies and procedures. In December 2008, NCPA sought bids for the
Lodi Energy Center Power Island Project. NCPA received bids from General Electric and
Siemens Energy, Inc. Both bids were deemed non-responsive and negotiations commenced
with both companies. Siemens’ evaluated bid price was lower than that of General Electric, and
the Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement was included in the evaluation of the two
bidders.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on April 9, 2018, and was approved.

SR: 140:18



Siemens Energy, Inc. — Change Order No. 1 to Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement
April 26, 2018
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

Dbéa,_»gf

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (3):
e Resolution
e Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc.
e Change Order No. 1 to Long Term Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens
Energy, Inc.

SR: 140:18



RESOLUTION 18-29

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO
LONG TERM MAINTENANCE PROGRAM AGREEMENT WITH SIEMENS ENERGY, INC.

(reference Staff Report #140:18)

WHEREAS, On September 13, 2010, Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) entered into an
Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. (Siemens) for not-to-exceed $50,000,000, for the long term maintenance
program for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC); and

WHEREAS, On November 1, 2014, NCPA executed an Amended and Restated Long Term
Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. for the installation of upgraded parts and to
extended the contract through 3 major overhauls; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Change Order No. 1 to add additional scope related to rotor
exchanges, steam turbine heating blanket, generator inspections, flex fire, and Energy Management
consulting, as well as extend the sunset date from 2035 to 2041, resulting in an increase in the service
intervals and a decrease in the unit price rate; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to execute Change Order No. 1 to the Long Term
Maintenance Program Agreement with Siemens Energy, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, for use at the Lodi Energy Center facility.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



AMENDED AND RESTATED PROGRAM PARTS, NON-PROGRAM PARTS,
MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE, PROGRAM
MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND SCHEDULED OUTAGE SERVICES CONTRACT

Between
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
- and
SIEMENS ENERGY, INC.

Dated as of November 1, 2014

LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP : Siemens Energy, Inc.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS; GENERAL REFERENCES

1.1 DEFINED TERMS .....veeviceienrerieneeisensessssneesseesessasensarassasstesssesssssssssesssnessas ereeereeesrrsressinnrineasntetens 1
1.2 GENERAL REFERENCES....cvvvmveniimreeesarsassessssnnnns ©eresenerereereesairaerarneennrranaanan S U 6
ARTICLE 2. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.......ccousonsunssossnmmansaraniasensessssnases O SO, )
2.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.......cccmeuruiuinastssesiicesnsessasssnsnssbassssisss st ess s besasm s sbe s s b asssbesassssassans —— 6
2.2 CONFLICTING PROVISIONS........ccoveeererenearneeseesrnssensesesssssesssnsnsesissnsssassssssesssassasasessestensesenssasesensensrenes 7
ARTICLE 3.. SCOPE OF WORK .......ccconusiasnsnsnnzonsaassusansnss aonmesnansases [ S easnassesnrsssssssensaassann 7
3.1 "SELLER'S SCOPE ....cocevvvermrenreaes eereeeeaerereeeeeetaeseesseeseseettentesstussasetsenteensteneasteenstertnrantaseesnenneennaren 7
32 BUYER'S SCOFE......... eebeerteermeeessesaeeeerreeataeeeesataneaseaeseanranniana Feteestrebesbeesneesteanteseehestenee e asananes 7
ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT TERMS .....ccorcussnassansnasssssassssssasanressanaen ansssasssassasasss A 4
4.1 CONTRACT PRICE .....coevreuieineerencnesinessie e e ssisnssssasssssssnsanssssnsenns reresebereenreraessereesnssaaneneaseraensanrien T
4.2 TAXES et eeteeerereeeaeeesessesessassesssesssassasssssesssnanes eeteesteresteesstereeenseseerastiaeaareestenstnestranse s nreeattsantans 7
43 INVOICES . ..oervveeereeeeeacteeseeaesessseasessesnsasasesesess sastessssnssaesasssstoas esssasbnsanssssssnessssienatsssessneesnanersasssnsssen 8
4.4 PAYMENT . .....ecotteteeesnsenmnseresnesssssessussasarsesteesesssseiossasassssssssssinnssnsnssssnsssnnasnsnsesssssansansssersssesnarssnsasssenen 8
45 NOTICE OF PAYMENT DISPUTES. ... ..cetiirevteverreerieeisisissseseemesssssnsssesnssnssnsessnnssssssstsssassasernsessssssssrassone 8
46 LATE PAYMENTS ...eveeeereieeiessseessesnsssssasssesseseessomssesssasserssssnsosssssssnnnnntessessssusnshessessivasessses sesnsoenssneene 8
ARTICLE 5. TERM AND OQUTAGES.....ccc0oum0msmnsszene sisnanrnnesssnanmmasnesazsanssaansanes pnamesennsansaessenst sunnensnassnnrennrasantnrs 8
51 TERM...cooecoivreireeeesiaeeeissereeesssssnsesassnnnsnnns evereessvesnneeesnneen reeeeteessseeesecssstessnecessesaseeseerteereeerateerenn 8
5.2 LINSCHEDULED UTAGE ... ueueeeeeeeeseeemsensresssseersasaeesssoettessssseesasnnnsasessssssssnmnnstetossssessastesessssseronserans 8
53 UNSCHEDULED OUTAGE WORK ......ccveieieeetraiesecsesinsassessassaessnesessesasassssssanassasssnsesasss sssesesinnssssnissscses 9
5.4 SELLER'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE TO BUYER'S PROPERTY .......ovvreeiemiecirecrineenssieneenesses e 9
ARTICLE 6. CHANGES........cccovcencesesnsnessnmmsasssna suesssnsnessuassasssasanassasnassssunesassnanasassnssrannssnznsan presessarensaassnens .10
6.1 REQUEST FOR CHANGES.........ccoctseeuiniuniuiissisciisssstssanensssssssnessansesesensatisasseseresss sesssaesssasses e 10
6.2 AADJUSTIMENT ....eeeeeeeneeeseeessesesasanaseessssssassessesssssssbessrsesasstesssssssssasssnsnssssssrsssnes sansesmeersssssssssnrsons 10 -
6.3 NO ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION CHANGES ......oeiieiirerreeceieecessvssssgessaseissssaseseesomsssnsssessserssssnesssansens 10
6.4 MINIMUM OPERATING REQUIREMENTS ....ouvvvrieiniesierersrmmeiseersstessassnsensssnsasssnsmngesssnnes e reeeeeeresrrare s 10
6.5 CHANGES IN PROGRAM PARTS .....cocvvevmrrrrremeeercreenss S S ereveeeeieenaraa 11
6.6 ALLOWANCE FOR CERTAIN EXTRA WWORK.......ceriiirereereriresiresrerassersiesassstesssssessesssassiesssessssssessaess 11
6.7 EXHAUST CYLINDER AND MANIFOLD REPLACEMENT............... treseemeesesesssnnsnsnnnursnnrernnien et eeesseeranne 1
ARTICLE 7. DELIVERY, TITLE, RISK OF LOSS AND TRANSPORTATION ......cccccoecussemsnasscssnarasses —— L
7.1 PROGRAM PARTS, NON-PROGRAM PARTS; MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE OR EXHAUST COMPONENTS
.................................................................................................................................................... 11
7.2 TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS ....eveeereiiriemtieiesisiemnneesnresssnnaennes tereseseeseesateaaraeareresteeseaeeieraanreaarternn 12
7.3 TRANSPORTATION ...ccveeeeeeeerrereieeeasssssscsassessssesssiasssanssssssenssessssesasnisessensannesanses revserraeresaesssaeinens 12
ARTICLE 8. WARRANTIES ..........cceccnccessussuunsanasssssssnassasasanssssnssesassssssassnszasssssasanss P S 12
8.1 PROGRAM PARTS TERM WARRANTY AND Exm.usw& REMEDY.....cmtimerteereeereseeesseciesnmeniareesseseessesens 12
8.2 MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE AND NON-PROGRAM PART WARRANTY AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY ......13
8.3 SERVICES WARRANTY AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY .....vvevseeevereseceeseeectooeeereseesivesesesessessssssssesssssens 14
8.4 WARRANTY CONDITIONS .......ccorrsiemmimsnessinereressemmersenes 14
85  EXCLUSIVITY OF WARRANTIES AND REMEDIES rveraastvemmaseessenseasanssanandlberareennesasarasssrnsnronnne ST 15
8.6 . WARRANTY LIABILITIES ........... SO OO 15
8.7 EXHAUST COMPONENTS WARRANTY AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY ......ccovvevivvnimuenniiinnnnnne rerereresneenen 15
ARTICLE 9. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY .....ccccoeuniarsenrmensnsassssnusesossansasasass sensssssamsssnsassus senapsasannoansassnsis 16
9.1 PATENT, TRADEMARK OR COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT...........cccorveueemnrnmnsennes reeinneereeetoiesresnarantenis 16
9.2 LIMITATION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY OBLIGATIONS .......ccceiueiremramieesceratenssenresasesasnenssnsnesssssenenn 16
9.3 PROTECTION OF SELLER'S INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS........cccocireiariieraenienrenrerensanenssesaesnnsd 16
9.4 EXCLUSIVITY OF DUTIES AND REMEDIES .....0ivivieivenivrericseeeisssesessassnsnsesisstesinnsersesssssessisssessnsssssesssnns 17
ARTICLE 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS...........cc.. PR sssusnsssssssssssasasssznssasssass snasnsnssnasaronasssnannsnass '] T
10.1  GENERALLY .....cccvveveemmnnnnes esetesereeserasesssseressesesasieseesseeesstesieeisteresiheteestesteenansarainneenteantesesensaresnons 17
. 10.2  CHANGES INLAW........ erenreere et e s FE TR OUUUT ARRUTOPTTPORE: I 4
Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 . Table of Contents Page i

Siemens Energy, Inc.



ARTICLE 11. INSURANCE .........c.oossemssnsneonssnssessnsescscncusmunsasnssasassnse sasessasns cssenssassesnssasssacsnatsasasnzens B ) 4

111 SELLER'S INSURANCE .......c.ccceeueeeierercenietssecssnasansienseresaesassnenstasssanmsressasneas frrerereeeieriinreeeresaesaas 17.
11.2  BUYER'S INSURANCE .............cooueruemirernsnsinnnssisnannnns erenr e bbb e b 18
ARTICLE 12.  TERMINATION ......ccoun. sessenssaramonsssassaaannssenmsnasssnanssanannase eovensnsansassrasmasmnermnsnssasannasasnsrrnesns 19
12.1  TERMINATION FOR SELLER'S INABILITY TO PERFORM.........cocovierimicrncancnunenasennenas rereeeee—rerrre————. 19
12.2  TERMINATION FOR SELLER'S FAILURE TO.PERFORM .......cccocimieeerieseaaereessssnesssrsssssssessssmssneesnsssessesses 19
12.3 BUYER'S AND SELLER’S RIGHTS, DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS UPON BUYER’S TERMINATION ............. 19
12.4  TERMINATION PRIORTO PERIOD 1 ......ooeveeeiirereerannestoreenescnenes e Rt e s it 20
12.5  TERMINATION BY SELLER.....c.ccovvreereeerisrasesseeseessssirirssessnnssassssssasssssseesinessssnssnssessassnsassssssersboessmssnans 21
12.6 BUYER S AND SELLER'S RIGHTS, DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS UPON SELLER S TERMINATION ........... 21
131  SELLER'S INDEMNITY .cocevereeercnennrersnnien rereerrens e eeteittereaneesntrieaeeabaroaannntar b et tse bt ne e st antatseseenes et 23
13.2  BUYER'S INDEMNITY ....ooteueeteeeeeeseessssesssesstesseoserasessesessnsaseessesssensssansnsessnssssesessssnenssensesesseesesnssanssen 23
ARTICLE 14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY......oo0oncneenznensnnas vunmonsusmssssnssasansas rerenesrsassnvnennsaseranse axsszesssiens 28
141  RESTRICTIONS ON RECOVERABLE DAMAGES........cccovvrrerenrmeceanns erteensneenrsiisinsenarsrnberarsesnrrrasanets .23

14.2 EXCLUSIVE REMEDY AND LIMITATION ON LIABILITY
14.3 ' EXTENT OF WAIVERS

14.4  EXTENT OF CONFLICTS

ARTICLE 15.
15.1  EXCUSEBY FORCE MAJEURE ............cveemnnnenns e ettterirreeeetiaeesiaasasanneearaeeensiaeehensrestns eerereeaeeeaeerreaaan 25
15.2  EFFECT OF FORCE MAJEURE.......c.cccciciueierieieeraeessesassnesseassasessosesseesaasesseeseensassnsssnsasessasasssesssssasns 25

ARTICLE 16. MISCELLANEQUS .......ccoeonsensensimscesessnsnsosmmssnsesnsnsnsnszasmssasasssnannsnsnssasanssnan fessasissassanensasesans 25
16.1  CONFIDENTIAL OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION........cccimeermmreuaressaeesraesanieensneseesasnnsansessssmssnsessanns 25
16.2  SUBCONTRACTORS ....eeeevureieerirersersssresssesssiesosssesssssssssersssssssosasssssesssssssseessssesmssssssnnnesestessssseesesssses 27
16.3 THIRD PARTIES ..ccuvieisiisesisecoreeneeiseseeseseseesasssensenssseeesnsessastassrnssasastesssssesnssssennsntnsesnntesssesssens 27
16.4  DISPUTE RESOLUTION........cceeuenne... feauressrassassannseisresantsaeabeseantsevant e nsTeas et atatonensartesrassansosthansnnnenns 27
16.5  ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION ......ccooeeeeereessieesassesrasnsssessssssssesssssasssssonsesssnersatasassessesseerasnsssassesssnn 28
16.6  SEVERABILITY............ e eereeetresteereshesaeieiseteatrebeesereteasreraseeaneeaaeaase s ah e st s e b anan s e nnn e neas eererrersananaens 28
16.7 AMENDMENTS ............ ereeereraen . eetereeeetteeeanteasesesatessiene aaae seteretensanseatesaeaneseenaneasaeanns rverveenen 29

16.8  JOINT EFFORT.....couomiuieeesescasteseasissessssssesasmste s s esssss s ess s s st s h e s as et rne s b bbbt s ba et senemneses e s e acas 29
16.9  CAPTIONS......eveerreeriirerieceereereresessseseeanenens et eetseereeeasabbsesreneeetsiasstEtesisrnteraane st eaaeeererteaeeaaeneeaaan 29
16.10 INON-VVAIVER ..ocoeeeeeeeereeeereseseeseatsanssssateseseessssasssans sesssesnsssessnresssostssmemmncetosstessensensensnne rene 29
16.11 APPLICABLE LAW ... ciesrecrite et e e eresesses st e nsassmes srce e smesime e srasnennaens S eaerenn st e annnsseens 29
16.12 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS .....ccccciviiisiriesrreessesinssnsesissesssnsssssssrsesesssesssnseassssesssesssssesesssssmessseses 29
16.13 SCOUNTERPARTS ....covevivivemsisincseassssesssesesesessssssssstasasssssssstsssssssensssmsssssnsossssssnssssssosesssssensesesssns 29
16.14 INOTICES - ttieceeeeteeeeeeeeesastsassersastresssesassasestssansesaessnssresasassstantesntesessnsssnsesers sensannnesesnneesnen 29
16.15 CoMPLETE CONTRACT......... eeeneenameeeesteeseseeeeatesaseeneeteantastestetssnntesantanaean st aereesenaneeaneneraeansaeaanns 30
16.16 OITE ACCESS .. e eeeeeeeeereesssaneeeeasaeessesessassasemesssteseasassseesssstsressesnsesensssssonsssanne rveeerereeenstensannnenas 30
16.17 PERMITS AND LICENSES......... eteeseraresentserese s raeaananars pereeiesaeesaestiestesissaeesarnesanttsteenneesarnaenten 30

- 16.18 SPECIAL PACKING....c.coeeeeeeriereisetessesseessesaeststsesesassnsssensesssessssensannssnsssssesssssseessnnsassoetnnsnsssnasessaen 30
16.19 RETURN OF PROGRAM PARTS, NON-PROGRAM PARTS OR MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE ............ 30.
16.20 TRANSFER...c.ucteruireteesrermeissessiaseisssnsastessesansesassensassnsenenstesansessssesssstaneassasseesssssnssisetessnrenseesnsesee 30
16.21 SURVIVAL ......occovuveenne Ceestereseeenteesateeereeienteaas irareranarasaes e rentee st eeaestrnesrere s e et etabea st ete s eraeae 31
16.22 ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE ....cocoveeiirisreaeserseecsssssnssvansenes prerteeeeaerrireersesesreonanteteaaeeseatesennne 31
16.23 ASBESTOS AND THERMAL INSULATION .....otovveeeiiiiiineeereererieeeessessnsssssssmnmesensesieessresasaseseensmnsnensees 31
16.24 EXPORT LAW COMPLIANCE ......cecovseeeeereeereeeesereseesseeseseseesesenssencass oot e e erae e eeaet e e et 32

EXHIBIT A SCOPE OF WORK DESCRIPTION
ADDENDUM 1A SCHEDULED OUTAGE SERVICES DESCRIPTION
ADDENDUM 1B SST-900RH STEAM TURBINE SCHEDULED OQUTAGE SERVICES DESCRIPTION
ADDENDUM 2A COMBUSTION TURBINE SCHEDULED OUTAGE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
ADDENDUM 2B STEAM TURBINE SCHEDULED ‘OUTAGE DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
ADDENDUM 3 SCOPE OF PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES

EXHIBIT B COMBUSTION TURBINE PROGRAM PARTS LIST

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Table of Contents Page ii
Siemens Energy, Inc. - )



EXHIBIT C PROJECTED SCHEDULED OUTAGE PLAN
EXHIBIT D SERVICE BULLETIN 565004

EXHIBIT E PAYMENT SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT F NOT USED

 EXHIBIT G CANCELLATION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT H CHANGE ORDER FORMAT

EXHIBIT | NATURAL GAS, FUEL OIL AND WATER SPECIFICATIONS
EXHIBIT J MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT K REMOTE MONITOR SYSTEM

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Table of Contents Page ii

‘Siemens Energy, Inc.



AMENDED AND RESTATED PROGRAM PARTS, NON-PROGRAM PARTS,
_ MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE, PROGRAM .
MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND SCHEDULED OUTAGE SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED PROGRAM PARTS, NON-PROGRAM PARTS,
MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE, PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND SCHEDULED
OUTAGE SERVICES CONTRACT is entered into as of November 1, 2014 (the “Effective
Date”), by and between NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY, a Joint Powers Agency
formed under the California’s Joint Exercise of Powers Act pursuant to Government Code §
6500, et seq., (“Buyer”), and SIEMENS ENERGY, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Seller”). -

- . WHEREAS, Buyer has developed a power project located in Lodi, California (the
“Project’); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Project, Buyer and Seller entered into that certain
Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware, Scheduled Outage Services and
Program Management Services dated as of September 13, 2010 and which the Parties wish to
amend and restate in its entirety by this Contract all as more particularly described herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premlses and mutual covenants
contained herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS; GENERAL REFERENCES

1.1 Defined Terms. The following terms shall have the following meanings when used in
this Contract, unless the context requires otherwise: , _

“Baseline 12.5k Program Parts” means those Program Parts in Exhibit B of the type listed in the
table titled “BASELINE 12.5k Program Parts Table.

“Basis Interval” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 1A.
“Basis Scope” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 1A.

“Buyer” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. (Unless otherwise stated herein, the Buyer
owns the plant (“Owner”)). '

“Calendar Year” means the period of time beginning on January 1%, 00:01 and concluding on
December 31*, 24:00.

“Change” has the meaning set forth in Article 6.

“Change Order” means a change order to the Contract as mutually agreed by the Parties and
issued in accordance with Article 6.

“Combustion Turbine” means the Project’s one (1) SGT6-5000F combustion turbine.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 ) Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc. . 7



“Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program Parts” or “CIE” means those Program Parts in
Exhibit B of the type listed in the table titled “Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program

Parts Table.

“Combustor Inspection Scheduled Outage” or “Combustor Scheduled Outage” means the type
of Scheduled Outage and its associated Services as set forth in Addendum 1A of Exhibit A.

“Commercial Operation” shall mean when the Project or any Combustion Turbine is operated
by Buyer, or any agent, contractor, lessee, assignee or affiliate of Buyer or the Owner. of the

Project for commercial p'urposes.

“Contract’” means ' this Amended and Restated Program Parts, Non-Program Parts,
Miscellaneous Hardware, Program Management Services and Scheduled Outage Services
Contract, including all Exhibits hereto, as amended from time to time.

“Contract Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.
“Covered Work” has the méaning set forth in Exhibit J.

“Day” means a calendar day.

“Delayed Payment Rate” means a rate of interest per annum equal to ten percent (but not to
exceed ten percent (10%)) or the maximum rate permitted by applicable Law, whichever is less.

“Delivery” has the meaning set forth in Article 7.

“Disputed Documents” has fhe meaning set for in Section 16.1.2.

“Dollar(s)” or “$” means the lawful currency of the United States.

“Effective Date” means the date set forth in the opening paragraph of this Contract.

“Equivalent Base Hours” or “EBH" means the calculated result of equivalent base hours
_ determined in accordance with Exhibit D Service Bulletin 55004 as amended from time to time

by Seller.

“Equivalent Starts” or “ES” means the calculated result of equivalent starts determined in
accordance with Exhibit D, Service Bulletin 55004 as amended from time to time by Seller.

“Escalation Factor” means the net percentage increase or decrease (as the case may be) in the
U.S. Consumer Price Index — Urban CUUROQO0SAQ over the period from the published value
for January 2010 (“Base Value”) through the value as of the date ‘of the invoice utilizing the
most current escalation data that is released at the time such invoice is issued. If such index
ceases to be published then such similar substitute index as is mutually agreed to by the
Parties, shall apply. All payments to Seller of Fees shall be in U.S. Dollars, escalated at the
time of invoice according to the Escalation Factor. All Fees are subject to the Escalation Factor
calculated from the Base Value. With each invoice, Seller shall provide to Buyer the Escalation
Factor applicable for such invoice. The Escalatlon Factor shall be calculated by the following

formuia:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 ' . Page 2
Siemens Energy, Inc. .



Escalation Factor = 1 + ((X — Base Value) / Base Value), where X is the lesser of:
(a) the latest month's U.S Consumer Price Index-Urban (CUUROD00SAO) at the time
such invoice is issued or (b) the Escalation Factor Cap.

“Escalatlon Factor Cap” means the net total allowable increase in the U.S. Consumer
Price Index — Urban (CUUROOOOSADO) over the period from the Base Value through the
date of the applicable invoice during the Term. The Escalation Factor Cap shall be

calculated by the following formula:

Escalation Factor Cap = the greater of:
(a) Base Value * (1.04)(n/12), where n = number of months from the base date of

January 2010 to the date of invoice, or

(b) the latest month’s value for the U.S Consumer Price Index-Urban
(CUUROOO0SAO) at the time such invoice is issued * 0.95.

“Exhaust Components” means  the following components: single piece exhaust cylinder,
exhaust spacer piece transition, exhaust manifold, and exhaust expansion joint.

“Exhaust Components Warranty” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.7.

“Fee” or “Fees” means the payment amount calculated pursuant to the rates listed in Exhlblt E,
Payment Schedule.

“First Fire” means the date on which a Combustion Turbine has experienced combustion for the
first time after initial installation.

“Fixed Annual Fee" has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E, Payment Schedule.
“Flex Interval” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 1A. '
“Fiex Scope” haé the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 1A.‘

“Force Majeure” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.1 of this Contract.
“Government Authority” has tl_'le meaning set forth in Section 16.1..2.

“Hot Gas Path Inspection Scheduled Outage” or “Hot Gas Path Scheduled Qutage” means the
type of Scheduled Outage and its associated Services as set forth in Addendum 1A of Exhibit

A.

“Laws” means the laws applicable to the performance of this Contract, and includes statutes,
rules, regulations, orders and ordinances or specified standards or objective criteria contained
in any applicable license, permit or approval, or other legislative or administrative act, of the
United States of America or any state of the United States, agency, department, authority,
political subdivision or other instrumentality thereof, or a decree, judgment or order of a court,
including but not limited to those governing wages, hours, employment discrimination and
safety, laws regarding workers’ compensation, disability laws and employee benefit laws.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 3
Siemens Energy, Inc.



“Major Inspection Scheduled Outage” or “Major Scheduled Outage” means the type of
Scheduled Outage and its associated Services as set forth in Addendum 1A of Exhibit A.

“Miscellaneous Hardware” means miscellaneous hardware items such as pins, springs, studs,
gaskets, tie wires, fasteners, screws, washers, nuts or bolts which are required to roll out and
roll in the Program Parts during a Scheduled Outage which is supplied by Seller during a
Scheduled Outage under this Contract or in accordance with a Change Order hereto, issued

pursuant to Article 6, Changes.

“Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Pan Warranty” has the meaning set forth in
Section 8.2.

“Normal Carriage” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.3.2, Normal Carriage.

“Non-Program Part(s)’ means all parts and components of a Combustion Turbine other than
Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware and all instrumentation, control devices and wiring
maintained by Buyer; provided that such parts or components are located on or inside of the
applicable Combustion Turbine within the following boundaries: (a) from. the Combustion
Turbine side of the inlet bellmouth flange to and including (b) the Combustion Turbine side of
the exhaust cylinder and (c) the Combustion Turbine side of all flanges and/or connections
located directly on the Combustion Turbine proper which may be purchased by Buyer and
supplied by Seller hereunder pursuant to a Change Order.

“Normal Wear and Tear" means the wear and tear incurred by the Program Parts as a result of
operation and maintenance of the Combustion Turbine by Buyer in accordance with (i) Buyer’s .
obllgatlons specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description and (i) the warranty conditions
specified in Section 8.4 below. Normal wear and tear expressly excludes any secondary/up or
down stream/up or down flow damage caused by the failure of some other item, piece, part or

equipment up or down stream/up or down flow

“Original Equipment Supply Contract (“OESC")” means the contract for supply of the one (1)
SGT6-5000F Combustion Turbine, and one (1) Steam Turbine between Siemens Energy, Inc.
and Northern California Power Agency dated May 6, 2009.

“Parties” means Buyer and Seller.

“Party” means Buyer or Seller as applicéble.

“Period” means the interval from the completion of one Scheduled Outage of the Combustion
Turbine or the Steam Turbine through the completion of the next Scheduled Outage of such
Combustion Turbine or Steam Turbine, per Exhibit C Projected Scheduled Outage Plan. For
the purpose of this definition, the initial period shall begin on the date of First Fire of the

Combustion Turbine.

“Price List" means the price quoted by Seller pursuant to this Contract, as amended from time
to time by Seller

“Program Initialization Fee” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E, Payment Schedule.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 4

Siemens Energy, Inc.



“Program Management Services' means all of the services associated with Combustion
Turbine or Steam Turbine maintenance program to be provided by Seller hereunder during the
Term, as described in Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description.

“Program Part(s)” means the type of part(s) of the Combustion Turbine that are listed in Exhibit
B, Program Parts List plus the equivalent parts to those listed in Exhibit B, Program Parts List,
which were included in the original Combustion Turbine once the warranty for those equnvalent

parts under the OESC has expired.
“Program Parts Term Warranty” has the meaning given in Section 8.1.
“Project” has the meaning' set forth in the Preamble.

“Project Financing Close” means Buyer’s written notice to Seller that Buyer has successfully
acquired financing for the Project.

“Remote Monitor System” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit K, Remote Monitor System.

“Scheduled Outage” means a planned outage of the Combustion Turbine or the Steam Turbine,
each as applicable, to perform the applicable Scheduled Outage Services described in Exhibit

A, Scope of Work Description.

“Scheduled Outage Services” means all of the services to be provided by Seller hereunder
during the applicable Scheduled Outage, as described in Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description.

“Scheduled Outage TFA Services” means all of the TFA Servnces to be provided by Seller
hereunder during the applicable Scheduled Outage.

“Scheduled Outage Technical Field Specialist Services” means all of the Technical Field
Specialist Services to be provided by Seller hereunder during the applicable Scheduled Outage.

“Seller’ has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Serviceable Program Part” means, with respect to a Program Part, that such Program Part is
suitable for operation in the Combustion Turbine until such Program Part's next Scheduled

Outage.

“Services” means any and all services to be provided by Seller under this Contract including but
not limited to Scheduled Outage TFA Services,. Scheduled Outage Technical Field Specialist
Servicés, Scheduled Outage Services, Program Management Services and any services
performed in accordance with a Change Order hereto issued pursuant to Article 6, Changes.

“Services Warranty” has the meaning given in Section 8.3.

“SGSC” has the meaning set forth in Section 16.2.

“Site” means the real property located in Lodi, California, on which the Project is to be or has
been constructed.

“Steam Turbine” means the Project’s one (1) steam turbine.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 5
Siemens Energy, Inc. ]



“Steam Turbine Annual Safety lnspéction” means the type of Scheduled Outage and its
associated Services as set forth in Addendum 1B of Exhibit A.

“Steam Turbine Limited Overhaul’ means the type of Scheduled Outage and its associated
Services as set forth in Addendum 1B of Exhibit A.

“Steam Turbine Major Overhaul” means the type of Scheduled Outage and its associated
Services as set forth in Addendum 1B of Exhibit A.

“Subcontractor(s)” shall mean any licensor, subcontractor or supplier of any tier supplying
material, equipment, labor, goods or services directly to Seller in connection with its obligations

under the Contract. :
“Sunset Date” has the meaning given in Section 5.1.

“Technical Field Specialist Services” means the Combustion Turbine or Steam Turbine’
‘disassembly, field inspection, field welding and reassembly services provided by a technical
field specialist of Seller on the Combustion Turbine or Steam Turbine.

“Term” has the meaning given in Section 5.1.

“TFA Services” or “Technical Field Assistance Services” means the advice and consultation
given to Buyer's personnel by a technical field assistance service representative of Seller with

respect to:

(i) installation, inspection, repair and maintenance activities performed by others at
, the Site, and
(ii) any Seller recommended quality assurance procedures for activities performed
at the Site.

TFA Services does not include management, supervision -or regulation of Buyer's personnel,
agents and contractors.

“Unscheduled Outage” means any outage of a Combustibn Turbine or Steam Turbine other
than a Scheduled Outage per Exhibit C, Projected Scheduled Outage Plan.

“Variable Fee" has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E, Payment Schedule.

1.2  General References. As used in this Contract, the terms “herein,” “herewith” and
“hereof’ are references to.this Contract, taken as a whole, the term “includes” or “including”
shall mean “including, without limitation,” and references to a “Section,” “subsection,” “clause,”
“Article” or “Exhibit” shall mean a Section, subsection, clause, Article or Exhibit of this Contract,
as the case may be, unless in any such case the context requires otherwise. The singular shall
include the plural and the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, and vice versa.

ARTICLE 2. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2.1 Contract Documents. This Contract consists of this contract document itself and the
following Exhibits which are specifically made a part hereof by reference:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 6
Siemens Energy,. Inc. ]



ExhibtA -  Scope of Work Description

Exhibit B - Combustion Turbine Program Parts List
Exhibit C - Projected Scheduled Outage Plan

Exhibit D - Service Bulletin 55004

Exhibit E - Payment Schedule

Exhibit F - Not Used

Exhibit G - Cancellation Schedule

Exhibit H . Change Order Format. _

Exhibit | - Natural Gas, Fuel Oil and Water Specifications
Exhibit J - Maintenance Labor Agreement (MLA)

Exhibit K - Remote Monitor System

2.2  Conflicting Provisions. This Contract document and the Exhibits are intended to be
interpreted consistently to the maximum extent possible. In the event of any conflict between
this document and any Exhibit hereto, the terms and provisions of this document, as.amended
from time to time, shall control. In the event of any conflict among the Exhibits; the following
order. of precedence shall govern: Exhibit G, E, A, J, B, C, D, |, K and H.  Subject to the
foregoing, the several instruments forming part of this Contract are to be taken as mutually
explanatory of one another and in the case of ambiguities or discrepancies within or between
such parts the same shall be explained and adjusted by the mutual agreement of the Parties.

" ARTICLE 3. SCOPE OF WORK

3.1  Seller's Scope. During the Term, Seller shall fulfill its workscope obligations specified in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description, and shall supply any equipment, Program Parts, Non-
Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware, Exhaust Components or Services mutually agreed to
by the Parties and specified in a Change Order issued pursuant to Article 6, Changes.

3.2 Buyers Scoge During the Term, Buyer shall fulfill its workscope obligations speclf ied in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description, and shall perform any other workscope obligations
mutually agreed to by the Parties and specified in a Change Order issued pursuant to Article 6,

Changes.
ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT TERMS

4.1 Contract Price. In consideration of the Program Parts, Non-Program Parts,
Miscellaneous Hardware and Services provided by Seller, Buyer will pay to Seller the Fees as
adjusted either up or down by the Escalation Factor at the time of each invoice. The "Contract

- Price" shall be the aggregate total of the Fees as adjusted plus any additiorial payment amount
mutually agreed to by the Parties pursuant to a Change Order hereto.

4.2 Taxes: The Contract Price does not include any federal, state, or local property, license,
privilege, sales use, excise, value added, gross receipts, or similar taxes now or hereafter
applicable to, measured by, or imposed upon or with respect to the transaction, the property, its
sale, its value or its use, or any services performed in connection- therewith. Buyer agrees to
pay or reimburse Seller for any such taxes levied by the United States of America, the State of
California, or other United States local political subdivision, which Seller or its Subcontractors
are required to pay, except Seller will be responsible for its own federal and state income. taxes
as- well as taxes on its own payroll. Should Buyer be exempted from any such tax, it shall

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 : Page 7
Siemens Energy, Inc. )



provide Seller with certification thereof within thirty (30) Days after the Effective Date or at the
time the exemption is obtained, whichever first occurs. ‘In the event of an audit by a taxing
authority, the Parties shall cooperate with each other and disclose necessary documentation,
subject to the provisions of Article 16, as required by the taxing authonty in conjunction with the

audit.

43 Invoices. Per Exhibit E, Payment Schedule, Seller shall furnish Buyer an invoice
indicating the Fee being mvonced as adjusted up or down by the Escalation Factor at the time

of such invoice.

44  Payment. Within thirty (30) Days following the date Buyer receives each invoice under
Section 4.3, Buyer shall pay to Seller the undisputed amount of the invoice. All payments to
Seller shall be made by electronic transfer of funds to the account of the Seller at Mellon Bank,
N. A. Account Number 038-0269, ABA No. 043000261, or such other depository as Seller shall

designate by written notice to Buyer.

45 Notice of Payment Disputes. If prior to the expiration of the applicable period for
payment referenced in Section 4.4, Buyer disputes any amount invoiced by Seller on the basis
that any Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware or Scheduled Outage Services have not been
provided in- accordance with this Contract, then Buyer shall, prior to the expiration of such
period, provide Seller with written notice identifying. the basis for-and precise amount of such
dispute. Thereafter, the payment of any such genuinely dxsputed amounts may be deferred
until such dispute has been resolved to the satisfaction of Buyer and Séller. Any dispute which
is not resolved by mutual agreement shall be resolved in accordance with Section 16.4.

46 Late Payments. Any past due amounts shall, without prejudice to Seller's right to
payment when due, bear interest at the Delayed Payment Rate beginning upon the Day
following the date payment is due. If there is a dispute about any amount invoiced by Seller,
the amount not in dispute shall be promptly paid as described in this Article 4, and any disputed
amount which is ultimately determined to have been payable prior to the actual date of payment -
shall be paid with interest, at the Delayed Payment Rate, from the date due to the date of

payment.

ARTICLE 5.. TERM AND OUTAGES

51 Term. The Term .of the Contract shall commence on the Effectiﬁe Date and unless
terminated early pursuant to Article 12, shall expire upon the earlier of:

(i) . the date the Combustion Turbine comp!étes the third Major Scheduled Outage

under the Contract, or _
(i) the date that is November 1, 2035 (“Sunset Date”).

5.2 Unscheduled Outage. If, during the Term, an Unscheduled Outage occurs, then Buyer
shall, pursuant to a Change Order, hire Seller to supply any Program Parts, Non-Program
Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware, TFA Service work, Technical Field Specialist Service work
and/or Services on the Combustion Turbine and Steam Turbine required for such Unscheduled
Outage, and Seller shall supply same to the extent not covered by Seller's warranties contained
in Article 8 of this Contract, at the prices specified in Seller's then current domestic Price List(s)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 8
Siemens Energy, Inc.



in effect at the time of supply or performance or in Seller’s price quote at the time of supply or
performance for elements not included in Seller's domestic Price Llst(s)

5.3  Unscheduled Outage Work. Seller shall be entittd to a Change Order for any
additional Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware, TFA Service work,

Technical Field Specialist Service work and/or Services on the Combustion Turbine and Steam
Turbine pursuant to Section 5.2 above in accordance with Article 6. In addition, Buyer shall
give Seller the opportunity to' perform, at Seller's expense, a root cause analysis of the
‘Unscheduled Outage. - In the case of an Unscheduled Outage, Seller, upon notification from
Buyer via a Change Order, agrees to take prompt action(s) to mobilize its service personnel to
the Site to provide the Services requested in such Change Order, and agrees to provide any
Program Parts, Non-Program Parts or Miscellaneous Hardware specified in such Change
Order, as soon as reasonably practicable, to minimize downtime. .

5.4 | Seller's Responsublllty for Access to Warranty Non-Conformities and Damage to Buyer's
Property.

54.1 Subject to the provisions stated in this Section 5.4 below if a Program Part, an item of
Miscellaneous Hardware or a Service provided by Seller pursuant to this Contract fails to
conform to the corresponding Program Parts Term Warranty stated in Section 8.1, the
Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty stated in Section 8.2 or the
Services Warranty stated in Section 8.3, then for each such event Seller shall credit
Buyer for the actual direct costs incurred by Buyer for the following:

(i) Seller's uncovering, gaining access to, removing and replacing the Program
Part, Miscellaneous Hardware or Service, including disassembly and reassembly
of the Combustion Turbine or Steam Turbine that does not conform to its
respective warranty as set forth in Section 8, Warranties, to the extent that Seller
provided such uncovering, gaining access to, removal and replacement of the
non-conforming Program Part, item of Miscellaneous Hardware or such Services

hereunder and

(i) sudden and accidental damage to Buyer's property to the extent that such
property damage was caused by the failure of a Program Part, an item of
Miscellaneous Hardware or a Service to conform to its respective warranty as set

forth in Article 8, Warranties.

Seller’s obligations under thls Section 5.4 shall be hmlted on a per event basis to the
lesser of:

(@  the actual direct cost incurred by Buyer to repair the property damage including
uncovering, gaining -access to, removal and replacement costs, to be
substantiated to the reasonable satisfaction of Seller, or

(b) an amount of one million Dollars (U.S. $1,000,000).

Seller's obligations under this Section 5.4 shall be limited to an aggregate financial
limitation of two million Dollars (U.S. $2,000,000) for all such events occurring within
each Calendar Year and a total aggregate financial limitation of nine million Dollars
($9,000,000) for all such events occurring during the Contract's Term.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 9
Siemens Energy, Inc.



5.4.2 As a condition precedent to Seller's performance of its obligations under this Section
5.4, (i) Buyer will be responsible for performing the obligations equivalent to that which
would be required of Buyer pursuant to Exhibit A, Addendum 2A, Combustion Turbine
Scheduled Outage Division of Responsibilities and Addendum 2B, Steam Turbine
Scheduled Outage Division of Responsibilities, and (ii) the Parties shall enter into a
Change Order pursuant to which Buyer shall purchase and Seller shall provide all labor,
parts, repairs and materials required for the repair of the related property damage
necessary to return the applicable Combustion Turbine or Steam Turbine to an operable
condition. Seller's obligations under Section 5.4, shall not apply to any liabilities arising
out of or related to events or circumstances occurring after either the expiration of the
Contract's Term or the termination of the Contract, whichever occurs first.

5.4.3 If Buyer has property damage insurance, it shall obtain waivers of nghts of subrogation
from its property damage insurer(s) against Seller. If any such waiver of subrogation is.
not obtained by Buyer, Buyer shall defend, indemnify and hold Seller and its affiliates
harmless in and from any claim or proceeding by Buyer's insurer(s) seeking subrogation
which should have been waived.

5.4.4 The crediting of the amounts by Seller to Buyer as set forth in this Section 5.4 shall be
Buyer's sole and exclusive remedy for damage to Buyer’s Property and access to
‘warranty non-conformities including uncovering, gaining access to, removing and
replacing the Program Part, Miscellaneous Hardware or Service, including disassembly
and reassembly of the Combustion Turbine and Steam Turbine whether claims of the _
Buyer are based in contract, in tort (including negligence and strict liability) or otherwise.
Such amounts due Buyer by Seller pursuant to this Section 5.4 shall be effected by a
credit to Buyer’s account toward payments due under this Contract.

ARTICLE6. CHANGES

6.1 Request For Changes. Buyer or Seller may request changes within the scope of the
Contract and if accepted by the other Party the price, performance, schedule, and other
pertinent provisions of the Contract will be adjusted by mutual agreement of the Parties and
documented in a written “Change Order” prior to implementation of the “Change”. The format

for Change Orders is listed in Exhibit H, Change Order Format. :

6.2 Adjustment. Additional expenses incurréd and time spent by Seller due to (i) delays, other
than delays within the reasonable control of Seller, and (i) changes in applicable Laws and
requirements after the Effective Date of the Contract, as applicable, will be treated as changes
. to the scope of work and the Contract will be adjusted as set forth in the previous paragraph.

6.3 No Additional Compensation Changes. Seller may make a change(s) in its Program

Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware, or Services supplied hereunder without additional
compensation from Buyer if such change(s) does not adversely affect the warranties or
performance of any Scheduled Outage.

6.4  Minimum Operating Requirements. The basis of this Contract is that the Combustion
Turbine shall be operated at (a) no less than four thousand (4,000) Equivalent Base Hours per

Calendar Year and (b) no less than two hundred fifty (250) Equivalent Starts per Calendar Year.
Should the actual operations differ from these operating parameters then the Seller shall be

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 ) Page 10
Siemens Energy, Inc.



entitled to adjustment in its scope, schedule and price to address such differences pursuant to
a Change Order. .

6.5 Changes in Program Parts. To the extent that Seller makes changes in style or
configuration of any Program Parts and the style numbers of such Program Parts, as originally
supplied at the inception of this Contract, are no longer made available for sale by Seller, such
changed or re-configured Program Parts shall be made available to Buyer in their normal
replacement sequence, without additional charge, during the Term of this Contract. However, if
both the originally supplied Program Part and a changed or reconfigured Program Part are
made available by Seller, then Buyer shall receive the original styles without-additional charge,
or at its option, Buyer may elect to use any upgraded styles available at an additional price to

be mutually agreed upon by the Parties.

6.6 Allowance for Certain Extra Work. If Buyer and Seller agree pursuant to a Change
Order that in connection with a Scheduled Outage Seller will perform additional work that is not
included in Seller's Scheduled Outage workscope pursuant to Addendum 1A of Exhibit A, then
Seller shall bear without charge to Buyer, the following: (a) the first seventy five thousand
Dollars (U.S. $75,000.00) of price for additional work purchased from Seller related to a
Combustor Inspection Scheduled Outage, (b) the firstone hundred thousand Dollars (U.S.
$100,000.00) of price for additional work purchased from Seller related to a Hot Gas Path
Inspection Scheduled Outage, and {(c) the first one hundred twenty five thousand Dollars (U.S.
$125,000.00) of price for additional work purchased from Seller related to a Major Inspection
Scheduled Outage. After completion of the second Major Scheduled Outage, for each
subsequent Scheduled. Outage remaining during the Term of the Contract, such amounts will
‘be escalated from the completion date of the second Major Scheduled Outage, calculated the
same as the Escalation Factor but using the completion date of the second Major Scheduled

Outage as the base value.”

6.7  Exhaust Cylinder and Manifold Replacement.

6.7.1 Components. If Buyer elects to purchase replacements for the Combustion Turbine’s
exhaust .cylinder or exhaust manifold during the Term, then Buyer may purchase such
components- from Seller pursuant to a Change Order at the prices specified in Seller's then
current domestic Price List(s) in effect at the time of supply with a twenty percent (20%)
discount applied. In addition to such. discounts, and provided that the applicable allowance set
forth in Section 6.6 above has not been exhausted, Buyer may apply any remaining balance
from the extra work allowance toward the replacement price for such exhaust cylinder or

exhaust manifold.

6.7.2 Services. Buyer may elect, pursuant to a Change Order, to hire Seller to install such
Exhaust Components at the prices specified in Seller's then current domestic Price List(s) in
effect at the time of performance or in Seller's price quote at the time of performance for
elements not included in Seller's domestic Price List(s). The Parties agree that such installation
shall be covered by, and subject to, the provision of Section 8.3, Services Warranty.

ARTICLE 7. bELIVERY, TITLE, RISK OF LOSS AND TRANSPORTATION

7.1 Program Parts, Non-Program Parts. Miscellaneous Hardware or Exhaust Components.
Delivery of each Program Part, Non-Program Part, item of Miscellaneous Hardware or Exhaust

Component supplied under this Contract shall be made when the transporting conveyance

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 , Page 11
Siemens Energy, Inc. )



comes to a rest at the place of unloading at the delivery point (“Delivery”). The delivery point.
shall be to the Site, the area on the Site or adjacent laydown area designated by Buyer. If a
. scheduled Delivery cannot be accommodated by Buyer, then Delivery will be made to a Buyer-
designated storage facility and Buyer shall be responsible for all storage costs. Buyer shall be
responsible for unloading the cargo from the transporting-conveyance upon Delivery.

7.2 Title and Risk of Loss. In the case of Section 7.1, risk of loss or damage shall pass
from Seller to Buyer upon Delivery. Legal and equitable titte to Non-Program Parts and
Exhaust Components shall pass from Seller to Buyer upon Delivery. Legal and equitable title to
Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware shall pass from Seller to Buyer upon installation
into the Combustion Turbine. Upon removal of Program Parts from a Combustion Turbine,

transfer of title and risk of loss of such Program Parts shall be as specified in Section 8.1. ‘

7.3  Transportation

7.3.1 Transportation and Storage. When Program Parts, Non-Program Parts or
Miscellaneous Hardware are ready for shipment, Seller will (i) in the absence of shipping
instructions, inform-Buyer of pending shipment and Buyer will thereafter promptly give shipping
instructions to Seller, (i) determine the method of transportation and the routing of the shipment
and (iii) ship the Program Parts, Non-Program Parts or Miscellaneous Hardware freight prepaid
and included in the price by Normal Carriage to the Site. ‘

7.32 Normal Carriage. Normal Carriage means carriage by either highway transport
(provided this does not necessitate use of specialized riggers trailers) or by rail transport on
normal routing from the manufacturing/repair facility to the Site as designated in Section 7.1,

above.

7.3.3 Special Transportation and Services. Buyer agrees to pay for, or to reimburse, in
accordance with the Change Order provisions set forth in Article 6 of the Contract, any
verifiable and substantiated transportation charges incurred by Seller in excess of those for
Normal Carriage due to changes in the existing transportation conditions, which changes may
include without limitation, the construction and repair of transportation and handling facilities,
bridges and roadways, excess charges for special routing, special trains, special vessels,
specialized riggers trailers, demurrage and air transport. Seller agrees to use all reasonable
efforts to minimize such excess transportation charges. Additional transportation costs and
impacts on Delivery or other times in connection with performance of the work, if any, shall be
submitted to Buyer or Seller, each as applicable and processed through the Change Order

process.

ARTICLE 8. WARRANTIES

8.1 = Program Parts Term Warranty and Exclusive Remedy. Seller warrants that each
Program Part and Miscellaneous Hardware used to affix a Program Part supplied or warranted
hereunder, including any Program Part that is (i) included in the original Combustion Turbine
once the warranty for those equivalent Program Parts under the' OESC has expired or (i)
repaired or provided as a replacement pursuant to this warranty, will not require repair or
replacement (other than for Scheduled Outage maintenance and associated Program Part and
Miscellaneous Hardware maintenance) due to defects in material or workmanship of such
Program Part or of such Miscellaneous Hardware used to affix a Program Part or due to Normal

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 12
Siemens Energy, Inc.



Wear and Tear from the date supplied until the end of the Term (the "Program Parts Term
Warranty"). If prior to the end of the Term, a Program Part or an item of Miscellaneous
Hardware used to affix a Program Part fails to conform to the above warranty and Seller is
notified in writing by Buyer of the failure, Seller shall, at its option and as its exclusive warranty
obligation either (i) repair the non-conforming Program Part or at Seller's expense (ji) provide a
replacement Serviceable Program Part for the non-conforming Program Part or provide
replacement Miscellaneous Hardware for the non-conforming Miscellaneous Hardware (Seller
shall provide unencumbered title to Buyer for all Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware
furnished under this Contract). Unless Seller elects otherwise, if a replacement Program Part is
provided under this warranty or during either a Scheduled Outage or Unscheduled Outage, then
title to, possessory right to, and risk of loss to such replaced Program Part shall transfer from
the Buyer to Seller upon such Program Part's replacement and the Parties hereby agree that
such Program Part shall be scrap with a deemed value of $0. Furthermore, unless Seller elects
otherwise, Buyer shall waive any and all liens/security interests with respect to such Program
Part, shall do everything necessary to effectuate such waiver, and shall indemnify Seller against
any loss or damage Seller may incur as a result of any Ilenslsecunty interests being asserted
against such Program Part.

8.2  Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty and Exclusive Remedy.
Seller warrants that the ‘Miscellaneous Hardware not otherwise covered under the Program
Parts Term Warranty and Non-Program Parts provided to Buyer hereunder, including any item
of Miscellaneous .Hardware or Non-Program Part repaired or provided as a replacement by
Seller under this Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty, will be free of
defects in workmanship and materials until the earlier of:

(i) one (1) year from the date of installation of the original item of Miscellaneous
Hardware or original Non-Program Part, as applicable, into the Combuystion
Turbine;

(i) four hundred (400) Equivalent Starts after installation of the original item of
Miscellaneous Hardware or original Non-Program Part, as applicable, into the
Combustion Turbine; _

(i)  eight thousand (8,000) Equivalent Base Hours after installation of the original
item of Miscellaneous Hardware or original Non-Program Part, as applicable, into

: the Combustion Turbine; or

(iv) one (1) year from the date of Delivery of the original item of Mlscellaneous
Hardware or original Non-Program Part, as applicable;

except that the warranties on all Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Parts shall expire
no later than the earlier of either the termination of the Contract or the conciusion of the Term of
_the Contract, (the "Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty"). In no event
shall a re-warranty of a Non-Program Part or an item of Miscellaneous Hardware extend
beyond the original warranty period for such Non-Program Part or item of Miscellaneous
Hardware. If during the Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty period, an
item of Miscellaneous Hardware or a Non-Program Part fails to conform to the Miscellaneous
Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty and Seller is promptly notified in writing by Buyer of
the failure, Seller shall, at its option and as its exclusive warranty liability, either (i) repair the
non-conforming M:scellaneous Hardware or non-conforming Non-Program Part or at Seller's
expense (ii) provide a replacement for the non-conforming Miscellaneous Hardware or non-

conforming Non-Program Part.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 13
Siemens Energy, Inc. .



8.3  Services Warranty and Exclusive Remedy. Seller warrants for each item of Services
provided hereunder that (i) the engineering services of its personnel will be competent and
‘consistent with prudent engineering practices, (ii) the technical information, reports, analyses
and recommendations transmitted by Seller in connection therewith will be competent and
consistent with prudent engineering practices, and (jii) the Services will be free from defects in
the workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion of that item of
Services; except that the warranties on Services shall expire no later than the earlier of either
one (1) year after the termination of the Contract or the conclusion of the Term of the Contract,
(the "Services Warranty"). In no event shall a re-warranty of a Service extend beyond the
original warranty period for such Service. If during the Services Warranty period-any portion of
the Service fails to conform to the Services Warranty and Seller is promptly notified in writing
thereof, Buyer's sole remedy shall consist of Seller's reperformance of such nonconforming

portion of the Services.

84  Warranty Conditions. The warranties and remedies set forth herein are conditioned
upon: : ‘

(1 Buyer's receipt, handling, storage, operations and maintenance during any
storage, operation and maintenance, including tasks incident thereto, of the
Project, including any Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Exhaust Components
and Miscellaneous Hardware, shall be in all material respects in accordance with
the terms of the Combustion Turbine and Steam Turbine instruction manuals,
Exhibit D Service Bulletin 55004 Seller's written instructions provided to Buyer,
the operating criteria provided to Buyer by the original equipment manufacturer
and in general accordance with independent power industry practices.

(2) - the Combustion Turbine shall have been operated using natural gas, fuel oil and
water consistent with the requirements specified in Exhibit |, Natural Gas, Fuel
Oil and Water Specifications and neither the Combustion Turbine nor the Steam

- Turbine shall have been subject to alteration, abuse or misuse;

(3) ahy accidental damage to the Combustion Turbine or Steam Turbine shall be
repaired consistent with the original equipment manufacturers reasonable
recommendations,

(4) the Buyer, without expense to Seller:

(a)  providing working access to the non-conforming Program Parts, Non-
Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware or Services, except as provided
for and subject to the financial limitations set forth in Section 5.4,
including disassembly and reassembly of the Combustlon Turbine or

Steam Turbine;

(b) Dbearing the expense of, and paying as and when due Seller's invoices for
amounts in excess of those amounts for which Seller provides a credit as

set forth in Section 5.4 above. Monitoring and calculation of the -

foregoing amount shall be based upon Seller’s then current prices for
which Seller would normally charge a customer for Seller's performance
of such activity;

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. Novembér 1, 2014 . Page 14
Siemens Energy, Inc. . ;



(c) providing reasonable access to the Project and operating and
maintenance data, including but not limited to continuous access to the
control system and associated data for monitoring purposes;

(d)  making its Site facilities and Site operators available to assist Seller in the
performance of its warranty obligations, to the extent they are reasonably
available; and

(e) hiring Seller to provide (i) labor, parts, repairs and materials required to
' remove the Combustion Turbine casing and to repair, and install or
replace the Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Exhaust Components or
Miscellaneous Hardware in the Combustion Turbine after it has been
disassembled, (ii) labor and repairs required for the Steam Turbine,

and

(65)  Buyer will maintain and operate the Steam Turbine in accordance with the
original equipment manufactu_rer's recommendations.

8.5 Exclusivity of Warranties and Remedies. THE WARRANTIES/GUARANTEES SET
FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER

WARRANTIES/GUARANTEES WHETHER STATUTORY, EXPRESS, OR IMPLIED
(INCLUDING ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ALL WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING
OR USAGE OF TRADE). The remedies -set forth in this Article by correction of non-
conformities in the manner and for the period: of time provided shall constitute Seller's sole
liability and Buyer's exclusive remedies for failure of Seller to meet its warranty or guarantee
obligations whether claims of the Buyer are based in contract, in tort (including negligence and
strict liability), or otherwise.

8.6  Warranty Liabilities. In the event that physical loss of or damage to Buyer's property
results from the failure of (i) a Program Part to comply with the Program Parts Term Warranty
per. Section 8.1, (i) Miscellaneous Hardware to comply with the applicable provisions of the
Program Parts Term Warranty per Section 8.1 or the Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-
Program Part Warranty per Section 8.2, (iii) a Non-Program Part provided hereunder to comply
with the Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Part Warranty per Section 8.2, (iv) a
Service to comply with the Services Warranty per Section 8.3 or (v) or an Exhaust Component
to comply with the Exhaust Components Warranty per Section 8.7, Seller's liability under the
terms of such respective warranties shall not exceed the cost of performing the warranty
remedy, either by repair, modification, re-performance, or replacement, which Seller would have
had to perform if such warranty remedy had been completed immediately prior to the
occurrence of the resultant physical loss or damage. In no event shall Seller have liability under
this Article 8 for physical loss or damage to Buyer's property that resuits from the failure to
comply with the warranties under this Article 8. Seller's responsibility for any such resultant
physical loss or damage shall be exclusively as set out in Section 5.4 above.

8.7  Exhaust Components Warranty and Exclusive Remedy._  Seller warrants that new
Exhaust Components provided to Buyer pursuant to Section 6.7.1, including any Exhaust
Components repaired or provided as a replacement by Seller pursuant to this warranty, will be
free of defects in workmanship and materials.until the earlier of (i) twelve (12) months from the
date of Delivery of the original Exhaust Component item or (ii) for a period of twelve (12)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 . Page 15
Siemens Energy, Inc.



months from the date of installation of the original Exhaust Component; except that the
warranties on all Exhaust Components shall expire no later than the earlier of either the
termination of the Contract or the conclusion of the Term of the Contract (“the Exhaust:
Components Warranty”). In no event shall a re-warranty of an Exhaust Component extend
beyond the original warranty period for such Exhaust Component. If during the Exhaust
Components Warranty period, an Exhaust Component fails to conform to the Exhaust
Component Warranty and Seller is promptly notified in writing by Buyer of the failure, Seller
shall, at its option and as its exclusive warranty liability, either (i) repair the non-conforming
Exhaust Component or at Seller's expense (ii) provnde a replacement for the non-conforming

Exhaust Component.

ARTICLE 9. - INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
9.1 . Patent, Trademark or Cogy. right Infringement. Seller will, at its own expense, indemnify

and defend or at its option settle any suit or proceeding brought against Buyer provided that
such claim is based on an allegation that any Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware or any of
the processes used by Seller in connection with the Services, supplied by Seller hereunder and
used for its intended purpose, constitutes an infringement of any filed or registered United
States patent, trademark or copyright, if Seller is notified promptly in writing and given authority,
information and assistance in a timely manner for the defense of said suit or proceeding. Seller
will pay the damages and costs awarded in any suit or proceeding so defended. Seller will not
be responsible for any settlement of such suit or proceeding made without ifs prior written
consent. However, in no event shall Seller have any authority to accept or enter any judgment
against Buyer without the express written consent of Buyer after approval of Buyer's governing
body, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. In case the Program Parts,
Miscellaneous Hardware or processes used by Seller in connection with the Services supplied
by Seller hereunder, as a result of any suit or proceeding so defended, is held to constitute
infringement of any United States patent, trademark or copyright, or its use by Buyer is
enjoined, Seller will, at its option and its own expense, either: (a) procure for Buyer the right to
continue using said Program Part, Miscellaneous Hardware or process; (b) replace it with a
substantially equivalent noninfringing Program Part, Miscellaneous Hardware or process; or (c)

modify it so it becomes noninfringing.

9.2  Limitation of Intellectual Property Obligations. Seller will have no duty or obligation to

Buyer under this Article to the extent that the Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware or any of
the processes used by Seller in connection with the Services supplied by Seller hereunder is (a)
supplied according to Buyer's design or instructions wherein compliance therewith has caused
Seller to deviate from its normal course of performance, (b) modified by Buyer or its contractors
after delivery, or (c) combined by Buyer or its contractors with items not furnished hereunder
and by reason of said design, instruction, modification, or combination-a suit is brought against
Buyer. In addition,.if by reason of such design, instruction, modification or combination, a suit
or proceeding is brought against Seller, Buyer shali protect Seller in the same manner and to
the same extent that Seller has agreed to protect Buyer under the provisions of Section 9.1

above.

9.3  Protection of Seller's Intellectual Property Rights. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that
Seller and its affiliates have a considerable investment in its intellectual property rights and
technology associated with the Combustion Turbine, Steam Turbine and Program Parts. Buyer
therefore agrees not to take any action, either directly or through an affiliate, which would

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 ' Page 16
Siemens Energy, Inc.



infringe or violate Seller's or its affiliates’ rights in its patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade
secrets or other intellectual property. Buyer further agrees to use it$ best efforts to ensure that
its suppliers, contractors and other agents not take any action inconsistent with Seller's or its

affiliates’ intellectual property rights.

9.4 Exclusivity of Duties and Remedies. THIS ARTICLE IS AN EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT
OF ALL THE OBLIGATIONS AND LIABILITIES OF THE SELLER, RELATING TO PATENTS,

TRADEMARKS OR COPYRIGHTS AND DIRECT OR CONTRIBUTORY INFRINGEMENT
THEREOF AND OF ALL THE REMEDIES OF BUYER RELATING TO ANY CLAIMS, SUITS,
OR PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING PATENTS, TRADEMARKS OR COPYRIGHTS. Compliance
with this Article as provided herein shall constitute fulfillment of all liabilities of the Seller under
the Contract with respect to patents, trademarks or copyrights.

ARTICLE 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

10.1 Generally. Subject to the provisions of Sec’aon 10.2, Seller shall at all times comply, and
shall assure that the Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware and Services supplied by Seller,
at the time of Delivery or performance comply in all material respects with all Laws applicable to
the design and manufacture of the Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware, and the

performance by Seller of :ts other obligations hereunder.

10.2 Changes in Law. In the event that any change in Laws enacted or otherwise approved
after the Effective Date of this Contract requires or makes advisable any modifications to the
Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware or Services, Buyer or Seller, as
the case may be, shall reasonably promptly notify the other thereof in writing upon its discovery
of such change in Laws. If any such modification is required by any changes in Laws, Seller
shall make such modification provided such modification is reasonably technically feasible, and
if such modification increases Seller's cost of producing the Program Parts, Non-Program Parts
Miscellaneous Hardware, or performing the Services, or delays Seller's schedule or affects any
other provision of this Contract, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith and enter into a
Change Order in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.2 above.

ARTICLE 11. INSURANCE

111 Seller's Insurance. Without limiting Seller's liability under this Contract Seller shall
maintain in full force and effect during the Term of this Contract with insurance companies
having a Best's Insurance Guide rating of "A" or better (or otherwise satisfactory to Buyer), the
insurance described in 11.1(a), (b), (c), and (d) below, with coverage limits as indicated, and
shall provide to Buyer certificates evidencing such coverages, or, if requested by Buyer (in the
event of a claim that falls within the scope of coverage conferred by such msuranoe) copies of
applicable policies. The minimum required coverage limits set forth below in 11.1(a), (b), (¢),
and (d) may be met by any combination of applicable policies and limits as long as the
combined limits thereof equal or exceed the required limits:

(a) Commercial general liability insurance, including bodily injury, property damage,
products/completed operations, contractual, and personal injury liability, with a
combined single limit of one million Dollars (U.S. $1,000,000) per occurrence
with a two million Dollar (U.S. $2,000,000) annual aggregate;

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 : . Page 17
Siemens Energy, Inc.



(b) Excess liability coverage providing excess general liability, automoblle Ilablhty
and employer’s liability with a combined single limit of five million Dollars (U.S.

$5,000,000);

(c) Workers' compensation insurance with statutory limits, and employers liability
insurance with limits of one million Dollars (U.S. $1,000,000) per accident; and .

- (d) Business automobile liability insurance in comprehensive form covering owned,
- non-owned and hired automobiles for a combined single limit of one million
Dollars (U.S. $1,000,000) per occurrence.

11.1.2 Seller agrees to cause such insurance policies to be endorsed to provide that it is
primary to any insurance carried by Buyer, and agrees to cause its commercial general Ilablhty,
umbrella excess liability, employer’s liability and automobile liability policies/coverages listed in
Sections 11.1(a), (b), and (d) to name Buyer, its affiliates and its subcontractors of every tier,
identified in- writing for this purpose to Seller by Buyer, as an additional insured to the extent
that bodily injury, death or third party property damage are caused by the negligence of Seller
or Seller's Subcontractors. Buyer shall be given thirty (30) Days advance notice of cancellation
or material change. All policies furnished by Seller shall include waivers of subrogation rights
against Buyer and its affiliates. If any such waiver of subrogation is not obtained by Seller,
Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold Buyer and its affiliates harmless in and from any claim
~or proceeding by Seller's insurer(s) seeking subrogation which .should have been
waived. Buyer shall not be obligated to perform under this Contract at any time when Seller is
not in full compliance with this Article 11.

11.2 Buyer's Insurance.

11.2.1 Without limiting Buyer's liability under this Contract, Buyer shall maintain in full force and
effect during the Term of this Contract with insurance companies having a Best's Insurance

" Guide rating of "A" or better (or otherwise satisfactory to Seller), the insurance described below,
with coverage limits as indicated, and shall provide to Seller certificates evndencmg such
coverages, or, if requested by Seller, copies of applicable policies. The minimum required
coverage limits set forth below may be met by any combination of applicable policies. and limits
as long as the combined limits thereof equal or exceed the required limits:.

(a) Property damage insurance, including boiler and machinery coverage covering
all real and personal property of Buyer on a replacement cost basis; |

(b) Commercial general liability insurance, including bodily injury, property damage,
: products/completed operations, contractual, and personal injury liability, with a
combined single limit of one million Dollars (U.S. $1,000,000) per occurrence

with a two million Doliar (U.S. $2,000,000) annual aggregate;

(c) Excess liability coverage providing excess general liability, automobile liability
and employer's liability with a combined single limit of five million Dollars (U.S. -
$5,000,000);

(d) Workers’ compensation insurance with statutory limits, and employers liability
insurance with limits of not less than one million Dollars (U.S. $1,000,000) per
accident; and

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 . Page 18
Siemens Energy, Inc.



(e)  Business automobile liability insurance in comprehensive form covering owned,
non-owned and hired automobiles for a combined single limit of one million
Doliars (U.S. $1,000,000) per occurrence.

11.2.2 Buyer agrees to cause such insurance policies to be endorsed to provide that. it is
primary to any insurance carried by Seller, and agrees to cause its commercial general liability,
“umbrella excess liability, employer's liability and automobile liability policies/coverages listed in
Sections 11.2.1(b), (c) and (e) to name Seller, its affiliates and its Subcontractors of every tier,
identified in writing for this purpose to Buyer by Seller, as an additional insured to the extent
that bodily injury, death or third party property damage are caused by the negligence of Buyer
or Buyers other subcontractors. Seller shall be given thirty (30) Days advance notice of
cancellation or material change. All policies furnished by Buyer shall include waivers of
subrogation rights against Seller and its affiliates. If any such waiver of subrogation is not
obtained by Buyer, Buyer shall defend, indemnify and hold Seller and its affiliates harmless in
and from any claim or proceeding by Buyer's insurer(s) seeking subrogation which should have
been waived. Seller shall not be obligated to perform work under this Contract at any time
when Buyer is not in full compliance with this Article 11.

ARTICLE 12. TERMINATION

12.1  Termination for Seller’s Inability to Perform.  If any proceeding is instituted against
Seller seeking to adjudicate Seller as bankrupt or insolvent, or if Seller makes a general
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or if a receiver is appointed on account of the
insolvency of Seller, or if Seller files a petition seeking to take advantage of any other Law
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding up or composition or readjustment of
debts and, in the case of any such proceeding instituted against Seller (but not by Seller) if
such proceeding is not dismissed within forty-five (45) Days of such filing, Buyer- may terminate
this Contract by written notice to Seller.

12.2 Termination for Seller's Failure to Perform. If Seller is in material default of any
provision -of this Contract, and provided Seller has not commenced cure of such default within
thirty (30) Days after receipt of written notice from Buyer of such material default, Buyer may
terminate this Contract by written notice to Seller.

12.3 Buyer's and Seller's Rights, Duties and Obligations Upon Buyer's Termination. If Buyer
elects to terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 12.1 or 12.2, then Seller shall be entitled to
retain or receive amounts paid or payable hereunder at the time of termination. Upon such a
termination, Seller shall stop work on this Contract and place no further orders or lower tier
subcontracts.  Buyer shall"transfer title  to all Program Parts"that"are not installed-in-the
Combustion Turbine as of the date of termination to Seller. Seller, at its expense, shall arrange
transportation for and shall remove from the Site, all Program Parts to which Seller holds title.
Seller shall protect Buyer's property which is in Seller's possession (if any), and upon Buyer's
written instructions, Seller shall deliver to Buyer any of Buyer's property that is in Seller’s
possession and to which Seller has no claim of title. The cost of such delivery will be paid by
Seller. Within thirty (30) Days from the effective date of such termination, Buyer shall either (a)
return to Seller any of Seller’s Confidential Information which had been in Buyer's possession
(excluding this Contract) or (b) certify to Seller that all of Seller's Confidential Information which
had been in Buyer's possession has been destroyed. If Buyer elects to terminate this Contract
pursuant to the provisions of Section 12.1 or 12.2, then:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 19
Siemens Energy, inc. .



(a) Seller shall credit Buyer's account for the applicable portion of the Variable Fee
that Buyer has paid to Seller for the Combustion Turbine since the completion of
the most recent Scheduled Outage or Unscheduled Outage (whichever most
recently occurred) for such Combustion Turbine during which the workscope of a
Combustor Inspection Scheduled Outage was completed (the Parties
acknowledge that such workscope can be completed as part of an outage
including the full or partial workscope of a Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or an
outage including the full or partxal workscope of a Major inspection Scheduled

Outage), and

(b)  Seller shall credit Buyer's account on a pro-rated basis, for the applicable portion
of the Fixed Annual Fee that, based upon the date of termination, Buyer has paid
but not used under the Contract or Seller shall charge Buyer's account for the -
portion of the Fixed Annual Fee that Buyer has used but has not paid for (each

as applicable).

Within thirty (30) Days after receipt of Buyer's notice of termination, Seller will submit to Buyer
in writing its calculation of the amount owed to Buyer or amount owed to Seller as a result of
such termination, including the items stated in subclauses (a) and (b) above. The Party due the
net credit hereunder (the “Invoicing Party”) will then invoice the other Party (the “Paying Party”)
therefore, and the Paying Party will pay the undisputed amounts of such invoice within thirty
(30) Days of its receipt of such invoice. If prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) Day penod of
time, the Paying Party disputes all or any portion of such invoice, the Paying Party shall, prior to
the expiration of such time period, provide the Invoicing Party with written notice identifying the
basis for such dispute. Thereafter, the payment of such disputed amount shall be deferred until
such dispute has been resolved to the satisfaction of the Parties or pursuant to the provisions of
Section 16.4. Any disputed amount which is ultimately determined to have been payable prior
to the actual date of payment shall be paid with interest, at the Delayed Payment Rate, from the
date due to the date of payment. No further rights or obligations shall exist between the Parties
with respect to this Contract except for those that expressly survive, per Section 16.21, Survival.

WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THOSE RIGHTS AND REMEDIES THAT EXPRESSLY SURVIVE

PURSUANT TO SECTION 16.21, THIS SECTION IS AN EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF ALL
THE RIGHTS, DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES, RELATING:  TO
TERMINATION UNDER SECTIONS 12.1 AND 12.2 AND OF ALL THE REMEDIES RELATING
TO TERMINATION FOR SELLER'S INABILITY OR FAILURE TO PERFORM. Compliance with
this Section as provided herein shall constitute fulfillment of all liabilities of the Parties under the
Contract with respect to termination for Seller’s inability or failure to perform.

12.4 Termination Prior to Period 1. The Parties expressly agree that the terms and
conditions of this Contract, including in particular the prices stated herein, are based upon this
Contract being in full force and effect beginning with the Effective Date of the Contract and
continuing through the full Term of the Contract. The Parties further agree that it would be
extremely difficult to determine the precise amount of economic harm that would be suffered by
Seller due to the occurrence of any of the following after the Effective Date and prior to the
beginning of Period One as. identified in Exhibit C, Projected Scheduled Outage Plan: (a)
'Buyer's termination of the OESC or (b) Seller's termination of this Contract for Buyer’s breach
or default of the same or of the OESC. The Parties accordingly agree that an amount of ten
percent (10%) of the Contract Price is a fair and reasonable estimation of the amount of
economic harm that would be suffered by Seller for any such termination, and that the amount

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 20
Siemens Energy, Inc. v



does not constitute a penalty. In the event of any such termination the Buyer agrees to make
payment to Seller of the amount stated above within thirty (30) Days of Seller's invoice for
same. [f termination is effected under this Section 12.4, Termination Prior to Period 1, then the
obligations of the Parties pursuant to either Section 12.3 or Section 12.6 (each as applicable)
shall remain.

12.5 Termination by Seller. Seller may at its option terminate or suspend its performance of
the work under this Contract or suspend its performance of the work under this Contract then

terminate the Contract by written notice to Buyer if:

()] with respect to any invoice delivered pursuant to Section 4.3, Buyer neither
makes payment thereon in accordance with Section 4.4 nor provides a notice of
dispute relating thereto in accordance with Section 4.5, in either case within the
thirty (30) Day period provided in such Sections,

(i) a proceeding is instituted against Buyer seeking to adjudicate Buyer as bankrupt
or insolvent and such proceedmg is not dismissed within forty-five (45) Days of

such filing,
(iiiy  Buyermakes a géheral assignment for the benefit of its creditors,
(ivy a receiver is appointed on account of the insolvency of Buyer, .
(v)- aforce majeure event has persisted for six (6) months or longer,

(vi)  Buyer files a petition seeking to take advantage of any other Law relating to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding up or composition or
readjustment of debts, ‘

(vii a change in Laws has made Seller's performance impracticable as determined
by Seller,

(viii)  Buyer is in material default of any provision of this Contract and provided Buyer
has not commenced cure of such default within thirty (30) Days after receipt of
written notice of such material default from Seller or

(x) a change in the ownership or uitimate management control of Buyer that Seller
b reasonably believes could materially affect Seller's interests, including without
limitation the sale of any ownership interest in Buyer or the Pro;ect to any entity

in competition with Seller.

12.6 Buyers and Seller's Rights, Duties and Ob igations Upon Seller's Termination. If Seller
elects to terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 12.5, then, upon such a termination, Seller

shall stop work on this Contract and place no further orders or lower tier subcontracts. Buyer
shall transfer title to all Program Parts that are not installed in the Combustion Turbine as of the
date of termination to Seller. Seller, at its expense, shall arrange transportation for and shall
remove from the Site, all Program Parts to which Seller holds title. Seller shall protect Buyer's
property which is in Seller's possession (if any), and upon Buyer's written instructions, Seller
shall deliver to Buyer any of Buyer's property that is in- Seller's possession and to which Seller
has no claim of title. The cost of such delivery will be paid by Buyer. Within thirty (30) Days

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 21
Siemens Energy, Inc. i



from the effective date of such termination, Buyer shall either (a) return to Seller any of Seller's
Confidential Information which had been in Buyer's possession (excluding this Contract) or (b)
certify to Seller that all of Seller's Confidential Information which had been in Buyer's
possession has been destroyed. [f Seller elects to terminate this Contract pursuant to Section

12.5, then:

(@)  Seller shall credit Buyer's account for the applicable portion of the Variable Fee
that Buyer has paid to Seller for the Combustion Turbine since the completion of
the most recent Scheduled Outage or Unscheduled Outage (whichever most
recently occurred) for such Combustion Turbine during which the workscope of a
Combustor Inspection Scheduled Outage was completed (the Parties
acknowledge that such workscope can be completed as part of an outage
including the full or partial workscope of a Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or an
outage including the full or partial workscope of a Major Inspection Scheduled

Outage),

. (b) Seller shall credit Buyer’s account on a pro-rated basis, for the applicable portion
of the Fixed Annual Fee that, based upon the date of termination, Buyer has paid
but not used under the Contract or Seller shall charge Buyer's account for the
portion of the Fixed Annual Fee that Buyer has used but has not paid for (each

as applicable),

(c) Buyer's account shall be charged the cancellation amount listed in Exhibit G, in
effect at the time of such termination. For the avoidance of doubt, if the Contract
is terminated by Seller pursuant to the provisions of Section 12.4, Termination
Prior to Period 1, then the cancellation charge stated in this Section 12.6(c) shall
not be addltaonally applied to such termination,

(d) Buyer's account shall be charged for demonstrable reasonable expenses
actually incurred by Seller in settling Seller's terminated orders and subcontracts
hereunder and the protection of Buyer s property that is in Seller's possession (if
any), and

(e) Buyer's account shall be charged for demonstrable reasonable expenses of
demobilization, equipment storage, transportation, and handling.

Within thirty (30) Days after receipt of ‘Seller's notice of termination, Seller will submit to Buyer
in writing its calculation of the amount owed t6 Buyer or amount owed to Seller as a result of
such termination, including the items stated in subclauses (a), (b), (c), (d), and (e) above. The
Party due the net credit hereunder (the “Invoicing Party”) will then invoice the other Party (the
“Paying Party”) therefore, and the Paying Party will pay the undisputed amounts of such invoice
within twenty-five (25) Days of its receipt of such invoice. If prior to the expiration of such
twenty-five (25) Day period of time, the Paying Party disputes all or any portion of such invoice,
the Paying Party shall, prior to the expiration-of such time period, provide the Invoicing Party
. with written notice identifying the basis for such dispute. Thereafter, the payment of such
disputed amount shall be deferred until such dispute has been resoived to the satisfaction of
the Parties or pursuant to the provisions of Section 16.4. Any disputed amount which is
ultimately determined to have been payable prior to the actual date of payment shall be paid
with interest, at the Delayed Payment Rate, from the date due to the date of payment. No

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 22
Siemens Energy, Inc. .



further rights or obligations shall exist between the Parties with respect to this Contract except
for those that expressly survive, per Section 16.21, Survival. .

The Parties agree that it would be difficult or impossible to determine the precise amount. of
damages that would be incurred by Seller as a result of Buyer's breach or early termination of
this Contract. Accordingly, the Parties expressly agree that Buyer's payment of the amounts
listed in the Cancellation Schedule set forth in Exhibit G are in lieu of actual damages, are the
Parties’ reasonable estimates of fair compensation for the losses that may reasonably be
anticipated to be incurred by the Seller in respect of such matters and do not constitute a

penalty.

ARTICLE 13. INDEMNIFICATION

13.1 Seller's Indemnity. Seller shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Buyer from and
against liability resulting from injury to or death of persons and from physical damage to or loss
of third party property to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions or willful
misconduct of Seller while performing Services at the Site. Seller's indemnity obligation under
this Section 13.1 shall not apply to any liabilities arising out of or relating to events or
circumstances occurring after the end of the Contract's Term. In no event shall Seller's
indemnification obligations apply to any claim by a customer of Buyer for voltage or frequency
fluctuation or service interruption of any kind, or to any claim by any third party for failure of
Buyer to provide power or capacity under any contract. For the purposes of this Section 13.1,
third party property shall be deemed to exclude property of the Buyer, operator, lender, Buyer's
affiliates, or any other property at the Site (except for property belonging to contractors
temporarily working at the Site). If a third party claim is filed against Buyer pursuant to Seller's
obligations under this Section 13.1, then Buyer shall provide Seller with prompt written notice
thereof and Buyer shall give Seller the unrestricted right to defend the respective claim on
Buyer's behalf. However, in no event shall Seller have any authority to accept or enter any
judgment against Buyer without the express written consent of Buyer after approval of Buyer's
governing body, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

13.2 - Buyer's Indemnity. Buyer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Seller from and
against liability resulting from injury to or death of persons and from physical damage to or loss
of third party property to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions or willful
misconduct of Buyer. Buyer's indemnity. obligation under this Section 13.2 shall not apply to
any liabilities arising out of or relating to events or circumstances occurring after the end of the

Contract's Term.
ARTICLE 14. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

14.1 Restrictions on Recoverable Damages. BUYER EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT NEITHER
SELLER NOR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS, AFFILIATES OR ASSIGNS WILL UNDER
ANY CIRCUMSTANCES BE LIABLE TO BUYER FOR CLAIMS UNDER OR ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER
BASED IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY),
UNDER WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, FOR: ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGE OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER; DAMAGE
TO OR LOSS OF BUYER'S PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT (EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE
PROVIDED FOR AND SUBJECT TO THE LIM!TATIQNS STATED IN SECTION 5.4); LOSS

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 23
Siemens Energy, Inc.



OF DATA AND INFORMATION; LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUE; LOSS OF USE BY THE
BUYER OF ITS MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT OR POWER SYSTEM; INCREASED COSTS OF
ANY KIND, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO CAPITAL COST, FUEL COST AND COST OF
PURCHASED OR REPLACEMENT POWER; OR CLAIMS OF CUSTOMERS OF BUYER.

SELLER EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT BUYER WILL NOT UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES
BE LIABLE TO SELLER FOR CLAIMS UNDER OR ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO
THIS CONTRACT UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER BASED IN
CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY), UNDER
WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, FOR: ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGE OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER; LOSS OF
DATA AND INFORMATION; OR LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUE.

NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 14.1 SHALL LIMIT: (A) EITHER PARTY'S RIGHT TO AMOUNTS
EXPRESSLY AGREED TO BY THE PARTIES PURSUANT TO A CHANGE ORDER HERETO,
OR APPLICABLE AMOUNTS CALCULATED PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 12; OR (B) SELLER'S
RIGHT TO (i) ALL OR ANY PART OF THE CONTRACT PRICE OR OTHER AMOUNTS
OTHERWISE PAYABLE HEREUNDER INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY OVERHEAD
OR PROFITS, (ii) INTEREST ON AMOUNTS NOT PAID BY BUYER, (iii) ANY DAMAGES
RESULTING FROM A CLAIM FOR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT OR
MISAPPROPRIATION UNDER APPLICABLE LAWS, AND (iv) ANY DAMAGES RESULTING
FROM VIOLATION OF CONFIDENTIALITY OBLIGATIONS. :

EXCEPT FOR BUYER'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER ARTICLE 9 (INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY),
SECTION 16.1 (CONFIDENTIAL OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION), AND SECTION 16.20
(TRANSFER), EACH PARTY EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT NEITHER THE OTHER PARTY
NOR IN THE CASE OF THE SELLER, SELLER'S. SUBCONTRACTORS WILL, UNDER ANY
CIRCUMSTANCES, BE LIABLE UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER BASED
IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY), UNDER
WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE BEYOND FOUR (4) YEARS SUBSEQUENT TO THE
EARLIER OF EITHER THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE TERM.

14.2  Exclusive Remedy and Limitation on Liability. BUYER EXPRESSLY AGREES THAT
THE REMEDIES PROVIDED HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE AND THAT UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE TOTAL AGGREGATE CLAIMS AGAINST OR LIABILITY OF
SELLER DURING A GIVEN CALENDAR YEAR UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY,
WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT
LIABILITY), UNDER WARRANTY, OR OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE GREATER OF FIVE
.MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000) OR ONE HUNDRED PERCENT (100%) OF THE TOTAL
PRICE PAID TO SELLER FOR THAT GIVEN CALENDAR YEAR UNDER THIS CONTRACT.
THE PARTIES FURTHER EXPRESSLY- AGREE THAT UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES
SHALL THE TOTAL AGGREGATE CLAIMS AGAINST OR LIABILITY OF EITHER PARTY
UNDER ANY THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, IN TORT
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY), UNDER WARRANTY, OR
OTHERWISE, EXCEED SEVENTY FIVE PERCENT (75%) OF THE TOTAL PRICE PAID TO
SELLER UNDER THIS CONTRACT; PROVIDED HOWEVER, THAT THE PROVISIONS AND
LIMITATIONS OF SECTION 14.2 SHALL NOT APPLY TO BUYER'S LIABILITIES ARISING
OUT OF SECTION 5.4.3, ARTICLE 9, SECTION 11.2:2, ARTICLE 13, SECTION 16.1 AND
SECTION 16.20 AND EXPRESSLY EXCLUDE ALL PAYMENTS MADE OR REQUIRED TO BE

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 ' : Page 24
Siemens Energy, Inc. -



MADE FROM BUYER TO SELLER FOR WORK PERFORMED UNDER THIS CONTRACT OR
UPON TERMINATION OF THIS CONTRACT.

14.3 Extent of Waivers. THE WAIVERS AND DISCLAIMERS OF LIABILITY, RELEASES
FROM LIABILITY, AND LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY EXPRESSED IN THIS ARTICLE SHALL
EXTEND TO SELLER AND ITS AFFILIATES, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AND ITS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTNERS, PRINCIPALS, SHAREHOLDERS, DIRECTORS,

OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS.

14.4 Extent of Conflicts. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ARTICLE SHALL PREVAIL OVER
ANY CONFLICTING OR INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS SET FORTH ELSEWHERE IN THIS

CONTRACT.

ARTICLE 15. FORCE MAJEURE

15.1 Excuse by Force Majeure. Seller will not be liable for failure to perform any obligation or
delay in. performance resulting from or contributed to by any cause beyond the reasonable
control of Seller or its Subcontractors including without limitation any act of God; act of civil or
military authority; act of war whether declared or undeclared; act of terrorism; act (including
delay, failure to act, or priority) of any governmental authority or Buyer; civil disturbance;
insurrection or riot; sabotage fire; inclement weather conditions; earthquake; flood; strike; work
stoppage or other labor difficulty; embargo; car shortage; fuel or energy shortage; delay or
accident in shipping or transportation; or failure or delay beyond its reasonable control in
obtaining necessary manufacturing facilities, labor, necessary. import or export licenses or
materials from usual sources. Notwithstanding the foregoing and for the avoidance of doubt,
the following shall not be considered events of Force Majeure: economic hardship; lack of
money or credit; loss of profit or loss of return on investment; changes in commodity prices and
the price,of raw materials, fuel and supplies; changes in labor costs, wages and benefits;
changes in exchange rates; Seller’s inability to perform and complete the work for the Contract
Price; and, for either Party, the obligation to make payment in accordance with the terms of the

Contract

16.2 Effect of Force Majeure. In the event of a delay in performance excusable under this
Article, the date of Delivery or time for performance of the work will be extended by a period of
time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such delay and Buyer will reimburse Seller
for its reasonable and identifiable additional costs and expenses resulting from said delay.

ARTICLE 16. MISCELLANEOUS

16.1 Confidential or Proprietary Information.

16.1.1 Confidentiality Obligation. Information furnished pursuant to the Contract may be
regarded by Seller as confidential or proprigtary information ("Confidential Information"),
including Seller's proposal and the Contract itself. Buyer will (a) maintain Confidential
Information in confidence with the same level of care as Buyer maintains its own confidential or
proprietary information but in no event maintained with any less than a reasonable standard of
care; (b) restrict the disclosure of Confidential Information within Buyer to those persons having
a-need for access; (c) not disclose to any third party (including affiliates, contractors or
financing entities) any such information which is specifically designated as confidential or

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 . : Page 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. )



proprietary information of Seller without the prior written permission of Seller; and (d) not use
any such Confidential Information for other than the express purpose for which it is supplied.
Prior to disclosing such Confidential Information to any party, Buyer shall (i) enter into an’
agreement with such third party requiring said third party to protect the Confidential Information
and to keep it confidential, and (ii) obtain Seller’s prior written approval (not to be unreasonably
withheld or unduly delayed) of the agreement before any Confidential Information is disclosed
to the third party. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to information,
notwithstanding any confidential designation thereof, which was rightfully known by Buyer
without any restriction as to disclosure or use at the time it is furnished, which is or becomes
generally available to the public without breach of any agreement, or which is received from a
third party without limitation or restriction on said third party or Buyer at the time of disclosure.

16.1.2 Disclosure Pursuant to Government Mandate. @ When required by appropriate
governmental authority, including governmental regulations, applicable law or regulation, by
order of a court of competent jurisdiction or lawful subpoena (hereinafter collectively referred to
as (“Government Authority”) or when Buyer has received a valid request under the California
Public Records Act, Buyer may disclose such proprietary information to such Government
Authority or requestor under any California Public Records Act re'quest subject to the following
conditions: (a) Buyer shall provide Seller within five (5) Days of receiving the request written
notice of the request and will include a copy of such request with the written notice; (b) Buyer
shall provide to Seller reasonable access to the documents Buyer proposes to produce in
response to any such request; (c) after Seller is provided reasonable access to the documents
Buyer proposes to produce, Seller shall have twenty (20) Days within which to provide Buyer
with a list of those documents that Seller objects to the Buyer producing based on said
documents being confidential, proprietary or trade secret information of Seller (hereinafter the
“Disputed Documents”); (d) within five (5) Days of receiving any objection from Seller, Buyer
shall provide a written notice to Seller stating whether Buyer agrees with Seller's objections; (e)
if Buyer does not agree to some or all of Seller's objections, Buyer shall so state this in the
response and shall specifically identify to Seller which Disputed Documents Buyer proposes to
produce; and (f) Buyer agrees, however, that it shall not produce any Disputed Documents until
ten (10) days after it has provided Seller with written notice in accordance with 16.1.2 (d) above
so that Seller can take further action to protect any Disputed Documents from being produced
including the filing of a motion for protective order in court. In the event that Buyer is found by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be responsible for reimbursing attorneys’ fees or costs as a’
resuit of failing to produce Disputed Documents to such requestor that files a valid California
Public Records Act request, Seller agrees to indemnify Buyer for such fees and costs to the
extent that Buyer’s failure to produce documents was based solely on Seller’s actions.

Under any and all circumstances relating to a request to the Buyer for documentation, Buyer
-shall make every reasonable effort (which shall include participation by Seller in discussions
with the Government Authority involved) to secure confidential treatment and minimization of
the proprietary information to be provided. In the event that efforts to secure confidential
treatment are unsuccessful, Seller shall have the prior right to revise such information to
minimize the disclosure of such information in a manner consonant with its interests and the

requirements of the Government Authority involved.

16.1.3 Indemnity. Buyer shall be responsible for maintaining Seller's Confidential Information
subject to the provisions of Section 16.1.1 and 16.1.2. Any unauthorized disclosure of
Confidential Information or other violation of the provisions of this Contract shall be deemed a
material breach of this Contract. The Parties agree that monetary damages for any breach of

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 26
Siemens Energy, Inc.



the provisions of this Article are inadequate and that the non-breaching Party is entutled to
appropriate equitable relief (including without limitation, injunctive relief or specific performance)
for any breach of such provisions. Such remedies shall neither be exclusive nor be in
derogation of any other rights or remedies which a Party may have under this Contract or under
applicable law. All of the non-breaching Party’s rights and remedies shall be cumulative and
may be exercised separately or concurrently.

16.1.4  Other Agreements. The provisions of this Section 16.1 shall be in addition to, and
not in lieu of, any other confidentiality agreements or arrangements between Seller and Buyer.

16.2 Subcontractors. Seller shall have the right to have mdlwdual items of the Program
Parts, Non-Program Parts or Miscellaneous Hardware supplied to it or Services performed by
Subcontractors, provided that no such Subcontractor is intended to be or shall be deemed a
third party beneficiary of this Contract. Notwithstanding the ‘foregoing, no arrangements
between Seller and any Subcontractor shall create any contractual relationship between any
Subcontractor and Buyer. Seller shall be solely responsible for the engagement and
management of Subcontractors in the performance of work, for all work performed and items
provided by Subcontractors and for all acts and omissions of Subcontractors. :

Seller will not sign the Lodi Energy Center Project Maintenance Labor Agreement (“MLA")
(attached hereto as Exhibit J) however, Seller agrees to subcontract Covered Work as defined
in Exhibit J that is included in the Contract only to Subcontractors who abide by the pro;ectt
MLA. ‘Seller anticipates subcontracting the labor for Covered Work that is included in the
Contract to the Selier's subsidiary company named Siemens Generation Services Co.
(“SGSC”). SGSC is a national contractor which specializes in using union building trade labor
to perform maintenance on combustion turbine generators, steam turbine generators and their

auxiliaries.

16.3 Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, nothing in this
Contract shall be construed to create any duty to, or standard of care with respect to or any
liability to any person who is not a Party to this Contract

16.4 Dispute Resolution. In the event a dispute arises between. Seller and Buyer regarding
the application or interpretation of any provision of this Contract that cannot be resolved
pursuant to the alternative dispute resolution procedures described below, the Parties expressly
agree, notwithstanding that the Project is located in the City of Lodi, San Joaquin County,
California that the County of San Francisco and specifically, the Superior Court of the State of
California in and for the County of San Francisco or the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California shall be the venue for any action or proceeding between the
Parties with respect to this Contract. Pending the resolution of any dispute, protest or claim
under this Section 16.4, Seller or Buyer shall proceed with the performance of its undisputed
obligations consistent with its res'pectlve position in the dispute, including but not limited to
payment. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Dispute Resolution Article, including the
alternative dispute resolution procedures described below, Seller shall have the right at any
time to pursue equitable relief, including injunctive relief, under Section 16.1.

16.4.1 All questions of fact, and any and all disputes with reference thereto, arising out of the
performance of this Contract, or changes therein, or extra work in connection therewith, shall be
submitted in writing to the applicable Party.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 . : Page 27
Siemens Energy, Inc.



16.4.2 Prior to initiating litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction, both Seller and Buyer shall-
undergo alternative dispute procedures as outlined in California Public Contract Code Section
20104, et seq. for claims that do not exceed one million, five hundred thousand Dollars
($1,500,000). The Parties also expressly agree that the Alternative Dispute Resolution
procedures outlined in California Public Contract Code Sections 20104, et seq. shall apply to all
claims that exceed three hundred seventy-five thousand Dollars ($375,000) but are equal to or
less than one million five hundred thousand Doliars ($1,500,000), and that such procedures are
incorporated as though fully set forth in this Contract.

16.4.3 For claims in excesé of one million five hundred thousand Doilars ($1,500,000) in the
aggregate, both Seller and Buyer agree to the following process:

(a) The claim shall be in writing and include documentatlon if available, that
substantiates the claim;

(b)  The Party receiving the claim shall have sixty (60) bays to respond in writing to
the claim;

(c) If the claimant disputes the written response, or a written response has not been
provided within the sixty (60) Day period, claimant may notify the other Party,
within_fifteen (15) Days of receipt of the written response or within fifteen (15)
Days of when the response was due, that it demands an informal conference to
meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. This meeting must be
held within thirty (30) Days of such demand and shail be attended by senior
management of the Parties;

(d) Following the meet and confer set forth in Section 16.4.3(c), claimant is free to
pursue any legal remedies accorded by the law including, but not limited to, fi Ilng
a lawsuit in court; and

(e) Seller and Buyer agree that the procedures set forth in California Public Contract
Code Sections 20104, et seq., do not apply to disputes that exceed one million,
five hundred thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) in the aggregate.

16.5 Assignment and Delegation. The Contract will not be assigned by either Party without
the prior written consent of the other Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.
However, Seller may assign the Contract without prior written consent, in whole or in part, to
any subsidiary, parent, or successor organization (whether as a result of reorganlzatlon
restructuring or sale) or affiliate of Seller, or may assign the Contract in whole or in part, to such
entity that substantially all of the assets or direct ownership thereof relating to the power
generation business have been fransferred. Any purported assignment without such prior
written cohsent shall be null and void.

16.6 Severability. If any phrase, sentence, clause, Section or Article contained in this
Contract is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such a ruling shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions of the Contract so long as the material purposes of this
Contract can be determined and effectuated. The Parties shall negotiate appropriate
modifications to the Contract to restore the Contract to the Parties' original intent.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 . Page 28
Siemens Energy, Inc.



16.7 Amendments. No change, amendment or modification of this Contract shall be valid or
binding upon the Parties hereto unless such change, amendment or modification shall be in
writing and duly executed by both Parties hereto.

16.8  Joint Effort.. Preparatton and negotiation of this Contract has been a joint effort of the
Parties and neither the Contract nor any of its provisions shall be construed against either of
the Parties as the drafting party or otherwise. Each Party has retained its own experts and
professionals, and has not relied on the expert or professional advice of the other Party hereto.

16.9 Captions. The captions contained in this Contract are for convenience and reference
only and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the scope or intent of this Contract or the

intent of any provision contained herein.

16.10 Non-Waiver. Any failure of any Party to enforce any of the provisions of this Contract or
to require compliance with any of its terms at any time during the pendency of this Contract
shall in no way affect the validity of this Contract, or any part hereof, and shall not be deemed a
waiver of the right of such Party thereafter to enforce any and each such provision.

16.11 Agglicable Law. This Contract shall be governed by, construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of California, exclusive of conflicts or choice of law
provisions or the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods.

16.12 Successors and Assigns. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the Parties hereto, their successors and permitted assigns.

16.13 Counterparts. This Contract may be signed in-any ‘number of counterparts and each
counterpart shall represent a fully executed original.

16.14 Notices. Any written notice, direction, instruction, request, or other communication
required or permitted under this Contract, including payment invoices from Seller to Buyer, shall
be deemed to have been duly given on the date of receipt, and shall be either served personally
or by telefacsimile to the Party to whom notice is to be given, or mailed to the Party to whom
notice is to be given, by first class registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, and addressed to the addressee at the address stated opposite its name below, or at
the most recent address specified by written notice given to the other Party in the manner
provided in this Section 16.14.

BUYER: Northern California Power Agency
' Lodi Energy Center

12745 North Thornton Rd.

P.O. Box 1478

Lodi, CA 95242

Attention: Plant Manager

Tel: (209) 333-6730

~ With copies to:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 ‘Page 29
Siemens Energy, Inc. . ’ )



Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Attention: General Manager and General Counsel
Tel : (9186) 781-3636

Fax : (916) 781-4254

SELLER: Siemens Energy, Inc. .
4400 Alafaya Trail MC-605
Orlando, FL. 32826-2399
Attention: Long-Term Programs c/o Gregory Wendt
Telephone:  (407) 736-3543
Fax: - (407) 736-5015

16.15 Complete Contract. This Contract, including all Exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the
complete agreement between the Parties as of the Effective Date of the Contract, and
supersedes any and all agreements (oral or written), proposals, discussions or representatlons

made or dated prior thereto concerning the subject matter therein.

16.16 Site Access. Seller's personnel performing Services at the Slte shall comply W|th
Buyer's Site safety and security measures at the Site.

16.17 Permits and Licenses. Buyer shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary approvals,
permits and licenses for the Project from governmental agenmes having jurisdiction including
any import and export licenses. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the obligation of
Buyer to pay for Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware or Services as
‘'set forth in this Contract shall not be affected by any delay or failure to secure or renew, or by
the cancellation of, any such necessary approvals, permits or licenses.

16.18 Special Packing. Seller will pack for standard shipment via truck or rail transportation.
When this packing will not meet Buyer's requirements covering preparation of Program Parts,
Non-Program Parts or Miscellaneous Hardware for special shipments, Buyer must notify Seller
of the special packing specifications involved during negotiation of the Contract. The charge
made for such packing will be based on its cost to Seller and will be shown as a separate item

on the invoice.

16.19 Return of Program Paris, Non-Program Parts or Miscellaneous Hardware. Seller shall
pack and arrange for transportation off of the Site, all Program Parts that were removed from

the Combustion Turbine during the preceding outage and, when possible, Seller shall use the
-same shipping containers for such Program Parts as Seller provided to Buyer. In no event will
Seller be responsible for Program Parts, Non-Program Parts or Miscellaneous Hardware
returned by Buyer without proper authorization and identification.

16.20 Transfer. Prior to the transfer to a third party of any Program Parts, Non-Program Parts
and Miscellaneous Hardware or the transfer of any interest in said Program Parts, Non-
Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware or Buyer's power generation facility in which said
Program Parts, Non-Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware are installed, Buyer shall
obtain for Seller written assurances from the transferee of limitation of and protection against
liability following the proposed transfer at least equivalent to that afforded Selier and its
Subcontractors under the Contract. Transfer contrary to the provisions of this Section shall

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 30
Siemens Energy, Inc. :



make Buyer the indemnitor of Seller and ifs Subcontractors against any liabilities incurred by
Seller and its Subcontractors in excess of those that would have been incurred had no such

transfer taken place.

16.21 Survival. The provisions of Articles 9, Intellectual Property, 13, Indemnificafion, and 14,
Limitation of Liability and Sections 16.1, Confidential or Proprietary. Information and 16.20,
Transfer, of this Contract shall survive the expiration or other termination of the Contract.

16.22 Environmental Compliance. The pérformance of Service at the Site may involve the
generation of regulated waste (as defined below).

Buyer shall be responsible for the handling, storage and disposal of all regulated wastes at its .
expense and agrees to indemnify Seller against any related claims or actions. Buyer shall
furnish Seller with appropriate containers for regulated wastes and shall designate a waste
storage facility at the Site where such containérs are to be placed by.Seller for removal and
disposal by Buyer. Buyer shall handle, store and dispose of regulated waste in accordance with
all applicable governmental, federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances.
"Regulated waste" shall mean (a) (i) "hazardous waste" or (i) "industrial waste", as either (i)-or
(i) is defined in or regulated under or by the national laws of the country, the state/provincial
and the local laws applicable to the Site; or (b) any other waste the handling, storage, or
disposal of which requires a permit, license, authorization, approval, or other special handling.

16.23 Asbestos and Thermal Insulation.

The terms "Asbestos" and "Presumed Asbestos Containing Material" shall have the meanings
set forth in United States Code of Federal Regulations Chapter 29 Section CFR 1926.1101 et

seq.

(1)  The Buyer, by allowing access to any Site, thereby warrants, represents, and
certifies that any areas there associated with the Seller's scope of work,
- including, without limitation, areas of ingress and egress thereto (the "Work
Areas") either (a) are free of asbestos or asbestos containing materials
(collectively "ACM"), or (b) any ACM there present is lawfully abated and
conspicuously and specifically marked as asbestos or ACM, and all thermal
insulation, sprayed-on surfacing material, and/or Presumed Asbestos Containing
Material ("PACM") the disturbance of which could occur in or removal of which is
required for the performance of the Services has been removed. Without limiting
its other rights and remedies Seller shall not be obligated to commence or may
stop any work in any Work Areas unless fully satisfied that the Buyer is in
compliance with this paragraph and shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment
in the schedule, price and other provisions of the Contract affected thereby or
otherwise affected by Buyer's non-compliance. : '

(2) Seller does not represent that it is licensed to abate ACM. Where the Services
include activities such as handling, modification, removal, or reinstallation of
generator wedges, packing, or high temperature gaskets (such materials herein
"GPW"), then, and unless Seller is provided satisfactory written evidence that
such GPW is not ACM, Seller shall be obligated only to the extent (a) such
activities would be classified as Class 1l or Class |l activity under United States
Code of Federal Regulations Chapter 29 Section CFR 1926.1101 et seq., (b)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 31
Siemens Energy, Inc.



such activities do not require a permit, license, or authorization, (c) such
activities are not likely to generate airborne asbestos fibers, and (d) all such
GPW is non-friable. In all other cases, such activities shall be Buyer's
responsibility and Seller shall be .entitled to an equitable adjustment in the
schedule, price and other pertinent affected provisions of this Contract should
the same not be performed in a timely manner. The disposal of any GPW or
scrap or waste material resulting from its disturbance or removal shall in all

cases be the Buyer's responsibility.

16.24 Export Law Compliance.  Buyer acknowledges that Seller is required to comply with
applicable export laws and regulations relating to the sale, exportation, transfer, assignment,
disposal and usage of the Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware and
Services provided under the Contract, including any export license requirements. Buyer agrees
that such Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous Hardware and Services shall not
at any time directly or indirectly be used, exported, sold, transferred, assigned or otherwise
disposed of in a manner which will result in a non-compliance with such applicable export laws
and regulations. It shall be a condition of the continuing performance by Seller of its obligations
hereunder that compliance with such export laws and regulations be maintained at all times.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto have entered into this Contract as of the Effective Date
first appearing above.

SELLER BUYER
SIEMENS ENER INC. NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By: Q(U’ﬁoA J—&&\}>

Name:_ CRAMG A. WEEK S

Title:_VICE PREL |DENT, Gloat
SERVILE DPErRATIONS

Ruthann
Counsel

. Ziegler, Assistant General

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP / Rev. November 1, 2014 Page 32
Siemens Energy, Inc.



Exhibit A
Scope of Work Description
1.0 SCOPE DOCUMENTS

1.1  Scope Documents. This Scope of Work Description consists of this general
descnptlon and the following addenda which are specifically made a part hereof by reference:

Addendum 1A - Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage Services
Description

Addendum 1B - Steam Turbine Scheduled Outage Services
Description

Addendum 2A - Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage Division of
Responsibilities

Addendum 2B - Steam Turbine Scheduled Outage Division of

: Responsibilities
Addendum 3 - Scope of Program Management Services

1.2 Conflicting Provisions. In the event of any conflict between this document and
any addendum hereto, the terms and provisions of this document, as amended from time to
time, shall-control. In the event of any conflict among the addenda, the following order of
precedence shall govern: Addendum 1A, 1B, 2A, 2B, and 3. Subject to the foregoing, the
several instruments forming part of this Scope of Work Description are to be taken as mutually
explanatory of one and another and in the case of ambiguities or discrepancies within or
between such parts shall be explained and adjusted by the mutual agreement of the Parties.

2.0 SELLER'S OBLIGATIONS

2.1 Program Part(s) During the Term, Seller shall deliver the type and quantity of
Serviceable Program Parts as required per the Scheduled Outage plan jointly developed and
revised in accordance with Section 4.2 of this Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description.

2.2 Miscellaneous Hardware, Non-Program Parts, and Exhaust Components.
During the Term, Seller shall deliver the type and quantity of Miscellaneous Hardware as
required per the Scheduled Outage plan jointly developed and revised in accordance with
Section 4.2 of this Exhibit A, Scope of Work Description. Seller shall supply any Non-Program
Parts and Exhaust Components as mutually agreed to by the Parties and specified in a Change

Order issued pursuant to Article 6.

2.3 ' Scheduled Out_gLServnces During the Term, Seller shall, per the Scheduled
Outage plan jointly developed and revised in accordance with Section 4.2 of this Exhibit A,
" Scope of Work Description, provide all labor, supervision and technical field assistance (TFA
engineering) to- complete its Scheduled Outage Services, specified in Addenda 1A and 1B
hereto for the applicable Scheduled Outage. Furthermore, as part of such Scheduled Outage
Services, Seller is responsible for those responsibilities listed in Addenda 2A -and 2B which

have an "X" in the Seller column.

2.4  Program Management Services. Seller shall provide Program Management
Services to manage the Steam Turbine and Combustion Turbine maintenance program, in
accordance with Addendum 3 hereto, throughout the Term of this Contract. _

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit A Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc.



25 Remote Monitor System. Seller, at its sole discretion, at any time during the
Term of this Contract, may place, at no cost to Buyer, a monitoring system pursuant to the
provisions of Exhibit K, Remote Monitor System

2.6 Transportation. Seller will transport Program .Parts, Non-Program Parts and
items of Miscellaneous Hardware to and from the Site in accordance with its obligations under

the Contract. ‘
30 BUYER'S OBLIGATIONS |

3.1 Storage. Buyer will store and maintain the parts, including any Program Parts,
Non-Program Parts, Exhaust Components and Miscellaneous Hardware supplied by Seller
hereunder, materials, tools and bolting kits at the Site in accordance with the orlgmal equipment
manufacturer’'s and Seller’s written instructions.

3.2  Project Operation. Buyer will maintain and operate the Combustion Turbine and
Steam Turbine consistently with the warranty conditions stated in Article 8, Warranty, of the

Contract.

3.3 Training. Buyer will ensure that its operator and maintenance personnel are
properly trained in the correct operation and maintenance of the Project including the control

system.

34  Scheduled Outage. Buyer will provide indoor work space for the Scheduled
Outage Services personnel, including the outage manager, outage engineers and Combustion
Turbine and Steam Turbine technicians. Additionally, Buyer will provide the resources listed in
Addenda 2A and ZB which have an "X" in the Buyer column.

o 3.5 Hazardous Waste. Buyer will arrange for the disposal of all hazardous wastes
generated by the Seller and Buyer.

3.6 Operating Data. At the end of each month Buyer will provide to Seller the
number of Equivalent Starts and EBHs incurred by the Combustion Turbine and Steam Turbine

during that month and the data to support the calculations.

3.7 Remote Monitor System. If a monitoring system is provided by Seller pursuant
to Exhibit K, Remote Monitor System, Buyer shall also perform the obligations stated therein.

. 3.8  Transportation. Buyer will transport Program Parts that are removed from the -
Combustion Turbine after outages from the Site to Seller's designated facility.

40 JOINT OBLIGATIONS

4.1 Deviations to Scope. Either Party shall inform the other of any unexpected
findings or any deviations from the Scheduled Outage pian and Seller and Buyer shall jointly
modify, pursuant to a Change Order, the scope of the deliverables and Services related to the

affected Scheduled Outage.

42  Qutage Schedule. Buyer and Seller shall jointly develop the Séheduled Outage
plan and shall jointly revise such plan during each interval between each Scheduled Outage, if
necessary. The projected Scheduled ‘Outage plan is contained in Exhibit C, Projected

Lodi Energy Center Pro;ect LTP P Exhibit A Page 2
Siemens Energy, Inc.



Scheduled Outage Plan. The Parties shall mutually agree upon the commencement date for
each Scheduled Outage at least six (6) months prior to such Scheduled Outage’s expected
date of commencement. Should this plan be revised, changing the number or type of Program
Parts, Non-Program Parts or Services to be provided or the type of Scheduled Outage(s) or the’
dates for which the Scheduled Outages are to be performed, such shall constitute a Change in
scope and entitle Seller to a Change Order pursuant to Section 6.4, Minimum Operating
Requirements. Buyer will schedule each Combustor Scheduled Outage, Hot Gas Path
Scheduled Outage and Major Scheduled Outage for the Combustion Turbine at no longer than
the applicable interval indicated in the then current version of Exhibit D,. Service Bulletin 55004.
Buyer will schedule each Steam Turbine Major Overhaul, Steam Turbine Limited Overhaul, and
Steam Turbine Annual Safety Inspection Scheduled Outages as set forth in Exhibit C. Seller
will be entitled to a Change Order in the event of such a change in the applicable Scheduled

Outage interval.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP - Exhibit A Page 3 -

Siemens Energy, Inc.



~ Addendum 1A ,
Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage Services Description

The following paragraphs become effective upon installation of the CIE hardware at the
Period 2 Hot Gas Path Schedul_ed Outage.

" The Parties agree that this Contract is designed to accommodate modifications to the operating
interval and scope as technologies, techniques and procedures evolve over the Term. As such,
Seller shall have the right to request modifications during the Term to the (i) Basis Interval,
which upon installation of the CIE hardware at the Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage is
not less than the earlier of 25,000 EBH or 1,200 ES (“Basis Interval”) and (ii) the scope within
the Basis Scope, which as of the Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage is the scope of

work defined below (“Basis Scope”). -

Whenever Seller desires to modify the Basis Interval (such modification referred to as “Flex
Interval”) or Basis scope (such modification referred to as “Flex Scope”), then Seller must
present such requested modification via the Scheduled Outage planning set forth in Exhibit A,
Section 4.2. As part of such application, Seller must provnde and present information to support
the requested change(s) to Buyer. Such presentation may include Seller's methodology,
evaluation criteria and assessment process used to define both the interval and/or scope, as
applicable. Buyer shall review such request(s) in a timely manner. If Buyer desires to review
specific technical information in connection with such Fiex Interval or Flex Scope modification,
then Seller shall make its relevant resources and documents that are approved for external
distribution available to Buyer in a timely manner (to include hosting a review of documents at
Seller’s facility, if necessary), subject to the provisions of Section 16.1.1.

Similarly, if Buyer desires for Seller to make modifications to extend the Basis Interval, then
Buyer shall present such request to Seller also via the Scheduled Outage planning process.
Seller shall review such request(s) in a timely manner. .

In no instance shall either Party knowingly request or implement modifications which would
adversely affect the operation and performance of the Combustion Turbines. Adverse effects
would include adverse impacts to safety, operation, efficiency and/or emissions or dynamics.
Further, the Parties agree to work cooperatively to mitigate effects of such modifications to
outage scheduling and implementation. The Parties agree to work together to reach mutual
agreement on whether, and to what extent, a Flex Interval and/or a Flex Scopeor modifications
to extend the Base Interval shall be implemented. Under no circumstances will a Flex Interval,
Flex Scope or madifications to extend the Base Interval be unilaterally implemented and neither
Party shall unreasonably withhold its approval for such Flex Interval and/or a Flex Scope or
modifications to extend the Base Interval, on condition that it will be reasonable to withhold
consent for reasons consistent with generally accepted electric power industry practices.

For clarity, each type of Scheduled Outage is subject to revision puréuant to the application and
modification procedure set forth herein. Other than the modification process described above,
all other requested changes shall be implemented pursuant to Article 6.

After the Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage, Seller agrees to perform one borescope
inspection on the Combustion Turbine, at Seller's expense, during each Period between the Hot
Gas Path and Major Scheduled Outages (currently projected as Periods 3, 5, 7, 9 and 11 per
~ Exhibit C, Projected Scheduled Outage Plan), limited to once per Period and a total of five (5)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 1

Siemens Energy, Inc.



borescope inspections in aggregate over the Term. Each Party will be responsible for
performing, -at its own expense, its obligations required pursuant to Exhibit A, Addendum 2A,
Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage Division of Responsibilities.

Basis Scope
Disassembly, inspections, and reassembly will be performed per applicable Seller field Service

procedures. The following Scheduled Outage workscope description, defined as the “Basis
Scope”, illustrates a typical Scheduled Outage but may not reflect the actual workscope
performed which may vary, at Seller's discretion, from this description. Seller will complete
Seller's workscope using the level of effort necessary in accordance with prudent engineering
practices. Under the Basis Scope, components which have reached their repair or replacement
interval or were deemed not fit for continued service through the inspection process will be

replaced as specified by the Contract. '
COMBUSTOR INSPECTION
INLET SECTION

Disassembly
e Remove access cover on inlet manifold.

Inspection :
e Visually inspect compressor inlet for damage and oil leaks.

e Visually inspect the inlet guide vanes and row #1 compressor blades.
e Measure the row #1 compressor blade radial clearances.

Assembly
« Install the inlet manifold access cover.

COMBUSTOR SECTION

Disassembly
e Remove the combustor access manway covers.
¢ Remove the following components: -

1. Fuel nozzles and piping

2. Cross-flame tubes

3. Combustor baskets

4. Transitions

5. Row #1 vanes

Inspection

o Visually inspect the fuel nozzles, cross-flame tubes, combustor baskets, and transitions for -
damage.

Perform visual inspection of the rotor cooling air pipes in place.

Perform visual inspection of the row #1 turbine vanes.

‘Perform visual inspection of row #1 blades in place.

Perform boroscope inspection of row #2 in place.

e @ & @

Assembly
e [nstall row #1 vanes

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 2

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Install and align replacement transitions per the applicable Service Bulletin and measure

clearances.
. Measure and record transition outlet mouth clearances.

®

« Install replacement combustor baskets and check alignment to the transitions.
¢ Install replacement cross-flame tubes.

e Install replacement fuel nozzles.

¢ |Install fuel nozzle piping.

EXHAUST SECTION

Inspection o

e Perform visual inspection of the turbine exhaust including the strut shields.
e Visually inspect the row #4 turbine blades and measure the radial clearances.

Notes:

1. Document and map all defects, cracks, wear, etc. as found.

2. Document all as found clearances and as left clearances.

3. Document all parts by location and serial number as installed in the engine and removed

from the engine.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 3

Siemens Energy, Inc.



HOT GAS PATH INSPECTION

INLET SECTION

Disassembly
¢ Remove access cover on inlet manifold.

Inspection

o Visually inspect compressor inlet for damage and oil leaks.

« Visually inspect the inlet guide vanes and row #1 compressor blades.
¢ Measure the row #1 compressor blade radial clearances.

Assembly |
Install the inlet manifold access cover.

COMBUSTOR SECTION

Disassembly

Remove the following components:
Turbine cylinder cover

Fuel nozzles and piping
Cross-flame tubes

Combustor baskets

‘Transitions

Inspection
e Visually inspect the fuel nozzles, cross-flame tubes, combustor baskets, and transitions for

damage.
¢ Visually inspect the rotor cooling air plpes in place.

Assembly
Install and align replacement transitions per the appllcable Service Bulletin.

Measure and record the transition outlet mouth clearances.

Install replacement combustor baskets and measure alignment to transitions.
Install replacement cross-flame tubes. '

Install replacement fuel nozzles.

Install fuel nozzle plpmg

TURBINE SECTION

Disassembly

Remove the turbine cooling air piping and cylinder cover.

Unbolt-and remove the upper half rows 2, 3, and 4 blade rings and interstage seals.
Measure the turbine axial and radial clearances.

Remove the lower half rows 2, 3, and 4 blade rings.

Remove the rows 1, 2, 3, and 4 vanes.

Remove the turbine biades.

Inspection
e Clean and NDE the turbine discs per the applicable Service Bulletin.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 4

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Visually mspect the turbine ring segments.

Clean and inspect the vanes per the applicable Service Bulletin.
Clean and inspect the blades per the applicable Service Bulletin.
Clean and visually inspect the turbine cylinder and piping.

Assembly
Install replacement ring segments as needed.
Install replacement vanes.
Install replacement turbine biades.
Install lower half rows 2, 3, and 4 blade rings and measure the axial and radial clearances.
Install and bolt the upper half interstage seals and blade rings.
- Align the blade rings to the rotor.
Install and bolt the turbine cylinder cover and piping.

® & ® ° 0o 0 @

EXHAUST SECTION

Inspection
e Perform visual inspection of the turbine exhaust mcludmg the strut shields.

Notes:
1. Document and map all defects, cracks, wear, etc., as found.
2. Document all as found clearances and as left clearances
.3 Document all parts by location and serial number as installed in the Combustlon Turblne
and removed from the Combustion Turbine.
4. Provide moment weight and sequence charts for all rotating parts (| e., 15 stage blades)

by serial number and location.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Adden&a Page 5

Siemens Energy, Inc.



MAJOR INSPECTION
INLET SECTION

Disassembly

Remove upper half inlet manifold and inlet casing.

Measure the inlet end journal bearing clearances and remove the bearing.
Measure thrust bearing axial clearance and disassemble bearing.
Measure air and oil seal clearances and remove seals.

Inspection

« Clean and visually inspect inlet manifold, inlet casing, and inlet guide vanes.

e Perform ultrasonic inspection of journal bearing babbitt.
e Perform ultrasonic inspection of thrust bearing babbitt.
o Perform visual and dimensional inspection of the oil and air seals.

Assembly

Install air and oil seals and measure clearances.

Install journal bearing and measure clearances.
Assemble thrust bearing and measure clearance.

Install and bolt upper half inlet casing and inlet manifold.

COMPRESSOR SECTION

Disassembly

¢« Remove upper half compressor covers.

e Measure compressor axial and radial clearances.
¢ Remove compressor diaphragms. '

Inspection
» Clean and visually inspect compressor cylinders.
e Clean and visually inspect compressor diaphragms.

Assembly

¢ Install compressor diaphragms.

e Measure compressor axial and radial clearances.
« Install and bolt compressor cylinder covers.

COMBUSTOR SECTION

Disassembly

¢« Remove the following components:
Fuel nozzles and piping..
Combustor baskets.

Transitions.

Rotor cooling air pipes.

® @ o @

Inspection
« Visually inspect the combustor components for damage.

e Visually inspect the (otor cooling air pipes.

Assembly

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc.

Addenda Page 6



Install the rotor cooling air pipes.
Install and align replacement transitions per the applicable Serwce Bulletm

Measure the transition outlet mouth clearances.

Install replacement combustor baskets, and check alignment to the transitions.
Install replacement cross-flame tubes.

Install replacement fuel nozzles.

Install fuel nozzle piping.”

TORQUE TUBE SEAL HOUSING
" Disassembly

Remove the upper half torque tube seal housing.
Measure the torque tube seal clearances.
Remove the torque tube seals.

Inspection
.Clean and visually inspect the torque tube seals.

Visually inspect the static seal segments.
Clean and visually inspect the torque tube seal housing.

Assembly

Install the torque tube seals and measure clearances.
Install and bolt the upper half torque tube seal housing.

TURBINE SECTION
Disassembly

Remove the turbine cooling air piping and cylinder cover.

Unbolt and remove the upper half rows 2, 3, and 4 blade rings and interstage seals.
Measure the turbine axial and radial clearances.

Remove the lower half rows 2, 3, and 4 blade rings.

Remove the rows 1, 2, 3, and 4 vanes.

Remove the turbine blades.

Inspection

-Visually inspect the turbine ring segments
Clean and inspect the vanes per the applicable Service Bulletin.
Clean and inspect the blades per the applicable Service Bulletin.

- Clean and visually inspect the turbine cylinder and piping.

Assembly

Install replacement ring segments as needed

Install replacement vanes.

Install replacement turbine blades.

Install the lower half rows 2, 3, and 4 blade rings and measure the axnal and radial
clearances.

install and bolt the upper half interstage seals and blade rings.

Align the blade rings to the rotor.

Install and bolt the turbine cylinder cover and piping.

EXHAUST SECTION

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP

Siemens Energy, Inc.

Addenda Page 7



Disassembly
¢ Remove the exhaust cyllnder cover.
e Measure the exhaust end journal bearing clearances and remove the bearing.

¢ Measure the air and oil seal clearances and remove the seals.

Inspection :
« Clean and visually inspect the exhaust cylinder including the struts and strut shields.

o Perform ultrasonic inspection of journal bearing babbitt.
« Perform visual and dimensional inspection of the oil and air seals.

Assembly
¢ Install air and oil seals and measure clearances.
o Install the journal bearing and measure the clearances.

« Install and bolt the exhaust cylinder cover.

ROTOR SECTION

Disassembly

o Unbolt turbine/generator coupling and measure alignment.
¢ Rig and remove the rotor.

e Remove the turbine blades.

Inspection

¢ Clean and NDE the turbine discs.

« Clean and inspect the compressor blades in place per the applicable Serwce Bulletin.
e Clean and dimensionally inspect the bearing journals and thrust collar.

Clean and inspect the coupling.

Assembly
« Rig and instali rotor.
e Measure coupling alignment and bolt coupling.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 8

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Addendum 1B
. SST-900RH Steam Turbine Scheduled Outage Services Description

Disassembly, mspectlons and reassembly will be performed per applicable Seller field Service
procedures. The following Scheduled Outage workscope description illustrates a typical outage
but may not reflect the actual workscope performed whlch may vary, at Seller's discretion, from

this description.

STEAM TURBINE ANNUAL SAFETY INSPECTION (ASI)

This consists of verification and testing of the Steam Turbine and generator instrumentation and
safety systems. The purpose: of this inspection is to verify the turbine-generator set protectlon
equipment are working and will function when necessary.

Participation and observation at shut down of the plant

Visual inspection for leaks, noises or other deviations from normal turbine behavior.
Shut down procedure

Leakage test, control valves

Stroke test, emergency stop valve and check valves

Test of tripping devices (switches and transmitters)

Function and logic test of hydraulic oil system

Function and logic test of lube oil system

Gear box inspection (through inspection covers)

Visual inspection of earth grounding device

STEAM TURBINE LIMITED OVERHAUL (LO) -

This inspection aiso incorporates the Steam Turbine Annual Safety Inspection. The Steam
Turbine Limited Overhaul includes inspection of several components of the Steam Turbine and

is listed below.

Participation and observation at shut down of the plant

Visual inspection for leaks, noises or other deviations from normal turbine behavior
Shut down procedure

Leakage test, control valves

Stroke test, emergency stop valve and check valves

Linearity test, control valves

Test of tripping devices (switches and transmitters)

Function and logic test of hydraulic oil system

Function and logic test of lube oil system

Turbine bearing inspection

Perform borescope inspection of accessible areas

Turbine coupling alignment check '

Turbine bearing housing to. foundation alignment inspection

Turbine rupture disk inspection

Disassemble/clean & inspect/reassemble all turbine stop/control valves
Disassemble/clean & inspect/reassemble bypass stop/control valve (if applicable)
Disassemble/clean & inspect/reassembie non-return valve (if applicable)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 9

Siemens Energy, inc.



. STEAM TURBINE MAJOR OVERHAUL (MO)

This inspection also incorporates the Steam Turbine Annual Safety Inspection and the Steam
Turbine Limited Overhaul. The Steam Turbine Major Overhaul includes inspection of several
components of the Steam Turbine and is listed below. '

Participation and observation at shut down of the plant

Visual inspection for leaks, noises or other deviations from normal turbine behavior.

Shut down procedure.

Dismantling procedure on HP and LP-turbine.

Inspection and NDT. of turbine casing, rotor, blades, diaphragms, guide vanes, bearings,
couplings and sealings on turbine.

Inspection and NDT of wheel, pinion, bearings on the gearbox.

Inspection and NDT of main valves, inlet steam valves, extraction valves.

Inspection of valves, actuators, strainers for gland- and leak-off system.

Inspection of valves, pumps, motors, filters, coolers, servomotors, for lube- and hydrauhc oil

system.

® & & o @

Turning Gear
e Disassemble
e Clean and inspect
e Reassemble

Bearing Pedestals :
¢ Check alignment of bearing housmg
¢ Clearance check of bearing housing to seal rings
e Check anchor bolt pre-stress

Bearings .
» Disassemble bearings — check bearing seats in bearing housing

Inspect bearing guides for wear and binding
Check bearing surfaces

Ultrasonic test babbitt bonding

Check bearing clearances

Check seal rings
Check condition and performance of shaft lift oil system

Check condition and performance of temperature monitoring
Reassemble bearings

Coupling A
~ e Open coupling, inspect coupling bolts

¢ Check axial and radial allgnment and runnout check

¢ Close coupling -

Bypass Stop and Control Valves (If applicable)
e External inspection
e Steam side inspection, clearance check
o Perform NDE ’

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 10

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Electric Hydraulic Actuators
¢ Function test
e Inspect cup spring packs
e Inspect for wear, binding, clearance check

Hydraulic Supply System

Drain control Fluid tank
Clean control-fluid tank
Perform functional testing
Record results

Non-return Valve (extraction and exhaust valves if applicable)
e External Inspection
s Steam side inspection, clearance check

Control and Governing System
o Functional check of control and governing system
o Functional test of mechanical, electrical, hydraulic and pneumatic equipment and
calibration
e Check of internals

Turbine
e Open casing
e Remove rotor
¢ Cleaning and NDE on turbine internals (rotor, diaphragms)
[ ]

Inspection of casing

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 11

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Addendum 2A

Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage Division of Responsibilities

The following list specifies the key resources necessary to perform the Scheduled Outages and
assigns responsibility for their supply, either to Seller or Buyer. ,

Outage Responsibility Checklist

: Seller Buyer

1. | Review the scope of work, scheduling and planmng with X

Owner’s representative(s).
2. Provide field engineers, and speclallsts as required by the X

| scope of work.

3. Provide qualified labor and perform the work with good X

safety and housekeeping practices.
4. Provide tools for workforce including transportatlon X
5. Expendable materials X
6. Clerical support/administrative suppon X
7. Final field report . . X
8. | Dustblast equipment, material and services X
9. | NDE equipment, material and services X
10. | Compressed air X
11. | Removal and replacement of insulation - X '
12. | Office trailer, change trailers, chemical toilets, potable water X
13. | Telephone service X**
14. | Cribbing for disassembled parts/scaffolding (as required) X
15. | Cable slings, lifting devices and associated special tooling X

supplied with the original equipment order
16. | Operated crane & crane operators X
17. | Electrician for disconnection and connections X
18. | Electrical power including: (120/480 VAC single phase and X

480 VAC three phase up to 100 amps), service water,

oxygen, acetylene gas, and lubricants .as necessary
19. | Trash containers and disposal service X
20. | Fire protection equipment/ffirst aid facilities X
21. | All asbestos removal and disposal X
22. | Disposal of hazardous waste X
23. | Forklifts & welding machine X
24. |1&C technicians = X
25. | Painting X

** Seller responsible for the phone bill
A Addenda Page 12

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, inc.



"Addendum 2B
Steam Turbine Scheduled Outage Division of Responsibilities

The following list specifies the key resouroés necessary to pér_form the Scheduled Outages and
assigns responsibility for their supply, either to Seller or Buyer.

Outage Responsibility Checklist

Seller

Review the scope of work and provide a schedule

Review the availability of required outage parts including asbestos
free gaskets and gasket material in Buyer's stock

Review inventory and condition of Buyer supplied Steam Turbine X X '
special tooling

Review masonry work requirements and provide recommendations X X
prior to outage '

Review lighting requirements and provide recommendations prior to X X
outage ' .

Review crane and scaffold requirements and provide X X

recommendations for any supplemental cranes or scaffold

Review fork truck requirements and provide recommendations X X
Review gasses and lubricant reduirements and provide X X
recommendations ‘

Review fire protection requirements and provide recommendations X X
for any supplemental fire protection measures

Review storage and enclosure requirements and provide ‘ X X
recommendations ‘ -

Review Foreign Materials Exclusibn (FME) program to assure all
debris, tools and other materials do not enter or are left inside the X X
equipment that may cause damage or operational problems.

Review Site for obstacles of interference and provide X X
recommendations

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 13

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Provude fleld englers thnlans and specnahsts as requured by the .

Electrician(s) for electrical disconnect and reconnect

scope of work- X

Provide quz_ahf:ed craft labor and perform the work with good safety and X

housekeeping practices

Outage clerical support/administrative support X

Instrument and controls (I & C) technicians X
X

Certified crane and operator_

meetings with work updates during the outage

rovude tool set for the craft Iabor T

Observe unit operation during shutdown and obtain data as necessary X
Scheduling and planning X X
Detailed final report and recommendations X
Supply daily updates to the schedule manager and attend progress X

Bolt induction heating .

Expendable materials

Non-destructive (NDE) testing service and material

Supply rigging equipment (not to include special equipment supplied with
Steam Turbine)

Provide oxygen, acetylene gas, argon, hydrogen, carbon dioxide and
lubricants as necessary.

Supply tooling (except as noted below) including bo!t-heatlng equipment,
slug wrenches, chain falls

Provide all turbine / generator tools that were originally supplied by the

major lifting cables, lifting beam, hydrogen cooler lifting brackets,
generator skid pan, shoes and hydrogen seal housing brackets, cable
slings and lifting devices

original equipment manufacture for these units. These include jack bolts,

Washroom facilities, portable toilets and potable water

Office trailer and equipment, change trailers, and telephones

X**

| Telephone service and high-speed internet connection

Provide turbine floor protection when required to prevent damage durmg
material storage and work activities.

Overhead and portable crane(s)

Scaffolding materials and erection

X

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc.

Addenda Page 14




Plant machine facilities and operators, if required

Fork trucks

Compressed air at 100 psi, 480 and 120 volt outlets, phone lines to office
facilities, non-potable water source, trash containers outside of building

and parts storage trailer

Siemens Energy, Inc.

Provudestart-up and balancmg support peormed ona 1 10-6 shxft |

arrangement basis)

Dustblast equipment, material and services for cleaning turbine

components

Arc welding machine(s), if required

Storage and work enclosures for disassembled comppnents

Transport (if required) of dlsassembled parts from/to T/G to/from

work/storage areas.

Support the moving, loading in and out, prepping for shipment and X
receiving of equipment for all the turbine work -

Pre-inspection of the overhead crane(s) as required X
Operations for tagging, draining, filling and testing of equipment -X
Removal and ihstallation of acoustical enclosure, as required

Removal and replacement of non-asbestos insulation blankets

All asbestos insulation removal and disposal X
Disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste including material X
containing asbestos, if encountered
'Removal and disposal of lead paint X
Trash containers and disposal service ’ X
Oil flush program (This service can be provided by Seller upon request on

time & material basis.)

Electrical power including: (120/240V single phase and 240/480, three

X

phase)

Area lighting X
Check and calibrate gauges, instrumentation and thermocouples X
associated with the turbine-generator

Fire protection equipment (existing plant equipment) X
Repack, repair or replace small hand valves X
Repaint as necessary X
Weather protection X

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 15




On-site first aid facilities and ambulance service

Sufficient and convenient lay down, cleaning, storage and work areas in
close proximity to T/G which isolates the Seller work area from routine X

plant activity

Removal of any obstacles of interference outside of the control of Seller
that may be encountered prior to or during the outage which may hinder X
or prevent Seller from performing the work outlined in this offer ,

Rotor stands available for the LP

rotor and one set of power rollers. X
Cribbing and pallets for disassembled parts _
Condenser protection X

**Seller responsible for the phone bill.

‘Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 16

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Addendum 3
- Scope of Program Management Services

Seller will provide Program Management Services throughout the Contract's Term,
commencing twelve (12) months pnor to the Project’s scheduled date of First Fire.

The Program Management Services will include:

1. Providing contacts for communication between Seller and the Buyer's designated
representatives (Operation and Maintenance staff) for the major maintenance of the

plant.

2. Working with the Seller’s inventory and manufacturing personnel (located at Seller
factories throughout the world) to expedite Program Parts and Miscellaneous
Hardware as required to facilitate the success of each Scheduled Outage.

3. Maintaining a parts tracking database on Program Parts.

4. Communicating and coordinating with the plant purchasing agent regarding
warehouse stock of Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware, delivery and
shipment of Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware.

-6. Providing final review of Program Parts and Miscellaneous Hardware inventory prior
to Scheduled Outages to verify that all required Program Parts and Miscellaneous

Hardware are on Site.

8. Initiating -and resolvmg product warranty claims to the best mterest of all Parties
involved.

7. Initiating, determining the status, and verifying completion of (E-FAR's) regarding
plant issues.

- 8. Providing technical support, assistance, and evaluation when operating or
maintenance problems occur. Assisting in areas of technical issues and helping to

facilitate resolution.

9. Communicating to Buyer’'s designated representatwe technical bulletin updates as
published..

10. Delivering to Buyer's designated representative outage reports and repair reports
after Scheduled Outages. - '

11. Providing sourcing assistance for procurement of Siemens Energy, Inc. parts.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP - Addenda Page 17

Siemens Energy, Inc.



QUARTERLY DELIVERABLES

Updated Projected Scheduled Outage Plan if requested
Issues summary report indicating maintenance issues and outage findings at other

similar frame plants -~ -

Updated Seller’s section of the Schedule Outage Plan
Program Parts order and delivery status report
Program Parts status report

npL N

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Addenda Page 18

Siemens Energy, inc.



Exhibit B

Combustion Turbine Program Parts List

Baseline 12.5k Program Parts Table

Baseline Program Parts

Combustor Baskets

Fuel Nozzles

Transitions

Transition Seals

Ring Segments — Row 1

Ring Segments — Row 2

Ring Segments — Row 3

Ring Segments — Row 4

Row 1 Blade

Row 1 Vane

Row 2 Blade

Row 2 Vane

Row 3 Blade

"Row 3 Vane

Row 4 Blade

Row 4 Vane

Compressor Blades

Compressor Diaphragms

Diaphragm Seals

Combustion Turbine Program Parts to be changed for 25k EBH/ 1200 ES Basis intervals

(Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program Parts)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc.

CIE Program Parts

Baskets

Pilot Nozzles

Support Housing

Transitions

Transition Seals

Exhibit B Page 1



: Exhibit C
Projected Scheduled Outage Plan

The projected Scheduled Outage plan below is based on the current revision of the Service
Bulletins as provided in Exhibit D. Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outages wilt be performed
" as required by the Contact, subject to the application and modification process set forth in
Exhibit A, Addendum 1.

Combustion Turbine

Period | Scheduled Outage Type

1 Cl
-2 HGP*

3 _

4 Maijor

5

6 HGP

7 '

8 Major

9 _

10 HGP

11

12 Maijor

* Installation of Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program Parts at Period 2 HGP

Steam Turbine Scheduled Outages will be performed in conjunction with the corresponding
Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage as set forth below; should a change to the Service
Bulletin adversely affect the Buyer, the Parties wil negotiate changes to the Contract in good

faith.

Steam Turbine
Period | Scheduled Outage Type
ASI
LO
AS!
MO
AS|
LO
ASI
MO
ASI
LO
ASI
MO

R CIRU LI ) EN IS B

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit C Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc. .



Exhibit C (continued)

Outage Definitions:

Cl — Combustor Scheduled Outage

HGP - Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage
Major — Major Scheduled Outage '

ASI — Steam Turbine Annual Safety Inspection
~ LO - Steam Turbine Limited Overhaul

MO - Steam Turbine Major Overhaul

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc.

Exhibit C Page 2



Exhibit D
Service Bulletin

Service Bulletin 55004

Prior to installation of Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program Parts, the current
Service Bulletin for the Combustion Turbine is Service Bulletin 55004. Service Bulletin 55004 is

attached separately.

Service Bulletin SB4-11-0018-GT-EN-01

Upon installation of Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program Parts into the Combustion
Turbine the appllcable Service Bulletin will be Service Bulletin SB4-11-0018-GT-EN-01.

Service Bulletin SB4-11-0018-GT-EN-01 is attached separately and is modified by the
following:

Exhibit D Addendum 1: Service Program Inspection Intervals (Basis Intervals)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit D Page 1

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Exhibit D (continued)
Addendum 1

Service Program Inspection Intervals

This Addendum 1 to Exhibit D provides recommendations for gas turbine mspectton intervals
for certain SGT6-5000F and 501F units. The inspection intervals provnded herein are particular
to Buyer's Combustion Turbine and are to be used in lieu of the minimum interval requirements
outlined in Exhibit SB4-11-0018-GT-EN.. Calculation methodology and ' inspection scope
recommendations are as provided in such SB SB4-11-0018-GT-EN.

Table 1. Inispection Interval Summary (to be applied in place of the inspection intervals
provided in SB4-11-001 8-GT-EN). '

Inspection Type | Interval
Hot Gas Path
(includes the Combustor 25,000 EBH or 1200 ES
inspection workscope) -
Major 50,000 EBH or 2400 ES
Rotor Assessment See Note 2 below.

Notes

1.) EBH and ES are to be calculated using the service counter calculation
parameters/counters/methods provided per in SB4-11-0018-GT-EN.

2.) Specific Rotor scope and interval will be based on rotor design and application. Consuit your
Siemens Service representative for details.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP . Exhibit D Page 2
Siemens Energy, inc.



Exhibit E
Payment Schedule

Pricing Schedule:

1. Program Initialization Fee:

Within 30 Days of Effective Date Seller shall invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a
Program lInitialization Fee in the amount of one million five hundred thousand Dollars (U.S.

- $1,500,000.00)
2. Fixed Annual Fee:

Seller shall invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a “Fixed Annual Fee” of one hundred
thousand Dollars (U.S. $100,000.00) to be paid in advance of each Calendar Year beginning

on June 1, 2012.

3. Variable Fee'

Seller shall invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a Variable Fee of five hundred twenty
one Dollars per Equivalent Base Hour (US $521.00/EBH).

The “Variable Fee” is calculated and invoiced based upon the Equivalent Base Hours (EBH)
accumulated by the Combustion Turbine. Commencing as of First Fire with respect to the
Combustion Turbine, at the end of each calendar quarter thereafter for such Combustion
Turbine (or at the time of a Scheduled Outage), Seller shall invoice Buyer for the Variable Fee
(per above), based on the actual operation of such Combustion Turbine during such calendar
quarter (or during such calendar quarter up to the commencement of the next Scheduled

Outage).

True Up of Vériable Fees:

1. . At the commencement of each Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage, Seller, notwithstanding
other amounts invoiced under this Contract, will invoice Buyer from First Fire or from the
commencement of the first Major Inspection, each as applicable to the commencement of the
Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage, the Varlable Fee muttiplied by twenty-ﬂve thousand (25,000)

EBH.

2. At the commencement of each- Major Scheduled Outage, Seller, notwithstanding other
amounts invoiced under this Contract, will invoice Buyer from the most recent Hot Gas Path
Scheduled Outage to the Major Scheduled Outage, the Variable Fee multiplied by twenty-five
thousand (25,000) EBH. ‘

Variable Fee after Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage
1. Variable Fee After Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit E Page 1

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Beginning upon completion of installation of the CIE hardware at the Period 2 Hot Gas
-Path Scheduled Outage, Seller shali invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a
Variable Fee (subject to escalation as provided below in this Exhibit E) of five hundred
twenty-one Dollars per Equivalent Base Hour (US $521/EBH) or ten thousand eight
hundred fifty-four Dollars and seventeen cents per Equivalent Start (US $10,854.17/ES),
depending on the actual mode of operation, as described below.

The “Variable Fee’ is calculated and invoiced based upon the Equivalent Base Hours
(EBH) or Equivalent Starts (ES) accumulated by the Combustion Turbine during each
calendar quarter. Commencing as of the Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage, at
the end of each calendar quarter thereafter (or at the time of a Scheduled Outage),
Seller shall invoice Buyer for the Variable Fee (per above), based on the actual
operation during such calendar quarter (or during such calendar quarter up to the
commencement of the next Scheduled Outage).

- For invoicing purposes, the mode of operation is based on the most recent completed
calendar quarter. A ratio is calculated by taking the total EBH accumulated over the
previous calendar quarter divided by the total ES accumulated over the same time
period. If the EBH/ES ratio exceeds 21, Seller will invoice based on EBH. If the
EBH/ES ratio is equal to or below 21, Seller will invoice based on ES.

" The Variable Fee will be calculated in accordance with the following:

Where:
X = Ratio of accumulated EBH to accumulated ES

Y =U.S. $521/EBH
Z=U.S. $10,854.17/ES

Calculation of the Variable Fee:

When X is > 21, then the Variable Fee shall equal the amount of EBH accrued in that
calendar quarte'r multiplied by Y. ,

When X is < 21, then the Variable Fee shall equal the amount of ES accrued in that
calendar quarter multlphed by Z.

Example calculation of the Variable Fee for different values of X:
(i

X=EBH/ES =32

EBH accrued in that calendar quarter = 1,800
ES accrued in that calendar quarter = 56
Variable Fee = (1,800)*($521) = $937,800

(ii)

X =EBH/ES =20 ‘
EBH accrued in that calendar quarter = 1,400
ES accrued in that calendar quarter = 70

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit E Page 2

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Variable Fee = (70)*($10,854.17) = $759,791.90

2 True Up of Variable Fees after Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Ohtage.

a. If the Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage is scheduled based on ES per
Exhibit C, at the commencement of each Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage,
Seller, notwithstanding other amounts invoiced under this Contract, will invoice Buyer
from the Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or from the prior Hot Gas Path or
Major inspection, each as applicable, to the commencement of the Hot Gas Path or
Major Scheduled Outage, the ES Variable Fee multiplied by the greater of the total ES
accumulated or 1,200 ES, and credit to Buyer-any Variable Fees that have been paid by
Buyer since the last Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or Major Scheduled Outage.

b. If the Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage is scheduled based on EBH.per
Exhibit C, at the commencement of each Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage,
Seller, notwithstanding other amounts invoiced under this Contract, will invoice Buyer
from the Period 2 Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or from the prior Hot Gas Path or
Major Inspection, each as applicable, to the commencement of the Hot Gas Path or
Major Scheduled Outage; the EBH Variable Fee multiplied by the greater of the total
EBH accumulated or 25,000 EBH, and credit to Buyer any Variable Fees that have been
paid by Buyer since the last Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or Major Scheduled

Outage.

Escalation:

Payments will be due net thirty (30) Days from date of each invoice. All payments shali be in
U.S. Dollars, escalated at the time of invoice according to the Escalation Factor.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit E Page 3

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Exhibit F
Not Used

[This Exhibit Intentionally Left Blank]

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit F Page 1
Siemens Energy, inc.



Exhibit G
Cancellation Schedule

The cancellation amount owed by Buyer to Seller, pursuant to Section 12.6 of the Contract,
shall be equal to twelve percent (12%) of the remaining Fees that Buyer would have owed to
Seller if the third Major had been performed on the Combustion Turbine based on the
predominant mode of operation. Such cancellation amount will be calculated from the date of
termination of the Contract.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP _ Exhibit G Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc. :



Exhibit H

Change Order Format
' Contract:
CHANGE ORDER NO.
Effective Date: - Buyer:
' Seller:
1. introduction. This Change Order No. (this “Change Order”) is agreed to pursuant

to that certain. Amended and Restated Program Parts, Non-Program Parts,
Miscellaneous Hardware, Program Management Services and Scheduled Outage
Services Contract, dated November 1, 2014 (the “Contract’) by and between Siemens
Energy, Inc. (“Seller’) and Northern California Power Agency (“Buyer”). Capitalized
terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the Contract.
This Change Order as submitted by one Party to the other shall constitute a request for
a Change Order. Upon its countersignature in the space provided below, this Change
Order shall constitute a Change Order within the meaning of the Contract.

2. ‘Scope of Change. Describe in pertinent detail (a) the addition or removal of a Program
Part, Non-Program Part or Miscellaneous Hardware Item from the Contract, (b) a
change to the Services, (c) a change in schedule of Program Parts, Non-Program Parts
or Services, (d) any other change to the workscope obligations. Attach any necessary
documentation as Attachment 1 hereto, including any revisions to Exhibits to the

Contract.
{a)
(b)
()
(d)
3. Timing. Describe iﬁ pertinént detail the timing of implementation of this Change Order.

Attach any necessary documentation as Attachment 2 hereto, including any revisions to
Exhibits to the Contract. ' '

4. Payment and Term. | Describe in pertinent detail the effect of this Change Order on the
Fees and/or the Term. If payment is to be made by other than an adjustment to the

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP . Exhibit H Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc.



Fees, specify. Attach any necessary documentation as Attachment 3 hereto, including
any revisions to Exhibits to the Contract.

5. Other Terms and Conditions. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this
Change Order, all other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force
and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, have caused this Change
Order No. ___to be executed by their duly authorized representatives to be effective as of the

date first above written.

" [Seller] [Buyer]
By: _ - By:
Name: Nam
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit H Page 2

Siemens Energy, Inc.



Exhibit |
Natural Gas, Fuel Oil and Water Specifications

To Be Attached.

" Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit | Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc.



SI EM S Siemens Power Generation
A Slemens Company
ENGINEERING SPECIFICATION
Tile | FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION
Titel
ZDX555 DcCot KKS MBP 01 Unip 3705971
_ CNS 2500 '
Pra}; CodelProj).Koennz, DacJUA Contents L JZihlnr.
. Confidential Vertraulich
Origins) / Ursprung Moduie Caordinator/ Modulverantwortiicher Handiing Handhabun .
See Section 2.0 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS 3
Related Dacuments/ZugohBrige Dokumenta Reoview Level
Depariment Dept. Name Signature A Date
Code -
Prepared | Operating Plants Technical E9BP5 | Fred W. Shoemaker, F W Shoemaker 2006.08.24
by guppon Englineer
Reviewed | Environmental Engineering E96P2 | Ramesh Kagolanu, J M Haywood 2006.08.24
by Manager -
_ For R Kagolanu
Reviewed | BOP Fluld Systems & -E9.632 Abol Moulavi, A Moulavi 2006.08..24
. Mechanical Components : Manager
Reviewed | Themal Component £9631 | David Boyce, D Boyce 2006.0824
) by Engineering Manager : ’
Reviewed | Operating Plants Technical EQO6P5 Patrick Solomon, P M Solomon 2006.08.24
by Support Manager )
Approved | Plant Integration E96P | George Schott, G A Schott 2006.09.01
by Manager

® Slemons Power Gensralion 2004. All Rights Reserved. This document contains information confidential and propristary to Slemans Power Generation. It

of Slemens Power Generation. Canfidential

Is submitted in confidence and is to be.ussd solely for the purpose for which it Is fumished and returned upon-request. This document and such Informalion s
not to he reproducsad, transmitted, mm:rundee in whale or in part without the written authorization

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION

ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS

lssued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL

| Rev. 013 | Type: ESP |-

Page 1 of 22




REVISION SHEET

Revision | Revision Date Section : Description of Change

001 -011 Various Please see 21T0306 various revisions for history
012 Sep. 28, 2005 Entire Replaced “Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation” with

document | “Siemens Power Generation, Inc”.

Replaced "“SWPC” with “SPG".

Replaced solid bullets with dashes.

Replaced "ECONOPAC" with “SGT-PAC".

Replaced “CT” with "GT".

Replaced “Customer” with “Purchaser”.

Replaced “NOx” with “NO,".

Replaced all Gas Turbine frame names with new
nomenclature names. .

Renumbered spec number from “21T0306" to “ZDX565-
DC01-MBP-2500-01"

013 2006-09-01 All Changed format to add 50 cycle product line.

Adopted System Internationale (St) units.

Increased concentration limits on hydrocarbons for selected
frames.

Made Wabbe index, gas temperature and pressure limits
project specific.

Added specification for low-volatility liquid content of gas
Made sulfur limits project specific, but included guidance on
likely acceptable levels.

Changed basis of H,S spacification to vapor pressure.

@ Siemens Power Ganeralion 2004. All Righls Reservad, This document confalns information confidential and propritary to Siemens Pawer Generation. It
laud:mﬂadlnaa:ﬂd’enesmdlstoheussdulalyfarm;mmoaoforwhlchlllsmmlnhadandmnumdupmlaqun! This document and such information is
| notto be ducad, fransmitfed, dlsnbasdnruan‘oﬂnmbshwhnbormmﬂwﬂmmwm witten sutharization of Siemens Powar Gengratlon. Confidential

Ji

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION , | ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUNMENTS o Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Oriando, FL | Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 2 of 22



TABLE OF CONTENTS

"SECTION ' PAGE

REVISION SHEET 2
1.  PURPOSE 4
2.  SCOPE/APPLICABILITY 4
3.  ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS 4
4.  PROCEDURE ' 5
41 GENERAL 5
42. ENERGY CONTENT 5
43 PRESSURE 6
44 TEMPERATURE . 7
45 CONDENSABLE LIQUIDS IN THE FUEL 7
46 FUEL COMPOSITION _ 8
47 CONTAMINANTS 10
48 REQUIRED EVALUATIONS FOR AIR, WATER/STEAM, FUEL, AND FUEL ADDITIVES 13
5.  REFERENCES ‘ 14
6.  APPENDICES 14

® Siemens Power Generatlon 2004. All Rights Reseived. This.documsnt comtalns information confidential and propristary to Siemens Power Gonerallon. it
Is submitted In confidence and is to e used solely for the purpose for which  is furnished end returned upon raquest. This document end such information Is
not to be reproduced, transmitted, disciosed or used olherwise in whole or In part without the written authbrizeiion of Stemens Pawer Generation, Confidentlal

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION | | ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS . Issusd: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL. Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 3 of 22




1. PURPOSE
The purpose of this specification is to define the properties of gaseous fuels which are acceptable for
use in Siemens Power Generation (SPG) gas turbines used in large scale power applications,
including combined cycle plants.
2. SCOPE/APPLICABILITY ‘
The information presented in this document applies to the SPG gas turbine frames listed below:
SGT-1000F |
SGT6-2000E(6), SGT5-2000E(3),(6).(7)
SGT6-3000E, SGT5-3000E(2)
SGT6-4000F(2),(4), SGT5-4000F(2),(4)
SGT6-5000F(2),(3)
SGT6-6000G(M),(1)
This document desi:rlbes specific limits that are placed on fuel gas properties to ensure operability
and maintainabllity of the gas turbine equipment. The fuel supply must meet these limits at the
ECONOPAC boundary. The ECONOQPAC Boundary is defined as follows:
(a) For SGT6-3000E, SGTE-5000F(2),(3) and SGTE-6000G(M),(1) premix combustion
systems, the ECONOPAGC boundary is defined as the inlet flange to the fuel gas

filter/separator(s).

(b) For all other combustion systems, the ECONOPAC boundary is defined as the inlet to the
ECONOPAC fuel gas strainer. ’

3. ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

AP| American Petroleum Inslitute
-ASTM American Society for Testing and Materials
FBN Fuel Bound Nitrogen
-Gl Gas Index
GT Gas Turbine
HHV Fuel Gas Higher Heating Value
.HRSG"- Heat Recovery Steam Generator
LHV Fuel Gas Lower Heating Value -
NO, Nitrogen Oxide(s)
SCR Selective Catalytic Reduction
SPG Siemens Power Generation
Wo Wobbe Index

1"® Siamans Powar Generatlon 2004. All Righis Reserved. This documsnt contalns informalion eanﬂdcmlalandnmplidmy lo Sismens PawerGenaralItm. It
hwbmﬂ-dhconﬂdemmdkbhmdada&krhommhr%h!hm&hadw 1 t and such Information Is
not lo be , transmitted, disclossed or used otherwise In whole or in without the writlen auﬂmdm!lan olSiaman:PowerGomHon Conlidential

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DCO1 ~-MBP-2500-01

- | Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS _ lssued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation; Orlando, FL Rev. 013 |_Typa: ESP Page 4 of 22




4. PROCEDURE

Fuel gases intended for use in SPG gas turbines shall be verified to meet the requirements specified
in this document. If no limits are listed for a fuel property in question, SPG must be consulted for
further information on a case-by-case basis. In cases where there are deviations from the :
requirements specified in this document, SPG must be consulted and approval obtainéd in writing. A
chemical analysis of the fuel must be submitted to SPG for review and approval prior io operation of
the gas turbine. Ultimately, only those fuels stipulated in the supply contract shall be permissible for
operation in the gas turbines. Operation with fuels other than those contractually stipulated is not

permitted.
41 GENERAL

SPG gas turbines are equipped with either a diffusion flame or premix combustion system. The
diffusion flame combustion system can be applied to a variety of fuels ranging from those with low
energy content, such as coal gas, to those with high energy content, such as natural gas, butane, or
propane. Gas mixtures with a widely varying chemical content, such as refinery waste gases, have
also been successfully used. The premix combustion system has mare stringent fuel requirements
than the diffusion flame system. However, with premix combustion it is possible to achieve lower
NO, emissions without requiring steam or water injection when burning gas fuel.

For satisfactory operation, the fuel must meet requirements as described in Appendix 1 and
Appendix 2. Use of some fuels may require equipment modification due to properties not discussed
in this document. For this reason, SPG must review all fuels being considered for use in any SPG

gas turbine,
42. ENERGY CONTENT

Energy content shall be reported on the basis of both lower and higher heating values. This will be
done on both a volumetric (e.g. kJ/Nm®, Btu/scf) and mass {(e.g. Md/kg, Btu/lb) basis. Fuel gas
heating value can be calculated based on the gas constituents using staridard heating value
reference data for these constituents. From these calculations, a “design value” for the fuel energy
content must be selected. This value should lie between the maximum and minimum limits as

specified in Appendix 1.
421 Wobbe Index

The lower Waobbe Index (henceforth referred to as Wobbe Index) is defined as the ratio of the lower
heating value of the fuet to the square root of the specific gravity of the fusl at reference temperature

and pressure:

_LHVy

Wo
JsG

Where:
" Wo= Wobbe Index

LHV,q = volumetric iower heating value at reference temperature and pressure

© Slomena Power Generation 2004. All Rights Reserved. This document conlains information conlidenlial and propristary to Siemens Power Gensralion. it
Is submitted in confidence and Is to be used solely for the purpose for which i Is furnished and ] upon regq This document end such information is
. |_not to be reproduced, transmitted, disclosad orusad otherwise in whola or In part without the writlen authorization of Slemens Power Generation. Confidential

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION 1 ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS A Issued: 2006-09-01
Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL | Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 5 of 22




SG = ratio of fuel gas density to the density of air at reference temperature and pressure
Reference temperature and pressure for calculation of Wo are 0°C and 101.325 kPa.

A spetific standard burner and system ,desigh is specified for the following gas turbine frames. SPG
must be consulted on a project specific basis for the appropriate Wo range.

SGT-1000F
SGTE-2000E(6), SGT5-2000E(3),(6),(7)
SGT5-3000E(2)

SGT6-4000F(2),(4), SGT5-4000F(2),(4)

Once a design fuel is selected for these gas turbine frames, the Wo of that fuel can be allowed to
fluctuate during operation; + 5% for premix system or + 15% for diffusion system, provided that at
maximum variance the fuel LHV still lies within the acceptable range. in the event of larger
fluctuations, SPG must be consulted for further details and any requisite modification of paris.

A specific standard burner and system design is also specified for the following gas turbine frames.
SPG must be consulted on a project specific basis for the appropriate Wo range -

SGT6-3000E
SGT6-5000F(2),(3)
SGT6-6000G(M),(1)

Once a design fuel is selected for these gas turbine frames, the Wo of that fuel can be allowed to
fluctuate during operation as per the limits specified in Appendix 1, provided that at maximum
variance the fuel LHV sfill lies within the acceptable range. In the event of larger fluctuations, SPG
must be consulted for further details and any requisite modification of parts.

43 PRESSURE

The required fuel gas supply pressure is the pressure needed at the ECONOPAC fuel gas system
boundary in order to meet the maximum volumetric fuel flow needed by the gas turbine. The '
required fuel pressure depends upon site specific parameters such as fuel gas composition, fuel gas
temperature, fuel gas density, site ambient temperature, site elevation, unit frame size, combustion
system, and options such as steam injection for power augmentation. When determining the
required fuel pressure, fuel flow demands while operating under a wide range of conditions are
considered, including but not limited to the following:

Lowest ambient temperature (with consideration for maximum load limit)

Maximum water or steam injclibh {with consideration for maximum load limit)

["® Siemans Fower emmuon 2004. 'A'ﬂmgma R'e-md This document contelns information canﬂdenflaland pmpﬁamyco‘s'l-mam Power Generalion. Il

Is submitted In confidence end ie to be used solely for the purpose for which It Is fumished and and such information i3
not to be reproduced, iransmitted, disclosed or usad otherwise in whole arin part without the written nulmrlzarlm MSlamans Power Generation. Confidentisl
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS . Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL : TRev. 013 I Type: ESP Page 6 of 22




Minimurm fuel lower heating value (LHV)
Maximum fuel gas temperature

The required fuel gas pressure is considered the “design value” for a given gas turbine unit at a
specified site and applies to all operating conditions for that gas turbine. It is required for various
items in the fuel gas system, and it Is entered into the gas turbine control system. Specified
tolerances apply to this fuel pressure, per Appendix 1. In addition, regulators shall have sufficient
provisions for deadband, gain, and dampening adjustment to tune out any critical oscillations that
may occur between regutators and the gas turbine system demand.

44 TEMPERATURE

The maximum and minimum temperature limits for the fuel gas depend upon the fuel gas .
composition and the fuel gas supply pressure. The fuel gas must be at a temperature sufficiently
higher than the fuel gas and water dew point temperatures so that the fuel fed to the SPG supplied
filter/separator is free of any constituents in liquid state. See Section 4.5 for further details on limits
associated with fusl gas and water dew point temperatures.

The fuel gas may be heated to meet these dew point limits and/or to improve turbine efficiency.
Maximum fuel gas temperature is limited depending on composition and frame and must be
assessed by SPG. Increasing the fuel gas temperature increases nozzle fuel jet velocities which -
affects the required fuel gas supply pressure. This can adversely affect emissions and combustor
stability. Fuel gas temperature may need to meét certain limits during gas turbine startup for some
configurations (See Appendix 1). Any plans for fuel heating above the limits in Appendix 1 or for fuel
temperatures less than 5°C must be reviewed by SPG in advance. .

45 CONDENSABLE LIQUIDS IN THE FUEL

Liquid carryover from the fuel to the gas turbine can be detrimental to gas turbine and auxiliary parts
life. Therefore, the fuel gas as fed to the SPG supplied filter/separator at the gas turbine must be
free of any constituents in liquid state. This requires that the fue! gas tem perature must exceed the
measured dew point temperature of the fuel by the values specified in Appendix 1. If the dew point
cannot be measured, it must be calculated based on chromatographic analysis including all
hydrocarbons up to, and including, hydrocarbons of Cy4. The use of knockout scrubbers followed by
traps, separators and heaters in the fuel supply system can further assure that all traces of liquid
hydrocarbons and liquid water are excluded from the fuel system. Design considerations should be
given to minimizing long runs of pipe between the gas conditioning equipment and the SPG supplied
filter/separator. Proper liquid level alarms and shutdown protection are also recommended. In
projects with a fuel gas compressor, carryover of lubricating ol is possible. A gas chromatograph
alone may not detect lube oil. Therefore liquids from the separator drains should have an extended
fue! analysis performed to test for ubricating oil.

It is possible for liquids with high boiling temperatures to be present in the fuel supply system, for
-example, lubricating oil from gas compressors. Much of this material will be removed by the same
gas filter/separator used in removing lower boiling liquids. Limits for carryover of this material are
included in Appendix 2.

© Slemens Power Generatian 2004. All Rights Ressived. This documsnt conlains information mﬂdenllalendpmprlemym,SlamanaPowerGemmﬂnn. ]
is submitted in conlidence and is to be used solely for the purpose for which & is fumished and refumed upon request. This document and such information ls

not (o ba EM"L-"V transmitled, disclosed or used otharwiss In whola or in part without the wiritten authorization of Slemens Power Generation, Confidentlat
Title: FUEL -GAS SPECIFICATION 1 ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project; E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power 'Generatlon. Orlando, FL . l Rev. 013 LType: ESP Pagé 7 of 22




46 FUEL COMPOSITION

Some fuel components of particular interest are discussed in this section. Appendix 1 and Appendix
2 combined contain the complete specification of limits on a natural gas fuel composition. In some.
cases, additional limits may apply that are not presented in this document. SPG must review all fuels
to be considered for use in any SPG gas turbine. A chemical analysis of the fuel is required to
determine its acceptability for use.

4.6.1 Hydrocarbons

The presence of hydrocarbons heavier (having a greater molecular weight) than methane (CH,) may
result in higher emissions and can adversely affect operability of the gas turbine. The greater the
amount of these higher hydrocarbons, the lower the- auto-ignition temperature will be, This can lead
to combustion Instabilities such as flashback. The measures required to avoid these effects may
result in greater production of NO, emissions. A fuel supply with a widely varying content of higher
hydrocarbons will require even more extensive measures to maintain stable combustion. SPG will
review all fuels on a case-by-case basis for higher hydrocarbon content and evaluate the effect on
‘emissions and operability.

4.6.1.1 Hydrocarbon Considerations for Specific GT Frames — Part A
Th.is section applies fo the following gas turbine frames only:
SGT-1000F |
SGT6-2000E(8), SGT5-2000E(3),(6),(7)
SGT5-3000E(2)
SGT6-4000F(2),(4), SGT5-4000F(2),(4)

SPG should be consulted in the case of fuels containing greater than 20% by volume higher
hydrocarbons or greater than 10% by volume of higher hydrocarbons (excluding ethane). Ethane
(C2Hs) contents of up to a maximum of 15% by volume are permissible and do not require the
approval of SPG. .

Fuels with acetylene (C;H,) content greater ihan 0.1% by volume shall only be used in diffusion
flame combustion systems. Use of fuels containing more than this amount in premix combustion
systems would risk destruction of the bumers due to reactions in the premix piping.

4.6.1.2 Hydrocarbon Considerations for Specific GT Frames ~ Part B

This section applies fo the following gas turbine frames only:

SGT6-3000E

SGT6-5000F(2),(3)

SGT6-6000G(M),(1)

~© Stemens Power Generation 2004. All Rights Reasrved. This document conilain information conﬂdsmhlandpmpﬂsmyta Slemens Powar Gensralion. [t

ia submitted in confidence and is to be ussd salsly for the purpose for which i Is fumished and This document and such informalion is
not to be reproduced, transmiiled, dfsemedormado!hemdsa in whole or in part without the written auﬂ‘mrinﬂon of Slemens Powsr Generation. Confidential
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL | Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 8 of 22



Diffusion flame combustion systems for these gas turbine frames can operate without restrictions on
the hydrocarbons present in the fuel. See Appendix 1 for the hydrocarbon limits associated with
premix combustion systems for these gas turbines.

4.6.2 Olefins
The presencs of olsfins, hydrocarbons of the form CyHan, may lead to coking of the fuél nozzles. This
is of particular concern in premix combustion systems because of the small gas port sizes. Fuel

heating can increase the tendency for coking to occur and is not recommended for-gas turbines
burning fuels with a high. olefin content. :

4.6.3 Oxygen

Oxygen (0O5) content must be limited In fuels containing olefins because the presence of oxygen will
increase the coking reaction discussed in Section 4.6.1.3. See Appendix 1 for the limits associated
with specific gas turbine and combustion system configurations. '

4.6.4 Hydrogen
4.6.4.1 Hydrogen Limits for Specific GT Frames — Part A
This section applies to the following gas turbine frames only:
SGT-1000F
SGT6-2000E(6), SGT5-2000E(3),(6).(7)
SGT5-3000E(2)
SGT6-4000F(2),(4), SGT5-4000F(2),(4)

Fuels with a hydragen (Hz) content of 1% or less may be used in diffusion flame and premix
combustion systems. Use of fuels containing more than 1% hydrogen in premix combustion systems
could risk destruction of the burners due to reactions in the premix piping. Fuels with a hydrogen
content greater than 1% but less than 10% by volume shall-only be used in diffusion flame
combustion systems. SPG must be consulted and approval obtained.in cases where there are

_ deviations from these requirements. )
4.6.4.2 Hydrogen Limits for Specific GT Frames — Part B
- This section applies to the following gas turbine frames only:
SGTé-SOOOE
SGT6-5000F(2),(3)
. sere-aoooe(M),m

® Stemens Powsr Ganaralion 2004. Al Rights Reserved. This document conlains information confidential and proprietary fo SiemensMerGemraﬂan. 3
Is submitted in confidence and is {o be used solely for the purpose for which & Is fumighed and relumed upon request. This dacument and sich information is

| not o be reproduced, transmitad, disclossd or used otherwise in whole of in part wilkoul lhe writen authorizaiion of Sismens Power Genaraiion.Conidantial
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01 |
Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-02-01

Slemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 9 of 22




For diffusion flame combustion systems, the maximum amount of hydrogen (H) allowable in a fuel is
40% by volume, provided all other fusl requirements are met.

For premix combustions systems, the maximum limit of hydrogen content is 8.5% by volume,
provided all other fuel requirements are met.

Fuels exceeding these limits may be permitted only by special agreement with SPG. This will
depend upon such factors as firing temperature, emissions raquirements, and possible steam
injection.

Note: NO, emissions for fuels with high levels of molecular hydrogen may be higher than for
standard natural gas. This is most evident with diffusion flame combustors.

4.6.5 Fuel Bound Nitrogen

Fuel bound nitrogen (FBN) may be present in some fuels in the form of ammonia (NH;) or hydrogen
cyanide (HCN). FBN is readily converted to nitrogen oxides (NO) during the combustion process.
The amount of NO, formed due to FBN may be determined in accordance with 40 CFR 60, Subpart
GG, Section 60.332(a)(3) or as in SIGAMA H.3. Maximum acceptable FBN content of a fuel is
dictated by the emissions requirements of the specific application. In the case of stringent NO
requirements, fuels containing FBN must be reviewed. ,

47 CONTAMINANTS

Contaminants from all sources must be considered when checking the limits defined in this
specification, including but not limited to rion-fuel sources such as compressor infet air, steam/water
.injection for NO, control or power augmentation, and water for evaporative coolers. The total of the
fuel-borne and-non-fuel borne contaminants must not exceed the specified limits. The equation given
in Section 4.7.7 must be used to determine the effective contaminant concentration. Contaminant
limits are given in Appendix 2.’

The compressor inlet air can greatly increase the level of impurities entering the hot gas path, For
gas turbine installations where the total of the concentrations of sodium, potassium, vanadium, and
lead, in the inlet air are greater than those levels specified in this document, additional air filtration
units are required. When evaluating the amount of air contaminants, care should be taken'to
determine the contaminants that will enter the turbine, after all filtration is complete. An accurate
assessment of the filtration efficiency is required.

Water and steam employed for evaporative cooling, emissions control, or power augmentation can
also increase the level of impurities entering the hot gas path. Water/steam borne solids are
assumed to oxidize during the combustion process and result in added particulate emissions. When
evaporative coolers are employed, samples of the air should be taken downstream of the equipment.
Thus, the contaminants in the water being used by the evaporative cooler will be accounted for in
the air analysis. 4 ‘

Sodium, potassium, vanadium, and ead induce corrosion of metals in the hot gas path of the
turbine, and calcium causes deposits that may be difficult to remove. This results in degradation of
performance. Special coatings and materials may be selected to minimize corrosion of components
in the turbine hot gas path. Also, the unit may be derated or operated at partial load to further
minimize the effects of certain frace elements. However, to meet expected parts life and to sustain

© Slemens Powsr Ganeration 2004. Aff Rights Reserved. This document confains information canfidential and proprietary to Slemens Power Generation. it
l:submﬂedhcomdanwandlslnbeuudmlalylorlhepwpm!orwhlnhklsﬂmkhodandm«:madupmraquosr. This dacument and such information Is

not fo be reproduced, ransmitied, disclosed or used ofherwise in whole or in part without the written authorizafion of Slemans Power Gensration. Confidentlal
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-08-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL Rev. 013 ] Type: ESP | - Page 100f 22



good performance, it is required that the total of these trace elements (from all sources), as
corrected to a fuel equivalent basls, be held within the limits specified in Appendix 2.

471 Particulates

‘Particulates are fimited to minimijze clogging of filters and prevent erosion and deposition on the
components In the turbine and the compressor. Large particles will cause erosion on the frailing
edges of airfolls and ceramic coatings. Airfoil cooling effectiveness could be affected if erosion is
severe. Small particles will deposit onto the leading surfaces of the airfoils and restrict the flow path.
If deposition is severe, performance will deteriorate, and the compressor surge margin will diminish.
Particulate level limitation becomes especially crucial when using coal gases.

4.7.2 Sodium and Potassium

The behavior of sodium (Na) and potassium (K) in the gas turbine is very similar to that of vanadium
(V). During passage through the hot gas path, these elements can combine with sulfur and/or
vanadium to form highly corrosive compounds.

4.7.3 Calcium

Calcium can lead to hard and tenacious deposits, such as anhydrite (CaSOs), which are neither
self-spalling when the gas turbine is shut down, nor readily removable by water washing of the
turbine. These deposits will degrade performance and may also abrade turbine coatings. .

4.7.4 Sulfur and Hydrogen Sulfide

Elemental sulfur (S) is not permitted at any level. If elemental suifur were present in a gas fuel, it is
possible that deposition could occur in the fuel system resfricting the safe and efficient operation of
the gas turbine. Using gas fuels which contain sulfur compounds may result in sulfur deposits,
particularly if the fuel also contains CO, and has a low heating value. It has been found that heating
the fuel to a temperature between 55°C and 60°C can prevent these deposits from occurring.

The sulfur compound content in the natural gas must be limited-since the sulfur products have a
tendency to condense as acids in the exhaust of the gas turbine and in progressively colder sections
of heat recovery steam generators (HRSGs). In addition, in units with selective catalytic reduction
(SCR) units for NO reduction, further limits may be required to reduce the potential for formation of
ammonium sulfate compounds in the HRSG. :

The gas turbine and auxiliaries can be operated without restriction provided that the hydrogen sulfide
(H2S) partial pressure is kept below 0.0003 MPa abs. This is in accordance with the materlal
requirements set forth in NACE MR01750-2003. SPG should be consulted if the parfial pressure is
higher than allowed. The maximum expected partial pressure of H.S may be calculated by
multiplying the maximum system total pressure by the mole fraction of H.S:

PrartiallH2S] = Prosar X H2S
whére:
PraialH28] = maximum expected partial pressure of H,S

© Siemens Power Genseailen 2004. All Rights Reserved, This document contalns information confidential and propristary fa Slemens Power Genaration. 1t
s submitted in confidence and is (o be used solely for the purpose for which it Is furniehed and returned upon request. This dogument and such informalion is

notto ba ced, tad, disclosed or used otherwise in whols or in without the wrmn authorization of Siemens Power Generallon. Confidential
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ‘ I ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS . Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL I Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 11 of 22




Protat = Maximum system total pressure
HzS = mole fraction of hydrogen sulfide {as decimal)

For protaction of the gas turbine, the total content of all sulfur compounds in the natural gas shall not
exceed 2,000-ppmw (parts per million by weight) unless otherwise restricted by more stringent
contract requirements and/or non-SPG supplied equipment limitations such as for HRSGs, SCRs, or
oxidation catalysts (CO or VOC).

See Appendix 2 for a summary of the acceptable levels of sulfur compounds. Both absolute limits
and “guidance” are provided. Guidance is a rough estimate of the appropriate sulfur levels for
environmental and HRSG corrosion issues fo be resolved. Actual limits for sulfur in the fuel gas will
be determined on a project specific basis taking into account thermal performance, corrosion and
environmental issues. ‘

4.7.5 Other Contaminants

In addition to the contaminants discussed in this document, SPG will review all other contaminants
on a case-by-case basis per applicable ASTM or equivalent test methods.

4,7.6 Additives

All fuel additives require SPG approval prior to use. A complete chemical analysis of the additives
are needed for a meaningful evaluation. Any contaminants contributed by additives must be included
in evaluation of the total equivalent contaminant level.

4.7.7 Calculation of Contaminants

Evaluation of contaminants must account for all sources, including non-fuel sources such as
compressor inlet air, steam/water injection for NOy control or power augmentation, and water for
evaporative coolers. Contaminant concentrations contributed by each non-fuel source must be
corrected to a fuel-equivalent basis. The equation below shall be used to caiculate total effective
contaminant levels. A sample calculation is given in Appendix 2.

TOL[i]=Rx{lf* [ lar x (1-Ka) % (A/F) ] + [ ot X (SIF) ] + [ l.wx (WIF) 1+ [ laa x (AD/F) I}
where:

TCL] i ]= total equivalent contaminant level [ppmw], i i$ the individual species of concem

R = (LHV of Reference Fuel)* / (LHV of Actual Fuel)
I = contaminant level of fuel at fhe ECONOPAC boundary [ppmw]
lair = contaminant level of air entering filters [ppmwi

Ka = total efficiency of air filter(s) (0 = no filtering; 1.00 = 100% filter efficiency) t
AIF = airto fuel weight ratio

lam = contaminant level of injection steam entering gas turbine [ppmw]

i S s L
® Siemans Power Generalion 2004. A Rights Reserved. This document conteins information confidantial end propristary to Slemens Power Generalion. It
-Is submitted in confidance and Is to be ussd solely for the purpose for which It is fumished end returned upon request. This dooument and Suci information Is

ot ta ba reproduced, transmhted, disclosed or used otherwise in whole or in part without the written authorizailon of Siemens Power Generation. Gonfidential
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2008-08-01 -

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL I Rev. 013 [ Type:ESP | - Page120f22




S/F = steam to fuel weight ratio
™ = contaminant level of injection water entering gas turbine [ppmw]
WIF = water to fuel weight ratio

la = contaminant level of additives entering gas turbine [ppmw]
AD/F = additive to fuel weight ratio

* LHV of the Refarance Fuel is 43,031 kJ/kg (18,500 BTU/ib)

+ If an evaporative cooler is present and air samples are taken downsiream of the evaporalive cooler equipment, then Ka
should be set to zero.

Note: A/F, SIF, W/F, and AD/F are the actual values for the specific fuel being used.

The total contaminant level entering the gas furbine must be less than the limit given in Appendix 2,
for each contaminant species. If fuel additives are used which affect the heating value of the fuel, -
this altered LHV (fuel + additive) should be used as the "LHV of Actual Fuel". :

The contaminant fimits stated in this document are based on a fixed impurity mass flow through the
combustor as based on the LHV of the Reference Fuel stated above. Fuels with lower LHVs require
higher fuel flow Into the gas turbine for an equivalent heat input. This increased fuel flow means
possible greater contribution of contaminants. The “R” term in the above equation corrects for
increased or decreased fuel flow based on the fuel LHV. Therefore, it should be noted-that fuels with
lower LHVs may need to mest reduced limits in order for the total contaminant level to meet the
required limit stated in Appendix 2. : ‘ -

48 REQUIRED EVALUATIONS FOR AIR, WATER/STEAM, FUEL, AND FUEL ADDITIVES

Prior-to aperation, it is required that a complete evaluation of the following be submitted to SPG for
review and approval:

. _air entering the gas turbine (after the evaparative i:ooler. if applicable)
e water entering the gas turbine for injection
. steam entering the gas turbine for injection

‘e fuel entering the gas turbine as supplied to the ECONOPAC boundary
° fuel additive(s)

See the attached appéndices for the required analysis methods and results to be reported. Existing
units with possible contamination issues must also have these analyses performed and the results
submitted to SPG for review. . ‘

Since certain constituents are significant at the part per million level, extreme care must be taken in
sampling to ensure that a representative sample is delivered to the laboratory. Measurements for
each parameter shall be accurate within the following ranges:

© Slomens Power Generation 2004. All Rights Reservad. This document conlains Uiformation confidentlal and proprietary to Sismans Power Generation. it
{3 submifited In confidence and s {o ba used sololy for the purpose for which it Is furnished aend relurned upon reques!. This document and such information is

not fo bs reproduced, transmittad, disclosed or ussd othérwisa In whole ar in part without the written authorization of Slemens Power Generation. Confidential
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION | ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-08-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL ] Rev. 013 I Type: ESP Page 13 of 22




CONTAMINANT LIMIT LISTED REQUIRED ACCURACY

IN APPENDIX 2 OF MEASUREMENT
> 1% by volume “+/- 0.05%
< 1% by volume +-0.001% -
>3.0 ppmw +/- 0.1 ppmw
<3.0 ppmw , +/- 0,01 ppmw

All samples should be obtained using propér sampling methods, per approved standards. The
sampling point shall be located such that it will provide a well mixed sample for an accurate
representation. The specific sampling point location shall be documented on all samples and on ali

laboratory reports.

All fusl sample analyses are to be performed at qualified laboratories using ASTM and AP| methods
as specified in Appendices 3 and 4, as appropriate. Other laboratory procedures are included in
Appendices 4, 5 and 6 for air, additives and water. If analytical services are not readily available to
the customer then SPG should be contacted to help determine how to best to acquire these

services. '
5. REFERENCES

NACE MR0175-2003: "Standard Material Requirements — Metals for Sulfide Stress Cracking and
Stress Corrosion Cracking Resistance in Sour Oilfield Environments®

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Fuel Properties and Composition Limits

Appendix 2:  Total Contaminant Limits

Appendix 3: Required Fuel Analysis and Test Methods

Appendix 4:  Fuel Contaminants for Synthetic/Low Heating and Waste Gases (per ASTM D3605) -
Appendix 5: Water/Steam Fuel Additive Analysis Requirements

Appendix 6. Air Analysis

© Slemoens Power Generalion 2004. Afl Rights Reserved. This document conlains information cmmden&landmpddwtommmr Generation, it
Is submittad In confidunce and is to be used solely for the purpose for which } Is fumished and retumed upon requesl. This document end such information is

not fo bs IOM' , transmitied, disclosed or used otherwise in whole or in part without the writtors authorlzation of Slemons Power Generalion. Confitdential
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: EO GENERIC DOCUMENTS - lssued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL | Rev. 013 l Type: ESP Page 14 of 22




APPENDIX 1: FUEL PROPERTY AND COMPOSITION LIMITS

PART A: FUEL PROPERTY AND COMPOSITION LIMITS FOR GAS TURBINE FRAMES:

SGT-1000F, SGT6-2000E(6), SGT5-2000E(3),(6),(7), SGT5-3000E(2), SGT6-4000F(2),(4),
SGT5-4000F(2),(4)
‘For limits assoclated with other gas turbme framies, see Part B.

COMBUSTION: SYSTEM-TYPE

““
40 to 50 MJIkg 35 to 50 M MJIkg 20 to 50 MJIkg
[LHV vol _ 34 to 42 MJ/Nm® 30 to 42 MJ/Nm 21 to 42 MJ/Nm”
Wobbe index (Wo) 41.5t0 51 MJ/Nm® 37 to 51 MJNm®| 25 to 50 MJ/Nm®
Wo Variation : +5 of design value +15% of design value
Wo Varlation Rate ‘ £ 6%/minute
Pressure : Project Specific
e vt R R b )
Pressure Variation Rate < 20 kPa/s -
Temperature Project Specific {See Section 4.4) | -10°C to 130°C
Temperature During Startup #10°C from design value
Temperature Variation Rate 1°Cls
Dew Point Approach . 2 10°C for hydrocarbons, 215°C for H,0
ELG0 TION(BYVOEUME) e tae e G e
Methane (CH;) : 280%
Ethane, (CaHg) - : <15%
Propane (CsHg) N/A
Hydrocarbons of Cy+ L £10%*
Aromatics (CiHans, CoHania) Report 1
Diolefins (CoHznz) <0.1% _ | <1%
Olefins (CoHzn) % 4%
 Paraffins (CoHons2) Report T
[Oxygen (O) £1.0.%
[Hydrogen (Hs) <1% ] <10%
Ilco . - Report *
|FEN . Project Specific (Per Emissions Requirements. See Section 4.6.4)
[Nz + Ar + CO,) <18%

N/A = Not Applicable

*  The limits stated for Hydrocarbons of Cy+ apply to the total of all hydrocarbons in this category, Including Aromatics, Diolefins (such as
Acslylene C;H;), Olefins, and Paraffins.’

+ The limit for this component is governed by the limit stated for Hydrocarbons of Cs+, However, the amount of this component should
still be reported for review.

4 SPG does not currently limit the quantity of this companent for this application. However, the amount of this eomponem should stilf be
reporled for review.

[~® Slemens Power Genaration 2004. Al Righls Reserved. This document conlains informetion conlidential and propristary fo Slemens Power Gensration. it
tswbmmedmcanﬂdanwmdlstobeumdaamyrwmepurposaWmmakmmumdmﬂ:madupmmu This document and such information Is
roduted, iransmitted, disclosed or used otherwise in whole or in without the wﬁtlmauﬂloﬁzaﬂonofSlamanaPomreanmfm Confidential

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS . Issued: 2006-09-01
Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL l Rev. 013 J Type: ESP Page 15 of 22




APPENDIX 1: FUEL PROPERTY AND COMPOSITION LIMITS

PART B: FUEL PROPERTY AND COMPOSITION LIMITS FOR GAS TURBINE FRAMES:
SGT6-3000E, SGT6-5000F(2),(3), SGT6-6000G(M), (1)
For limits assooiated with other gas turbine frames see Part A

CONMEUSTION-SYSTEMIFYRE 2 : ZRREMI DIFEUSIO
SGT6-3000E
e SGT6-3000E | SGTE-5000F [SGT6-5000F | SFTE-6000G
GT Application | with DLN With DLN | with DLN++ | with DLN Sﬁ;"gg\‘g

42 to 51 MJ/kg 46 to 50 MJdlkg 220 MJIkg
JLHV vol 32 to 41 MJ/INm® 34 to 39 MJ/Nm’ =9 MJNm® |
" [Wobbe Index (Wo) '40.2 to 54.3 MJ/Nm® '
+2% during startup to stable aperation

Wo Variation +2% wi/o active tuning 42% wio active tuning +15%

] +7% wi active tuning 14% w/ active tuning

Wo Varlation Rate ) £ 2%/minute . ]

Pressure Prolect Specific
|Pressure Variation® 5% of design setpoint
|Pressure Variation Rate , <20 kPals

Temperature B ) Project Specific (See Section 4.4)

Temperature During Startup Prolect Specific (See Section 4. 4)

Temperature Varlation Rate N/A :

Dew Point Approach _

2 28"0 for hydrocarbons and Hzo

Ethane (CzHg) £20% - T £16% <8% Report ¥
Propane (CaHs) ’ <15% <2.5% $1.5% Report ¥
Hydrocarbons of C4+ <5%* <1%* Report
Aromatics (CoHzns, CrHzn12) : Report
Diolefins {CoHzn-2) —_— Report ¥ ,
Olefins (CoHz,) K . S4% | <1% | =<a%
Paraffins (CnHzne2) Report ¥
Oxygen (O;) ) $1.0% . )
[Hydrogen (Hz)’ $8.5% ‘ | s40%
co Report * ' ‘
[FBN Project Specific (Per Emissions Requiremmients. See Section 4.6.4)
[Nz + Ar + CO,) 4 <18% _ | s5% | s18%

DLN, DLN++ = Subcategories of pramix combustion systems. Applicable only for the GT frames listad. "DLN" stands for "Dry Low NO,".
DF-42 = Subcategory of diffusion flame combustion systems. Applicable only for the GT frames listed.
N/A = Not Applicabls

* The limits stated for Hydrocarbons of C#+ apply to the total of all hydrocarbons in 1his category, including Aromatics, Diolefins, Olefins,
and Paraffins.

1 The limit for this component is governed by the limil stated-for Hydrocarbons of G+, However, the amount of this component should

still be reported for roview,

® Slemens Power Generatlon 2004, All Rights Reserved. mmdmmmmmmmmmmrmdmmwms&mmmemmm [
Is submited in confidence and is to be usad salely for the purpose for which & Is fumished and returned upon requast. This dacument and such §farmalion is
not fo be disclosed or used 8 in whole or in without the writlen authorizalion of Sjsmens Power Generation. cnnﬂdanaa!

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E3 GENERIC DOCUMENTS : Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Oriando, FL Rev. 013 I Type: ESP Page 16 of 22




+ SPG does not currently limit the quantity of this component for this application. However, the amount of this component stiould still be

reporied for review.

APPENDIX 2: TOTAL CONTAMINANT LIMITS

CONTAMINANT

R

Maximum Particl

Maximum Allowable Content (by weight)
d<5pm - 18.5 ppmw
5<d<10 ym 1.5 ppmw

Maximum Allowable Content (by heat input)
d<5um 1.7x10° kg/md (LHV)
6§£d<10 — 6.4x107"" kg/md (LHV)

v .:.iyr ﬁf-?t " ',.'I" i e aini O] i ':; % ‘
Sodium and Potassium 0.3 ppmw (uncoated turbine blades and vanes)
‘(Na +K) 1.0 ppmw (coated furbine blades and vanes)
Calcium (Ca) 40 ppmw
Vanadium (V) 0.5 ppmw
Lead (Pb) 1.0 ppmw
Chlorine (Cl) .6.0 ppmw
Magnesium (Mg) .2.0 ppmw -
Barium (Ba) 0.1 ppmw (with SCR)
Phosphorous (P 0.1 »

(with SCR
D

NOTES:

(CompoundS:iseis S T e
: : Limits Guidance (ppmv)
Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) .0.0003 MPa (absolute) .
Total of Sulfur Compounds 2000 ppmw 30-40 (SC emissions)
(including H,S) 5-8 (CC with SCR +
oxidation catalyst) .

1. These limits apply to the total contaminant level as calculated on a fuel equivalent basis.
2. If any of these limits are exceeded, SPG must be contacted for review and approval.

© Siamens Power Generatfon 2004, All Rights Reserved. This documsnt cantains Informetion confidential end propristary to Sismens Power Generation, it
Is submited In confidence and /s o ba used sglely for tha purpose for which & is fumished and returnad ypon request. This document and such Information (s

. | .nottabs d, iransmitted, disclosed or used otherwise in whale or in part withou! the written authorization of Siemens Power Generation. Confidentisl
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION - ] ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS

Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL

[ Rev. 013 | Type: ESP

Page 17 of 22




APPENDIX 2: TOTAL CONTAMINANT LIMITS (CONTINUED)

Samp_le' Calculation for Checking Total Contaminant Levels: )

Consider a gas turbine with no evaporative cooler is operating under the following conditions: fuel
gas LHV = 46520 kJ/kg, air-to-fuel ratio = 45:1, air filter efficiency = 90%, water-to-fuel Injection ratio
= 0.8/1, and the following results are obtained from analysis:

I E EE D O PAG Eahdeny: AR Toror o Rllereys: o TATER Eipe
{Ca: 0.01 ppmw [Cal: Oppmw [Cal: 1 ppmw
[PM]: O ppmw [PM]: 0.02 ppmw PM]: O ppmw
[Nal: 0.01 ppmw [Na}: 0.01 ppmw [Nal: 0.01 ppmw
[Kl: O ppmw [Kl: 0.02 ppmw [K:  0.03 ppmw

TOL= R x {+ [l X (1-Ka) X (AF) ]+ [ lom X (SIF) 1+ [ e X (W/F) ] + [ Lo X (ADIF) T

TCL{Ca] = (43031 / 46520) { 0.01 + (1)(0.8) } = 0.75 ppmw

TCL[PM] = (43031 / 46520) { (0.02)(1 — 0.90)(45)} = 0.08 ppmw

TCLINa+K] = (43031 / 46520){ 0.01 + (0.02 + 0.01)(1 - 0.90)(45) + (0.01 + 0.03)(0.8) } = 0.17 ppmw

Comparing to the table above, all contaminants meet the specified limits.

© Slamans Power Generalion 2004. All Rights Reservad. This document conleins information confidentlsl and proprietary (o Slemens Power Generalicn. it
13 submitted In contidence and Is {o be used solely for the purpose for which & is furmished and returned upon request. This document and such Information Is

not to bs raproducsd, transmitted, disclosed or used atherwise in whole or in part without the written authorization of Slemens Power Generation. Confldential
Title: FUEL. GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL Rev. 013 | Type: ESP Page 18 of 22



APPENDIX 3: REQUIRED FUEL ANALYSIS AND TEST METHODS

The tables below specify the required standards for analysis.

Gorrespond(ng ASTM, ISO or DIN standards may be subshluted

ERjiCoRtaminan SIS : URRE
Dew Point {water) * D 1142/!80 6327 °C
Moisture Content * D 1142/1SO 10101 ppmv
Dew Point (Hydrocarbaon) Calculated/ISO 6976 *C
Specific Gravity @ 15.6°C, 101.325 D 3588/ISO 6976 -
kPa
Density ‘Calculated ,kglm*l
Higher Heating Value (HHV) D 3588/ISO 6976 kJ/im®
Lower Heating Value (LHV) D 3588/ISO 6978 kJim®
Higher Heating Value (HHV) D 3588/1S0 6976 kd/kg
Lower Heating Value (LHV) D 3588/1S0 6976 kJ/kg
Molecular Weight Calculated

. Total of Sulfur Compounds ' D 3246/1SO 6326

* Not required for performance test samples

Methane (CHy)
Helium (He) Ethane (C2Hg)
Nitrogen (N») Propane (C3Hg)
Oxygen (O,) i-Butane (C4H1p)
Carbon Monoxide (CO) Butane (C4Hy)
Carbon Dioxide (CO2) i-Pentane (CsHiz)
Water Vapor (H;0) Pentane (CsHyz) -
Hydrogen (Hz) Hexane {CgH14)
Acetylene(csz) Heptane (C;H“)
Ethylene (CzHq) * Octane (CgHia) *
Propylene(caHa) Nonane (CeHzo) ¥
Butylene (C4Hs) * Decane (CyoHz) ¥
Undecane (CyiHa) * ¥
Dodecane (CuHm)
Tridecane (C{stg)
Tetradecane (CMHm) *

+ Required only if presence Is suspscted

© Slemens Powsr Generafion 2004. All Rights Reserved. This document conlains information conlidentlal and pmpridary to Slemens Power Genarailon, i

Is submitted in confidence and Is to be axedaola&lorlhapurposafurwhbhdlsmhhedand

This document and such information Is

upon request.
nollobsmMmdlmwftod,diachssdnrussdalhamisamWhalaorhprdhmdmwnaanaumodzaﬂonoISIamnsPomGamtba. Confidentlat

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION

ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS

Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL

l Rev. 013 l Type: ESP

Page 19 of 22




APPENDIX 3: REQUIRED FUEL ANALYSIS AND TEST METHODS (CONTINUED)

Critical Pressure
Critical Temperature

Condensed Liquids

Hydrogen Sulfide (H,S)

Carbony! Sulfide (COS)

Hydrogen Cyanide (HCN)
Ammonia (NHa)

Alkafi

Other contaminants at =
. concentration 2 0.001% vol.

Calculate

Calculated
E 700180 10101
D 5504/1SO 19739 ppmv
D 8504/1SO 19739 ppmy
D 5504/ISO 19739 ppmv
D 5504/1SO 19739 ppmv
D 3605/DIN 51790 % wit.
D 5504/1SO 19738 ppmv

* ppmv = part per million by volume. % wt. = percent by weight.

Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION

© Siomens Powar Generalion 2004, All Rights Reserved. This dooument conlains information confidential and propristary to Starnens Power Generation. it
Is submitted In confidence and is to ba used solely for the purpose for which 1 Is fumished and refurned upon requesl. This document and such Information is
.not o e reprodtced, transmitled, disclossd or used otherwlse In whole or I part without the written aulhorization of Slemens Powsr Generation. Confidentlal

ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

" Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS

issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL

. |Rev. 013 [Type: ESP

Page 20 of 22




APPENDIX 4. WATER/STEAM FUEL ADDITIVE ANALYSIS REQUIREMENTS

The following results shall be obtained and the method(s) used to determine each item shail be
provided.

ey

Oxygen content ppmw (determiried by O2 saturated
- water)
pH level ' (see text)
Condensables % weight
Cation . .
Conductivity
| Total Dissolved
Sclids
Ammonia
ONENT | SYMBOL: s RESUETZIUNITS [ COMBONENTE ISYMBOL |/ RESUETZHUNITS?
Sodium Na ppmw | Copper Cu ppmw
Potassium K ppmw | Zinc Zn | ppmw
Vanadium V" ppmw | Nickel Ni ppmw
Lead - Pb ppmw | Chlorides ppmw
Magnesium Mg ppmw )
Manganese Mn ppmw
Silica SiO, ppmw
Silicon__- St ppmw
Barium ) Ba ppmw
Phosphorous P : ppmw
Calcium Ca ppmw
Tron Fe | ppmw
SAMPLE OBTAINED BY: DATE SAMPLE WAS TAKEN:
LOCATION WHERE SAMPLE WAS
TAKEN:
LAB NAME: ' DATE OF TEST:

Use these results to calculate total contaminants as described in Appendix 2.

© Siamens Power Ganeretion 2004. Al Rights Reservad. This document conltains information confidentiel and proprietary {o Slemens Power Gensration. it
fs submitted In confidence andlarnhouudweylcrmepumoaamrwm:hnmmmmmmadmmmemm-mmdommwlmmmmnh

nof to be reproduced, trensmitted, disclosed or used otherwise In whole or in without the writien authorizafion of Siemens Power Cenerallon. Confidentis}
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01
Project: E3 GENERIC DOCUMENTS ) Issued: 2006-09-01
Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL | Rev. 013 I Type: ESP Page 21 of 22




APPENDIX 5. AIR ANALYSIS
The following results shall be obtained and the method(s) used to determine each item shall

be provided.
: NN =
CCOMPONENT T v e SIFAINE
Sodium ppmw
“Potassium ppmw
Vanagium: ppmw
Lead ppmw
Magnesium ppmw
Manganese ppmw
Silica - ppmw
Silicon ppmw
Barium ppmw .
Phasphorous ppmw
Calcium ppmw
{fron ppmw
Copper ppmw
Zinc ppmw
Nickel ppmw
Chlorides - - ppmw
Other Trace Metals , ppmw
. ' ppmw
ppmw
SAMPLE OBTAINED BY:___ DATE SAMPLE WAS
TAKEN:
LOCATION WHERE SAMPLE WAS
TAKEN:
LAB NAME: , DATE OF TEST:

Use these resuilts to calculate total contaminants as described in Appendix 2.

© Slemens Power Gensration 2004. All Rights Reserved. This document contalns information confidential and propristary to Siemens Power Generalion. It
Is submitted in confidence and Is to be usad sajely for the purpose for hich it is furnished and retumed upon request. This document and such Information is

not to be reproduced, transmitted, diselosed or used otharwise in whole or in part without the writtsn eutharization of Slemens Pawer Gensration. Confidential
Title: FUEL GAS SPECIFICATION ’ | ZDX555-DC01-MBP-2500-01

Project: E9 GENERIC DOCUMENTS Issued: 2006-09-01

Siemens Power Generation, Orlando, FL | Rev. 013 l Type: ESP Page 22 of 22



DEMINERALIZED WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS
: FOR GAS TURBINE APPLICATIONS

Wriiten by: . Fred Shoemaker 28-09-2005

Fred Shoemaker, Engineer Date
Operating Plant Technical Support

Approved by: Patrick Solomon 28-09-2005
Patrick Solomon, Manager - Date
Operating Plant Technical Support

This document was formerly referred to as 22T1523.

Reference:
WBS: __
Review Level: 1

[This document conlains information confidential and proprietary to Siemens Pestinghouse Power Carporalion. nbsubmmdinmnﬁdqnumdhmnwwkbfor
the purpose for which it & furnished and returned upon request. This document and such information is not to be reproduced, transmitted, disclosed or used In whole or in

without !ha writlen authorization of Siemens Westinghouse Pawer Co) tion. Co ntlal
DOCUMENT NO. ZDX555-DCO1-GC-4421-01_ | DISTRIBUTION CODE: 270-000-605

TITLE: DEMINERALIZED WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS FOR GAS TURBINE " | TYPE | REV
APPLICATIONS : Esp |
Siemens Power Generation, Inc, - Orlando, FL Issue Date: 09/28/5 Page: 10f7

A Siemens Company




REVISION SHEET

REISSUE
REVISION DATE SECTION DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE
. 001 11/1/99 All Original Issue
Proprietary statement in footer updated 5/29/01; no
document rev required.
002 09/29/05 All Replaced “Siemens Westinghouse Power

Corporation” with “Siemens Power Generation,
Inclll‘

Replaced “engine” with “gas turbine”.
Replaced 22T1523 with ZDX555-DCO1-GC-
4421-01

——————

This document confains information confidantiol and proprietary to Siemens Wastinghouse Power Corporation. Ii Is submitted in confidence and is fo be used solely for
the purpose for which i 18 furnished and refurned vpon reguest. This dociment and such information Is no| to be rep

withoud the written authorization of Sieniens West| Power n._Co,
DOCUMENT NO. ZDX555-DCO01-GC-4421-01 | DISTRIBUTION CODE: 270-000-605

duced, transmitled, disclt

d or used in whole or in

TITLE: DEMINERALIZED WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS FOR GAS TURBINE TYFPE | REV
APPLICATIONS ESP | o
Siemens Power Generation, Inc. - Orlando, FL Issue Date; 9/28/05 Page: 2 of 7




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION ‘ PAGE
REVISION SHEET - -2
1.0 PURPOSE .oorsrsursons ST 4
2.0 WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS . : 4
This de contalns information confidential and proprietary to Semens Westh ghousa Power Corporafit 1t is subwmitted in confidence and 15 o be vised solely for

the purpose for which it is furilshed and returned upon requesi. This document and such Informatlon is noi 1o be reproduced, transmitted, disci d or used in whole or in
without the writien authorization of Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporall lal

Confldent]
DOCUMENT NO. ZDX555-DCO1-GC-4421-01 | DISTRIBUTION CODE: 27 0-000-605
TITLE: DEMINERALIZED WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS FOR GAS TURBINE TYPE | REV

APPLICATIONS . ESP | 602
Siemens Power Generation, Inc. - Orlando, FL. Tssue Date: 9/28/05 Page: .3 of 7




1.0  PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to define the water quality requirements for the use of
demineralized water in Siemens Power Generation, Inc. gas turbines. Demineralized water is
required for certain applications such as wet compression, inlet fogging, on-line water

* washing, etc. In order to minimize the fouling, erosion, or corrosion of the gas turbine, the
following demineralized water requirements have been developed. - :

These requirements represent the recommended allowable concentrations and it is the
customer’s responsibility to ensure these recommendations are followed.

2.0 WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS
The allowable concentrations in the demineralized water supplied to the gas turbine are as

follows. :
Maximum Concentration
. Allowed in water to Reason for
Substance compressor (ppmw) Requirement
Sodium & Potassium 0.02 Corrosion
| Calcium : -0.4 - Deposits
Chlorides 0.25 Corrosion
Tron & Copper 0.01 "Deposits
Silica : 0.1 Deposits
Total dissolved solids* 1.0 Deposits/Fouling/Erosion
Minimum pH* 6.0 (SS Piping) Corrosion
7.5 (Carbon Steel Piping)
Maximum pH* : 8.0 Corrosion
Conductivity* 0.5 pSiemens/cm Additional Detection

*Continuous analysis recommended

In order to limit suspended particulates, all water must pass througha 5 micron filter prior to
entering the engine. . i .

Note: The total contaminants present in the fuel, air, and injection-ﬂuids must meet the
requirements of the latest Siemens Power Generation, Inc. liquid and gas fuel specifications

(21T4424 & 21T0306).
This d " contalns info confidential and proprietary (o Slenrens Westinghouse Power Corporation. Jt is submitted in canfidenca and is io be used solely for
the purpose for which it is firnished and reiurned upon req This doc and such informatlon is not lo be reproduced, transmitted, disclosed or used in whole or in|

without the writien authorization o, Staimans Westinghouse Power ation._Conf -
DOCUMENT NO. ZDX555-DCO1-GC-4421-01 DISTRIBUTION-CODE: 270-000-605
TITLE: DEMINERALIZED WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS FOR GAS TURBINE TYFE | REV

APPLICATIONS _ ESP 002
Siemens Power Generation, Inc. - Orlando, FL Tssue Date: 9/28/05 Page: 4of 7




To determine the extent of contammattoﬁ on a fuel equivalent basis due to the added water,
- the water contaminant level in ppmw (ppm by weight) is multiplied by the water-to-fuel ratio.

For example:
ppm (fuel flow eqmvalent) gpm (water} x Ib/hr (water)
Ib/hr (fuel)

where: Ib/hr (water) = GPM x 500

Sxmply adhering to the total contaminant levels defined in the fuel specxﬁcatxons would in
most cases, with clean fuel and air, allow for substantially more contaminants in the water.
However, exceeding the above values or operatmg outside the range of pH levels will
increase the rate of fouling, corrosion, or erosion and will lead to a loss of performance and

component life.

This dt ing info i W&mdmﬂprmidaryta.ﬂmmﬂ'uﬁnghnm?aw&mmm ﬂbndmﬂlzdﬁamnﬁdenmwd#bhwednldyﬁr
llmmmjbrwhkhﬂhﬁnhhdmdmumdmmmtm such information is nol to be reprodyced, transniiited, disclased or used in whole or in

without the writlen authorization of Siemens We ouse Power
DOCUMENT NO. znxsss-nco1-Gc-44z1-01 | DISTRIBUTION CODE: 270-000-605

TITLE: DEMINERALIZED WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS FOR GAS TURBINE | TYPE | REV

APPLICATIONS _ X || e
Siemens Power Generatlon, Inc. - Orlando, FL Issue Date: 9/28/05 Page: 50f7




WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS

FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS
Written'by: Christopher Ritter Feb 3, 2005
Christopber Ritter, Engineer Date
G 1232 - Inlet, Exhaust, V84 ’
Reviewed by: Volker Wild Feb 3, 2005
Volker Wild, Tech Lead Engineer Date
(1232 - Inlet, Exhaust, V84
Approved by: P. Ritland Feb 3, 2005
Date

Paul Ritland, Manager
G1232 - Inlet, Exhaust, V84 -

Reference:
WBS: _351
Review Level: _4

This dooument coatains information confidential and proprictary to Siemons Westinghouse Power Corporation. It js subniitted in confidence and is to bo used salely for the
purpose for which it is firaished and roturned upon request. “Fhis documént and such information is not to be reproduced, fransmined, disclosed or used in whole or in part

without the written authorizetion of Siemens Westinghouse Power ion._Cal

DOCUMENT NO. 2273387
{ TITLE: WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS TYPE { REV
_ ESP 002
Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation - Orlando, FL *
A Siemens Company Issue Date: Feb 4, 2005 | Page: 1 of 6




REVISION SHEET

_ REISSUE
REVISION DATE SECTION DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE
001 Sep. 01, 2000 All - | Original Issue
' Proprietary statement in footer updated 5/29/01; no

. document rev required.

002 - Feb 4, 2005 Sect2.0 H range from 7.0 - 8.5 to 6.0 — 8.5
Changed Total Disolved Solids from <500 to 30 -
500
Added Conductivity recommendation

Power Corporation. 1t is suhmiited in confidence and is to be used solely for the

This document contains information confidential and propristary to Siemens Westingh
for which it is famish ‘lndrdamdwmfeqmn.mmmmi:;dsunhhmm' is not to be reproduced, ransmitted, disclosed or used in whole or in part
- Confidontial

withut the written authorization of Siemens Westioghouse Power Corparat
DOCUMENT NO. 22T3387 ' |
TITLE: WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS TYPE | REV
‘ ESP [1]17

Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation - Orlando, FL

Issue Date: Feb 4, 2005 | Page: 2 of 6




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PAGE
REVISION SHEET ......cccevtvunvees .2
1.0 PURPOSE 4
20 MAKEUP WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS 4
Table L. Evaporative Cooler Makeup Water Quality Recommendations .......csessseeseres 4
3.0 SCALING INDEX 4
Table IL. Recommended Scaling Indices for Evaporative Cooling 5
40 ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS w5
4.1 Blending 5
5

42 Chemical Additivgs

piapose for which it is famished and retiurncd upon Tequest. This document and such information

This docunsnt contains infirmation confideatial sod proprictery to Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation. it is submifted in confidence and is to be used solely for the

is ot to be reproduced, transmitted, disclosed or used in whole or in part

withiout the written authorization of Siemens Westiophose Power Corporation. Confidential
DOCUMENT NO. 22T3387 ]

TITLE: WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS TYPE

ESP

REV
002

Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation - Orlando, FL

Issue Date: Feb 4, 2005

Page: 3 of §




1.0 PURPOSE

The purpose of this document is to define the water quality recommendations for the use of
evaporative coolers. In order to minimize the scaling and corrosion, the number of cycles of
concentration in the evaporative cooler, as well as makeup water quality are addressed.

These requirements represent the recommended allowable concentrations and it is the
operator’s responsibility to ensure these recommendations are followed.

20 MAKEUP WAIER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS

The allowable concentrations in the makeup water supplied to the evaporative cooler are as
follows. ) .

Table 1. Evaporative Cooler Makeup Water Quality Recommendations

Constituent . Concentrafion
Range
(ppm)

Calcium Hardness (as CaCOs) 50-150

Total Alkalinity (as CaCOs) 50150

Chlorides (as Cl) . <50

Silica (as Si02) <25

Tron (as Fe) - <0.2

Qil and Grease <2.0

Total Dissolved Solids . 30 - 500

Suspended Solids - : <5

pH 6.0—-8.5

Conductivity - 50— 750 pmhos

Makeup water maintained within these recommendations is expected to allow operation at 1.5
to 3 cycles of concentration in the evaporative cooler with an acceptable scaling index level.
The scaling index for site specific water analysis at site operating conditions must be verified
by the operator based on the limits presented below. '

3.0 SCALINGINDEX -

The determiination of the maximum number of cycles of concentration (as defined as the ratio
_of the makeup water flow to the blowdown flow) for any water source should be verified -
utilizing a scaling index. The determination of the mumber cycles of concentration also
determines the blowdown requirement during operation of the system. There are many
scaling indices for determining the scaling characteristics of a given water, For evaporative
cooling, it is desirable to maintain a slightly corrosive or scale dissolving index. However,
water that is very corrosive such as demineralized water can soften the media in the cooler.

MMWKMMMMMMEIMWMMMWWnMWM 1t is submitted in confidence and Is to be used solely for-the
puspase for which it is famished and retumed upon request. This document and such juformation is not to be reprodused, transmitted, disclosed or nsed in whols or inpant
without the written sulfiorization of Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation. Confidential

DOCUMENT NO. 22T3387

TITLE: WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS TYPE | REV
: ESP 002

Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation - Orlando, FL

Issue Date: Feb 4, 2005 | Page: 4 of 6




The water at the operating conditions in the evaporative cooler should be maintained such
that the scaling index lies within the ranges presented in Table II. Although & several indices
are listed, the Practical (Puckorius) Stability Index (PSI) is the preferred index of the media
vendors. ‘

Table XI. Recommended Scaling Indices for Evaporative Cooling

Index ‘ Recommended Range
Langlier Saturation Index (LSI) - 0.25-0.75
Ryznar Stability Index (RST) ' 55-65
Practical (Puckorius) Stability Index (PSI) 6.0-7.0

40  ADDITIONAL RECOMENDATIONS
4,1 Blending

The blending of demineralized, treated or purified water with potable water or raw
water is an acceptable means of obtaining the water quality to meet the
recommendations. Consideration as to the reliability of the sources is important since
use of only demineralized water or raw water could cause scaling or degradation of
the cooler media. Generally, interruption of either supply for even a short period of
time can cause damage to the media. .

42  Chemical Additiya

Use of chemicals is not recommended to treat the water. Any use of chemicals shall
be approved by the media vendor.

421 Scale Control Additives

42.1.1 Cooling tower chemical treatment programs for controlling scale
should not be used in evaporative coolers. Cooling tower chemicals are
designed to protect the metal heat transfer surfaces from scale deposits. The
cooling tower media stays clean due to the high volume of water that flows
over the surface. In evaporative coolers, the media is the heat transfer surface
and the evaporative surface. Low flow allows salts to concentrate and deposit
on the media surface. ' .

42.1.2 Chemical treatment utilizing scale inhibitors is not recommended in
evaporative coolers. The antiscalants are not effective in the inhibition of
. scale. The scale inhibitors also concentrate and become a part of the scale

deposit.
s doont coriais Inforsanlion confidontialsud propriiary to Siomens Wesliaghotss Pawar Caporation. 1t & submitied i confidenca snd is to be uscd solely far the
purpose for which it is fumished and retumed upon request. This di ment and such information is not to be reprod Jlmlml!l)ed,l!im:lngndornse(linwlm!nsm'irum‘t

without the waitten nthorization of Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation, Confidential

DOCUMENT NO. 2273387

TITLE: WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS TYPE REV
: ESp 002

Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation - Orlando, FL

Issue Date: Feb 4, 2005 | Page: 5 of 6




422 Additives to Increase Hardness and Alkalinity

Utilizing chemicals to increase hardness and alkalinity in demineralized water
is not recommended. The appropriate chemical balance is delicate and is easy

to overdose chemicals. Evaporative cooler operators have typically
experienced reduced media life when chemically treated demineralized water

is the water source. Therefore, media suppliers are reluctant to approve the
use of chemically treated demineralized water. .

423 Biocides -

Biocides are not recommended for use in evaporative coolers. Biological
growth should be controlled by good housckeeping. Keeping the media dry
while the system is down is critical to good housekeeping. The evaporative
cooler operator is advised to consult with the evaporative cooler supplier for

~ additional information regarding biocides.

This document contains information confidential and propriatary to Siemens Westinghouse Power Corporation. It is submitted in confidence and is to be used solely for the
purpose for which it is fimished and retumecd upon requost, This document and such information iz not to be reproduced, transmitted, disclosed or used in wiiols or in patt

without the written authosization of Siemens Weslinphouse Power Corporation. Confidential
DOCUMENT NO. 22T3387

TITLE: WATER QUALITY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR EVAPORATIVE COOLERS TYPE | REY
ESP 002

Sieimens Westinghouse Power Corporation - Oxlando, FL

Issue Date: Feb 4, 2005 | Pape: 6 of 6




Exhibit J
Maintenance Labor Agreement (MLA)

To Be Attached.

Lodl Energy Center Project LTP : . : Exhibit J Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information



MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT
FOR

THE LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

LODI, CALIFORNIA

22562-012a



1. INITIAL PROVISIONS

1.1. 'This Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by
the Northern California Power Agency (“Primary Employer”), thevStat"e Building
and Construction Trades Council of California (“State Council”) and the Building
and Construction Trades Council of San J oaquin, Calaveras, and Alpine Counties
(“Local Council”) and the local unions who have executed this Agreement, all of
whom are referred to collectively as the “Unions.” '

1.2. The Lodi Energy _Center Project (the “Project”) is an approximately 266
MW power plant located in the City of Lodi, San Joaquin County, California. The
Project is owned by the Northern California Power Agency (“Owner’«’). Itis
understood and agreed by and between the Parties to this Agreement that the final
plans for the Project may be subject to modifications and approval by those public
agencies possessing lawfﬁl approval authority over the Project and that this
Agreement applies to the Project as it is finally approved by such entities and
agencies. ' o

1.3. The Primary Employer is a California Joint Power Agency. It is an
employer in the construction industry. Its employees currently perform
construction work and will perform construction work on the Project. It hasa
collective bargaining relationship with the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers and Operating Engineers. o

1.4. As provided below, all project managers, construction managers,
contractors, subcontractors or other persons or entities assigning, awarding or
subcontracting Covered Work (as defined in Article 2), or authorizing another party
to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work or performing Covered Work will be _
subject to this Agreement by executing Attachment A, the Employer Agreéement to
be Bound (all of whom, including the Primary Employer, are individually and
collectively referred to as “Employer” or “Employers”). '

1.5. The Unions are labor organizations whose members are construction
industry employees who generally work in close proximity to one another at

2262-01%a _ 1



construction job sites and whose jobs are closely related aﬁd coordinated. Each of
the Unions is a party to a multi-employer collective bargaining agreement (“Master
Agreement”) that covers the geographic area of the Project. Where the term Master
Agreement is used, it means the existing Master Agreément currently in effect as to
each of the Unions.

1.6. The Project will be a large, complex construction project that will
require periodic maintenance by skilled craft workers. A large pool of skilled labor
- represented by the Unions will be required to execute the work involved in -
maintaining the Project. Employers wish and it is the purpose of this Agreement to
ensure that a sufficient supply of skilled craft workers are available at the Project,
that all maintenance work and related work performed by the members of the
Unions on this Project shall proceed continuously, without interruption, in a safe
and efficient manner, economically with due consideration for the protection of labor
standards, wages and working conditions. In furtherance of these purposes and to
secure optimum productivity, harmonious relations between the parties and the
orderly performance of the work, the’parties to this Agreement agree to establish
adequate and fair wage levels and working conditions. '

1.7. Itis a central purpose of the parties in executing this Agreement to
protect the Project against the jobsite friction that could arise at a common-situs
jobsite if union employees had to work alongside non-union employees in their own
craft or in those other crafts with which they generally work in close proximity
performing work that is closely related and coordinated. This Agreement
accomplishes this purpose by ensuring that all Covered Work will be performed by
_ workers who are union members. In the event that any construction work falls
outside the scope of this Agfeement, the Primary Employer further protects itself
from the natural result of jobsite friction by prohibiting all strikes, picketing or
gimilar activity for any reason whatsoever, and by imposing severe penalties on any

Union that violates this prohibition.

2252-012a 2



1.8. In the interest of the future of the construction industry in the local
area, of which the Unions are a vital part, and to maintain the most efficient and
competitive posture pdssible, the Unions pledge to work and cooperate with the
management of the Project to produce the most efficient utilization of labor and

equipment in accordance with this Agreement.

2. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

| 2.1. This Agreement applies to the Project and includes all planned outage
maintenance,' major overhauls, and othér maintenance work performed on the
Project that is contracted out to a contractor in the construction industry. All work
within the scope of this Agreement is referred to as “Covered Work.”

| 2.2. The following work is excluded from the scope of this Agreement:

2.2.1. Work which is performed by an Original Equipment
Manufacturer’s (‘OEM”) labor forces for warranty, repair or maintenance on the
vendor’s equipment if required by the OEM’s warranty agreement between the
OEM and the Owner. |

2.2.2. Construction or repair work performed by the Primary
Employer’s general or EPC contractor under a Project Labor Agreement approved
by the Councils and the Owner.

2.2.3. Work performed by technical representatives or tegh_nicians
performing specialized work on equipment where such employees have special or
unique skills or experience on that equipment which employees represented by the
Unions do not possess.

2.2.4. Work performed by non-construction craft employees.

2.2.5. Work performed by Primary Employer’s regular workforce.

2.2.6. Work performed by Pacific Gas & Electric or another utility or
local water purveyor. .

2.2.7. Work performed on the existing 49.9 MW steam injected gas
turbine adjacent to the Project site.

2262-012a -3



2.2.8. Worked that is performed in the existixig 230 KV Switchyard.

2.2.9. Work performed on the existing waste water treatment plant
adjacent to the Project site.

2.2.10.° Work that is immediately necessary to repair a unit or piece
of equipment as the result of an emergency, act of God or other sudden unexpectéd
events outside of the control of the Primary Employer.

2.2.11. Work if, at the time the work is to be performed, union

signatory contractors are not reasonably available to bid the work.

3. SUBCONTRACTING |
3.1. Primary Employer and each other Employer agree that they will

contract for the assignment, awarding or subcontracting of Covered Work, or
authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, only to a
person, firm, corporation or other entity that, at the time the contract is execﬁted,
has become a party to this Agreement by executing Attachment A, the Employer
Agi'eement to be Bound.

3.2. Primary Emf)loyer and each other Employer agree that they will
subcontract Covered Work only to a person, firm, corporation or other entity who is
or becomes party to this Agreement and who is or becomes bound for purposes of
performing Covered Work to either a local, area or regional Master Agreement with
the craft Union having traditional and customary building trades craft jurisdiction
over the work oz, ohly in the case of a national contractor, a Iiational agreement
with the International Union(s) of the craft Union(s) having traditional and
customary jurisdiction over the work. Any Employer (including Primary Employer)
performing Covered Work on the Project shall, as a condition to working on the
Project, perform all work under the terms of this Agreement and the applicable
Master Agreement. Before being authorized to perform any Covered Work,
Employers (other than Primary Employer) shall become a party to this Agreement
by signing Attachment A, the Employer Agreement to be Bound. Every Employer

2262.0122a 4



shall notify the Local Council and the State Council in writing within five business
days after it has subcontracted work, and shall at the same time provide to the
Local Council and the State Council a copy of the executed Employer Agreement to
be Bound. N

3.8. Notwithstanding Section 8.2, any Employer not already bound to a
Master Agreement, who signs and becomes bound to a Master Agieement to
participate on this Project, shall not be required to apply the terms of that Master
Agreement to any other construction project.

3.4. Nothiﬁg in this Agreement shall in any manner whatsoever limit the
rights of the Primary Employer, or any other Employer, to subcontract Covered
Work or to select its contractors or subcontractors; provided, however, that all
Employers, at all tiers, assigning, awarding, contracting or performing, or
authorizing another to assign, award, contract or perform Covered Work shall be
required to comply with the provisions of this Agreement. Primary Employer and
every other Employer shall notify each of its contractors and subcontractors of the
provisions of this Agreement and require as a condition precedent to the assigning,
awarding or subcontracting of any Covered Work or allowing any subcontracted
Covered Work to be performed, that all such contractors and subcontractors at all
tiers become signatory to this Agreement. Any Employer that fails to provide the
Local Council and State Council with the Employer Agreement to be Bound
executed by its contractor or subcontractor shall be liable for any failure of that
contractor or subcontractor, or any contractor or subcontractor at a lower tier, to
comply with the provisions of this Agreément, including any contributions to any
trust funds that the contractor or subcontractor, or any subcontractor to that

subcontractor, fails to make.

4, WAGES AND BENEFITS

4.1. -All employees covered by this Agreement (including foremen and

- general foremen if they are covered by the Mé.éter Agreement) shall be classified

2252-012a ‘ 5



and paid wageé, other compensation including but not limited to travel, subsistence,
and shift premium pay, and contributions made on their behalf to multi-employer
trust funds, all in accordance with the then current multi-employer Master
Agreement of the applicable Union. |

4,2. Any special interest bargaining which establishes wage rates,
classifications, zones, or wage escalations which apply eiccius’ively to the Project will
not be recognized. In addition, there shall be no redlining of the Project in any
future multi-employer coliectivg bargaining agreements by singling out, either by
name or by éffect, the Project or the Employers for less favorable wages, benefits or
working conditions than are generally accorded other industrial projects in the

same general geographic area.

' 5. UNION RECOGNITION

5.1. The Employers recognize the Unions signatory to this Agreement as
the sole and exclusive collective bargaining agents for their respectivé construction
: cfaft employees performing Covered Work for the Project, and further recognize the
traditional and customary craft jurisdiction of each Union.

~ 5.2. All employees performing Covered Work shall be or shall become and
then remain members in good standing of the appropriate Union as a condition of
employment on or before the eighth (8th) day of employment, or the eighth (8th) day
following the execution of this Agreement, whichever is later. _
| 5.8. The Unions shall be the source of all craft employees for Covered Work
for the Project. Employers agree to be bound by the hiring and layoff practices of
the respective Union, including hiring of apprentices, and to utilize its mgis&ation
facilities and referral systems.

5.4. Inthe event the referral facilitios maintained by the Unions do not
refer the employees as requested by the Employer within a forty-eight (48) hour
period after such requisition is made by the Employer (Saturdays, Sundays and
holidays excepted), the Employer may employ applicants from any source.

2252-0126 - 6



5.5. Each Union shall have the right to designate one working
journeyperson per shift as a steward. The steward shall be a qualified employee
performing the work of that craft and shall not exercise any supervisory functions.
Each steward shall be concerned with the employees of the steward’s Employer and
not with the employees of any other Emﬁloyer. A steward at the appropriate time
of day shall be allowed sufficient time to perform his duties. This provision shall

not be abused.

6. WORK STOPPAGES AND LOCKOUTS
6.1. During the term of this Agreement, there ghall be no strikes, sympathy
strikes, picketing, work stoppages, slow downs, interference with the work or other

disruptive activity for any reason by the Union or by any employee, and there shall
be no lockout by anj Employer. Failure of any Union or employee to cross any
picket line established at the Employer’s project site is a violatidn of this Article.
6.2. The Union shall not sanction, aid or abet, encourage or continue any
work stoppage, strike, picketing or otﬁér disruptive activity at the Project site and
shall undertake all reasonable means to prevent or to terminate any such activity.
No empioyee shall engage in activities which violate this Article. Any employee
who participates in or encourages any activities which interfere with the normal
operation of the Project shall be subject to disciplinary action, including discharge,
and, if justifiably discharged for the above reasons, shall not be eligible for rehire on

‘the same project for a period of not less than ninety (90) days.

6.3. The Union shall not be liable for acts of employees for which it has no
responsibility. The principal officer or officers of 2 Union will immediately instruct,
order and use the best efforts of his office to cause the employees the Union
represents to cease any violations of the Article. A Union complying with this .

obligation shall not be liable for unauthorized acts of employees it represents. The

* failure of the Employer to exercise its right in any instance shall not be deemed a

waiver of its right in any other instance. .

2262-012a 7



6.4. The Union(s) agrees that if any union or any other persons, whether
parties to this Agreement or otherwise, engage in any picketing or work stoppages,
the signatory Unions shall consider such work stoppage or picketing to be illegal
and refuse to honor such picket line or work stoppage.

'6.5. In the event of any work stoppage, strike, sympathy strike, picketing
interference with the work or other disruptive activity in violation of this Article,
the Employer may suspend all or any portion of the Project work affected by such

| activity at the Emialoyer's discretion and without penalty.

6.5.1. Any Union which initiates or participates in a work stoppage in
violation of this Article, or which recognizes or supborts the work sfoppage of
another Union which is in violation of this Article agrees, as a remedy for said
violation, to pay liquidated damages in accordance with Section 6.6.8 of this Article.

6.6. Inlieu of, or in addition to, any other action af law or equity, any party
may institute the following procedure when a breach of this Article is alleged, after -
the Union(s) and/or local union(s) has been notified of the fact.

6.6.1. The party invoking this procedure shall notify Norman Brand or
Joe Grodin who the parties to this agreement agree shall be the permanent
Arbitrators under this procedure. In the event that either of the permanent
Arbitrators is unavailable at any time, the American Arbitration Association shall
select an alternative arbitratoxi within twenty-four (24) hours of notice. Notice to
tﬁe Arbitrator shall be by the most expeditious means availqble, with notice by fax
or electronic means or any other effective written means to the party alleged to be
in violation and the involved International Union President and or local union.

6.6.2. Upon receipt of said notice, the Arbitrators named abdvé shall
set and hold a hearing within twenty-four (24) hours if it is contended that the
violation still exists. '

6.6.3. The Arbitrator shall notify the parties by fax or electronic means
or any other effective written means of the place and time he has chosen for this

hearing. Said hearing shall be completed in one session. A failure of any party or

2262-012a 8



- parties to attend said hearing shall not delay the hearing of evidence or issuance of

an Award by the Arbitrator.

‘ 6.6.4. The sole issue at the hearing shall be whether or not a violation
of this Article has in fact occurred. The Award shall be issued in writing within
three (3) hours after the close of the hearing, and may be issued without an opinion,
If any party desires an opinion, one shall be issued within fifteen (15) days, but its
issuance shall not delay compliance with, or enforcement of, the Award. The
Arbitrator may order cessation of the violation of this Article by the Union, and
such Award shall be served on all parties by hand or registered mail upon issuance.

6.6.5. Such Award may be enforced by any court of competent
jurisdiction upon the filing of this Agreement and all other relevant documents
referred to hereinabove in the following manner. The fax or electronic notice of the.
filing of such enforcement proceedings shall be given to the other party. In the
proceeding to obtain a temporary order enforcing the Arbitrator'’s Award as issued
under Section 6.6.4 of this Article, all parties waive the right to a hearing and agi'ee
that such proceedings may be ex parte. Such agreement does not waive any party’s
right to participate in a hearing for a final order of enforcement. The Court’s.order

or orders enforcing the Arbitrator’s Award shall be served on all parties by hand or

" by delivery to their last known address or by registered mail.

6.6.6. Any ﬁghts created by statute or law gpverning arbitration
proceedings inconsistént with the above procedure or which interfere with
compliance therewith are hereby wéiv’ed by the parties to whom they accrue.

6.6.7. The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the
party or parties found in violation, or in the event no violation is found, such fees
and expenses shall be borne by the moving party. |

6.6.8. If the Arbitrator determines that a violation has occurred in
accordance with Section 6.6.4 above, the party or parties found to be in violation
shall pay as liquidated damages the following amounts: for the first shift in which
the violation occurred, $20,000; for the second shift, $25,000; for the third shift,

2262.012a ’ 9



$30,000; for each shift thereafter on which the cféfl'. has not returned to work,
$30,000 per shift. The Arbitrator shall retain jurisdiction to determine compliance
with this section and this Article. '

6.7. 'The procedures contained in Section 6.6 shall be applicablé to alleged
violations of this Article. Disputes alleging violation of any other provision of this

Agreement, including any underlying disputes alleged to be in justification, ’
| explanation or mitigation of any violation of this Article, shall be resolved under the
grievance procedures of Article 8.

6.8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6.1 above, it is agreed that
with twenty-four (24) hour prior notice to the Primary Employer, a Union retains
the right to withhold the services of its members from a particular contractor or
subcontractor who fails to make timely payments to the Union’s benefit plans or
fails to timely pay its weekly payroll in accordance with its agreements with the
Union; provided, however, that in the event the Union or any of its members ‘
 withhold their services from such contractor br subcontractor, Primary Employer
shall have the right to replace such contractor or subcontractor with any other
contractor or subcontractor who executes the Agreement to be Bound.

6.9. It will not be a violation of this Agreement when the Employer
considers it necessary to shut down to avoid the possible loss of human life because
of an emergency situation that could endanger the life and safety of an employee.
In such cases, employees will bé compensated only for the actual time worked. In
the case of a situation described above whereby the Employer requests employees to
wait in a designated area available for wark, the employees will be compensated for
the waiting time. -

' 6.10. Inthe event that any applicable labor agreement expires and the
parties to that agreement fail to reach agreement on a new contract by the date of
expiration, a Union shall continue to provide employees to.the Employers working
on the Project under all the terms of the expired agreement until a new agreement

is negotiated, at which time all terms and conditions of that new agreement shall be

2262-012a 10



applied to Covered Work at the Project, except to the extent they conflict with any
provision of this Agreement. In addition, if the new labor agreement provides for
wage or benefit increases, then any Employer shall pay to its employees who

performed Covered Work at the Project during the hiatus between the effective

‘dates of such labor agreements, an amount equal to any such wage and benefit

increases established by the new labor agreement for such work performed.

7. HOURS OF WORK AND HOLIDAYS -

7.1. The standard work day shall consist of eight (8) hours of work between
6:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. with one-half hour designated as an unpaid period for
lunch. Common start times may be established by the Employer during this
window period. Proposed modifications to the standard work day may be submitted
by an Employer to tﬁe Local Council for approval. This approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld. The standard work week shall be five () consecutive days
of work commencing on Monday. Proposed modifications to the standard work week
may be submitted by an Employer to the Local Council for approval. The Local
Council shall respond within five (5) working days and bargain in good faith over
any such proposed.modiﬁcation. Nothing herein shall be construed as guaranteeing
any employee eight (8) hours of work per day or forty (40) hours of work per week.

7.2. Common shifts may be established when considered necessary by the

Employer. The Employer shall provide at least one week notice tothe Local Council
prior to any change in shift time. Any shifts established shall continue for the
established work week.

7.3. Recognized holidays shall be as follows: New Year’s Day, Martin
Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents’ Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day,
Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day. No
other holidays or black-out dates will be recognized. In the event a holiday falls on
Saturday, the previous day, Friday, shall be observed as such holiday. In the event
a holiday falls on Sunday, the following day, Monday, shall be observed as such

2262-012a 11



holiday. There shall be no paid holidays. If employees are required to work on a
holiday, they shall receive the appropriate rate; but in no case shall such overtime

rate be more than double the straight time rate.

8. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

8.1. .Itis mutually agreed that any question arising out of and during the
term of this Agreement involving its interpretation and application (other than
jurisdigtional disputes or successorship) shall be considered a grievance. Questions
between or among parties signatory to a Master Agreement arising out of or
involving the interpretation of a Master Agreement shall be resolved under the
grievance procedure provided in that Master Agreement. '

8.2. The‘Primary Employer and other Employers, as well as the Unions,
may bring forth grievances under this Article.

8.3. A grievance shall be considered null and void if not brought to the
attention of the Employer(s) within five (5) working days after the incident that
initiated the alleged grievance occurred or was discovered, whichever is later. The
term “working days” as used in this Article shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays or
holidays regardless of whether any work is actually performed on such days.

~ 84. Grievances shall be settled according to the following procedure, except
that grievances that do not involve an individual grievant shall be discussed by the
Primary Employer, State Council and Local Council and then, if not resolved within
. five (5) working days of written notice unless extended by mutual consent, |
commence at Step 4:

Step 1
The Steward and the grievant shall attempt to resolve the

grievance with the craft supervisor within five (5) working
days after the Grievance has been brought to the
attention of the Employer. :

In the event the matter remains unresolved in Step 1
above after five (5) working days, within five (5) working

. 922620122 _ 12 -



days thereafter, the alleged grievance may be referred in
writing to the Business Manager(g) of the Union(s)
affected and the site construction manager or Labor
Relations representative of the Employer(s) for discussion
and resolution. A copy of the written grievance shall also
be mailed, faxed, or emailed to the Primary Employer.

In the event the matter remains unresolved in Step 2
above within five (5) working days, within five (5) working
days thereafter, the grievance may be referred in writing
to the Business Manager(s) of the affected Union(s)
involved and the Manager of Labor Relations of the
Employer(s) or the Manager’s designated representative
and the Primary Employer for discussion and resolution.

If the grievance is not settled in Step 3 within five (5)
working days, within five (5) days thereafter, either party
may request the dispute be submitted to arbitration or
the time may be extended by mutual consent of both
parties. The request for arbitration and/or the request for
an extension of time must be in writing with a copy.to the
Primary Employer. Should the parties be unable to
mutually agree on the selection of an Arbitrator, selection
for that given arbitration shall be made by seeking a list
of seven (7) labor arbitrators with construction experience
from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service and
alternately striking names from the list of names on the
list until the parties agree on an Arbitrator or until one
name remains. The first party to strike a name from the
list shall alternate between the party bringing forth the
grievance and the party defending the grievance.
Primary Employer shall keep a record of the sequence and
shall notify the parties to the grievance as to which party
has the right to strike a name first.

~ 8.5. The Arbitrator shall conduct a hearing at ;Arhich the parties to the
grievance shall be entitled to present testimonial and documentary evidence.
Hearings will be transcribed by a certified court reporter. The parties shall be
entitled to file written briefs after the close of the hearing and receipt of the

transcript.
2952-0120 13



8.6. Upon expiration of the time for the parties to file briefs, the Arbitrator
shall issue a written decision that will be served on all parties and on the Primary
Employer. The Arbitrator shall have the authority to utilize any equitable or legal
remedy to prevent and/or cure any breach or threatened breach of this Agieement.
The Arbitrator’s decision shall be final and binding as to all parties signatory to this
Agreement.

8.7. The cost of the Arbitrator and the court reporter, and any cost to pay
for facilities for the hearing, shall be borne equally by the parties to the grievance.
All other costs and expenses in connection with the grievance hearing shall be borne
by the party who incurs them.

8.8. The Arbitrator’s decision shall be confined to the issue(s) posed by the
grievance and, except as provided in Section 13.1.1, the Arbitrator shall not have
the authority to modify, amend, alter, add to or subtract from any provision of this
Agreement. | .

8.9. Any party to a grievance may invite the Primary Employer to
participate in resolution of a grievance. The Primary Employer may, at its own
initiative,. participate in Steps 1 through 8 of the grievance procedure.

8.10. In determining whether the time limits of Steps 2 through 4 of the
grievance procedure have been met, a written referral or request shall be considered
timely if it is personally delivered, sent by overnight mail or faxed within the five
(5) working day period. Any of the time periods set forth in this Article may be
extended in writing by mutual consent of the parties to the grievance, and any
written referral or request shall be considered timely if it is personally delivered,

sent by overnight mail or faxed during the extended time period.

9. JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES

9.1. The assignment of work will be solely the responsibility of the
Employer performing the work involved, and shall be made in accordance with
traditional and customary building trades craft jurisdiction. All jurisdictional

2262-012a 14



disputes between or among the Unions and their employees, parties to this

Agreement, shall be settled and adjusted according to the plan described in this

- Artigle 9. Decisions rendered shall be final, binding and conclusive on the

Employers involved and the Unions that are parties to this Agreement. Provisions
of Section 6.1 apply to any issues associated with jurisdictional disputes.

9.2. A party challenging an assignment shall notify all affected Unions, the
Employer and the Local Council, by facsimile, within two (2) days of the time that a
dispute occurs. All disputes involving craft work assignments shall be referred to
the Local Council which shall convene a meeting with the affected Unions and
Employer within two (2) days. Should the Local Council, the affected Unions and
the Employer fail to resolve the dispute within five (5) working days from the date
they were notified of the dispute, then the matter shall be immediately referred to
the affected International Unions with which the local unions are affiliated and
they and the Employer shall have the opportunity to resolve the dispute.

9.3. Should the International Unions and the Employer fail to resolve the
dispute within five (6) work days from the date they were notified of the dispute,
then the matter shall be referred by facsimile by any International Unibn or
Employer directly involved in the dispute for arbitration to the arbitrator chosen by
the International Unions from among Gerald McKay, Thomas Angelo, William
Riker and Emily Maloney, to resolve jurisdictional disputes under this procedure. If
none of these arbitrators is available, an arbitrator shall be selected as provided in
Section 8.4, Step 4. - .

9.4. The arbitrator will set and hold a hearing within seven (7) days of the
referral to him or her. The arbitrator shall notify the Employer and the appropriate
International Unions by facsimile of the place and time chosen for the hearing. A
failure of any party or parties to attend said hearing without good cause, as
determined by the arbitrator, shall not delay the hearing of evidence or issuance of
a decision by the arbitrator. The time period set forth herein can be extended by

mutual agreement of the parties in writing.

2952-012a. 16



9.5. The arbitrator shall issue a decision within three (3) days after the
case has been closed. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on all
parties to the dispute. This action of the arbitrator shall be 'predicated upon the
particular facts and evidence presented reg‘rarding‘t}ﬁs dispute and shall be effective
only on this particular job.

96. In rendering the decision, the arbitrator shall determine first whether
a previous decision or agreement of record between the parties to the dispﬁte
governs. If the arbitrator ﬁnds that the dispute is not covered by an appropriate or
applicable decision or agreement of record, the arbitrator shall then consider

whether there is an applicable agreement between the crafts governing the case. If

~ no such agreement is in effect, the arbitrator shall then consider the established

trade practice and prevailing practice in the locality.

9.7. The arbitrator is not authorized to award back pay or any damages for
a mis-assignment of work, except for a willful violation of a well established
jurisdiction. Nor may any party to this procedure bring an independent action for .
back pay or any other damages based upon a decision of the arbitrator.

9.8. Each party to the arbitration shall bear its own expense for the
arbitration. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator will be shared edually by the
affected International Unions and the Employer.

9.9. The Employer shall not be subject to disputes regarding w’ork

~assignments made by its subcontractors. However, the Employer must ensure that

its subcontractors performing work under the terms and conditions of this

Agreement follow the procedures of this Article.

10. JOINT LABOR/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS
10.1. During the period of any Covered Work performed under this

Agreement, an initial joint Lﬁbor/Management meeting will be held before the
particular work commences, and thereafter joint meetings will be held as needed

between the Primary Employer, the other Employers, the Local Council and the

2262-012a 16



signatory Unions. The purpose of these meetings is to promote harmonious
labor/management relations, ensure adequate communications and advance the
proficiency and efficiency of the craft workers and contractors performing work at
the Project. These meetings will also include discussion of safety, craft resource
requirements, scheduling and productivity of work performed at the Project.

10.2. A Pre-Job Conference will be held prior to the commencement of work
to establish the scope of work in each Employer's contract. When a contract has
been let to‘an Employer(s) covered by this Agreement, a Pre-Job Conference and/or
Mark-Up Meeting shall be required upon request of any Union, Employer or the
Primary Employer.

11. SUCCESSORSHIP AND SURVIVABILITY
11.1. This Agreement is and shall be binding and legally effective upon (i)

any successor to Primary Employer, whether by merger, consolidation, acquisition
or otherwise, and (ii) any person or entity that acquires all or any portion of
Primary Employer’s right, title or interest in the Project whether by sale, lease, or
other transfer, or contribution to partnership, joint venture or other entity. Any
agreement for a sale, lease, contribution or other transfer of the Project by the
Primary Employer, or an agreement for a merger or acquisition including ownershlp
or control of Primary Employer, shall include an express assumption of the
obligations and undertakings of Primary Employer under this Agreement, including
this successorship provision. Within ten (10) days following the close of any sale,
acquisition, merger, lease or other transfer éovered by this Section 11.1, Primary
Emplloyer‘ ghall provide the State Council and the Local Council with written notice
thereof and an original, executed assumption of this Agreement. Any shain transfer
is a breach of this clause and shall not release Primary Employer from any of its
obligations or undertakings under this Agreement.

11.2. This Article 11 shall be enforceable in any court of competent
jurisdiction, and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of Article 8.

2252-012a ' 17



12. GENERAT, PROVISIONS |

12.1. If any article or provision of this Agreement shall become invalid,
inoperative and/or unenforceable by operation of law or by declaration of any
competent authority of the executive, legislative, judicial or administrative
branches of the federal or state government, the Employers and the State Council
shall suspend the operation of such article or provision during the period of its l
invalidity, and the Primary Employer and the State Council shall negotiate in its
place and stead an article or provision that will satisfy the objections to its validity
and that, to the greatest extent possible, will be in accord with the intent and
purpose of the article or provision in question. The new article or provision
negotiated By’ the Primary Employer and the State Council shall be binding on all
parties signatory to this Agreement.

12.1.1. If the Primary Employer and the State Council are unable
within thirty (30).calendar days to negotiate a substitute artiéle or provision, either
of them may at any time thereafter submit the matter directly to interest

‘arbitration pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 8. 4, Step 4, and Sections
8.5 through 8.7. The Arbitratoi' shall have the authority to modify, amend and alter
the Agreement by providing a substitute article or provision to replace the one(s)
that have become invalid, inoperative or unenforceable. The Arbitrator’s decision,
and the new article or provision, shall be final and Binding on all parﬁeé signatory
to the Agreement. ]

12.2. If any article or provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid,
inoperative or unenforceable by operation of law, or by any of the above mentioned
tribunals of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement or application
of such article or provision' to persons or circumstances other than to which it has

been held invalid, inoperative or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby.

2262-012a 18



12.3. Except as enumerated in this Agreement, all other terms and
conditions of employment described in the Master Agreement of the Union having
traditional and customary jurisdiction over the Covered Work shall apply.

12.4. The provisions of this Agreement shall take precedence over conflicting
provisions of any Master Agreement or any other collective bargaining agreement.

12.5. Eéch persoﬁ executing this Agreement represents and warrants that
he or she is authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party or parties
indicated.

12.6. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and
each counterpart shall be deemed to be an original document. All executed
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same document, and any
signature pages may beiassemble‘d to form a single original document.

12.7. To the fullest extent consistent with the applicable Master Agreement
and trust agreement, it is agreed that any liability under this Agreement by
Primary Employer, the State Council, the Local Council, a Union, or any other "
Employer shall be several and not joint. Any alleged breach of this Agreemént bya
party shall not affect the rights lLiabilities, obligations, and duties among the other
parties or between that party and any other party.

12.8. Any notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows:

To Primary Employer: To the State Council:

Ed Warner, Project Manager ‘Robert L. Balgenorth, President
Northern California Power Agency State Building and Construction Trades
651 Commerce Drive : Council of California v
Roseville, CA 95678 ‘ ‘ 1226-8th Street, Suite 375

Telephone: (209) 333-6370 ext. 100 - Sacramento, CA 95814

Telephone: 916-443-3302

2262-012a 19



With a copy to: To the Local Council:

Scott W. Blek Building and Construction Trades
Galati Blek LLP Council of San Joaquin, Calaveras, and
100 N. Brand Blvd., Suite 618 Alpine Counties
Glendale, CA 91203 P.0O. Box 5306
Telephone: (818) 476-0063 Stockton, CA 95205

Telephone: (209) 467-1849

With a copy to:

Marc D. Joseph

Adams Broadwell Joseph & Cardozo
601 Gateway Boulevard, Suite 1000
South San Francisco, CA 94080
Telephone: 660-589-1660

Either party may notify the other in writing if its person designated to receive

notice is changed.

13. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION
13.1. During the performance of this Agreement, the Employers and the

Unions shall not uxﬂanulIy discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any
emplo;}ee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious
creed, national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental
disabﬂity,'medical condition (cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of .
family care leave. The Employers and the Unions shall insure that the evaluation
and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such

discrimination and harassment.

14. WAIVER
14.1. The parties hereby acknowledge that this Agreement is a lawful pre-

hire agreement within the meaning of Section 8(f) of the National Labor Relations
Act; and the Primary Employer and each other Employer hereby expressly waives

2262-012a 20



its right to contest, challenge, repudiate or void (hereinafter collectively “challenge”)
this Agreement, directly or indirectly, on any basis, in any proceeding before any
federal, state or local court, agency or other tribunal, including the National Labor
Relaﬁoﬁs Board, or before any arbitrator or hearing officer, including any challenge
to the validity of this Agreement that is raised as a defense to any action or claim
brought by the Unions. This Agreement shall be a complete defense to any such
challenge.

14.2. Primary Employer and each Employer further agrees that it shall not
golicit, finance or participate in any challenge to this Agreement by any other
person or entity. Payment of regular annual dues to an organization or association
does not constitute “solicitation,” “financing” or “participation in” a challenge as
those terms are used in this Agreement.

14.3. This Article shall be enforced pursuant to Article 8 of this Agreement
and any grievance shall commence at Step 3 of Section 8.4. The parties agree that
the economic damages to the Unions from a breach of this Article include the

reasonable fees and costs of defense.

15. TERM OF AGREEMENT .

15.1. This Agreement shall be effective upon commencement of commercial
operation of the Project, and shall continue for thirty (30) years thereafter (the
“Term”). This Agreement will be reviewed{ and revised if necessary by the State
Council, Local Council and Primary Employer every then (10) years during the
Term. Any revisions, deletions or additions at that time will be agreed to by all
three parﬁes. ' '

15.2. In the event that the Application for Certification submitted to the
California Energy Commission for the Project is withdrawn and the Application
proceeding is terminated pursuant to 20 CCR § 1709.8, or the Application is denied
by the California Energy Commission and the time periods for reconsideration
under Public Resources Code § 26630 and appeal of the denial under Public

2252-012a 21



Exhibit K
Remote Monitor System

Seller, at its sole discretion, at any time during the term of this Contract, may place at no cost to
Buyer a remote monitor system ("Remote Monitor System") at a location selected by Seller, to
access data from the control system of the Combustion Turbine and Steam Turbine. The
Remote Monitor System (which is provided solely for Seller's purposes) will be connected (as
described in (g) below) to a diagnostic center located in either Orlando, Fiorida or Erlangen, -
Germany. Buyer agrees and consents to such installation and connection. Buyer agrees to
provide Seller and its representatives reasonable access to the area where the Remote Monitor
System will be located to effect such installation, removal or modification, and to carry out any
other activities to which Seller is entitied pursuant to this Exhibit. ‘ )

The Remote Monitor System includes the following general components:

1. A personal computer system including software.
2. Interconnection devices to interface with the “Link” as further described in (g) below. '

3. The software package and configuration to collect and monitor. data from the control
system, and any other devices mutually agreed upon between the Parties.

The following conditions and/or requirements shall apply to the Remote Monitor System: . |

(a) The Remote Monitor System is passive and neither it nor its installation interferes with
the operation of the' Combustion Turbine(s). '

(b) Title to the Remote Monitor System hardware and software shall remain with Seller or its
affiliates. No ownership or license or any other right, titie or interest to or in the Remote
Monitor System is granted to Buyer or any other party. Buyer shall not (and shall not
permit others to) alter the hardware, software, connections or configuration of the
Remote Monitor System or its connection to the data stream, and will not add tags, links
to other devices or systems or otherwise change the Remote Monitor System setup,
function and configuration, or connectivity. .

(c) The Remote Monitor System may include the capability for display of certain data which,
in the sole discretion of Seller, Buyer may view, and Seller may furnish to Buyer the
password(s) necessary to do so. Seller assumes no liability ‘'whatsoever (whether
express or implied) for any use, application, action, (or inaction) or interpretation of any
data viewed or otherwise obtained by Buyer.

(d) Buyer agrees not to attempt to access any data, displays, information, software or other
parts or functions of the Remote Monitor System that have not been specifically made
available to it by Seller, whether or not protected or otherwise restricted.

(e) Buyer shall not (and shall not permit others to) access, copy, download, disassemble,
" reverse engineer, reverse assemble, decompile, tamper with or otherwise attempt to
derive the source code of any Remote Monitor System software, including without

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Exhibit K Page 1
Siemens Energy, Inc.



®

(9)

)

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP

limitation any third party software. Buyer shall indemnify and hold harmless Seller (and
its suppliers or vendors) from all claims, losses, damages, judgments, expenses,
including attorney’s fees and litigation expenses, arising out of or related to any such
violation of this paragraph (e) by. Buyer (including Buyer's employees) or its
subcontractors, vendors or suppliers.

Seller shall not, except as may be required (i) to assist Seller in performance of its
obligations under this Contract or (ii) by any act, statute, law or ruling of governmental
authority, release, divulge or otherwise make available to unaffiliated third parties any
data or information dealing with the operating characteristics of the Combustion Turbine
and Steam Turbine as obtained through the Remote Monitor System in a manner which
identifies such information as specifically pertaining to Buyer.

Seller shall, at its own cost, defend, indemnify and hold harmless Buyer, its affiliates,
officers, employees, agents, assigns and successors in interest from and against any
and all liability, damages, losses, claims, demands, causes of action and other
expenses (including attorney fees) arising out of any claims of infringement by Seller of
any patents, copyrights, or other intellectual property rights based upon Seller's

manufacture, installation or use of the Remote Monitor System. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, Seller will have no duty or obligation under this paragraph f to the extent that
the Remote Monitor System or any of its components is modified by Buyer or its
subcontractors after delivery and by reason of said modification, a suit is brought
against Buyer. In addition, if by reason of such modification, a suit or proceeding is
brought against Seller, Buyer shall protect Seller in the same manner and to the same
extent that Seller has agreed to protect Buyer under the first sentence of this paragraph

(.

Buyer shall make an appropriate dedicated communication link (phone line and/or other
communication link acceptable to Seller, hereinafter “Link”) available for Selier
connection to the Remote Monitor System assigned specifically. for use of the Remote
Monitor System. The Link shall be and remain continuously connected to the Remote
Monitor System unless Buyer receives written authorization from Seller to disconnect.
The Remote Monitoring System shall comply with all applicable NERC cyber security
requirements. In the event that, after the Effective Date, Buyer's facility is subject to -
security requirements of NERC that are related to the Remote Monitor System and the
Remote Monitor System does not meet such.requirements, then the Parties will
reasonably cooperate to cause the Remote Monitor System interfaces to become
compliant with such NERC security requirements. Seller's costs related to the
modification of hardware and software of the Remote. Monitor System shall be borne by
Seller. In the event that, the Remote Monitor System is not compliant, or the Parties are
unable to cause the Remote Monitor System to become compliant, then Buyer shall
have the right to disconnect the Remote Monitor System until such time as the' Remote
Monitor System becomes compliant. Seller will provide such cooperation and
documentation as reasonably requested by Buyer to demonstrate such compliance by
the Remote Monitor System as required by NERC or any other applicable Government

Authority.

Seller will provide instruvctioﬁ to ‘Buyer’s personnel on-site concerning the | Remote
Monitor System features to which Buyer will have access.

Exhibit K Page 2

Siemens Energy, Inc.



(i) Buyer shall supply and maintain a reliable electric power source for the Remote Monitor
System. - .

The Remote Monitor System may be removed by Seller, at no expense to Buyer, at any
time during the Term of the Contract or upon or after termination of this Contract, in the
sole discretion of Seller and without recourse by Buyer. However, in the event the
Contract is either terminated by Buyer for its convenience, or terminated by. Seller for
cause, Seller shall (without prejudice to any other rights or remedies) be entitled to
recover reasonable expenses incurred by Seller for the installation, maintenance and

removal of the Remote Monitor System.

)] The Remote Monitor System shall in no case be deemed a deliverable hereunder and
Seller’s obligations under the provisions of this Contract shall not apply to the Remote
Monitor System.. FURTHER WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE
FOREGOING, OR ANY PROTECTIONS AGAINST OR DISCLAIMERS OR
LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY SET FORTH IN THE AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED
IN CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT .LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE (1)
SELLER SHALL HAVE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY
FAILURE TO FURNISH ANY INFORMATION OR DATA FROM THE REMOTE
MONITOR SYSTEM: TO BUYER OR ADVISE OR NOTIFY BUYER REGARDING ANY
CONDITIONS OR EVENTS DESCRIBED IN OR INDICATED IN ANY SUCH
INFORMATION OR DATA, (2) ANY INFORMATION OR DATA PROVIDED TO BUYER
IS ON AN “AS IS, WHERE IS” BASIS, WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER
WHETHER STATUTORY, EXPRESS, OR IMPLIED, OF MERCHANTABILITY,
FITNESS FOR PURPOSE, ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE OF
TRADE, AS TO THE ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS OR
USEFULNESS THEREOF, OR OTHERWISE, AND (3) NEITHER SELLER NOR ITS
SUPPLIERS WILL UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES BE LIABLE UNDER ANY
THEORY OF RECOVERY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING
NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY), UNDER WARRANTY OR OTHERWISE FOR
ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL -OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGE
WHATSOEVER; DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT; LOSS OF
PROFITS OR REVENUE; LOSS OF USE OF BUYER’S MATERIAL, EQUIPMENT OR
POWER SYSTEM: CLAIMS OF CUSTOMERS; OR INCREASED COSTS OF ANY

KIND.

1474357.4

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP: : Exhibit K Page 3
Siemens Energy, Inc.



CHANGE ORDER NO.1 Contract: Amended and Restated
Program Parts, Non-Program Parts,
Miscellaneous Hardware, Program
Management Services and Scheduled
Outage Services Contract, dated
November 1, 2014

Effective Date: April 19, 2018 Buyer: Northern California Power Agency

Seller: Siemens Energy, Inc.

1. Introduction. This Change Order No.1 (this “Change Order”) is agreed to pursuant to
that certain Amended and Restated Program Parts, Non-Program Parts, Miscellaneous
Hardware, Program Management Services and Scheduled Outage Services Contract,
dated November 1, 2014 (the “Contract”) by and between Siemens Energy, Inc. (“Seller”)
and Northern California Power Agency (“Buyer”). Capitalized terms used but not defined
herein shall have the meaning given them in the Contract. This Change Order as
submitted by one Party to the other shall constitute a request for a Change Order. Upon
its countersignature in the space provided below, this Change Order shall constitute a
Change Order within the meaning of the Contract.

2, Definitions: All capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in the Contract.

A. The following definitions in the Contract are hereby amended as follows:

“‘Escalation Factor’ means the net percentage increase or decrease (as the case
may be) in the U.S. Consumer Price Index — Urban CUUROO0OSAOQ over the period
from the published value for February 2018 (“Base Value”) through the value as of the
date of the invoice utilizing the most current escalation data that is released at the time
such invoice is issued. If such index ceases to be published then such similar
substitute index as is mutually agreed to by the Parties, shall apply. All payments to
Seller of Fees shall be in U.S. Dollars, escalated at the time of invoice according to
the Escalation Factor. All Fees are subject to the Escalation Factor calculated from
the Base Value. With each invoice, Seller shall provide to Buyer the Escalation Factor
applicable for such invoice. The Escalation Factor shall be calculated by the following
formula:

Escalation Factor = 1 + ((X — Base Value) / Base Value), where X is the lesser of:
(a) the latest month’s U.S Consumer Price Index-Urban (CUUROO00SAO) at the time
such invoice is issued or (b) the Escalation Factor Cap.

‘Escalation Factor Cap” means the net total allowable increase in the U.S. Consumer
Price Index — Urban (CUUROO00SAO) over the period from the Base Value through
the date of the applicable invoice during the Term. The Escalation Factor Cap shall
be calculated by the following formula:

Escalation Factor Cap = the greater of:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 1 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



(a) Base Value * (1.04)(n/12), where n = number of months from the base date of
February 2018 to the date of invoice, or

(b) the latest month’s value for the U.S Consumer Price Index-Urban
(CUUROOO0SADO) at the time such invoice is issued * 0.95.

B. The following definitions are hereby added to the Contract as follows:

“Combustion Turbine Generator Inspection Services” has the meaning set forth in
Exhibit A, Addendum 6.

“‘Energy Management Consultant Services” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit H.
“Flex Firing” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 7.

“Flex Firing Variable Fee” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit E, Payment Schedule.
‘Replacement Rotor” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 4.

“‘Rotor Exchange” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A, Addendum 4.

“‘Steam Turbine Heating Blanket Modification” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit
A, Addendum 5.

“Steam Turbine Generator Inspection Services” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit
A, Addendum 6.

3. Scope of Change. The purpose of this Change Order is to extend the Contract Term,
revise the Contact pricing, and add the following additional scope:

3.1 Rotor Exchange.

Addition of Exhibit A, Addendum 4, Rotor Exchange Workscope. Exhibit A,
Addendum 4, is hereby added to the Contract as set forth in Attachment 1 of this
Change Order.

3.2  Steam Turbine Heating Blanket Modification.

Addition of Exhibit A, Addendum 5, Steam Turbine Heating Blanket Workscope.
Exhibit A, Addendum 5, is hereby added to the Contract as set forth in
Attachment 2 of this Change Order.

3.3  Combustion Turbine Generator and Steam Turbine Generator Inspection
Services

Addition of Exhibit A Addendum 6 Combustion Turbine Generator and Steam
Turbine Generator Inspection Workscope. The following Exhibit A, Addendum 6,
is hereby inserted to the Contract as set forth in Attachment 3 of this Change
Order.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 2 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



34 Flex Firing.

Addition of Exhibit A, Addendum 7, Flex Firing Workscope. Exhibit A, Addendum
7, is hereby added to the Contract as set forth in Attachment 4 of this Change
Order.

Combustion Turbine Program Parts List.

Exhibit B, Combustion Turbine Program Parts List, of the Contract is hereby deleted in its
entirety and replaced with Exhibit B (Rev. 1) attached to this Change Order as Attachment
5. As of the Change Order Effective Date, all references to Exhibit B in the Contract shall
mean Exhibit B (Rev. 1).

Projected Scheduled Outage Plan.

Exhibit C, Projected Scheduled Outage Plan, of the Contract is hereby deleted in its
entirety and replaced with Exhibit C (Rev. 1) attached to this Change Order as Attachment
6. As of the Change Order Effective Date, all references to Exhibit C in the Contract shall
mean Exhibit C (Rev. 1).

Service Bulletin.

Amendment to Exhibit D, Addendum 1, Service Bulletin. Exhibit D, Addendum 1, Service
Bulletin, of the Contract is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Exhibit D,
Addendum1 (Rev. 1) attached to this Change Order as Attachment 7. As of the Change
Order Effective Date, all references to Exhibit D, Addendum 1, in the Contract shall mean
Exhibit D, Addendum 1 (Rev. 1).

Payment Schedule

Amendment to Exhibit E Payment Schedule. Exhibit E, Payment Schedule, of the
Contract is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following Exhibit E (Rev. 1)
attached to this Change Order as Attachment 8. As of the Change Order Effective Date,
all references to Exhibit E in the Contract shall mean Exhibit E (Rev. 1).

Cancellation.

Amendment to Exhibit G Cancellation Schedule. Exhibit G, Cancellation Schedule, of the
Contract is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with Exhibit G (Rev. 1), as set forth
in Attachment 9 of this Change Order. As of the Change Order Effective Date, all
references to Exhibit G in the Contract shall mean Exhibit G (Rev. 1).

Energy Management Consultant Services.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 3 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Addition of Exhibit H Energy Management Consultant Services. The following Exhibit H,

Energy Management Consultant Services, is hereby added to the Contract as set forth in
Attachment 10 of this Change Order.

Rotor Exchange Warranty

Parts provided by Seller pursuant to Exhibit A, Addendum 4, of the Contract shall be Non-
Program Parts under the Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Parts Warranty and
Exclusive Remedy in Section 8.2 of the Contract.

Steam Turbine Heating Blanket Modification Warranty
Parts provided by Seller pursuant to Exhibit A, Addendum 5, shall be Non-Program Parts

warranted under the Miscellaneous Hardware and Non-Program Parts Warranty and
Exclusive Remedy in Section 8.2 of the Contract.

Combustion Turbine Generator and Steam Turbine Generator Inspection Warranty

Services provided by Seller pursuant to Exhibit A, Addendum 6, shall be Services
warranted under the Services Warranty in Section 8.3 of the Contract.

Contract Term. The Sunset Date provided under Section 5.1 (ii) of the Contract is hereby
extended six years so that the new Sunset Date is November 1, 2041.

Timing. This Change Order will be in effect as of the Effective Date first written above.

Payment and Term. Payment terms will be pursuant to the Contract as amended by this
Change Order. Payments shall be made per Section 4.4 of the Contract.

Other Terms and Conditions. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Change
Order, all other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 4 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, have caused this Change
Order No. 1 to be executed by their duly authorized representatives to be effective as of the date
first above written.

Siemens Energy, Inc. Northern California Power Agency
By: By:

Name: Name

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Siemens Energy, Inc.

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 5 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Attachment 1

Exhibit A
Addendum 4
Rotor Exchange Workscope

1. Rotor Exchange

Seller shall supply to Buyer a total of two (2) refurbished Combustion Turbine replacement rotors
(the “Replacement Rotor(s)”) during the Term and, each time a Replacement Rotor is supplied,
Seller shall remove and retain the existing on-Site rotor from the Combustion Turbine (the
“Outgoing Rotor(s)”), all as further detailed in this Addendum 4 (“Rotor Exchange”).

Both Replacement Rotors will be refurbished and inspected to Siemens OEM requirements
including the applicable service bulletins and any technical issue updates and fast start capability
in effect at the time of refurbishment. The belly bands will be supplied with Seller’s best available
material, and qualified for additional service. The Replacement Rotors will have a deemed
estimated life of the earlier of one hundred and thirty three thousand (133,000) EBH or two
thousand five hundred (2,500) normal starts (NS) from its installation in the applicable Combustion
Turbine. However, this estimate shall not constitute a warranty, guarantee, or otherwise.

A low speed balance will be performed on the Replacement Rotor. Seller shall notify Buyer 30
days prior to rotor balancing and Buyer shall have the right to witness the rotor balancing.

Buyer may elect to have an optional high speed balance performed for an additional price quoted
at the time of election.

Within 30 days of Delivery of the Replacement Rotor, Seller shall provide a rotor refurbishment
report.

2. Rotor Exchange Schedule

The schedule for Rotor Exchange #1 and #2 is provided in Exhibit C. However, this schedule
may be shifted to alternate periods, upon agreement of the Parties. If the Rotor Exchange is not
performed during a Major Inspection, Seller would require a Change Order for additional work
scope. Buyer shall notify Seller 180 days in advance of the Scheduled Outage requiring the Rotor
Exchange. For notifications less than 180 days, Seller will make reasonable efforts to support
the outage dates, however, Seller does not guarantee availability of a Replacement Rotor in time
to support the outage.

3. Bearings

The Rotor Exchange also includes the exchange by Seller of the existing journal bearings in the
Combustion Turbine (“Outgoing Bearing”) with new or refurbished journal bearings that match
the applicable Replacement Rotor’s specific journal dimensions (‘Replacement Bearings”).

4. Delivery, Title, Risk of Loss and Transportation

4.1 Delivery of Outgoing Rotors and Outgoing Bearings

Delivery of each Replacement Rotor and Replacement Bearing provided hereunder shall be made
when the transporting conveyance comes to a rest at the place of unloading at the delivery point
(“Delivery”). The Delivery point for Replacement Rotors and Replacement Bearings, in the

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 6 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



absence of special shipping instructions, shall be the area on the Site or adjacent laydown area
where the cargo will be unloaded. If the Replacement Rotors arrive on the Site while Seller is on
the Site performing the Rotor Exchange, Seller shall be responsible for unloading the cargo from
the transporting conveyance upon Delivery. If the Replacement Rotors arrive prior to the Seller’s
arrival at Site for performance of the Rotor Exchange, then Buyer shall be responsible for
unloading the cargo from the transporting conveyance upon Delivery.

If Delivery cannot be accommodated by Buyer, then Delivery will be made to a Buyer-designated
storage facility and Buyer shall be responsible for all additional costs, including storage,
transportation to and from such storage facility, and demurrage.

4.2 Title and Risk of Loss to the Replacement Rotors and Replacement Bearings

Risk of loss or damage of each Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearing shall pass from Seller
to Buyer upon Delivery of such Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearing. Legal and equitable
title to each Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearing shall pass from Seller to Buyer upon
installation of such Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearing into the Combustion Turbine.
Buyer and Seller agree that Seller may elect to maintain title to and right to possession of shipping
containers it uses during the transportation of the Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearing to
the Site. A rotor skid will be used on-site for any required storage if Replacement Rotor is delivered
prior to the outage,

4.3 Transportation of the Replacement Rotors and Replacement Bearings

4.3.1 Transportation and Storage

When a Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearings are ready for shipment, Seller
will (i) in the absence of shipping instructions, inform Buyer of pending shipment and
Buyer will thereafter promptly give shipping instructions to Seller, (ii) determine the
method of transportation and the routing of the shipment and (iii) ship the
Replacement Rotor or Replacement Bearings freight prepaid by Normal Carriage to
the Site.

4.3.2 Normal Carriage and Special Transportation and Services

The Change Order pricing is based on transportation and Delivery by Normal
Carriage of the Replacement Rotors, Replacement Bearings Outgoing Rotors, or
Outgoing Bearings.

Buyer agrees to pay or to reimburse Seller for any transportation charges for
Replacement Rotors, Replacement Bearings Outgoing Rotors, or Outgoing
Bearings where transportation charges are in excess of regular charges for Normal
Carriage, including additional charges for special routing, special trains, specialized
riggers trailers, lighterage, barging and air transport.

Buyer also agrees to pay or to reimburse Seller for any cost incurred by Seller or
charge resulting from special services performed in connection with the
transportation of the Replacement Rotors, Replacement Bearings Outgoing Rotors,

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 7 of 25
Siemens Energy, inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



or Outgoing Bearings. Buyer shall bear the risk and expense for permits and
easements required for the access roadways, bridges or railways to the Site and for
any required modifications to the transportation route to and from the Site including
the construction and repair of transportation and handling facilities, bridges and
roadways.

4.4 Return of Outgoing Rotors or Outgoing Bearings

Seller shall pack and arrange for transportation off the Site of the Outgoing Rotors and Outgoing
Bearings upon Seller's removal from the Combustion Turbine. Legal and equitable title and risk
of loss or damage to same will transfer from Buyer to Seller upon such Outgoing Rotor or Outgoing
Bearings removal from the Combustion Turbine provided Outgoing Rotor and Outgoing Bearings
are in Seller’s care, custody and control.

5. Blading and Other Parts

Replacement Rotors will arrive at the Site either bladed or unbladed at Seller’s discretion. Seller
may elect to remove the blades and other parts from the Outgoing Rotors on-Site prior to shipment
to Seller's facility or to leave such blades and other parts installed on the Outgoing Rotors when
they are shipped to Seller’s facility. Title to, possessory right to, and risk of loss to such replaced
blades and other parts shall transfer from Buyer to Seller upon such blades and other parts
replacement and the Parties hereby agree that such blades and other parts shall be scrap with a
deemed value of $0.

6. Condition of Outgoing Rotors

The Outgoing Rotor(s) provided by Buyer shall not have exceeded one hundred thirty-three
thousand (133,000) EBH or two thousand five hundred (2,500) normal starts (NS) unless Seller,
through the TMS process and as determined by Seller’s prudent engineering judgment, allows
such rotor to operate beyond 133,000 EBH / 2,500 NS and such additional EBH / NS shall not be
considered beyond normal wear and tear. Additionally, the Rotor Exchanges are based the
Outgoing Rotors received by Seller having no more than the normal wear and tear expected for
arotor of the same class and style and with the equivalent EBH and ES as the applicable Outgoing
Rotor, as per the Seller’s operation and maintenance recommendations, the Service Bulletin, and
in conditions such that refurbishment to bring to a serviceable condition is limited to standard shop
inspections, cleaning, replacement of turbine section through-bolts and nuts, , torque tube
scalloping, and re-assembly, as applicable, due to such normal wear and tear. If either or both of
the Outgoing Rotors require parts or services to repair damage that Seller, in its determination
through an engineering analysis that Buyer operated the Outgoing Rotors outside of Seller’s
operation and maintenance recommendations, or fuel specification, or water specification, or air
specification or Service Bulletin., considers to be beyond such as described in the immediately
preceding sentence, then Seller shall be entitled to a Change Order from Buyer, satisfactory to
Seller, to equitably compensate Seller for any additional work or replacement parts required to
repair the portion of the applicable Outgoing Rotor that contained such damage beyond normal
wear and tear

Attachment 2

Exhibit A

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 8 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Addendum 5
Steam Turbine Heating Blanket Modification Workscope

Work Scope 1: Mobilization and Demobilization of Personnel and Tooling

e Mobilize tooling to site

e Set up tooling

¢ Inventory, pack, and load tools

e Coordinate return shipping of tools

e Mobilize/demobilize personnel

Work Scope 2: Mechanical Installation Support for Service Bulletin Implementation

e Provide mechanical support for implementation of Service Bulletin

e Provide supervisory support for implementation of Service Bulletin

Work Scope 3: Controls Implementation for Service Bulletin

e Mobilize Commissioning Engineer and Tools

e Implement controls changes associated with Service Bulletin

Work Scope 4: Thermoprozess Heating Systems Technicians

¢ Install the electric heating blankets

Work Scope 5: Heat Blanket engineering hardware and documentation

e Heating blankets, temperature sensors, junction boxes and local control cubicles
for HP turbine
e Preparation of changes in the control system

o Specification of the increased gland steam temperature needed

e Specification of cabling, etc.

¢ Necessary installation information
o All relevant documentation updated

EXCLUSIONS
o Electrical power and connection cabling, 160 kW, 3-phase, 480V

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 9 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



e Cables and wiring from the Junction Box to the DCS

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 10 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Attachment 3

Exhibit A
Addendum 6

SGENG6-1000A Generator Inspection Scope of Work

All disassembly, inspections, and assembly will be performed per applicable Siemens’ field
service procedures. The procedures may include visual inspections, NDE inspections, removal,
and replacement as necessary. The following scope illustrates the sections of the Combustion
Turbine Generator to be inspected but may not reflect the final work scope performed during the
Scheduled Outages. Variations in work scope performed by Seller, upon mutual agreement by
Buyer, will not be considered a “Change” to the Contract (i.e. Seller shall not adjust the Fees
invoiced to Buyer). Components which have reached their repair/replacement interval or were
deemed not fit for continued service through the inspection process can be purchased upon
Change Order to the Contract.

Combustion Turbine Generator Inspection Services scope of work is per the attached SB4-17-
0026-GN-EN-01 for the Medium and Major CT Generator Inspections provided in Appendix C

only.

SB4-17-0026-GN-EN-
01c.pdf

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 11 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Steam Turbine Generator (SGEN6-100A)

Work Scope 1: Siemens Generator Medium Inspection

1 Mobilize site

1.1 Travel in

1.2 Site Specific Safety Training

1.3 Set up tooling

2 Disassemble the Generator

2.1 Remove & Disassemble Bearings

3 SIEMENS Generator Medium Inspection

3.1 Visual Inspections

311 Stator Inspections

3.1.1.1 Inspect end winding spacers

3.1.1.2 Inspect circuit ring and supports

3.1.1.3 Inspect end winding supports and bracing
3.1.1.4 Inspect the end winding insulation

3.1.1.5 Inspect the surface sealing

3.1.1.6 Inspect the winding end leads

3.1.1.7 Inspect the bolted connections of the main leads
3.1.1.8 Inspect the cable insulation for cracks, wear, deterioration
3.1.1.9 Inspect the RTD connections

3.1.1.10 Inspect the core and air guide sealing (as accessible)
3.1.2 Rotor Inspections

3.1.21 Inspect the bearing journals

3.1.2.2 Inspect the sealing surfaces

3.1.23 Inspect the fans

3.1.2.4 Inspect the balance weights (as accessible)
3.1.25 Inspect the pole coils (as accessible)

3.1.2.6 Borescope the end windings and connections
3.1.2.7 Borescope the rotor-stator air gap

313 Exciter Inspection

3.1.3.1 Check condition of diode wheel

3.1.3.2 Check condition of stator winding

3.1.33 Check condition of rotor winding

3.2 Electrical Testing

3.21 Stator Testing

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 12 of 25

Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



3.2.1.1
3.2.1.2
3.2.1.3
3.21.4
3.2.2

3.2.21
3.2.2.2
3.2.3

3.2.3.1
3.2.3.2
3.24

3.2.4.1
3.2.4.2
3.243
3.244
3.2.5

3.2.5.1

3.25.2

3.25.3
3.3
3.3.1
3.3.2

4

4.1

5

5.1

5.2

5.3

Measure winding insulation resistance & calculate PI
Measure temperature sensor insulation resistance (RTDs)
Measure winding resistances
Measure resistances of temperature sensors (RTDs)
Rotor Testing
Measure insulation resistance
Measure winding resistance
Bearing Electrical Checks
Check bearing insulation resistance
Check bearing RTD resistance (functionality)
Exciter Testing
Measure winding insulation resistance
Check blocking characteristics of diodes
Check RC circuit blocks and overvoltage protection
Check function of diode wheel
Miscellaneous Electrical Checks
Check air cooler RTD resistance (functionality)
Check condition and performance of grounding/earthing
brushes
Check performance of generator space heaters
Mechanical Inspections
Dimensionally inspect the bearings
Perform NDE on the bearings
Assemble the Generator
Assemble & Install the Bearings
Demobilization
Inventory and Ship Tools
Site Clean-up
Travel out

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information

Page 13 of 25
Change Order No. 1



Work Scope 2: Siemens Generator Major Inspection

1

1.1

1.1.1
1.1.2
1.1.3
1.2
1.21
1.2.2
1.2.3
13
1.31
1.3.1.1
1.3.1.11
1.3.1.1.2
1.3.1.1.3
1.3.1.1.4
1.3.1.1.5
1.3.1.1.6
1.3.1.1.7
1.3.1.1.8
1.3.1.1.9
1.3.1.1.10
1.3.1.1.11
1.3.1.2
1.3.1.21
1.3.1.2.2
1.3.1.2.3
1.3.1.2.4
1.3.1.2.5
1.3.1.2.6
1.3.1.2.7
1.3.1.3
1.3.1.3.1
1.3.1.3.2
1.3.1.3.3
1.3.2
1.3.21

SGEN Major Inspection
Mobilize site
Travel in
Site Specific Safety Training
Set up tooling
Disassemble the Generator
Remove the coolers
Remove the Exciter & Bearings
Remove the Shrouds & Bearing Pedestals
Inspections and Testing
Visual Inspections
Stator Inspections
Inspect slot wedges and end wedge locking elements
Inspect end winding spacers
Inspect circuit ring and supports
Inspect end winding supports and bracing
Inspect the end winding insulation
Inspect the surface sealing
Inspect the winding end leads
Inspect the bolted connections of the main leads
Inspect the cable insulation for cracks, wear, deterioration
Inspect the RTD connections
Inspect the core and air guide sealing
Rotor Inspections
Inspect the bearing journals
Inspect the sealing surfaces
Inspect the coupling face
Inspect the fans
Conduct NDE on the fan blades
Inspect the balance weights
Inspect the end windings and connections (borescope)
Exciter Inspection
Check condition of diode wheel
Check condition of stator winding
Check condition of rotor winding
Electrical Testing
Stator Testing

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information

Page 14 of 25
Change Order No. 1



1.3.2.1.1

1.3.2.1.2
1.3.2.1.3
1.3.2.1.4
1.3.2.1.5
1.3.2.1.6
1.3.2.2
1.3.2.21
1.3.2.2.2
1.3.2.3
1.3.2.31
1.3.2.3.2
1.3.2.4
1.3.2.4.1
1.3.2.4.2
1.3.24.3
1.3.24.4
1.3.2.5
1.3.2.5.1
1.3.2.5.2
1.3.2.5.3
1.4

1.4.1
1.4.2
1.4.

1.5

1.5.1
1.5.2
1.5.3
1.5.4

Measure winding insulation resistance & calculate Pl
Measure temperature sensor insulation resistance (RTDs)
Measure winding resistances
Measure resistances of temperature sensors (RTDs)
Conduct DC Step-voltage test
Conduct EL CID testing
Rotor Testing
Measure insulation resistance
Measure winding resistance
Bearing Electrical Checks
Check bearing insulation resistance
Check bearing RTD resistance (functionality)
Exciter Testing
Measure winding insulation resistance
Check blocking characteristics of diodes
Check RC circuit blocks and overvoltage protection
Check function of diode wheel
Miscellaneous Electrical Checks
Check air cooler RTD resistance (functionality)

Check condition and performance of grounding/earthing brushes

Check performance of generator space heaters

Assemble Generator
Install the Shrouds & Bearing Pedestals

Assemble & Install the Bearings & Exciter

Install the coolers
Demobilization
Inventory & Prep Tools for Shipment
Clean up Siemens work areas
Ship tooling
Travel out

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, inc. Confidential Information

Page 15 of 25
Change Order No. 1



Attachment 4

Exhibit A
Addendum 7
Flex Firing

At Buyer’s option, the Combustion Turbine may be operated at an increased turbine inlet
temperature, resulting in operation greater than base load or “Flex Fired”. Such Flex Fired
operation shall not exceed Seller’s approved turbine inlet temperature increase above the base
load turbine inlet temperature and shall be limited to 5,000 EBH per Hot Gas Path Interval.
Flex firing shall increase the plant output above the normal output of the facility by temporarily
increasing the firing temperature. This increase in firing temperature shall result in additional
wear and tear on the Program Parts and an additional Fee shall be added, as specified in
Exhibit E.

Prior to Buyer exercising its option for Flex Fired operation, Seller shall perform a combustion
system test in coordination with Buyer. The combustion system test shall require Flex Fired
operation of the Combustion Turbine for at least 1 hour. Following conclusion of the test, Seller
shall notify Buyer when Buyer may begin to exercise its option for Flex Fired operation.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 16 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Combustion Turbine Program Parts List

33.2k EBH/1500 ES Basis Interval

Attachment 5

Exhibit B (Rev. 1)

Program Parts Table

Program Parts

Combustor Baskets

Fuel Nozzles

Transitions

Support Housings

Transition Seals

Ring Segments — Row 1

Ring Segments — Row 2

Ring Segments — Row 3

Ring Segments — Row 4

Row 1 Blade

Row 1 Vane

Row 2 Blade

Row 2 Vane

Row 3 Blade

Row 3 Vane

Row 4 Blade

Row 4 Vane

Compressor Blades

Compressor Diaphragms

Diaphragm Seals

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information

Page 17 of 25
Change Order No. 1



Attachment 6

Exhibit C (Rev. 1)
Projected Scheduled Outage Plan

The projected Scheduled Outage plan below is based on the current revision of the Service
Bulletins as provided in Exhibit D. Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outages will be performed
as required by the Contact, subject to the application and modification process set forth in
Exhibit A, Addendum 1.

Combustion Turbine ci:s?)::;tei':r::r Rotor Exchange
Period | Scheduled Outage Type
e
\\\\\2\\ \\\\\\\\\W&\\\\\\\k\\\\\\h\}\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ﬁ
edium

4 Major Major Rotor Exchange #1

g HGP Medium

g Major Major Rotor Exchange #2

190 HGP Medium

11

12 Major Major

* Installation of Combustion Turbine Interval Extension Program Parts at Period 2 HGP

Steam Turbine Scheduled Outages will be performed in conjunction with the corresponding
Combustion Turbine Scheduled Outage as set forth below; should a change to the Service
Bulletin adversely affect the Buyer, the Parties will negotiate changes to the Contract in good
faith.

. ST Generator
Steam Turbine Inspections
Period | Scheduled Outage Type

3 ASI Medium

4 MO Major

5 ASI

6 LO Medium

7 ASI

8 MO Major

9 ASI

10 LO Medium
11 ASI

12 MO Major

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 18 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Exhibit C (Rev. 1) (continued)

Outage Definitions:

Cl — Combustor Scheduled Outage

HGP - Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage
Major — Major Scheduled Outage

ASI — Steam Turbine Annual Safety Inspection
LO — Steam Turbine Limited Overhaul

MO - Steam Turbine Major Overhaul

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 19 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Attachment 7

Exhibit D (continued)
Addendum 1 (Rev. 1)

This Addendum 1 to Exhibit D provides recommendations for gas turbine inspection intervals for
certain SGT6-5000F and 501F units. The inspection intervals provided herein are particular to
Buyer's Combustion Turbine and are to be used in lieu of the minimum interval requirements
outlined in Exhibit SB4-11-0018-GT-EN. Calculation methodology and inspection scope
recommendations are as provided in such SB SB4-11-0018-GT-EN.

Table 1. Inspection Interval Summary (to be applied in place of the inspection intervals
provided in SB4-11-0018-GT-EN).

Inspection Type Interval

Hot Gas Path

(includes the Combustor 33,200 EBH or 1500 ES
Inspection workscope)
Major 66,400 EBH or 3000 ES
Notes

1.) EBH and ES are to be calculated using the service counter calculation
parameters/counters/methods provided per in SB4-11-0018-GT-EN.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 20 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Attachment 8

Exhibit E (Rev. 1)
Payment Schedule

Pricing Schedule:

1. Program Initialization Fee:

The Parties agree that Seller has invoiced Buyer and Buyer has paid to Seller a Program
Initialization Fee in the amount of one million five hundred thousand Dollars (U.S. $1,500,000.00).

2. Fixed Annual Fee:

Seller shall invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a “Fixed Annual Fee” of one hundred
thousand Dollars (U.S. $100,000.00) to be paid in advance of each Calendar Year. Beginning on
March 1, 2018, the Fixed Annual Fee shall increase to one hundred thirteen thousand eight
hundred forty Dollars (U.S. $113,840.00) adjusted per the Escalation Factor.

3. Variable Fee:

Seller shall invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a Variable Fee of five hundred nineteen
Dollars and twenty-nine cents (US $519.29/EBH) per Equivalent Base Hour or eleven-thousand
six-hundred ninety-six Dollars and thirty-two cents (US $11,696.32/ES) per Equivalent Start.

The “Variable Fee” is calculated and invoiced based upon the Equivalent Base Hours (EBH) or
Equivalent Starts (ES) accumulated by the Combustion Turbine. Commencing as of First Fire
with respect to the Combustion Turbine, at the end of each calendar quarter thereafter for such
Combustion Turbine (or at the time of a Scheduled Outage), Seller shall invoice Buyer for the
Variable Fee (per above), based on the actual operation of such Combustion Turbine during such
calendar quarter adjusted per the Escalation Factor (or during such calendar quarter up to the
commencement of the next Scheduled Outage)

4. Flex Firing Variable Fee

In addition to the Variable Fee, should the Combustion Turbine operate any hour or portion
thereof in Flex Firing operation, then and additional “Flex Fire Variable Fee” adder will be
applied pro rata for each portion of the applicable hour for all applicable hours during a quarter.
Such Flex Fire Variable Fee adder shall be one hundred and ten Dollars ($110.00/EBH) as
adjusted per the Escalation Factor. The Flex Fire Variable Fee applicable to the Combustion
Turbine will be calculated each calendar quarter invoiced with the quarterly payment of the
Variable Fees for such quarter.

5. Energy Management Consultant Services Fee

Seller shall invoice Buyer and Buyer shall pay to Seller a “Energy Management Consultant
Services Fee” of seventy-thousand Dollars (U.S. $70,000.00) per Calendar Year adjusted per the
Escalation Factor to be paid quarterly for the next three (3) Calendar Years beginning with
Calendar Year 2018.

True Up of Variable Fees:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 21 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



a. If the Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage is scheduled based on ES per Exhibit C, at
the commencement of each Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage, Seller, notwithstanding
other amounts invoiced under this Contract, will invoice Buyer from the Period 2 Hot Gas Path
Scheduled Outage or from the prior Hot Gas Path or Major inspection, each as applicable, to
the commencement of the Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage, the ES Variable Fee
multiplied by the greater of the total ES accumulated or 1,500 ES, and credit to Buyer any
Variable Fees that have been paid by Buyer since the last Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or
Major Scheduled Outage.

b. If the Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage is scheduled based on EBH per Exhibit C, at
the commencement of each Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage, Seller, notwithstanding
other amounts invoiced under this Contract, will invoice Buyer from the Period 2 Hot Gas Path
Scheduled Outage or from the prior Hot Gas Path or Major Inspection, each as applicable, to
the commencement of the Hot Gas Path or Major Scheduled Outage, the EBH Variable Fee
multiplied by the greater of the total EBH accumulated or 33,200 EBH, and credit to Buyer any
Variable Fees that have been paid by Buyer since the last Hot Gas Path Scheduled Outage or
Major Scheduled Outage.

Variable Fee Invoicing

1. Variable Fee Invoicing Example

For invoicing purposes, the mode of operation is based on the most recent completed
calendar quarter. A ratio is calculated by taking the total EBH accumulated over the
previous calendar quarter divided by the total ES accumulated over the same time period.
If the EBH/ES ratio exceeds 22.13, Seller will invoice based on EBH. If the EBH/ES ratio
is equal to or below 22.13, Seller will invoice based on ES.

The Variable Fee will be calculated in accordance with the following:
Where:
X = Ratio of accumulated EBH to accumulated ES
Y =U.S. $519.29/EBH
Z=U.S. $11,696.32/ES
Calculation of the Variable Fee:

When X is > 22.13, then the Variable Fee shall equal the amount of EBH accrued in that
calendar quarter multiplied by Y.

When X is £ 22.13, then the Variable Fee shall equal the amount of ES accrued in that
calendar quarter multiplied by Z.

Example calculation of the Variable Fee for different values of X:

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 22 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



(i)

X =EBH/ES =32

EBH accrued in that calendar quarter = 1,800
ES accrued in that calendar quarter = 56
Variable Fee = (1,800)*($519.29) = $934,722

(ii)

X =EBH/ES =20

EBH accrued in that calendar quarter = 1,400
ES accrued in that calendar quarter = 70
Variable Fee = (70)*($11,696.32) = $818,742.40

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 23 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Attachment 9

Exhibit G (Rev. 1)
Cancellation Schedule

The cancellation amount owed by Buyer to Seller, pursuant to Section 12.6 of the Contract,
shall be equal to the following:

From the Effective Date to the 14% of the remaining Fees that Buyer would
commencement of the Period 4 Major have owed to Seller if the third Major had
Inspection been performed on the Combustion Turbine
based on the predominant mode of operation
From the completion of the Period 4 Major 18% of the remaining Fees that Buyer would
Inspection to the end of the term of the have owed to Seller if the third Major had
Contract been performed on the Combustion Turbine
based on the predominant mode of operation

Such cancellation amount will be calculated from the date of termination of the Contract.

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 24 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



Attachment 10

Exhibit H
Energy Management Consultant Services

Asset Dispatch in Operations - Engineering Services
Up to two workshops per annum covering:

e |SO design change or business updates impacting dispatch of the asset due to
upcoming changes
Business review based on public data and provided private data
Questions/answers and discussions towards asset performance based on publicly
available data and asset private data

The following services are offered either inside or outside workshop to respect any time critical
business needs:

Resource Model Review, Setup and Update assistance services
e Asset physical model review/assistance for various products of the ISO Market
e Plant information representation to ISO or Dispatch authority (resource data templates)
e Asset enhancement analysis (e.g., Hydrogen, Storage) for dispatch improvement

Commercial Model (bid data) Review, Setup and Update assistance services
o Bid data setup for various products of the ISO in association with resource physical
¢ Models and any enhancement under consideration

Lodi Energy Center Project LTP Page 25 of 25
Siemens Energy, Inc. Confidential Information Change Order No. 1



	Minutes_Draft_032218
	Minutes_Draft_041818
	Item_5_Facilities_Committee-Draft_Minutes
	Item_10_Financial_Report_March_2018
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_March_2018
	Item_12_Sale_Disposal_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_Decommission_Funding_Geo_Facilities
	Item_14_Halliburton_Energy_Svcs_Agreement
	Item_15_Leidos_Engineering_Agreement
	Item_16_TNG_Energy_Services_Agreement
	Item_17_TNT_Industrial_Contractors_Agreement
	Item_18_Letter_Agreement_18SNR02130
	Item_19_Hometown_Connections_Inc
	Item_20_FY_2019_Annual_Budget
	Item_21_Siemens_Energy_Change_Order_No1_Agreement

